Haringey Council

NOTICE OF MEETING

Audit Committee

MONDAY, 1ST FEBRUARY, 2010 at 19:30 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD
GREEN, N22 8LE.

MEMBERS: Councillors Khan (Chair), Diakides, Gorrie, Mallett (Vice-Chair), Mughal,
Meehan, Butcher and Dobbie

AGENDA

1. APOLOGIES
To note any apologies for absence.
2. URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. (Late
items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items will be
dealt with at item 20 below).

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority
at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the matter
becomes apparent.

A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the
member’s judgement of the public interest and if this interest affects their financial
position or the financial position of a person or body as described in paragraph 8 of
the Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the determining of any approval, consent,
licence, permission or registration in relation to them or any person or body described
in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct.



10.

11.

12.

MINUTES (PAGES 1 -12)

To confirm and sign the minutes of the Audit Committee held on the 5 November
2009.

DEPUTATIONS AND PETITIONS
GRANT THORNTON PROGRESS REPORT (PAGES 13 - 14)
GRANTS REPORT 2008/09 (PAGES 15 - 40)

Report of the Chief Financial Officer to report to the Committee the outcomes of the

annual grant work by Grant Thornton and to get approval for the action plan resulting

from the report of the auditors.
EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2009/10 (PAGES 41 - 60)

Report of the Chief Financial Officer to inform the Committee of the external audit
plan for 2009/10 proposed by Grant Thornton and to agree the revised audit fees.

TACKLING HEALTH INEQUALITIES IN HARINGEY - FOLLOW UP REPORT
(PAGES 61 - 80)

Report of Grant Thornton.
JAR ACTION PLAN UPDATE (PAGES 81 - 126)

To provide an overview of progress in delivery of the Safeguarding Plan up to the
month of December, for the Committee to note the programme management
arrangements for the Safeguarding Plan, progress against the milestones set out
within the Plan, progress against safeguarding performance indicators and the
Safeguarding Plan risk management report.

DATA QUALITY - UPDATE REPORT (PAGES 127 - 156)

Report of the Assistant Chief Executive, Performance, Policy, Partnership and
Communication to provide an update on work being done to improve data quality
across the council.

HOUSING BENEFITS 3RD QUARTER PROGRESS REPORT ON COUNTER
FRAUD ACTIVITY (PAGES 157 -162)

Report of the Chief Financial Officer to advise and update Members of the Counter
Fraud performance of the Benefit and Local Taxation Service from the 1% October
2009 — 31°% December 2009.



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

IMPLEMENTATION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(IFRS) - PROGRESS REPORT (PAGES 163 - 172)

Report of the Chief Financial Officer to inform the Committee of the progress made in
respect of the implementation of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
and the actions that are proposed in order to secure full implementation.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT (TMSS) AND INVESTMENT
STRATEGY 2010/11 TO 2012/13 (PAGES 173 - 202)

Report of the Chief Financial Officer to present the Treasury Management Strategy
Statement 2010/11 to 2012/13 for scrutiny prior to its adoption by the Cabinet and
Council and following its agreement by the General Purposes Committee.

INTERNAL AUDIT 3RD QUARTER PROGRESS REPORT (PAGES 203 - 248)

Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management to inform the Audit Committee of
the work undertaken during the third quarter by the Internal Audit Service in
completing the annual audit plan and any responsive fraud investigation work. In
addition, the work the Council’s personnel division has undertaken in supporting
disciplinary action taken across all departments by respective council managers.

INTERNAL AUDIT - CIPFA BENCHMARKING (PAGES 249 - 258)

Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management to advise the Audit Committee of
the results of the CIPFA Benchmarking exercise completed in 2009/10.

REVIEW OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE (PAGES 259 -
272)

Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management to advise Members of the level of
compliance with the Institute of Public Finance (IPF) Toolkit in relation to local
authority Audit Committees and their effectiveness and to provide Members with the
results of the review and options for discussion and approval to ensure that the
requirements of the IPF guidance are fulfilled and the Audit Commission feedback in
relation to the Use of Resources assessments is appropriately addressed.

ANTI MONEY LAUNDERING REGULATIONS AND COUNCIL POLICY (PAGES
273 - 282)

Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management to advise the Audit Committee of
the updated Corporate Anti-money laundering policy.



19. QUARTER 3 RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE AND REVISED CORPORATE RISK
MANAGEMENT POLICY (PAGES 283 - 318)

Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management to inform the Audit Committee of
the current position on risk management implementation across the Council and to
provide an updated Corporate Risk Management Policy and Strategy for review and
approval.

20. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

To consider any new items of urgent business admitted at item 2 above.

21. DATE OF NEXT MEETING

Ken Pryor Helen Jones

Deputy Head of Local Democracy and Member Principal Committee Coordinator
Services Tel: 020 8489 2615

5" Floor Fax: 020 8489 2660

River Park House Email: Helen.jones@haringey.gov.uk
225 High Road

Wood Green

London N22 8HQ Friday, 22 January 2010



Page 1 Agenda ltem 4

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 5 NOVEMBER 2009

Councillors Khan (Chair), Diakides, Gorrie, Mallett (Vice-Chair), Meehan, Butcher
and Dobbie

MINUTE ACTION
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY

PRAC123, APOLOGIES
There were no apologies for absence.

The Chair announced that he had heard that this would be the last
meeting of the Audit Committee attended by Tim Fisher, Deputy Head of
Benefits and Local Taxation, who was leaving the Council. The
Committee thanked Mr Fisher for his work for the Committee.

PRAC124. URGENT BUSINESS

There were no items of urgent business.

PRAC125. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

PRAC126. MINUTES
RESOLVED

That the minutes of the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 30 July
2009 be approved and signed by the Chair.

PRAC127. DEPUTATIONS AND PETITIONS

There were no deputations or petitions.

PRAC128. AUDIT OF ACCOUNTS 2008/09

Kevin Bartle, Corporate Finance, introduced the report on the Audit of
Accounts 2008/09. It was noted that the final report on the Audit and the
accounts 2008/09 had been approved by the General Purposes
Committee, and the Audit Committee was asked to agree the
management responses contained in the action plan. Graham Oliver,
Corporate Finance, reported that the accounts had been signed off by
the auditors on 25" September 2009, five days in advance of the
statutory deadline of 30™ September, and that the auditors had given an
unqualified audit opinion. The Committee was advised that there were
14 recommendations from the audit, all of which had been agreed with
the Council. Grant Thornton confirmed that they were satisfied with the
management responses provided.

In relation to recommendation 2 on fixed asset accounting, the




Page 2

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 5 NOVEMBER 2009

Committee asked about the Major Repairs Allowance, and whether this
had any impact on revenue such as to affect council tax. Mr Oliver
confirmed that this was completely separate and would have no impact
on council tax. The Committee asked about related party transactions
and the number of declarations that were not returned, in response to
which Mr Oliver reported that all the declarations not received at the start
of the audit had been returned by completion of the audit. Mr Oliver
reported that measures were being put in place to address the number
of declarations outstanding at the start of the audit. In response to a
question from the Committee regarding the number of outstanding
related party transaction returns relating to Members, Mr Oliver agreed
to supply this information outside the meeting. Committee members
suggested that Members should be provided with more information
about related party transaction declarations, in order to fully understand
their importance.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding the
recommendation on fixed asset accounting and capitalisation, Mr Oliver
confirmed that the auditors had needed to request additional evidence in
this area and the recommendation was to highlight the need to
strengthen the audit trail to ensure that all the necessary evidence was
provided. Grant Thornton confirmed that in line with the new accounting
standards coming into practice for the 2010/11 accounts, clarity was
needed in relation to capitalised expenditure and it was important that
there was a clear audit trail. It was confirmed that this applied to all areas
of the Council and would have no budget implications.

The Committee asked when the accounts had been available for public
inspection, and it was reported that this had been for a four week period
from 2 August 2009, and had been publicised in advance.

The Chair thanked officers for their achievement in obtaining an
unqualified audit opinion and thanked the auditors. Referring to the
executive summary of Grant Thornton, the Chair requested that, in order
to establish best practice and transparency of process, officers exercise
their professional judgement in making calculations to ensure as far as
possible that subsequent adjustments were not necessary. The Chair
emphasised the importance of addressing the problems identified in
relation to use of data, and noted the role of the Audit Committee in
monitoring this area. The Chair expressed determination to address this
issue, but emphasised that this was only possible if officers provided the
Committee with full and accurate reports, periodically, in respect of the
Council’s use of data.

The Chair stated that it was his view that, although governance controls
at the Alexandra Palace and Park Trust had improved, the controls in
place remained insufficient and it was essential for the Council to have
adequate assurance, as the Council had overall responsibility for
subsidising the Trust. The Chair noted that the Audit Committee relied
on the professional advice of the Chief Financial Officer and the
Council’s auditors. The Chair indicated that he wished to move that a
recommendation be added that arrangements be put in place to ensure




Page 3

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 5 NOVEMBER 2009

that the amount of subsidy for Alexandra Palace and Park did not
exceed the amount agreed and set out in the budget.

Committee members expressed concern that the Alexandra Palace and
Park Trust should be singled out, when the same should be true of all
areas of the Council, in response to which the Chair reported that the
Council was responsible for subsidising the Trust, as a result of which it
should be ensured that the budget set out in accordance with the advice
of the Chief Financial Officer should not be exceeded. Committee
members questioned the authority of the Audit Committee to impose a
budget constraint in this way, in response to which the Chair stated that
it was his personal observation that a system should be in place to
ensure that the subsidy for the Alexandra Palace and Park Trust did not
exceed the budgeted amount, because as per the terms of reference of
the Audit Committee was required to provide independent assurance of
the financial and non financial performance of the Council. Committee
members indicated that they would support a recommendation to ensure
that all Council services were subject to the same arrangements, and not
just the Alexandra Palace and Park Trust, in response to which the Chair
responded that, while all other Council services were required to abide
by the advice of the Chief Financial Officer, it had been demonstrated
that the Trust had previously not abided by the guidance of the Chief
Financial Officer and that this was why specific arrangements were
necessary.

The Committee expressed concern that the Audit Committee did not
have the power to impose any mechanism such as the one suggested
within the legal framework. In response to questions from the
Committee, the Chief Financial Officer confirmed that any funding
required by the Trust in excess of the budgeted amount had to be
requested from and approved by the Council, and that budget monitoring
reports for the Trust were reported to Cabinet and monitored in the same
way as other Council bodies via the Chief Financial Officer.

The Chair stated that the Trust must abide by the professional
judgement of the Chief Financial Officer and as per the earlier advice of
the Head of Legal Services, the section 151 officer had responsibility for
the proper administration of the financial affairs of the Council as a
whole, including the finances of the Alexandra palace and Park Trust,
and that a mechanism was required to ensure that the amount agreed in
the budget, in accordance with the professional judgement of the Chief
Financial Officer, was not exceeded.

Committee members noted that the Council did not have the authority to
limit the expenditure of the Alexandra Palace and Park Trust, nor to
refuse to finance the deficit of that body, as it had a legal obligation to do
so. In response to a question from the Committee and the Chair, the
Committee Manager advised that the recommendation relating to
arrangements to ensure that subsidy for the Alexandra Palace and Park
Trust did not exceed the amount set out in the budget did not fall within
the remit of the Audit Committee, in accordance with its terms of
reference. The additional recommendation was withdrawn.




Page 4

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 5 NOVEMBER 2009

RESOLVED

That the management responses contained in the action plan be agreed
by the Committee, and that the Committee receive an update on agreed
actions at a future meeting of the Audit Committee.

PRAC129.

COMPREHENSIVE AREA ASSESSMENT (CAA): USE OF
RESOURCES (UOR) - AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE 2008/09
ASSESSMENT

Gerald Almeroth, Chief Financial Officer, reported that the Council’s
overall Use of Resources score was 3 out of 4, the same as for the
previous year. Scores for managing other resources were positive,
especially in the area of making effective use of natural resources.
Particular concern had been identified in respect of the use of data,
which had obtained a score of 1.

Grant Thornton introduced their report. It was reported that, as a
component of the new Comprehensive Area Assessment, the scope of
the Use of Resources had expanded. The Council’'s scores were
reported as follows: Managing Finances - 3, Governing the Business - 2
and other resources — 3. The Committee was advised of the high priority
actions that had been identified in relation to demonstrating improving
outcomes, articulating the benefits of Haringey Forward and core
efficiency  programmes, demonstrating the improvement in
commissioning and data quality arrangements with regard to inter
agency child protection practice, addressing weaknesses in data quality
management and reporting in child protection and developing data
quality checking mechanisms for housing and council tax benefits
claims. Management responses to these were contained in the action
plan.

The Chair expressed satisfaction that a score of three had been
attained. In response to a question from the Committee, Grant Thornton
explained the basis on which the scores were calculated. The Chief
Financial Officer reported that work to improve the areas identified in the
action plan had been going on for some time, and that named officers
had been identified with responsibility for each action. It was reported
that there were specific action plans in place to address the data quality
issues in child protection as part of the Joint Area Review action plan
and in benefits and local taxation. The Committee suggested that there
should be a single senior officer with overall responsibility for all the
actions, who would act as the point of contact for the Audit Committee
on these issues.

In respect of the data quality issues, Grant Thornton confirmed that the
concern of the auditor was a lack of confidence in the accuracy of the
information being provided. It was reported that follow up audit work
would include data quality in benefits and local taxation and child
protection, as well as other areas for testing. The Committee
emphasised that if problems had been identified relating to quality of
data, it was essential that this be put right. The Chief Financial Officer




Page 5

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 5 NOVEMBER 2009

advised that the action plan included information on what had been done
to address the issues raised, and the further work that was planned, and
confirmed that further reports on progress could be produced if required
by the Committee.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding the other areas
that were tested in respect of data quality, Grant Thornton confirmed that
these were listed in the report under data quality spot-check results. For
the majority of the areas tested, no significant concerns had been raised.

In response to the Committee’s suggestion that there be a single senior
officer responsible for data quality issues, the Chief Financial Officer
advised that the new data quality strategy was the responsibility of the
Assistant Chief Executive, Policy, Performance, Partnership and
Communication and it was agreed that he should attend the next
meeting of the Audit Committee to provide an update on data quality
issues, including the specific areas of benefits and local taxation and
child protection.

The Committee asked for an update on the present performance for
initial and core assessments in children’s services. The Director of the
Children and Young People’s Service, Peter Lewis, reported that
currently just below 40% of initial assessments were undertaken within 7
days; this was below target, but it was anticipated that the target of 53%
would be achieved by the end of December 2009. It was also reported
that for core assessments, 70% were being completed within 7 days,
which was ahead of the target of 63%. Mr Lewis reported that the issue
of data quality was being taken extremely seriously, and that significant
internal audit and external audit work had been undertaken to assess the
quality and timeliness of assessments. In response to a question from
the Committee regarding the reasons for the percentage of initial
assessments being completed within 7 days not meeting the target, it
was reported that the demand for assessments was 50% higher than it
had been the previous year, and that difficulties within the service had
led to a deterioration in performance, although this was now improving
steadily. Mr Lewis reported that the police had introduced a new system
for referrals, to ensure that incoming referrals were managed according
to priority. Meetings were being held with the police on a daily basis to
prioritise incoming referrals. The Committee was advised that the service
was confident that the target of 53% of initial assessments being
completed within 7 days would be met by the end of the year.

The Chair asked the auditors for their advice on the most effective model
by which the Audit Committee could monitor progress against the action
plan. Grant Thornton reported that the production by officers of progress
reports for the Committee, with specific identified issues highlighted,
would be the most effective, and that the auditors would also produce
reports for the Committee.

RESOLVED

i) That the Audit Committee note the Use of Resources




Page 6

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 5 NOVEMBER 2009

assessment and scores and the Council’s intended actions to
implement auditor recommendations.

ii) That the Audit Committee receive a progress report from the
Assistant Chief Executive, Policy, Performance, Partnership
and Communication on data quality issues at the next
meeting.

PRAC130.

GRANT THORNTON - AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT

Grant Thornton presented their audit progress report to the Committee. It
was noted that the full annual audit plan for the forthcoming year and an
update against the 2009/10 audit plan would be presented at the next
meeting of the Committee.

RESOLVED

That the Committee note the content of the report.

PRAC131.

PROGRESS REPORT ON COUNTER FRAUD ACTIVITY RELATING
TO HOUSING BENEFIT AND COUNCIL TAX BENEFIT

Tim Fisher, Deputy Head of Benefits and Local Taxation, presented the
update on the Counter Fraud performance of the Benefit and Local
Taxation Service from the 1 July 2009 to 30 September 2009. It was
reported that 19 sanctions had been issued for the second quarter,
which compared favourably with the previous year, where 10 sanctions
had been issued in the second quarter. Year to date, 30 sanctions had
been issued in comparison with 34 the previous year, and it was noted
that 21 cases had been referred for prosecution. It was reported that
£496,997 in overpaid benefit had been identified, against £499,835 the
previous year. The Committee requested that comparisons with the
previous year be incorporated into the reports to the Committee in future.

Mr Fisher reported that the National Fraud Initiative was one of the main
activities for the Benefits and Local Taxation team, and that 2,977 of the
referrals received from the Audit Commission had been identified as of
interest and would be looked into over the course of the year and
forwarded for investigation as appropriate. It was reported that the Fraud
Investigation Team were working with the DWP on the National Fraud
Initiative, and that partnership working with Job Centre Plus was also
increasing.

The Committee congratulated officers for the increase in cases going to
prosecution, and welcomed that this increase had been publicised. In
response to a question regarding some of the report descriptions used in
the table of priority areas relating to data matching — Mr Fisher explained
that the descriptions consisted of the source of the data being compared,
for example licensing details for taxi drivers, and the quality of the data in
identifying potential fraud cases, for example high quality would mean
that there was a high likelihood that a match in this area warranted
further investigation. The Committee noted that the number of cases
referred for further investigation following comparison with the borough




Page 7

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 5 NOVEMBER 2009

payroll was a concern.

In response to a question regarding the use of the electoral register, Mr
Fisher reported that the electoral register was used in the course of the
team’s enquiries, but not as part of the national fraud initiative. The Chief
Financial Officer advised that, as the register was updated less
frequently than other sources of data, more up to date sources of
information were considered to be of higher quality, although the
electoral register was cross-checked as part of counter fraud activities. It
was reported that the Audit Commission was currently focussing on
fraud, especially tenancy and single-person discount issues, and that the
auditors would be examining the Council’s arrangements in this respect
as part of their audit work for 2009/10.

RESOLVED

That the report and the work carried out by the Benefits and Local
Taxation Service in relation to Counter Fraud activity be noted.

PRAC132.

INTERNAL AUDIT 2ND QUARTER PROGRESS REPORT

Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management, presented the
internal audit progress report for the second quarter. It was reported that
significant progress had been made on the implementation of
outstanding audit recommendations, and it was reported that 100% of
Priority 1 recommendations reviewed during quarter 2 (17
recommendations) had been completed by the follow up audit and only 2
recommendations from previous years remained outstanding.

The Committee welcomed the progress on the implementation of
recommendations. In response to a question regarding the
recommendations relating to external storage and whether these matters
had already been covered in a previous report on this issue, it was
agreed that Ms Woods would look into the recommendations and actions
taken following the incident when records had been found in a disused
property in the borough some years previously, and why these issues
had been identified as still requiring action.

The Committee expressed concern regarding the limited assurance in
relation to the Decent Homes Standard. It was reported that
management responses had been obtained from Homes for Haringey
and from the Council as client, and the Committee emphasised the
importance of ensuring that no actions fell between the two bodies and
were not followed up as a result. The Head of Audit advised that as all
recommendations were due for implementation before the end of
November, that Internal Audit complete a follow up review and present
the findings at the next meeting of the Audit Committee. The Committee
agreed the suggested approach.

The Chair expressed satisfaction at the progress in implementing Priority
1 recommendations, and thanked the Chief Financial Officer and Head
of Audit and Risk Management for this achievement.

AW

AW




Page 8

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 5 NOVEMBER 2009

RESOLVED

i) That the audit coverage and progress during the second
quarter 2009/10 be noted.

ii) That progress and responses received in respect of
outstanding audit recommendations be noted.

iii) That the actions taken during quarter 2 to address outstanding
recommendations be confirmed as appropriate.

PRAC133.

RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE - QUARTER 2 2009/10

Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management, presented the report
on the current position on risk management implementation across the
Council. It was reported that risk registers for every business unit and
department were now loaded onto the Covalent electronic system and,
as at the review at the end of September, these were all completed and
up to date. As a result of organisational changes, the number of risk
registers had reduced from 34 to 32, all of which were reviewed in line
with the risk management strategy and Covalent system.

The Chair noted that the corporate risk register was reviewed on a
quarterly basis by the Chief Executive’s Management Board, and asked
whether there was any feedback from the last meeting at which this was
considered. Ms Woods reported that there were no significant changes
to the key risks, but that the separation of risks relating to children’s
services and adult services had been highlighted, as recommended by
the Audit Committee. The main change had been an increase in the
impact of the risk relating to the recession. In response to a question
from the Chair, the Chief Financial Officer confirmed that it was his
opinion that risk management arrangements were adequately managed,
including for the Haringey Strategic Partnership.

RESOLVED

That the implementation of the risk management strategy across the
Council be noted.

PRAC134.

ALEXANDRA PALACE - FOLLOW UP AUDIT OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROLS AT THE CHARITABLE
TRUST AND TRADING COMPANY

Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management, presented a report
on the follow up audit work completed following the original review of
corporate governance and internal control arrangements at Alexandra
Palace and Park Charitable Trust and Alexandra Palace Trading Limited.
As a result of the findings of the follow up audit work, changes in
management had taken place at Alexandra Palace, and the changes to
the management response reflected this. It was reported that positive
progress was now being made and that the Trust and trading company
had now appointed their own internal auditors. The Committee was




Page 9

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 5 NOVEMBER 2009

advised that some of the items on the management response remained
partly achieved and that progress on these would be covered as part of
the internal audit progress reports and in the annual governance
assurance process and would be reported to the Audit Committee.

The Committee expressed concern that progress in implementing
recommendations had been so slow, particularly in relation to contract
management; while it was noted that arrangements were now compliant,
concern was expressed that issues had remained unaddressed for so
long. The Committee asked whether there were any legacy issues as a
result of previous tendering arrangements and Ms Woods reported that
the new management were in the process of reviewing all contracts. Ms
Woods had met with the new internal auditors for the Palace to discuss
the risks relating to the Trust and the trading company, and a new audit
programme had been developed up to the end of the next financial year.
In response to a question from the Committee regarding how progress
would be reported to the Audit Committee, it was confirmed that a further
follow up review would be carried out by the new internal auditors and a
report provided to the Committee. It was reported that management had
accepted the recommendations and timescales. A further review would
be carried out in March 2010 and would be reported back to the Audit
Committee following the results of that review.

Grant Thornton reported that when the International Financial Reporting
Standards came into force for the 2010/11 accounts, it was expected
that the accounts for Alexandra Palace and Park Trust and APTL would
need to be incorporated into the Council’s accounts. The Trust and
APTL would be covered by the Annual Governance Statement and, as
with the ALMO, the auditors would expect proper governance processes
to be in place. If these expectations were not met, the issues would be
raised by the auditors and would be reflected in the Annual Governance
Statement and an action plan would need to be in place to address the
concerns identified.

The Committee asked what the implications of grouping the accounts
would be for the Council. The Chief Financial Officer advised that there
were issues that would need to be resolved in preparation for the
application of the International Financial Reporting Standards, of which
the Trust's debt would be the primary issue. The Committee requested
a report on the options for addressing the issue of the debt, in response
to which the Chief Financial Officer reported that work on this issue was
ongoing and that a report would be presented to Committee Members as
soon as possible, once due process had been followed.

The Chair noted that the Audit Committee had previously requested that
all recommendations of the first audit be implemented by 31 March
2009, but that revised deadlines of March 2010 had now been
introduced and asked whether this had been in anticipation of the
revised deadlines being approved by the Audit Committee. Ms Woods
reported that revised deadlines had been agreed where the original
deadlines had not been achieved; the Council’'s concerns had been
made clear to the Board, and management had agreed the revised




Page 10

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 5 NOVEMBER 2009

deadlines as final.

The Chair highlighted areas of the report where the Alexandra Palace
and Park Board had not accepted the audit recommendations, and
expressed serious concern regarding this. The Chief Financial Officer
reported that all the recommendations had now been accepted by the
management as necessary to ensure proper governance and value for
money at Alexandra Palace. The Chair noted that the report confirmed
the responsibility of the Audit Committee to monitor progress in
implementing the audit recommendations. In accordance with the advice
of the Head of Legal Services that the section 151 officer had
responsibility for ensuring that adequate controls were in place at the
Palace, the Chair noted, as per the reports of the Chief Finance Officer,
that positive progress was being made.

The Committee asked what action could be taken if the Trust and trading
company were found not to be implementing the recommendations as
agreed. The Chief Financial Officer reported that, where this had been
found to be the case in the course of the follow up audit, the Council had
requested in the strongest terms that these issues be addressed, as a
result of which changes had been made at the Palace. The Chief
Financial Officer reported that it was the responsibility of the Trust and
trading company to implement the recommendations and to ensure that
adequate governance arrangements were in place. The Chair advised
that the advice of the Monitoring Officer was that the section 151 officer
had responsibility over all areas of the Council, including the Alexandra
Palace and Park Trust and Alexandra Palace Trading Limited, and that
the Audit Committee had responsibility for monitoring this.

RESOLVED

That the contents of the report and actions agreed and being taken to
address the findings and recommendations be noted.

PRAC135.

NATIONAL FRAUD INITIATIVE

Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management, presented the report
on progress made in investigating potential data matches across the
Council as part of the National Fraud Initiative (NFI). Ms Woods reported
that of the 31,594 potential data matches notified to the Council as part
of the NFI, 2,130 had been recommended for further investigation by the
Audit Commission. It was reported that half of these investigations had
been carried out to date, the highest number of these relating to housing
and council tax benefits, and the Council was on track to complete all
investigations by the end of 2009 in accordance with the Audit
Commission deadline.

The Committee asked what the cost to the Council was of undertaking
these investigations as part of the NFI. It was agreed that the Committee
would be provided with an estimate of the costs involved. The Chief
Financial Officer confirmed that the Council had raised the issue of
resources required to participate in the NFI with the Audit Commission

GA/
AW




Page 11

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 5 NOVEMBER 2009

directly, particularly as the Council also already undertook proactive
work in this area. Grant Thornton advised that the Audit Commission
was likely to increase activities of this nature, as a significant amount of
fraud was detected in this way nationally, regardless of the fact that very
few cases had been identified in Haringey to date.

A Committee member suggested that if a significant amount of fraud had
been identified, the Committee would have been expressing concerns
regarding the high figures and how this could be addressed, but that as
only small numbers had been identified, concern was instead being
raised regarding the resources required with little outcome. It was felt
that the fact that the amount of fraud detected was very low in the
borough should be welcomed.

It was agreed that as a statutory requirement of the Audit Commission,
the work on the NFI had to be done, but that it was essential to know
what the cost to the Council was, in order to assess whether value for
money was being achieved. The Committee advised that it was
necessary to ensure that no duplication of effort was happening in the
course of the NFI work.

The Chief Financial Officer advised that it was the Council’'s duty to
detect fraud and any potential control issues, and that the Council took a
proactive approach to this work. It was agreed that the cost of this work
should, however, be calculated and compared to the value of fraud
uncovered.

RESOLVED

That the contents of the report be noted.

PRAC136.

ANTI-FRAUD AND CORRUPTION STRATEGY

Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management, presented the report
on the revised Corporate Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy, Fraud
Response Plan and Whistle-blowing Policy. It was reported that these
were reviewed on a regular basis to ensure that the corporate policy was
consistent with best practice. Ms Woods reported that the main changes
were the inclusion of specific strategies for the Haringey Strategic
Partnership and Homes for Haringey.

The Committee requested that changes to documents be indicated as
track changes in the reports, for ease of reference in future.

RESOLVED

That the revised Corporate Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy, Fraud
Response Plan and Whistle-blowing Policy be approved.

PRAC137.

NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

There were no new items of urgent business.




Page 12

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 5 NOVEMBER 2009

PRAC138.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

Monday, 1 February 2010 at 19:30hrs.

The meeting closed at 21:55hrs.

COUNCILLOR GMMH RAHMAN KHAN

Chair




Page 13

o Grant Thornton

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY

AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT
FEBRUARY 2010
Work Progress
Audit Plan We agreed our indicative fees letter with the Council and presented this to
2009-10 the April 2009 Audit Committee meeting.
Our full audit plan and updated audit fee has been agreed with management
and will be presented to this Audit Committee.
2009/10 As patt of our 2009/10 plan, we will begin work with the Council this

accounts audit

month to help prepare for the 2009/10 accounts audit. This will include
members of the Corporate Finance team attending a half day accounts
workshop on 10 February at our offices.

Interim - we will complete our interim audit work in March 2010 and
provide an update on key messages to the Audit Committee.

Final - we will audit the year end accounts between July and September 2010
and report our results to members as part of the Report to those charged
with governance (ISA260).

International In 2009, we held a workshop with the Council and issued an IFRS
Financial conversion report planner to management which highlighted the areas of
Reporting greatest likely impact for the Council and proposes a number of actions for
Standards the Council over the coming months. We are continuing to work with
(IFRS) management as preparations for IFRS continue.

Use of The use of resources assessment, using the key lines of enquiry prescribed
resources and by the Audit Commission, needs to be completed around a month earlier
data quality than last year. We will issue our Use of Resources report in September 2010
2010 and key messages will be presented to the October 2010 Audit Committee.

We have begun our discussions with management to help prepare for the
2010 assessment, including sharing of emerging good practice from the 2009
assessment. We intend to meet with management, in the next month, to
assist in the timely completion of the 2010 assessment.

In accordance with our plan, local UoR projects on workforce management,
leaseholder service charges and partnership working are underway. We will
report the results of these reviews to the Council in February and March
2010.

Agenda ltem 6




Page 14

Work Progress

Use of
resources and
data quality
2010
(continued)

Following last year's UoR assessment of inadequate (level 1) for data quality
we will carry out additional risk based data quality spotcheck work in
June/July 2010.

We have recently completed a mandatory National Fraud Initiative (NFI)
RAG risk assessment for the Audit Commission, based on the Council's
progress in investigating potential data matches. It is expected that the
Commission will carry out NFI spotchecks in a sample of bodies assessed as
"red." In common with most of our audited bodies, we assessed the Council
as "amber" on the basis of progress made to date and we will continue to
monitor progress as part of our 2009/10 plan.

We will plan and perform any other local UoR work required to support our
UoR conclusion between now and September 2010.

Grants 2008-09

Our work is complete and we will present our report of summary findings to
this Audit Committee.

Grant Thornton UK LLP
February 2010

Page 2



Sl INE Agenda ltem 7

Haringey Council

Agenda Item

Audit Committee On 1st February 2010

Report title: Grants Report 2008/09

Report of: Chief Financial Officer

Ward(s) affected: All Report for: Information

1. Purpose

1.1To report to the committee the outcomes of the annual grant work by Grant Thornton
and to obtain approval for the action plan resulting from the report of the auditors.

2. Recommendations

2.1 That the Committee agrees the management responses contained in the action plan.

Report authorised by: Gerald Almeroth — Chief Financial Officer

Contact officer: Kevin Bartle — Head of Corporate Finance
Telephone 020 8489 3743

1 of3



Page 16

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The attached report from Grant Thornton details the Council’'s performance in relation
to Grant Thornton’s certification of external grant claims for the financial year 2008/09.
The accompanying action plan from the auditors contains the Council’s response and
deadline dates for action. :

4. Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if applicable)

4.1 None.

5. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report:

Grant Thornton Report: London Borough of Haringey Grants Report 2008-09

6. Background

6.1  Each year the Council is required to obtain certification of a number of its
external grant claims by the council’s external auditors Grant Thornton. The
attached report from Grant Thornton details their findings from these
certifications and provides details of the Council’'s overall performance in
relation to grant claims.

6.2 As can be seen from section 2.2 of the Grant Thornton report the Council's
performance in relation to grants has improved in 2008/09, when compared to
2007/08, in all areas except for number of claims amended. In addition the
table in Appendix B details the level of fees charged for this work.

6.3 However there are still areas where further improvements are required,
particularly in the areas of amendments to claims, and the action plan is
intended to bring about the required improvements.

7. Action Plan arising from Grants Report 2008/09
7.1 The action plan contained within the auditors’ report has the Council’s
responses included, along with key actions, responsibilities and target dates.

The action plan will be monitored over the coming months in conjunction with
the auditors.

20f3




8.1

9.1

10.

10.1

Page 17

Financial Implications

There are no direct financial implications arising from the recommendations in
this report. However if improvements to the grants processes and certification
continue to occur there is scope for further savings to be made on the fees
charged to the Council for this work.

Recommendations

That the Committee agrees the management responses contained in the
action plan.

Head of Legal Services comments

The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on the content of this report
and has no specific comment to make.

30f3



Page 18

Grant Thornton

London Borough of Haringey

Grants Report 2008-09

DRAFT - 18 January 2009



Page 19

Contents Page
1 Executive summary 1
2 Detailed findings 3
Appendices

A Approach and context to certification
B Details of claims and returns certified in 2008-09

C  Action plan




Arrangements for
certification:

amounts claimed
below £100,000 - no
certification
amounts claimed
between £100,000 -
£500.000 -
agreement lo

underlying records
amounts claimed
over £500,000 -

agreement to
underlying records
and assessment of
contral environment.
Where full reliance
cannot be placed,
detalled testing,

1.1

1.3

Page 20

y Council
Grants Report 2008-09

I Executive summary

Introduction
The Council recetved 14 grant claims and returns from government departments and other
bodies requiring external audit certification in 2008-09, representing income in excess of

£362 million.

Grant Thornton, as the Council’s auditors and acting as agents of the Audit Commission, is
required to certify the claims submitted by the Council. This certification typically takes
place some 6-12 months after the claim period and represents a final but important part of
the process to confirm the Council's entitlement to funding.

This report summarises our overall assessment of the Council’s management arrangements
in respect of the certification process and draws attention to significant matters in relation to
individual claims.

Approach and context to certification

We provide a certificate on the accuracy of grant claims and returns to various government
departments and other agencies. Arrangements for certification are prescribed by the Audit
Commission, which agrees the scope of the work with each relevant government
department or agency and issues auditors with a Certification Instruction (CI) for each
specific claim or return.

Appendix A sets out an overview of the approach to certification work, the roles and
responsibilities of the various parties involved and the scope of the work we perform.

Key messages and areas for action
A summary of all claims and retutns subject to certification is provided at Appendix B,
together with the certification fee and outcome of our review.

The key messages from our review are summarised in Exhibit One below, and set out in
detail in the next section of the report.

Exhibit One: Key messages and areas for action

Aspect of certification arrangements Action

Officers should give attention to
ensuring fewer claims are amended in
2009/10.

Performance has improved against 3 of the 5
performance measures and 100% performance
was maintained on another measure. Finally,
the number of claims requiring amendment
in 2008/09 is the same as in 2007/08;
however this performance measure falls as
the total number of claims submitted has
reduced.

won UK LLP. All rights reserved




1.8

1.10

Page 21

Haringey Council
Grants Report 2008-08

Aspect of certification arrangements -

Action

BENO1 - Housing and Council Tax Benefit -
significant improvement is required in respect
of Housing Benefits whete the claim was ;
qualified due to a number of issues with the -
quality of data. This was the only claim or
return to be qualified in 2008/09. ‘

The issues revealed by the certification
work should be discussed within the
Benefits and Local Taxation team, and
extra training be provided to officers
to avold the same issues arising again

BENOT - high error rates wete found in the
Single Person Discount (SPD) applied to -
Council Tax Benefit (CTB) claimants

'The Council should undertake regular

checks of SPD cases, by matching all -
cases in both the CT system and the

" | benefits system where there appeats to

be single occupancy and SPD has not
been awarded in the CT system

BENO1 - in response to the issues identified
the Council has introduced more stringent
quality control (QC) measures within Benefits

The successful implementation and
use of this software should be
monitored by senior management on a

response to the 2007/08 qualification of this -
return it was agreed that Internal Audit would
complete detailed testing of schools with
external payroll providers. The process of -
securing these testing results proved to be
more time consuming than anticipated and.
should be improved upon in future years.

and Local Taxation. This includes the purchase | regular basis
of improved QC software ‘ ‘
PENO5 - Teachers' Pensions Rei:uxﬁ - m The Council officets with

" responsibility for the PENO5 return.
“should liaise closely with Internal and

External audit IA and EA) to ensure
that IA complete the required testing
ptior to EA coming on site for their
certification wotk

The way forward

We have made a number of recommendations to address the key messages above and other
findings arising from our certification work at Appendix C.

Implementation of the agreed recommendations will assist the council in compiling accurate
and timely claims for certification. This will reduce the risk of penalties for late submission,
potential repayment of grant and additional certification fees.

The new use of resources assessment in 2009 required auditors to consider the results of
certification work when undertaking the Use of Resources assessment, including, in
particular, the impact of housing benefit and council tax testing on data quality. The 2010
assessment will be further integrated with grant certification work, including consideration

of the outcome of a wider range of grant claims.

Acknowledgements

1.11  We would like to take this opportunity to thank the grant claim co-ordinator and Council

officers for their assistance and co-operation during the course of the certification process.

Grant Thornton UK LLP
18 January 2009




&
)

Page 22

2y Counci

ts Report 2008-09

2 Detailed findings

introduction

This section of the report summarises the main issues arising from the certification of grants
and returns in 2008-09. Further details of the individual grants that have been certified are
provided at Appendix B and the Action Plan at Appendix C sets out our recommendations
and improvement opportunities arising from the certification of individual grants.

Performance against targets

Exhibit Two summarises the Council's performance against key certification performance
targets for the 14 claims and returns submitted for certification in 2008-09 compared to 17
claims and returns in 2007-08:

Exhibit Two: Achievement against key performance measures

Performance measure Target | Achievementin | Achievement | Ditection
2008-09- - in 2007-08 of travel
No. % No. %

Number of claims 100% 14 100- 15 88 T
submitted on time
Number of claims 100% 14 100 17 100 ->
certified on time *
Number of claims 0% 5 36 5 29 )
amended by the auditor

' Number of claims 0% 1 7 | 5 | 2 ?

| qualified by the auditor +
Number of claims for 0% 3 21 4 24 T
which certification fee
exceeded budget

* the certification deadline is that prescribed by the grant paying body as advised by the
Audit Commission, or if a claim is received after the submission deadline, within three
months of receipt.

T the qualification of a grant claim of return has a much lower threshold than for a set of
accounts. We are required to qualify for any non-compliance with Audit Commission /
Departmental requirements even where they are not significant to the claim as a whole.

This analysts of performance against targets shows that:

. All grant claims and returns were submitted for certification on time. This is an
improvement on the prior year when 88% were submitted on time

201G Grant Thornton UK LLP. Al rights ressrved

[os]



2.10

Page 23

Haringey Council
Srants Heport 2008-098

e Only one claim was qualified, the BENO1 Housing and Council Tax Benefit claim.
This represents 7% of all claims, an improvement on the prior year petformance when
29% of claims were qualified

e  The number of amended claims remained the same at 5, although in percentage terms
this was a deterioration on the prior year's performance (36% as opposed to 29%)

. The fee exceeded budget on 21% of claims. This was an improvement on the prior
year performance of 24%.

We charged a total fee of £84,000 against a budget of £90,000 for the certification of claims
and returns in 2008-09. In the majority of cases we charged less than budgeted as
certification took less time than anticipated. This can be credited to improved working
papers and processes at the Council. The most significant budget over-spend was on the
BENO1 Housing and Council Tax Benefit claim, for which we billed £11,000 more than
anticipated. This was due to the complicated nature of the qualifications on the claim, and
the fact that additional testing was required beyond our initial sample. Further details can be
found in paragraphs 2.16 - 2.24. Details of fees charged for specific claims are included
within Appendix B.

Management arrangements

Good arrangements are required for successful management of the certification of grant
claims and returns. The results of our review of aspects of the Council's management
arrangements are set out below. Associated recommendations for improvement ate
included at Appendix C.

Grants co-ordination

The Council has a grants co-ordinator who effectively liaises with key officers and external
audit on all grants claims and returns. This is an area of strength for the Council, as shown
by the overall improvement in key targets this year (see Exhibit Two above).

Compilation procedures

As part of our Control Environment and Testing Assessment we reviewed the compilation
procedures for each claim or return. We generally found that the person compiling the claim
was of sufficient experience to do so, or if new to the role was given adequate supervision
and guidance. In one case, on the HOUO2 Housing Subsidy Base Data Return, we found
there was a new compiler this year and that some errors occurred due to lack of adequate
supervision. In future when there is a change of compiler thorough instructions and
sufficient supervision should be arranged.

Quality of working papers

Adequate working papers were provided in a timely fashion for all claims and retutns. These
were appropriate to our needs and in most cases were easy to follow, or could be explained
swiftly by the key officers who made themselves available to us.

Sign off arrangements

The Head of Corporate Finance has delegated authority to sign off all grant claims. This
allowed the certification process to run without unnecessary delays, as both he and the Chief
Financial Officer were able to sign off the claims and returns.

Submission procedures

The grants co-ordinator actively seeks to be provided with the Audit Commission's monthly
Certification Instruction index. This gives an up to date list of the claims and returns that
need to be submitted by each Council and by the submission deadlines. As agreed within the

CEEYG Gront Thornton UK LLP. Al




Page 24

nigey Council
Srants Report 2008-09

Grants Plan for 2008-09, the grants co-ordinator emails us an electronic copy of the signed
claim or return and this year all claims and returns were submitted to us by the required
deadlines.

Officer availability

We give the Council as much notice as possible of our proposed dates for the certification
of each claim or return. Where these dates are not convenient for the Council, we are as
flexible as we can be in order to facilitate a successful certification process. We found
officers to be helpful, co-operative and available as planned. In one case, the key officer was
only available for three of the five days that had been agreed, but through working together
with the Council we were stll able to certify on time.

Independent review

For each grant claim or return there is a cover sheet in the working papers, which includes
an independent review checklist. We were satisfied that for each claim or return the working
papers had been independently reviewed by somebody who had not compiled the claim.
This person was usually a manager or somebody with more experience than the compiler.

Significant findings in relation to individual claims and returns
A summary of all claims and returns we have certified is attached at Appendix B, together
with the certification fee and outcome of our review.

Of the claims and returns submitted for certification the most significant findings were in
relation to the following claims:

e  BENOI1 - Housing and Council Tax Benefit

e CFBUG6 - Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts

. EYCO2 - General Sure Start Grant

e HOUO2 - HRA Subsidy Base Data Return

. HOU?21 - Disabled Facilities Grant

) LAO1 - National Non-Domestic Rates Return

. PENOS5 - Teachers' Pensions Return

*  RG3I1 - Single Programme LDA (Mayor's Offer)

Recommendations for improvement are included at Appendix C.

BENO1 - Housing and Council Tax Benefit

The Council submitted the BENO1 claim on time and provided well referenced working
papers. The deadline for completion of the HBCOUNT workbooks was earlier than in ptior
years, due to it having an impact on our Use of Resources conclusion and Accounts
Opinion, which had to be given by the end of September. The certification deadline for the
claim was not until the end of November.

The Council co-operated effectively with us on this complex claim. For example, in order to
facilitate being able to complete the HBCOUNT workbooks by the required deadline the
Council provided us with a split screen terminal. This enabled us to input information from
the Housing Benefit (HB) and scanned document systems in a more time efficient manner.

As part of our initial testing we agree the claim form back to subsidy reports from the HB
system. We found some inconsistencies which required an amendment to the claim,
resulting in an /18k increase in the amount of grant due to the Council from the DWP.

THI0 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Al




2.

™

1
[R]
"

I

1o

N

1o
=

o

19

N
o

[N
[S3]

o
w

Page 25

Haringey Council
Grants Heport 2008-03

Our detailed testing of individual claims looked at an initial sample of 80 cases, in which we
found 19 errors. These errors fell into three main areas: incorrect start dates, incorrect
recording of earned income and incorrect application of single person discount (SPD) on
Council Tax Benefit (CTB). In 8 of the 20 CTB cases tested, SPD had not been applied

where the claimant was eligible for the discount against their bill.

The Council has undertaken a complete check of SPD cases, by matching all cases in both
the council tax system and the housing benefits system where there appeared to be single
occupancy and SPD had not been awarded in the council tax system. The Council has
corrected all errors identified as part of that process. In addition to the wotk completed in
response to our audit findings, the Council completed a National Fraud Initiative (NFI) data
matching exercise that identified potential cases where SPD had been awarded erroneously
in the council tax system.

The Council has estimated that the combined impact of the above checks is to increase the
SPD granted and therefore reduce the council tax liability by £427k. This then has the
effect of reducing council tax benefit by the same amount and, since the corrections have
been made in the 2009-10 year, will automatically be included in the 2009-10 Housing
Benefits grant claim. It should be noted that our work has not involved directly verifying
this figure, although the corrections will form part of the 2009-10 certification.

The Council also agreed to undertake additional testing on the two other key areas in which
we had found errors - start date and earned income. All errors identified have been adjusted
for within the 2009/10 claim.

The ultimate outcome was for the 2008/09 claim to be qualified on several counts, however
the extrapolated errors have not at this stage resulted in any amendments to the amount
claimed in 2008/09. The DWP raised further queries in response to the qualification letter,
about which we have now provided further information. We await confirmation from the
DWP that the 2008/09 claim can be considered closed.

In response to the issues identified the Council has introduced more stringent quality
control (QC) measures within the Benefits and Local Taxation team. This includes the
purchase and implementation of improved QC software. We will be reviewing these
enhanced procedures as part of our work on the 2009/10 claim.

CFBO06 - Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts

Part of the testing required for this claim looks at invoices for improvement works. Some of
the invoices that are required to be sampled are for costs incurred over 3 years ago. Upon
selection of our sample we were told that these old invoices had been archived and that it
would take up to a fortnight to retrieve them, which in order to certify by the deadline
would not have been possible. For additional assurance over the improvement costs we
tested a further 10 invoices with no issues to note, and were satisfied that this did not mean
the claim had to be qualified.

As far as posstble the Council needs to anticipate our visit with regards supporting
paperwork for any grant claim. However, as we can appreciate the need to archive old
paperwork due to space restrictions, we have reached an agreement with the Council that
during our final accounts audit in July we will be provided with the working papers to
support the improvement cost expenditure within the CFBO6 claim. This will enable us to
select our sample at that early stage, enabling the Council to retrieve the necessary invoices
from archive prior to our certification work commencing in September.

EYCO02 - General Sure Start Grant

fon UK LLP. Al righis reserved



)
|3
]

)
L
(o3

Page 26

ey Council
i3 Report 2008-09

Under the terms of the EYCO02 grant, the Council must demonstrate that assets funded
from the Sure Start grant are included in an asset register. Following a recommendation last
year, the Council agreed to provide an appropriate extract from the Council Asset Register
cross referenced to the Sure Start assets within the General Sure Start grant file for 2008/09.
However, this was not initially provided and the process of agreeing the assets to the
corporate asset register caused delays to the certification process.

HOUO02 - HRA Subsidy Base Data Return
An amendment was required to the return due to 13 propertes which had been included in
the return in error.

In seven cases the error related to properties for which the Council had a formal resolution
to demolish or dispose. These properties should have been removed from the return but
this did not occur. This oversight was picked up by the Council as part of the review process
which, due to the independent reviewer being on leave, was not finalised until after the
draft HOUO2 return had been submitted to audit.

In addition, the Council normally reconciles both Right to Buy (RTB) and Non-Right to
Buy (NRTB) capital receipts to the HOUO2 return. The compiler of the return in 2008,/09
had no prior experience, and had not been made aware that both types of receipts needed to
be reconciled to the return. As a result there were six additional NRTB disposals that should
have been incorporated into the return. The compiler now knows that all capital receipts as
a result of dwelling sales will need to be propetly reconciled to the HOUO02. Furthermore,
this will now be built into the review process.

HOUZ21 - Disabled Facilities Grant

There were no issues with the HOU21 claim this year. However, subsequent to certification
of the claim we worked together with the Council to clarify our minimum paperwork
requirements for the claim. After the recent merger of the Homes for Haringey and Adult
Social Services adaptations services, the Council is trying to streamline its processes
regarding administration of the HOU21 claim. The proactive approach of the adaptations
team should lead to future savings for the Council as officer time spent administering the
grant will be reduced. Within the Action Plan we have recommended that the minimum
paperwork requirement list be applied to the preparation of future HOU21 claims.

LAO1 - National Non-Domestic Rates Return

The LLAO1 needs to be completed as per the Certification Instructions, whereby the Losses
in Collection figure must accurately reflect the change in the bad debt provision for the year
and the amounts written off in the year. In order to gain assurance over this tigure we agree
it back to supporting working papers and our findings from the accounts audit.

We found that the figure for NNDR write-offs incorporated into the annual accounts was
an estimated figure, which differed to the actual authorised write-offs. Of the £3.4m
estimated write-offs, £2.0m were authorised for write-off in August 2009. The majority of
the balance consists of write-offs under £5k, which at time of LAO1 certification had not yet
been written off.

As agreed with the Council, any write-offs that have not yet occurred cannot be included
within this year's return. Once the remaining write-offs (those below £5k totalling £1.3m)
are authorised, they can be included within the 2009/10 NNDR3 form.

In addition to the above, we found that the working papers provided did not tie back to the
change in bad debt provision that had been incorporated into the Losses in Collection figure
in the LAO1L. The combined impact of these errors was to increase the Losses in Collection




2.39

Page 27

Haringay Counct
Srants Report 2008-03

figure on the return by £672k, which in turn reduced the Contribution to the Pool figure by
the same amount.

PENOS5 - Teachers' Pensions Return

In 2007/08 the PENO5 was qualified due to a lack of assurance over schools with external
payroll providers. The Council accepted our recommendations that it explote the option of
Internal Audit doing some CI testing at schools that have external payroll providers on an
annual basts, and that it should put in place arrangements to confirm that non-pensionable
salary items have been excluded from the contributory salary figure.

In April we provided Internal Audit with full details of the certification work they needed to
complete in order for qualification to be avoided. Due to us not having access to the records
kept by individual schools this testing could not be catried out by ourselves.

An internal audit review was conducted of the schools with external payroll providers, but
unfortunately this only went so far as to provide general controls assurance over
arrangements at those schools, rather than specifically completing the CI testing that was
required. After further discussions with ourselves Internal Audit were able to complete the
required testing, but this did not happen until a few days before the certification deadline at
the end of November. The process of securing these testing results proved to be time
consuming for both external and mnternal audit, and has led to costs on this claim being
higher than anticipated.

RG31 - Single Programme LDA (Mayor's Offer)

Two amendments were required to the Mayot's Offer claim. The date of the CFO's
certificate was incorrect, and the figure for total grant received to date did not include the
payment already received for quarter 4 of £80k. This amendment meant that the balance
due to the Council was in fact zero.

In addition, on two of the five RG31 daims (the North London Pledge and Sub Regional
programme) we suffered delays in receiving the information requested which had an adverse
impact upon the amounts billed for these claims.

LS00 Grant Thorpton UK LLP. A




Page 28

cil

3y Coun
nts Report 20

A Approach and context to certification

introduction

In addition to our responsibilities under the Code of Audit Practice, we also act as agents for the Audit
Commission in reviewing and providing a certificate on the accuracy of grant claims and returns to
various government departments and other agencies.

The Audit Commission agrees with the relevant grant paying body the work and level of testing which
should be completed for each grant claim and return, and set this out in a grant Certification
Instruction (CI). Each programme of work is split into two parts, firstly an assessment of the control
environment relating to the claim or return and secondly, a series of detailed tests.

In summary the arrangements ate:

e foramounts claimed below £100,000 - no certification required

e  for amounts claimed above £100,000 but below £500,000 - work is limited to certifying that the
claim agrees to underlying records of the Council

*  for amounts claimed over £500,000 - certifying that the claim agrees to underlying records of the
Council and an assessment of the control environment. Where reliance is not placed on the
control environment, detailed testing is performed.

Assessment of the control environment
Our assessment of the control environment for a claim is a balanced judgement taking into
consideration the following factors:

. the relative risk attached to the particular claim i.e. volume of transactions, complexity of scheme

. cumulative knowledge about the history of the claim, and how the Council has addressed past
qualification issues

*  how the claim is compiled and monitored, including any changes from the previous year

®  arrangements to ensure claims and returns are completed accurately and in accordance with the
scheme terms and conditions

¢ internal financial controls e.g. cost codes for each claim/return, with controls over data posted
from other systems/journals and reconciliations that ensure transactions are propetly authorised
and coded

*  for claims/returns based on complex financial systems, internal audit assurance that systems have
operated satisfactorily over the period covered by the claim

*  procedures to demonstrate funding passed to third parties has been used for the intended purpose

e quality of working papers

*  expertise and relevant knowledge of preparers, including the adequacy of supervision and review

e analytical review of the claim, including comparison of expected with actual outcomes and
comparison with other authorities or national statistics

Where we judge that we can place full reliance on the control environment, only the CI Part A tests
need be completed. Where we judge that we cannot place full reliance on the control environment, Part
B of the CI tests must also be completed. We assign a level of risk to the claim which impacts upon the
sample size required for Part B tests. Where a claim is deemed to be low risk, the sample size is smaller,
whereas where the risk is deemed to be medium or high, the sample size increases accordingly.

010 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Al




Page 29

The level of risk assigned takes into consideration the control environment assessment combined with
reliance on other external or internal audit work.

Roles and responsibilities

The following table sets out the roles and responsibilities of the parties involved in the certification of

claims and retutrns.

Party

Role and responsibility

Grant péying body e

Sets grant conditions and the deadlines for submission of the pre-
certificated and certified claim-

Audit Commission -

Issues certification instructions

Council Submits claims and returns to the Appointed Auditor within grant
‘ paying body submission deadlines.
Ensures adequate documentation is maintained to support
, compilation of claims and returns..
Appointed Auditor - Certifies claims in accordance with Audit Commission instructions
t I and within certification deadlines.
Scope

We assess the Council's arrangements for submission of grant claims for certification. We do not
review the Council's wider arrangements for managing external funding or maximising its entitlement
to external funding. However, in 2009/10 the Council's Internal Audit function will be carrying out
reviews of Voluntary Organisations and the Area Based Grant. Their findings will inform our

assessment.

22010 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Al righis raserved



Page 30

pasiasas SIYBU Y T MO USTWIO L JURID 0L07 5

091°F 00Tt N - N 000°688°¢ SINIUNWWOT) JOJ [e(] MIN] €00
88L°L 006°9 N - N CT10+9T91 UINIY SUOTSUDJ SIADIEI ], SONHd
[ood
01 UOINQINUO0D Ul 53%&
062°S 00€°01 N ISEIIP CTTL6TLT A €FL916°0¢ $91EY OASIWO(] VON] [EUOREN 10V'1
ceTr 000°¢ N - N 00091L JUBID) SOPIDEY,] PI[qesI(] ICOOH
WIOJ UO S[[9D SNOMIEA
vodn swedwr ‘g1
£q poonpar senzadoad wImey
€96°S 002’8 N Jo pqunN 'V/N A V/N vie(q Iseq Aprsqug VYH C0NOH
21qEAIDI
Lpisqns uo pedun
ouing Z0NOH
01 opew 3Bueyd
01 20 WIOJ UO [[D
886C 00,9 N 01 1URWPUIWE - V7 /N A TH8LOE'LY Aprsqng VYH 10NOH
€e8°¢ 00¢°S N - N 099 T T+ 11 1URID) 1IEIG 2ING [EIDIUIL) C0DXH
s1doay
cer'e 009t N - N F8€'865°1 render) Sursnogg jo Suroo g 90410
WBYDG UG
0cToF 005°6C X IsLIIUT 901°Q1 T A 1+S091°65C X2], [PUno’) pue Jursnogy LONHY
(F) 23 (& >3 (F) anyea N/& (F) onpea
[enoy pa13png | ¢pagend JUdWpUIWY épapudwry wrepd e wrer) Joy

60-800C UT PIIJIIdd SUINIDI PUE SWIE] JO S[IEIa(] ¢




Page 31

.ﬁvﬁﬂvuu WGMUQ FIOM UODEIHIIGD 19(lang Ol pes| ..ASNQGUH»OQ

p[nod sty sammanb moy 01 papuodsar say am pue 1119] vonedyUnb [ONF 1 Jo s10adse o vonedyIeP parsanbar I\ UL “600T FPqUIAACT W sy |

WY [ENPIAIPUT YOEd JOJ 993 21 UT PAPNIUT ST STY JO 31509 Tenide oy 7, “Suniodax pur uonensurwpe ‘Guuueld siuvicy 103 pa3adpnq g+ sopnpuy 4

tezies %000°06 18L609 SH9109°79¢ TVLOL
@130
s J0AR]y])
ST swrep seredas g
cI8°c 00t N L6T087- §J01-A 09t THE'T. - (1] dwurexdox  o[durg ey
(F) o (&) 2 (F) angea N/A (F) onrea
[enioy pmeSpng | épagnend JUdWpUIUTY épapuswry wrep e wrep) FEY

ar-nnny odong 51




Page 32

parsssas SuBL Iy 41T M um 240 NLOT B
010C YN
I0IBUTPIO-07) SIUELID)
T — .muwsou ap o3 WHMOU PadnpPaI 910393911 pue
unsal ¢ e 107 sazis ojdwes mqrEws ur
SunnsaI ‘WL ¢ 303 IUIWUOIIAUD [OTUOD
"PAAITAII A I TUIWUOITAUD a1p uo paoserd Suraq sduerRr 230W O3
[onuod Ay ‘s1uerd osap peaf Aenuatod pnoo siyy, -ooeyd ur st e
30,1 *60,/800C U1 Sunsa ¢ e TUIWWUOIIATD [OTITOD YY) 2IUIPIAI 01 (L
paxmbaz syuesd yorgm suruizlep 3¢ PUE “WIE[ YLD J0J IUIWTOITAUD [OTUVOD
01 JIPNE [BUIAXD [IIA JIOM [[IA 271 JO JUDWISSISSE N0 JO suswaInbax v
J01RUIPI0-0 SIULI3 oy poasdy |  wnipagy ) IOPISUOD PINOYS [PUNOT) YT, v | xpuaddy
spre1ap woneyudwayduny
pue asuodsas judwaSeuey Lroug UONEPUIWIO0IIY wrep) BEY

ueld vonoy 1)




paamsal sUBL Y dTT MO UoluIou L WO o]

o

Page 33

Suroduo aypeddig uey

wrep 19y

21eMO[Ed 01 PASTIOYINE T8 A2
23032 (3021102 suonsanb ap [je
108 oym 3901330 uE) uordweyd A1ep
1138 JO Japea] wea ], ;A Lq J30
paudrs wiep L1049 9aey 01 pomnbax
2¢ [P T2 O DSOU[ ], "SIIEP 1ILIS
UO $3[0T YY) POOISIIPUN JARY JJBIS
UPIYM WHUOD [[IA ST T, "S2IEP 1IEIS
uo 3s91 uonsanb (] v ayrIapun

01 pomnbaz Surq a1e Jy0s vV

‘so1391ems

Lrenb pue ururen no wrojur

pue o8patmouy ur sde8 Anuapt

01 [001 stsd[euy spaoN Surures],

v painooxd aavy am L[fevonppy
“Burrmoar s10539

proae o1 uayeipun 3uUOUOW
Lenb 3snqos azow pue

popraoxd Fuq st Bururen [eIpaWY
(1S pUE 9WOIUT PIUTEd

‘$21¥p 1JEIS UT 21LT JOIID Y31y ® JO
30UIPIAD ST 2] DIOYM S[EOPIATPUT
JO yIOM A1) $19378) YOTYM

paadope uaaq sey yorordde paseq
NSH B ‘UOTIDAIIOD PUE MDTADI O}
300lqns $98¥d JO STAIGUINU YD VDA
"01/600¢ UT pIssIsse SUNE AU

[1e 30 md1a03 tpdop ur ue pazapIo

SBY 901ATG JO P AL, PRRISY

ySrH

-2I1uNy 21
ur BUTSIIE SINSST SWES Y} PIOAE O} SIITYJO
01 popraord oq Sururen vnx? pue ‘wedl
UOTEXE] [E207] PUE SIJAUIE o) URIA
PISSTOSIP 2q JIOoM TORLIPNIAD o) £q
PO[L2AT SINSST A 1LY) PIPUIIOIDT ST 1]

888D (1)
uo Junoosip uosiad afdurs jo voneordde

199I0OUT PUE 28D DDULMO[E JUT B JOJ
Anpqer 1uax 1991300U7 QIMpuadxs [ewIou
se 2anypuadxd paiepydLq JO UONEIYISSTP
J993I0DUT DWOIUT PIUIL JO UOTL[NO[ED
1993I05UT SSUORBNIIED IJAU( 0]

S91EP 13EIS 1093100UT JUIPNPUT ‘SUOSEIT JO
saqunu € 10§ paygrenb seam awoydg (1)
JJAUdE XL, PPUNOT) puL JUISNOL] ayJ,

NJoUIE XeT,

[UnoD) pue Sursnoyy - TONTE

spre1ap voneyudswapdur
pue ssuodsar yuswoaSeuey

LAuong

UONEPUIWWOIIY

wep)




Page 34

PAASAT |1Y

MY dTTMO

I oLeg

600z dun{ woij paruawadury

uonExe] [¥207] 29 SIJIUIE

Jo peap] Sunoy -oyipeddg uep
Juawedeurwr

1o1u0s £q LpenSar pasoyuow
a1e §1[Nnsax pue paudu[dun
U29q SEY 2TEAIJOS Y

"sTSEq 78N ¢ uo 1udtLeurw J01Uds £q
P2I0ITUOW 3¢ PINOYS dILAIJOS ST JO 80
[gs$9201s IY I, "a3EAMIJ0s D) paaoxdun jo
vonwuawa[dun pue aseyoand a1 sopnpur
ST ], "WE1 UONEXE], [LI0] PUE SIJOUSE
2 una sanseaw (HY)) [enuod Aqenb
1U53ULNS 2I0W PAONPONUI SBY [IPUNOT)

Jauag XeT,

poaidy Y3y O3 PITJIUSPT SINSST At 01 dsuodsar uy [PUNoy) pue JuIsnoyy - [ONH YT
600T 29T woy parvaweidu]
UONEXE], [0 29 SIJaUdg
Jo peap Sunoy - aypeddig uey
s XVILO woxy snp
Funsanbar uvyp e soapPswoy
S.(1dS 2y Adde s jyers
1 239y doe[d Suryer stiopd v
s
30 uucﬁmomﬁu oY INOqE JJ¥IS JO “WA1SAS X¥ [DUNOD I UT PIPIEME
U AT PIJILI] STY 9TATIG u29q 10U sey ([JS pue Louednado odurs
JO PEIH "USYEIPPUN 9q im aq o3 syeadde a1t 2xoyM wosds sigaUaq
wass xey, [PUNOY pue 1audg Sursnoy oy pue wiss Xe1 PUNOD I
BUISNOF] 9y UPIMIAG SISPIIXD oq ut sased [re Junpdrew £q ‘sased (IS
Jurgorew sendar puv 2ovid JO SYPIYD TYNBT ILIDPUN PINOYS [IPUNOT) Igouaq xeT,
ur 513Uy dMsuAINT panIdy RELS| Y, - IUNOISI(T BOSId [ I[BUIS ¢ 1) [ounoy) pue ursnoy - JONHE 0ce
s[re3ap vonerudwdfdur
pue dsuodsar judwaSeuepy Aoug UONEPUIWIIOINY wrep) FEN




poAlnsal SN Y JTTT M0 uonoy

010z e
SAAD

UUCNC«L ,.u—O PR — TolngA Iras N

‘popraoad usaq 10U 24y $115137
19SST [EDO] 2IDYM SIISSE 1ILIG
2Ing aY) wgwmﬁuvmu SIDTHNXI VS
SPNPUT I WIE 111G 2ING Y}

“SJOSSE JILIG 2ING ) 0 PIOUIIIAT §SOID
19151893 19SSV [PUNOY) ) WOIJ 1DENXD
sreirdordde ue apnpur pinoys wirep 130G

JueIn)

Page 35

303 s1aded Suryrom oy, paaidy wnIpayy 21ng oy 103 papraoad sxoded Sunprom oy, 171G 9ING [LIUDL) - TODAH

010 4nf quids

U1 SUDUIWIWOD YIOM VONEIININ INO

Suruuelq [ERuTLL] P [Ede) ‘ , pss

01 3011d QATYDIE WOIJ $3210AUT £1USSIIIU

PIUTUL] JO P — 14O MY fue 9a01mo1 01 [PUNOY) A BurqEud

o8v1s Lprea yep 1 opduwres ano 1998

pounon) 03 SN I[qEUD [ STYT, "W 901D 2P

a1 woiy parsanbar aq ued adures i 23rIpuadse 1505 JuawR soxdwr A

{pes ue 1ep 19pI10 U A[snonipadxs 130ddns 03 s1oded Buryrom i sn opraord

poredaad aq [ adiooas pnoys puno’) 9yl Ajnf Ut 1pne s1Unodde

Tendes 01 parepr armpuadxs [eug o Sunngy "uondadsur 107 IqerEA
1502 Juswe soxdun oy Sunroddns are sure 1uead (e Suproddns stuawnoop s1droay [enden)
s1oded Sunjrom oy, peaidy |  wnipay 1T 2INSTD 0) SPIDU [IOUNOY) YT, Bursnoyy jo Surood - 90¢LID

s[re1ap uoneyuswaduwl
pue ssuodsas juswadeuey

Aong

UONIEPUIWWOIIY

wrer)

S aLNg




Page 36

paamsar sBu gy 4T M0 ue

010z 2unf

SO0V

20UTUL] JO PEIL] — IPAN() WLYEIO)
wrep 01/600¢C 24

J0 vonesedard ur sy stuswarnbax
yromzaded wnuwruny oy

1COOH 2y jo uonensiuruIpe Jujureans
01 J9PIO Ul NpNE [PUINXD Lq papraoid
1517 siwawrmbar spoasaded wnwrunw

1uwIn)

JOPISUOD [[IM [IPUNOT) Y], "paaidy MO 2 asmn prnoys wiea) suoneidepe oy T, SanE,] PAIQESK - 1ZNOH €2
‘padurare uorstazradns
9]qENNS PUE PINSST 3q PINOYS STONDINAISUT
ySnooy ‘urmiax ap jo uvonepdwod
aeaf yuerd 303 Anpqrsuodsar uaard Suieq rao1530 0cz
01-600T 2 21ep voneivswodwy ou e ardwrexa 303 ‘98ueyd siuowaSuere ¢
“(s19f01]) 2ourUL] JO PEIT] vonerdwod 21 219UMm ‘UORIPPE U]
IOWIE] 2AB(] PUE LJH 20UBUL]
Jo 301211 LAndacy Mo 219 orssruqns
01 sorxd pamatass Ay st urmiar ZoNOH urmey wBec]
paoiIdy WPy 3} 1B 2INSUI PINOYS [IDUNOT) 3T, aseq Ap1sqng VY - 20NOH 62T
s[rezap uoneiudwajdun
pue ssuodsaz judwaSeurey Aong UONEPUIWWOIIY wrep) BEN|




Page 37

PAAINSBY BN

I 4T unu

LWRIn aLen

010z 2unf

oFeuvy

soureur,] 17§ — ysowuy mboef
“SWITEP

33eIp 211 01 2913¢ papraoird sraded
BuryIOM 21 2INSUD 01 SINOALIPUD

w%ﬁy\wzﬂﬂ pJuno’) a4]J, .ﬁ@@u@(«

WInIpaN

UTMT JJEIP Y Ul
$2In31y 21 01 Yoeq on papraoid szaded
Buirom [[e 1e1) 2INSUD PINOYS [IPUNOT) SY L.

OTSIWO(T-UON] [BUOHEN] -~ TOV']

UIOY sAIey

6e'C

010z 2un(

193vuep

soueun] 1716 — ysoiupy mboef
a3ty 21 Uy 2Ny ‘parewunsa

UB) DIV [EUL} € UO PIso]d aq 03
wrep Juesd CYCINN 21 9[qrUD [
UOIYM $JJO-2IEM JO UOBESIIOINE
seaf ur ye[ndar 930W INOQE

Buniq 03 201a19G o3 £q pronponur
Uoaq APEDI[E DABY SIINSEIN

POPIOUT 318 $JJO-21FM PISLIOYINE
A[uo 1ep pue votysey Apwn

© UT passad01d 218 $JJ0-9111M 1)
2INSUD [[IA [DUNOY) A ], ‘Poidy’

UINIOT AU UT

wmrpay

TOSTUN
UT 978 UMD (V7] 91 PUE SIUN0IDE

Ot UNPIM Pa1dapgaT oandyy o sxead agmng
U1 1UL] 2INSUD 01 SJJO-IIHM JO UOTIESHIOYINE
Apum o punore sassadoid jonuod s
2a01dw IDUNOT) A1) JBYI PUIITIOIAT 3 A\

JASIWOT-UON [euoneN - 10V'1

Uy sATY

spre1ap uvoneyuswajdur
pue asuodsar JudwasSeue A

fpoug

UONEPUIW WO IY

wrer)

Qi




Page 38

pansagar syl

Y AT MO UORLIOU L 1RO Loy A

010z 1ady

0] 22urBULL]

3O peay] — rT0ufen) MIYNEN
s1a01330 Surpdwod a3 01 pareIalRy
aq P porrad UoNEdINID

a1 Surmp sornmbud Jppne [EUINXD
o1 vorysey 1dwoid e ur puodsar

‘paxxnour s{e[Pp a) 03 Inp S[[Iq
U3y Aqressaoauun proae o1 st os {pdwoid
popraoxd st parsanbar voneumoyur

(pwwresoxd euoioy

qng put 93pay ] BOPUOT YION)

01 1wawarmbor oy peasdy | wmnipapy 1B} AINSUD P[NOYS IO £33y V1 dwweidor ] 93uig - 1¢OY o'z
010z rady
SdAD
90URUL] JO PEIL] — UOMINJA] S[[TAIN] 130-US1S (a1 JO 1T
a1p Supnpour pue 01 dn 218310 ST papupul
Jpne [BUIIXD 0) pannugns Juraq UOTEUWIIOIUT 31} 18I} PUE “UOISSTUIqNS
01 Jorrd £ovInooe J0J paydaTd pur 21039q £5BINDIE JOJ PIYIIYD IIT SUWIED (19330 s 30keg)
POADIAIT 2T SWITEP [V P18y |  wnipajy 1EON {18 18P 2INSUS PInoYys IaUnoT) YT, VT owwesBorg a[3urg - 10y 65T
010z 2unf
SdAD
POUBUL] JO PEIL] — UVOIINJA] A[[AIN] IO UOREDATSD
721y} 303 2318 o Funwod Y 01 101:d Sunsa)
JIoM uonLdYNIND IR Suruurdaq paimbaz o s1a1dwod v 3w 2ansud
upny pewaxy] o1 sourd paynbas 01 (V7] puUE V) VIpne [BUIIXG] PUL [EUINU]
SI0M 1PN [PUOTIPPE 21 INOQE i £[PSOTD ISTRI] P[NOYS UINIRT CONT o
upne feuraiu] ym aster {panseoid 303 ANIqrsuodsar A SI9DIJO IIUN0T) AT, uImay
A [PUNOY) Ay [, paaIdy Y3y - sxopraoad qoxfed [euraixe Pm sjooydg SUOTSUI [ ,SIYIEIT, - SONH I 8LC
spre1ap uoneiuwswajdu
pue asuodsar juowadeuey Auoug UONEPUIWWOINY wrep) FEN |

60-2007 ¥




Page 39

Grant Thornton

www.grant-thornton.co.uk
© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All dghts reserved.

"Grant Thornton" means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited liability partnership.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm within Grant Thornton International Ltd (Grant Thornton
[nternational’). Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership.
Services are delivered by the member firms independently.

This publication has been prepared only as a guide. No responsibility can be accepted by us for loss
occastoned to any person acting or refraining from acting as a tesult of any materal in this publication



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 41 Agenda ltem 8

Haringey Council
Agenda ltem

Audit Committee On 1 February 2010

Report title: External Audit Plan 2009/10

Report of: Chief Financial Officer

Ward(s) affected: All Report for: Decision

1. Purpose

1.1To inform the Committee of the external audit plan for 2009/10 proposed by Grant
Thornton and to agree the revised audit fees.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Committee approves the proposed audit plan and fees for 2009/10.

Report authorised by: Gerald Almeroth — Chief Financial Officer

Contact officer: Kevin Bartle — Head of Corporate Finance
Telephone 020 8489 3743




Page 42

3. Executive Summary

3.1

3.2

3.3

The proposed audit plan for 2009/10 sets out the work that Grant Thornton, the
Council’s external auditors are proposing to carry out in discharging their
responsibilities to provide an opinion on the Council’s financial statements and to be
able to provide an opinion on the value for money arrangements the Council has in
place. This includes the work for the Use of Resources judgement under the
Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA).

The plan also includes the proposed fees for the audit and this shows an increase of
£10k on the indicative figure provided originally to the Audit Committee in April 2009.

The proposed plan has been discussed with senior officers of the Council and it is
recommended for approval.

4. Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if applicable)

4.1

None.

5. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report:

5.1

None.

Background

6.1 The content of the work in the external audit plan is proposed by Grant

Thornton on a risk based approach to audit planning and reflects national and
local risk issues. The outputs from this are contained in the appendix in
section 5 and include appropriate reporting back to Members on completion of
the work.

6.2  The key risk areas highlighted in the proposed audit plan include:

e Implementation of the new International Financial Reporting Standards
for the accounts from 2010/11;

¢ Changes in the Statement of Recommended Practice for the accounts
from 2009/10, particularly in respect of prior year adjustments in
accounting for council tax and business rates, and;

¢ Follow up on issues raised in last years assessments including around
data quality.




6.3

6.4

7.1

Page 43

The fees charged by Grant Thornton are for the work they carry out for the
statutory audit and the Use of Resources assessment under the CAA. The
proposals do not include the Audit Commission fees for the other parts of the
work under CAA including service inspections.

The £10k proposed increase on the total indicative fee of £505k previously
reported is in relation to the risks areas and issues in respect of the value for
money judgement particularly around follow up work on data quality.

Recommendation

That the Committee approves the proposed audit plan and fees for 2009/10.



Page 44

Grant Thornton

London Borough of Haringey

Audit Plan 2009/10

18 December 2009



Page 45

Akttt Plan 2009716

Contents

I Introduction

2 Accounts risk assessment and approach

3 Value for money risk assessment and approach
4  Audit fee and engagement team

5  Planned outputs

Appendix A Independence and objectivity

Appendix B Expected areas of IFRS impact

L2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All vights reserved.

Page

10

12



Page 46

Audit Plan 2009/10

1

Introduction

Purpose of this plan

1.1

This s our audit plan tor the financial year 2009-10 for the London Borough of
Haringey ('the Council’). It sets out the work that we will carry out in discharging
our responsibilities to give an opinion on the Council's financial statements and a
conclusion on the Council's arrangements for achieving value for money.

In March 2009, we issued an indicative fee letter to the Council to outline our
proposed fee levels for the 2009/10 external audit process. The purpose of this was
to provide an outline of the likely tees to be incurred by the Council in the 2009/10
financial year.

Accounts audit

1.3

1.4

In setting the indicative accounts audit fee, we assumed that the general level of risk
in relation to the audit would not be significantly different from that identified for
2008/09. Based on the outcome of the 2008/09 accounts audit and consideration of
risks relevant to the 2009/10 audit, we confirm that the general level of risk, and
anticipated accounts fee, remains as set out in the indicative fees letter.

Section 2 of this plan sets out our assessment of the 2009/10 accounts audit risks
and our proposed response.

Value for money audit

1.6

1.7

1.8

[n our indicative fee letter we also set out a number of risks in relation to our value
tor money conclusion and indicated our proposed work in these areas. We have
since agreed detailed specifications for a number ot local value for money projects
and work 1s underway. We have also begun our work with the Council to prepare for
the 2009/10 use of resources assessment using the nationally specified key lines of
enquiry (KLoEs).

Section 3 of this plan provides an update to our value for money risk assessment
and planned audit response.

Section 4 covers details of the audit team and the proposed update to the 2009/10
audit fee. Planned outputs arising from the audit are summarised in Section 5,
including a summary ot the content of our work and the timing of our fieldwork and
reporting deadlines.

We have considered our independence and objectivity in respect of the Audit and do
not beheve there are any matters which should be brought to your attention. We
comply with the Audit Commission's requirements in respect of independence and
objectivity as summarised at Appendix A.

w2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 1



Page 47

Audit Plan 2009/10

2 Accounts risk assessment and approach
Introduction
21 This section of the plan sets out the work we propose to undertake in relation to the

audit of the 2009/10 accounts at the Council. The plan is based on our risk-based
approach to audit planning and retlects:

our responsibilities under the Audit Commission's Code of Audit Practice in
respect of the accounts audit

current national risks attecting local government relevant to the Council's local
circumstances

local risks, based on the outcome of our audit of the Council's 2008/09
accounts.

The Council's responsibilities

2.2 The Council’s accounts are an essential means by which it accounts for the
stewardship of resources and its financial performance in the use of those resources.
It 1s the responsibility of the Council to:

ensure the regularity of transactions by putting in place systems of internal
control to ensure that financial transactions are in accordance with the
appropriate authority

maintain proper accounting records

prepare accounts, which give a true and fair view the financial position of the
Council and its expenditure and income in accordance with the Statement of
Recommended of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2009 (SoRP).

Our responsibilities

23 We are required to audit the tinancial statements and to give an opinion as to:

22009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

whether they give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council
and its expenditure and income for the period in question

whether they have been prepared properly in accordance with relevant
legislation, applicable accounting standards and other reporting requirements

whether the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) has been presented in
accordance with relevant requirements and to report if it does not meet these
requirements, or if the statement 1s misleading or inconsistent with our

knowledge.



Page 48

At Plan 2009/10

Accounting risks and planned audit response

2.4 The accounts audit risks and our planned response are set out in the table below.

Table 1: Accounting risks and planned audit response

Risk

Planed audit response

The Council must prepare its annual accounts under

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), from

2010/11.

The most significant issues to note in relation to the

transition to IFRS accounting are:

*  potential consolidation of Alexandra Park and Palace
into the group accounts

= lease classification and accounting

*  calculating the employee benefits 'holiday pay' accrual

*  fixed asset component accounting

®=  fixed asset valuaton.

Early preparation is essential and there 1s a nsk that the

Council may not be adequately prepared for the transition

and for dealing with specific issues such as those listed

above.

We have already engaged with the
Council on a number of IFRS related
issues and have included our IFRS
accounting specialist in those discussions.
The IFRS issues most likely to be
significant for the Council were shared
with management i July 2009. These are
reproduced at Appendix B.

We will continue to liaise on a regular
basis with officers and monitor the
Council's progress against the [FRS
project plan. We will also review the
implications of any developing issues
through reference to IFRS guidance and
the finalised IFRS Code due for release
on 16 December 2009.

We have performed a high level review
of the Council's IFRS preparedness in
November 2009, following a mandated
national IFRS survey requested by the
Audit Commisston.

The Council 1s required to comply with the 2009 SoRP in
prepanng its 2009/10 accounts.

The prncipal change in the 2009 SoRP is around current
and pror year adjustments to accounting for Council Tax
(CT) and National Non-Domestic Rate (NNDR) income.

From 1 Apxzil 2009 the Council’s accounts should:

»  disclose CT balances net of any amounts that relate to
other precepting bodies

= only recognise NNDR cash collected in excess of the
Council's cost of collection allowance.

This change in accounting policy requires an adjustment to
the prior year comparator figures shown in the 2009/10
accounts. There 1s no anticipated tmpact on the Council's
general fund balance.

We will work with management to agree
the prior year adjustment required to the
Council's income and expenditure
account, balance sheet and cashflow
statement.

Following our 2008/09 accounts audit we made a number
of recommendations to the Council 1 areas where there
was scope to tmprove arrangements, primarily around
fixed asset valuation and accounting,

A detailed response to the recommendations, including
implementation plans was presented by management to
the Audit Committee on 5 November 2009.

We will monitor the Council's progress in
implementing the agreed actions when we
carry out our interim audit and update our
accounts planning in March / Apnl 2010.

¢ 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.



Page 49

Audit Plan 2609/10

Audit approach

25

2.10

We will work closely with the Corporate Finance Team to ensure that we meet audit
deadlines and conduct the audit efficiently, with the minimum of disruption to the
Council's staff. Our audit will be planned on an individual task basis at the start of
the audit, and timetables agreed with all staff involved.

In summary our audit strategy comprises:

e updating our understanding of the Council through discussions with
management and a review of the management accounts

¢ reviewing the design and implementation of the internal financial control
systems, including I'T controls, to the extent that they have a bearing on the
financial statements

e assessing the audit risk and, based on that assessment and the assessment of the
design of the internal control system, developing and implementing an
appropriate audit strategy

e testing the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls, where
appropriate

® reviewing material disclosure issues in the financial statements

e verifying all material income and expenditure and balance sheet accounts and
performing a substantive analytical review of these accounts.

We will perform these tasks and complete our accounts audit around two phases of
tieldwork, the interim audit in March 2010 and the final accounts audit in July -
September 2010.

In carrying out our audit, we will update our assessment of internal audit against the
CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit and seek to use relevant internal audit
work to assist in our review of internal financial control systems.

Following completion of the interim audit we will issue our 2009/10 Audit Strategy
Document, which will be used to update the Council with the key elements of our
accounts audit strategy and begin the process of formally communicating mote
detailed aspects of our approach along with relevant findings from our interim work,
under the mandatory requirements of International Standard on Auditing (UK and

Ireland) 260 (ISA260").

Once the final accounts audit is substantially complete, we will complete our
mandatory ISA260 reporting through communicating our findings and
recommendations to the Council in our Annual Report to those Charged with
Governance. We will consider the materiality of transactions when planning our
audit and when reporting our findings.

As patt of our work on the accounts audit, we will review the Annual Governance
Statement (AGS) to determine if it is consistent with our knowledge ot the Council.
We will also review the Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) consolidation pack
tor consistency with the Council's accounts.

2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved, %



Page 50

Augddit Plan 2008/10

Value for money risk assessment and approach

Introduction

3.1

The Code requires us to issue a conclusion on whether the Council has put in place
proper arrangements for securing economy, etficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources. This 1s known as the value for money conclusion. In our indicative fees
letter, we set out our initial assessment of risk in relation to the value for money
conclusion.

This section of the plan updates this risk assessment and highlights the current
status of our work in addressing these specific risks and in working with the Council
to prepare for the 2009/10 use of resources (UoR) assessment using the nationally
specitied key lines of enquiry (KLoEs).

2009/10 VFM conclusion

3.3

34

The KLoEs specitied for the (UoR) assessment are set out in the Audit
Commussion’s work programme and scales of fees 2009/10. As for 2008/09, the
assessment 1s based around the three themes of:

* managing finances
e poverning the business

®  managing resources.

Although this is the second year of assessment under the new UoR framework there
15 an increased challenge this year arising from the first time inclusion of the
workforce management KLoE in the 2009/10 assessment and the deadline for
completion of our assessment being brought forward by a month. We are working
with the Council to help prepare tor timely completion of the assessment, including
carrying out early work in assessing workforce management arrangements (see
below).

Our indicative fees letter set out our initial assessment of the local risk based use of
resources work we plan to carry out to support our VEM conclusion. We confirm
that these assumptions remain relevant and we have begun to address these as part
of our 2009/10 programme of work, as follows:

. Additional risk based work on data quality - additional risk based work in
adult social services reported to management in March 2009, with key
messages trom this and our other spot check testing included in our Use of
Resources report (October 2009)

*  Partnership working project carried out jointly with the PCT - specification
agreed and work underway

5 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 3



3.6

3.7

Page 51

Audit Plan 2009/10

Early work in assessing workforce management arrangements - specification
agreed and work underway

Ongoing review of treasury management arrangements - complete and
reported to the Audit Committee during the year, including in the Annual
Audit Letter 2008/09 (December 2009).

Since issue of the fees letter in March, we have completed our 2008/09 use of
resources audit and updated our risk assessment. There are four main areas where
we have concluded that there is an increased audit risk:

Data quality - following the UoR assessment of inadequate (level 1). We
included additional provision in the indicative fee for the work required to
reach this conclusion so there is no further fee implication for 2009/10. We
will, however, include additional work in next year's plan to tund the
additional work required to address the increased audit risk.

Leasehold service charges - we have assessed this as an area of increased risk
that requires audit work, on the basis of several high protile issues across
London where leaseholders have challenged costs proposed by authorities,
and contractor fraud in the housing sector is a concern identified by the
Audit Commission's National Fraud Initiative. We therefore determined that
a diagnostic review was required at our London Borough audit clients and
we have agreed a specification and commenced our work.

Questions and objections from the public - since we agreed the indicative
audit fee with the Council, we have experienced an increase in the level of
communications from local electors and other interested parties. With the
exception of the leasehold service charges review above, which was in part
prompted by communication from the local MP, we are dealing with the
other communications with the public from within the audit fee. We will
keep this under review and communicate if any additional audit fees need to
be charged as a result of further increases in our work in this area.

National Fraud Initiative - We have recently completed a mandatory
National Fraud Initiative (NFI) RAG risk assessment for the Audit
Commission, based on the Council's progress in investigating potential data
matches. It s expected that the Commission will carry out NFI spotchecks in
a sample of bodies assessed as "red." In common with most of our clients,
we assessed the Council as "amber" on the basis of progress made to date
and we will continue to monitor progress as part of our 2009/10 plan. There
will be no additional fee for this work.

We will report the tindings from our programme of value for money work to
management and the Audit Committee during the year. We have included a schedule
ot anticipated outputs at section 5. The amendment to the value for money fee for
2009/10 s shown in section .

* 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 5



1

Page 52

Audit Plan 2009/10

Audit fee and engagement team

Audit fee

4.1

43

4.4

4.6

The Audit Commission published its work programme and scales of fees 2009/10,
in December 2008. From 2009/10, the Audit Commission claritied that the starting
point for any tee proposal is the scale fee, which is calculated using a prescribed
tormula. Any variation from scale fee must be approved by the Audit Commission,
following agreement of the proposed fee with the audited body.

In March 2009, we agreed an indicative 2009/10 fee of £505,000 (excluding VAT).
The indicative fee was 14% above the Audit Commission scale fee of £444,000
(trom 10% above scale fee last year). This is due to increased risks relevant to our
Code responsibilities, relating to data quality, treasury management, managing
performance through partnerships and workforce management arrangements.

In setting the indicative fee, we assumed that the general level of risk in relation to
the audit ot the 2009/10 accounts is not significantly different from that identified
to 2008/09. As set out in section 2, we confirm that there is no substantial change to
the accounts audit risk tor 2009/10 and we confirm the indicative fee.

Tuking into account the additional areas of high value for money risk identified
since we issued the fees letter in March 2009 (set out in section 3), we propose to
increase the fee to £515,000 for the 2009/10 year.

A summary of the updated 2009/10 audit fee is shown in the table below.

Table 2: 2009/10 audit fee

Audit area Indicative fee Revised fee
2009/10 2009/10

Financial statements, including WGA £340,000 £340,000

Use of resources/VEM conclusion, including data quality  £165,000 £175,000

Total audit fee £505,000 £515,000

Certification of claims and returns* - £100,000 (est)

“The quoted fee for grant certification work is an estimate only and will be charged at
published houtly rates.

‘The audit tee is being billed in quarterly instalments from June 2009.

> 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.



Audit Plan 2005/10

Engagement team

1.

7

/

Page 53

The key members of the audit team for 2009/10 are:

Table 3: Engagement team

Name

Contact details

Responsibility

Paul Dossett
Engagement Lead

020 7728 3180
paul.dossett@gtuk.com

Responsible for the overall delivery of
the audit including the quality of
outputs, signing the opinion and
conclusion, and liaison with the Chief
Executive, other senior officers and the
Audit Committee.

Paul Hughes
Engagement Manager

020 7728 2256
paulhughes@gtuk.com

Manages and coordinates the different
elements of the audit work. Key point
of contact for the Council.

Caroline Glitre
Assistant Manager

020 7728 2078
caroline ghtre@gtuk.com

Responsible for supervising the on site
fieldwork during the accounts, use of
resources and grant claims audits.

Justin Collings
Technical and Grants
Manager

01223 225501
justin.collings@gtuk.com

Responsible for provision of specialist
technical support to the audit team, and
overall management of the grants audit
programme.

Andy Ka
IEFRS Specialist

020 7728 2716
andy ka@gtuk.com

Responsible for provision of specialist
IFRS support to the audit team and
corporate finance team.

Negat Sultan
IT Audit Manager

0116 257 5590
negat.sultan(@gtuk.com

Responsible for review of the [T
systems in place that complement the
financial accounts process. Also will
carry out ad hoc reviews if our risk
assessment warrants it.

2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.,



Audit Plan 21

Page 54

o
o)
=)
&
oy
=

Planned outputs

Introduction

5.

1

1

2

The planned outputs from the audit are set out in the table below:

Table 4: Planned outputs

Report Planned issue date
Audit Plan December 2009
Workforce management (interim report to management) January / February
2010
Partnership working January / February
2010
Leaseholder service charges January / February
2010
Audit Strategy Document June 2010
Annual Report to those Charged with Governance September 2010
Auditor's report giving the opinion on the financial statements September 2010
and value for money conclusion
Use of Resources 2010 September 2010
Annual Audit Letter December 2010

Reports will be discussed and agreed with the appropriate officers before being
issued to the Audit Committee. Reports are addressed to the Audit Committee and
management and are prepared for the sole use of the Council, and no responsibility
is taken by auditors to any member or officer in their individual capacity, or to any

third party.

2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.



Page 55

Audit Plan 2009%/10

Appendix A Independence and objectivity

We are not aware of any relationships that may affect the independence and objectivity of the audit
team, which we are required by auditing and ethical standards to communicate to you.

We comply with the ethical standards issued by the APB and with the Commission’s requirements
n respect of independence and objectivity as summarised below.

Auditors appointed by the Audit Commission are required to comply with the Commission’s Code
of Audit Practice and Standing Guidance for Auditors, which defines the terms of my appointment.
When auditing the financial statements auditors are also required to comply with auditing standards
and ethical standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board (APB).

The main requirements of the Code of Audit Practice, Standing Guidance for Auditors and the
standards are summarsed below.

[nternational Standard on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 260 (Communication of audit matters with
those charged with govemance) requires that the appointed auditor:

. discloses in writing all relationships that may bear on the auditor’s objectivity and
independence, the related safeguards put in place to protect against these threats and the
total amount of fee that the auditor has charged the client

. confirms 1n writing that the APB’s ethical standards are complied with and that, in the
auditor’s professional judgement, they are independent and their objectivity is not
compromised.

The standard defines ‘those charged with governance’ as ‘those persons entrusted with the
supervision, control and direction of an entity’. In your case, the appropriate addressee of
communications from the auditor to those charged with governance is the audit committee. The
auditor reserves the right, however, to communicate directly with the authority on matters which are
considered to be of sufficient importance.

The Commission’s Code of Audit Practice has an overriding general requirement that appointed
auditors carry out their work independently and objectively, and ensure that they do not act in any
way that might give rise to, or could reasonably be perceived to give rise to, a conflict of interest. In
particular, appointed auditors and their staff should avoid entering into any official, professional or
personal relationships which may, or could reasonably be perceived to, cause them inappropriately
or unjustifiably to limit the scope, extent or rigour of their work or impair the objectivity of their
judgement.

22009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 15



Page 56

Zudit Plan 2008110

The Standing Guidance for Auditors includes a number of specific rules. The key rules relevant to

this audit

appointment are as follows.

Appointed auditors should not perform additional work for an audited body (i.e. work
over and above the minimum required to meet their statutory responsibilities) if it would
compromise their independence or might give rise to a reasonable perception that their
independence could be compromised. Where the audited body invites the auditor to carry
out risk-based work in a particular area that cannot otherwise be justified as necessary to
support the auditor’s opinion and conclusions, it should be clearly differentiated within
the audit plan as being ‘additional work’ and charged for separately from the nommal audit
fee.

Auditors should not accept engagements that involve commenting on the performance of
other auditors appointed by the Commission on Commission work without first
consulting the Commission.

The Engagement Lead responsible for the audit should, in all but the most exceptional
circumstances, be changed at least once every five years.

The Engagement Lead and senior members of the audit team are prevented from taking
part in political activity on behalf of a political party, or special interest group, whose
activities relate directly to the functions of local government or NHS bodies in general, or
to a particular local government or NHS body.

The Engagement Lead and members of the audit team must abide by the Commission’s
policy on gifts, hospitality and entertainment.

w 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. t



Page 57

o4

Juaunsnipe snp 23E3RNU [ £ )] Yy 991UrIEnS OU ST 210 'SIAIISIT

[EUORISURI} S[OUNOY) oy uo 1dvdwn [uas siyp Juouniedop 01 yusunzedep woiy L1va Sew
Anenb o anq vrep parmbaz s axmaded pinoys swosds £oFuney] ap ey paaarpq sty

"PATIIOE 3G ) PRIV I “SIYIUI( OREUIULE) N1 ut 330 awm ‘Aed Leproy G 9asojdwo
wnipayy 6ISVI ue A uayd 394 30U Inq PauIEd SFoUA( AUr ‘Y] 1pU(] - SIYIUIE s24ordmy

"03e s1204 JWOS PAUGIS UII( IABY PINOM YOIYA JO IWOS “SITIWINITe
3s®9] asatp Suneoo] st wapqord uowwod Japour ‘sansst FUNUNOIIE It SIPISH
I ! L [ mog

J93YS IDULTE(| SIVIOYINE I} OIUO IWOD P[NOA IDUIY SISEI] IULUY S PITJISST[D II¥
$9§L3[ JO 1aqUIU 1YSry v ‘2duomadxd wory -s1orespur 1ydie Aq paserdar stisy syuswded
y3rpg LTSV | 9SBI] Wwnunumu 3o anea Juasard sa anfea 1w 0406 IVVO N[ 2P ‘ST 39pu(] - sasea|

"PATPHOSUOD 3| 270J0I9 APUT IV[E] PUE YT PIPULXI[Y

ISIXD 0} PIWIIP ST [OTIUOD “PIsIAXD st 1amod o Jotpaya JO ssopIedar ‘woaad

o1 3amod o aary Lo 31 15919301 SWIOTUOD B IARY 10U S20P INUI UL 2TIYM UIAD

JPU UPIW PIROD ST, *[0RU0D 0) Aqe, 03 pasoddo se joruod 01 3om0d, o sey juared
ysiy € SYAIPU¥ LT SVT | P J1ISIX2 03 PAI9PISUOD ST AR UP JO [01UOI ‘YL 19PUY) - IE[E PUE It BIPUEXI[Y

edorg pPIEPUEIS

1oedur pa1adxd Jo (A Aq pangIssed Mopq pasurwwns o18 £oJuneE] (1 305 sonsst 1oedunr fay oy,

yordun QY] Jo seare payoadxy g xipuaddy

FO0T UP



Page 58

C1 OTYAT PUP LT SV PIA 95UBPIOIIE U PIIEIS APIPY 918 SIOSSE PUE SIOIICRI] J1 SUILIIIP
01 passasse A[rga1ed aq [[Us poys Inq pa1dadxa st oedun pruatury pagdde waaq sdravpe
SEY SYT J1 s £PAn02dS0no1 SIWIYIS ] AP JO JUIUNEITI I MITAI PINOYS [1DUNO)
YL, 1500 31245 933 -2 “FununoddY Jo popaw pue pazmbar oMU A aqudsasd sa0p
M0 LUSVIPURZI OTYAT | 600T YOS U IAIMOY D23YS IUL[E] UO [[¢ MOU T8 SAWAYIS [ SL0Umery g1 - Ld

Funzodar qOOVAY 30 doy o oq [a sy L paroadsd st uonTWIO UL

oy Suiadw31 ut sansst ou yng paambaz 3q [pa Supodar swog ‘uswEls Arewnd
(poq 30y siuawidss Aq sisApue on1 Jrurad [ wosds a1 91030191 poys Lafunryy
g1 uawadeuew 0) 110da1 01 Pasn 1T 1L SIUAWSIS $1 910U ¥ BIA JUIWAIEIS ITHOIUI
st QAT Puw 399 20uv[eq s 31 130dd1 01 JuawaBeuew so1mbaz g Sy1 - Sunzoday TermsWSag

Juunredun 105 Sunepdn sormbar ap4o 3vak a1y ot

U MITAJI JOJ 9P 10U SIISSE 191dyM pu Furppe are sonpea £izadord sxoya aypuunpd juazimd
9P SPIEAO} DPYIU 3( OS[¥ P[NOYS UONEIIPISUO) “sIseq Jydu ap vo paredard ardm Lo
arnsua 03 suonenfea sed 19p1suod 01 pasu [ Luowne ay, -(assy Juappamby] WHpoyy)
1500 JudwadRdor pared1dap vo paseq aq 0} s1asse pasiedads pue siseq asn Funsixo
wnpagy 9ISV | UP I5pun panfea dq 0) $)asse pasteidads uou saambaz opor) i [0 WeIp oy ] - wonenyep

‘siuauodwod

a1 SuINUdP! UL ISISSE 01 STANEA 1A 578U 19A9M0Y PNOYS [PUNOY) oy INsiZar
Y} VY PIpNRUI pur pagnuapt aq [ tuauodwo?) 10351303 19ssE paxy oy Swpnpur
sarepdn wasds Sunuawaydun Jo ssadord oy i oxe LoBumery g “Apiwsedas asorp
ea1dap pue (19s8% Paxy I[qIBULY) $IISS JUILINI-UOU WO STUUOdWOD JurdyuGis
wnpay 9ISV N0 93e3rdds 0) PO A [PUNOY) [LI0] AP ‘ST 39Pu() - Fununoooy jusuodwor)

CLIBOOT Wl upoY



Page 59

Pl

2912e3d 301538 d1qnd 30 JUSUIYSIEISI 10 dUTPME) popuUIWE yYInonp SuntunodIE YT o) safurd JO 93BA® 9WO29q oM 31 oK s

SSNISTP [ 94 9Buryd 01 399lqns aq Avwu {10 YOITIN ¢ PAPUL 12K 91 10J SIUDWIEIS [EOULUY S ISTY §[DUNOY awp ur panzodas pue pardde aq [pa 11 se
ST 39pun Funzodai 3o 199335 ERUEUY [y 91 “98w3s SIY I8 DI0JIAY], "9A[0Ad 03 SUMUREOd St sa1pOq 103298 a1qnd £q Y1 Jo vondopr oy 01 vonwEI UL

onovad “{puanbasuor) -uoIsIAI 03 393lqNS STSWT P 210U OS[E 9 “SPIEPUTIS 98I JO voneandde pue vonviasdrayw oy GumpreSar suormdo Juruoy ur uo

ARIP 03 YOTyA U0 931exd paysiqrIss 30 Lpoq 1urogrudis v 394 Jou st 39 93050 T, AN 181G AP 10§ 303098 drpqnd atp w pargdde Suraq Apuazand sty 1

DLIROAT el upty



Page 60

51

uonestqnd siy ut [errarews Uv JO JNsa1 v se Bunoe woy wc«ﬁ«ddﬁ 10 Sunoe vosiad Lue o) pauoisesso

sso[ 10§ sn £q paydanoe aq ues Lmqsuodsar on "opm3 ¢ sv Luo poredard uoaq| sey uonedrqnd s,

.kﬁ«:ﬂwﬁuﬁvnﬁwﬁﬁﬁ mawm« Hwﬁgﬂwﬁﬁ Orﬁ %Q ﬁvhm\w«,—v@ 918 $ADIAIDG
.QEW%@EH@Q vﬁgﬁHhOa ¥ jou are mgrﬂmw Hvﬂawﬁﬂ Oﬁﬂ pue MGCCEQQHQaCH QOHSO&H ueIcy .A,Twﬁcﬁﬁawucw
QOHSOJVH uﬁ—ﬁumwv,v wvw‘lh jeuoneuIajuy QO&SC&FH‘ ugﬁu@ Hﬂmﬂ—wg gm uvﬂwﬂﬂwe vSstJTT SN0 COAEO;H jueIcy

“drgsromred Apaen paI] € * 7] S[{) UOIUIOY ], JURID) SULIW | UOJUIOY |, eIy |

PEAISSAI SIS I~ T'T () BOIHOYT, IUEID) 600Z &)
}N"09"uojuIoy}-JurIB*Mmmm

uojuloy| juelin)

0LI600Z Veld Hpny



Page 61 Agenda ltem 9

© GrantThornton

Tackling Health Inequalities in Haringey -
follow-up report

3 September 2009



Page 62

Health Inequalities follow-up

Contents Page
1  Executive Summary 1
Appendix A  Detailed findings and recommendations 6

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.



Page 63

Health Inequalities follow-up

1

Executive Summary

Introduction

1.1

1.2

1.3

As part of our 2007/08 external audits of London Borough of Haringey (the
Council) and Haringey Teaching Primary Care Trust (the PCT), we carried out a
joint risk based review of Health Inequalities (HIs), to support our 2007/08 use of
resources conclusions at the Council and PCT.

In June 2008 we issued "Tackling Health Inequalities in Haringey", a joint
performance report across local government and the health economy in the
borough. This raised a number of recommendations around the Joint Strategic
Needs Assessment (JSNA), the structure of the Wellbeing Strategic Partnership
Board (WBSPB) and the need to address capacity issues.

This follow-up report looks at progress made to date against the recommendations
raised within our June 2008 report.

Key messages

1.4

In general, good progress has been made in implementing our recommendations,
with eight of the original eleven recommendations either implemented or on track to
be implemented by the agreed deadlines. However, there are some areas where
progress has not been made as quickly as planned and the Council and PCT will
need to work together, with other partners, to ensure implementation to agreed
timescales. We recognise that other pressing challenges faced by the Council and
PCT may have played a part in delaying some of the actions in this area. The key
messages are summarised in the table below:

Table 1: Summary of progress on implementation of our recommendations

Areas of good progress Areas where more action is needed

The JSNA has been progressed, with the The PCT, Council and other partners

Phase 1 report being circulated to will need to ensure that the new
stakeholders in August 2008 and Phase 2 partnership structures are finalised as
is underway and due for completion by soon as possible and, subsequently,
December 2009 kept under review to ensure that they

are working effectively.

Capacity issues have been addressed, with ~ Ensuring better engagement with acute
the PCT having now recruited four trusts so that they can effectively
public health consultants contribute to the agenda

The Wellbeing Scorecard is now reviewed  More training on HI issues is needed to

on an exception basis which avoids support the further development of the
unnecessary detail being presented to the JSNA
WBSPB

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 1



Page 64

Health Inequalities follow-up

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

I.11

1.12

1.13

1.14

These messages are described below, with further detail of our findings and
recommendations at Appendix A.

Joint Strategic N eeds Assessment (JSNA)

In June 2008, we recommended that the PCT and Council continue with the
development of the JSNA, with Phase 2 to be started by March 2009.

In August 2008, as a result of Phase 1 of the JSNA the Council and PCT published a
report "Towards Joint Strategic Needs Assessment in Haringey." This document
provides a high level picture of need in the borough and identifies areas where
further work is required to understand need.

The Phase 2 topics under the JSNA have been agreed as mental health, sexual
health, vulnerable children & young people, and population change and growth and
its impact on services. Later the vulnerable children and young people’s needs
assessment was subsumed into the children and young people’s needs assessment
commissioned by the new Children’s Trust.

The Health Inequalities challenge in Haringey is exacerbated by population changes
including short term migration. Together the Council and the PCT need to ensure
that services continue to be delivered to their maximum effect to reduce health
inequalities, in the context of local population changes and short term migrants that
might be excluded from population statistics. The JSNA addresses this issue in that
it looks at sources of population change in Haringey and identifies gaps in
understanding, for example around mobile populations. The ability to better
interrogate data and link data sets via a new IT platform would facilitate better
understanding of these issues, and provide the Council and the PCT with a powerful
tool to more effectively target HIs in the borough.

The Newham model IT platform has been agreed as the most appropriate, and a
business case is currently being formed. It is planned for the IT platform to be
introduced adjacent to the Phase 2 topics. The PCT and the Council need to ensure
this IT platform is introduced and supported as soon as possible if further progress
is to be made.

Capacity
We recommended that capacity issues needed to be addressed by August 2008 to

ensure that the Phase 1 data set could be developed in a timely manner.

This recommendation has been fully met, with the PCT having now recruited four
Whole Time Equivalent public health consultants. Of these, two were newly created
posts, the others were vacancies being filled.

Wellbeing scorecard

In June 2008, we suggested that the Wellbeing scorecard should be reviewed on an
exception basis, due to the high level of information within it and the risk that this
would impair the effectiveness of scrutiny.

This process was introduced in the Autumn of 2008, and we therefore consider this
recommendation to be met.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 2



Page 65

Health Inequalities follow-up

1.15

1.16

1.17

1.18

1.19

1.20

1.21

1.22

Wellbeing Strategic Partnership Board (WBSPB)

We recommended that the structure of the WBSPB should be improved, to ensure
an appropriate balance between strategy and performance issues.

Following some delay, the wellbeing partnership arrangements are now being
changed. The Wellbeing Chairs Executive has been disbanded in light of new
partnership structures being implemented, designed to separate strategic decision-
making about the common client group in the NHS and adult social care, and the
broader healthy communities agenda.

These consist of the Joint Health and Social Care Leadership group which has
recently had its third meeting, and an emerging set of arrangements for healthy
communities which will span the Council and partnerships. A presentation is being
made to the Cabinet Policy Forum on 17 September to get direction on taking this
forward. An agreed next step is a workshop with previous members of the
Wellbeing Chairs Executive on 14 October.

Although some outcome focused subgroups were working well this was not
consistent. The agenda of the Tmproved quality of life and economic wellbeing'
group will now sit with the new healthy communities arrangements, while the 'Joint
commissioning and performance' group has been subsumed into the new Joint
Leadership group.

The PCT, Council and other partners will need to ensure that the new partnership
structures are finalised as soon as possible and, subsequently, kept under reviews to
ensure that they are working effectively.

Acute trust engagement

A further recommendation from June 2008 was that involvement of provider trusts
in the HIs agenda could be improved. We agreed an implementation date for this of
Autumn 2008.

However, formal consideration of the most effective ways to engage better with
acute trusts has only recently begun to take shape. Acute trusts are included in the
membership of the WBSPB. However, the Council and PCT recognise the need to
engage with them better to ensure attendance and contribution. The reworked
agenda of the WBSPB (first meeting to be held on 22 September) is intended to
achieve this. In addition, the upcoming National Support Team health inequalities
visit provides opportunities to engage on specific areas of health care delivery and
we will use this to identify the best ways to engage with acute trusts on both of the
new agendas.

Partners will need to ensure the effective implementation of current plans for better
involvement of the acute sector in the health inequalities agenda.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 3



Page 66

Health Inequalities follow-up

1.23

1.24

1.25

1.26

1.27

Health inequalities training and engagement

We recommended that more training was needed on HI issues to support the
development of the JSNA, and an implementation deadline of November 2008 was
agreed.

At time of writing, the Director of Public Health has established a Council corporate
public health group focusing on the development of the JSNA. One of the aims is
for training to be cascaded through the Council. This has been discussed and the
first training session will be on Needs Assessment, led by one of the Public Health
Consultants. The date is yet to be confirmed, therefore we do not consider that our
recommendation was fully met by the agreed deadline.

However, progress has been made in that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
(OSC) is becoming more involved in the Health Inequalities agenda. The Committee
hosted a workshop in November 2008 which was attended by Councillors, Non-
Executive Directors (NEDs) of the PCT and officers, and highlighted how to
consider HIs in the work that is being done across both organisations. Delegates
were encouraged to come up with ideas of what else could be done to combat HIs,
both if resources were not a barrier, or if no resources were available. The session
resulted in health inequalities areas being picked up by the OSC work programme.
In 2009/10 reviews will be undertaken on sexual health, carers, transport and
support to young people at risk of substance abuse. This is a positive example of the
proactive work that is being done within Haringey.

A visit by the Department of Health (DH) National Support Team (NST) for
Health Inequalities was planned for July 2009 but has been postponed as two other
sets of inspectors were due to come in July. It will now occur in October 2009 and
will look at the HIs agenda at an organisational and operational level. There is an
extensive list of delegates including Council, PCT, voluntary sector and acute trust
staff, and the visit will involve stakeholder discussions and workshops. The multi-
disciplinary workshops will look at, for example, Coronary Heart Disease, seasonal
excess deaths, cancer, strokes etc. There will also be community engagement focus
groups.

After the visit the DoH will issue a report, including suggested areas of
improvement. There will be expertise available from the DoH to support the
implementation of recommendations. The NST is visiting bodies nationally, and will
therefore be able to share best practice gleaned from their visits.

Way forward

1.28

1.29

Further detail on progress in implementing our June 2008 recommendations can be
found at Appendix A. Areas for remaining action are highlighted in the Appendix
along with updated management plans for implementation.

We would like to take this opportunity to remind the Audit Committees of the

Council and PCT of the need to monitor implementation of these outstanding
points.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 4



Page 67

Health Inequalities follow-up

Acknowledgements

1.30 We would like to thank the Joint Director of Public Health, the Associate Director
of Adults & Older People at the PCT, the Head of Corporate Policy at the Council,
the Head of Systems Development and Performance at the Council, and the other
Council and PCT officers who contributed to this follow-up.

1.31 This report has been prepared for the London Borough of Haringey and Haringey
Teaching Primary Care Trust, and should not be relied upon by any third parties.

Grant Thornton UK LLP
3 September 2009

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 5



Page 68

9 "pansasal SIYBL IV "dTT YN UOIUIOY L JUEID 6002 ©

U99q 9ARY SUOISSNOSI(] "SAJTAISS U0 Joedwl s)1 pue
yimois 29 a3ueyd uonendod pue ‘Yesy [enxas ‘Yeay
[RIUAW 7 aseyq Ul passargord Suraq are seare 921y,

"BLIQILID JOPIO PUOIAS [BIJAAS SB [[om
se AJI[Iqeure)sns [eroueUlj /SUIUOISSIWWOD uo Jordw] ¢
L28urwg ut YNSI spavmo ut paynuapt den g

1a31e) (A391138

AJUNUILIOD J[qeBUIRISNS PUR) JUSWIIAITE BaIk [0 |
“BLIQJLID JOPIO 1SI1J QIY) 2IoM I, "YNS[ oY} 10
Pa3u JO seare 7 aseyd Ay} Surjo9[as JoJ 19s 91oM BLILI)

6002
"SIOUIO0 1S3UOUWIR S[OOYJS pUE JJelS YoIeA duIpedq
10d ‘eurze3ew o[dosg AoSuLel ‘sdD ‘SpIieoq dneway) Y31 :Ayaorig
pue areyd ‘srequiaul (JSH) diysisured o1391ens AeSuLey
9Y) 0] JUAS SeM I YL, 9y} pue [1OUNOY) Y}
(600€ +quao2q wol N Isn3ny ur Hozw M ,w: H%M swhw mm%. ¢ »om%:ma JUIUISSIS AMZQMG
ol o11qng }800¢ v ul [ B Ul paje[nodl _ ey SV SPPN
Wl : UT JUSWISSISSY SPIIN JI591eNS JUIOf SpIemo], ‘1odax J139je1)S JuIof
JO 1039311(T JuIof) : ) : : : ’
AU} JO SMAN "IISqaM S,[IOUNOD) Y} JO BaIR YNS[ 9Y) 0Ju0 | 3y) Jo Judwrdo[oAdp
V/N V/N yoen uQ | papeordn uaaq mou sey 110darx 19s BIEp 9100 T ASeYJ Y], 3} INUNUOD 0, ‘T

UON)BPUIWIUIO0III
s[rejap suodsay 6007 Isn3ny UOI)BPUIWIWIOIAI

uonejuwRdury JuURSeURIA] / uoIsnPuo)) snje)s 600z dunf 8007 dunf

SUOTIEPUIWIWIOIAI pue SIUIPULJ pI[eId(q Vv Xipuaddy

dn-mojjo} sanienbau] yyesH



Page 69

L "pansasal SIYBL IV "dTT YN UOIUIOY L JUEID 6002 ©

aaey s109fo1d Tenprarpuy ‘sje81e) Aoy uo doueuLIoyIad
paroadxa jsurede paddewr ueaq sey JUSUNSIAUL PaUUR[] Surogu() :aurpea
wWNIPIIA : KILIOLIJ
‘K3o1e1S8

SuruorssIuwo)) Yy} YIrm aulj ur st A39781S JUSWISIAU] (STH)
SYL "8007 AInf ur preog ay) Aq paaise se A391ens | sanienbauy yesy

Pue [[EaH S1qnd JUAUISIAU] JBAA ¢ ) Jo 1ed sem YoIym ‘g Uwniny aonpau 0} suondo
JO 103011 UTO[) SuLmp 9s1019%a uonesnLIoLd JUSUNSIAUL S, 1D Y} | Jo sisA[eue Ee.:o&
V/N V/N yoen uQ 01 parjdde arom sisAeue 11Jouaq,1s09 jo sopdrourid oy, /1500 daoadurt o, T

(8u103uQ
9oURUI JO J0JAIIJ

‘KouLre ul paau JuISSasse JOJ 1 Pasn pey 9,8C e
pue ‘Surugrsop Jo SuruoISSIUIOD J0J UOIIBUWLIOJUT
oy} pasn pey A3y pres sjuopuodsal JO 9,/9 e
uaWINOOp YNS[ U} UIJIIM UOTIBULIOJUT
) pasn pey A9y pres sjuapuodsar Jo 9,6/ e
:91om sSurpuly
A9 "SI901JJO UMY} WIOIJ PIATIIAI 2IM SASUOdsY

‘[nydfey 1sowr punoj

peY A9 seare 9y} AJIIUSPI 0] pay[St a1am sjuapuodsar
PUE 10S BJBp 9100 | 9SEyd 9Y) PUNoIe a1om suonsanb

YL "600¢ [Mdy-pruu woj yyuow € 10J pajse] drysioured
9} SSOIOR SIAJIJJO JO UOHBI[NSUOD PISBq qom Y

'60, JoquIadaq Aq uonedwos 10j anp
SI 7 aseyq "3uroguo st YNS[ 2y3 Surdo[aaap jo ssaooid
oY) 9’1 7 aseyq 1ok uaddey [[14 jeym uo SULIINIOO

UOI)BPUIWT0IIL
s[reyp suodsay 6007 Isn3ny UOI)BPUIWWOIAI

uonejuwRduy JUdUIRGRURIA] / uoIsnpuo)) snje)s (07 dunf 800z dunf |‘oN

dn-mojjo} sanienbau] yyesH



Page 70

8 "pansasal SIYBL IV "dTT YN UOIUIOY L JUEID 6002 ©

‘opew U93q sey ssa13o1d poo3

1nq pajudwerdwr A[[nJ 394 10U ST UONEBPUSWWIOIA SIY)
"9'T - J[NSAI B SB JOqUIB O} Pal WOI) UOHIBPUWUIOAT SIY)
JIoJ snje)s Surjed YSII [euIul s) paSueyod sey [Dd YL

" LDd 2y 18 20e[d ur sassaooid oy Jo

Surpue)sIopun Ino YIIM U UI ST SIY], SISO pPue J1jouaq
yIeay ‘K3anoe uo joedwr ay) Sunenjead pue ‘SaAnenIul
pasodoid Sursnuond jo ssao01d e paquidsap pey 104
Y 1y paress [eued ay) Yovqpas) oY) UIYNM ‘ SHN
oy} JO sonyeA Y} PUB SJUSWIAIINDAT 9IAIIS ‘SPadul [BI0] 0)
SuIpI090® JUSUNSIAUL 9SNLIOL], JO Aouajedwo)) ay) uo
[[BI9A0 | JO [9AQ] WNWIUIW Y] I8 1D 2y} palods [oued
DM Y YSnoyly Juswssasse (JDAL) SUIUOISSTo))
SSe[D PO JU2231 AU Jo Juduodwod Aoy

B SeAM SOWO09IN0 YI[eay 03 axmipuadxa jo Juiddew oy,

Lsiuaned JurisIxa 0 90IAISS [ROIUI[D

Jo Kyayes 10 Ajpenb ur juswoaordwt JuedIuSIS B IOAI[SP
juaunsaAur pasodoid ay [[IA\ IO / pue (JUSUISIAUL

JO 12A9] pasodoid a3 01 9AnR[AI) /J1jouaq Ay} Op

yonuw MO /iusunsaaut pasodoid oy woIj J1jouaq [[14
ordoad Auewr MOH - SSQUAATIIRJJR 150D, pepnout s3oafoxd
Pa1sa33ns 10} eI uonesnuond oy, ‘Suiseyd [eroueuly
Pa102dxa 10J pue SAW0INO ‘sINdIN0 I0J PIMITAII U

UOI)BPUIWT0IIL
s[reyp suodsay 6007 Isn3ny UOI)BPUIWWOIAI

uonejuwRduy JUdUIRGRURIA] / uoIsnpuo)) snje)s (07 dunf 800z dunf |‘oN

dn-mojjo} sanienbau] yyesH



Page 71

6 "PaAsasal SIUBH IV "d71 YN uoluIoy L Jueln 6002 ©
Ayireay Joj SjuaWAIULLIE JO 1S SUISIOWS Ue pue ‘Funsaw
pIy) s) pey A(3uadar sey yorym dnois diysiopeo
Q18D [RI00S PUE I[EIH JUIO[ ) JO ISISUOD ASAY],
“Bpuade sanuNWIwod AYi[eay Jopeoiq 3y} pue
“9Ied [RI00S J[Npe pue SHN 9y ur dnois Juar[d uowwos
91 1n0ge SUDRW-UOISIOAP J13a)e)s djeredas 03 paugisap
‘poyuowroduur Suraq saxmonns diysiomred mau jo YSII|
Ul MOU PapueqsIp uddq sey (DGM) ANNIIXH SIrey))
Suraqop YL ‘padueyd Sureq MoU ATk sjusWIULLIR
diyszoured Sureqom oy ‘Ae[op awos SUIMO[[O]
- A[oAnooo Sunpom *s90eds u2a13 pue Ajanoe [edrsAyd ‘Sursnoy
ore o 0 e SINSUS ‘UI[BIY [enxas 218 HSO Y} 10 SNO0J paisagsns Jo seare
01 Mo1ASI JopUN 9y, "epuage S[H oY} O} aN[BA PPE UBD JUSUWIIA[OAUT DSO
oy b&o:@omp:m Moy Apoexe Ajnuapl 0) uayeyopun sem siseue deg e ey
‘pue ajqissod S[Ie1ap Yoty ‘600 [dy ur SO oy 01 Juem yodar
SE 1008 S© post[euy ‘uorssas aanedronted ‘oanisod K19A e sem 11 P[0) oI oM
918 SAIMONNS pue (SqAN  pue SIO[[IoUNod 7] SuIpn[oul ‘saje3a[ap O | 6007 AMf :duIpeaq
drysxoupred xoi1dde) douepuane poos sem 919y, “JIOM Y} UI BpUIFE Y31y :Xyuong
600C 19qUIadaq MU Y} Jey) ‘ : : o
STH 9Y) IOpISUOD 0} JUOAIIAD IOJ PISU Y} Passans pue
SOOIAIRS AJIUNuIo)) Hmsuo MH podU LA ‘ ssouIsng s,9U0AIoAT (YI[EOH, PO} SeM JUA?d AU, ‘8007 (4dSIM)
pue a1 SiouL woﬁo pue IOQUIdAON] UT SIOJJJO pue [Dd Ui JO SqAN ‘SIo[rouno) |  paeoq digysiduyred
‘s)INpy Jo J03021I(] .h%“ﬂ%%@ %WMMMH J10J UoIssas Jururen e uel YifesH d1qngd Jo Joioai SuRqIPAM
pue 3fesy d1qnd o q IO Y ‘01/600C Ul STH JO MIIASI (DSO) Mo pue [j[edy jo

JO 1030911(] JUIOf

s[rejap
uoneyudwRduy

paaIdy

suodsay

JUIWRSRURIA]

ssa13o1d ug

UOI)BPUIWIWI0IIT
600¢ 1sn3ny

/ uoIsnpuo))

Aunniog pue MIIAIAQ pa1sa3sns oy Joj uoneredard uy

smyes GOOg sunf

2a1mponas dsoxdwy

UonNepuUaWUIOIII

800 dunf

dn-mojjo} sanienbau] yyesH




Page 72

oL "pansasal SIYBL IV "dTT YN UOIUIOY L JUEID 6002 ©

*K[oA1I091J0 Sunjiom aIe A3y 1Y) 2INSu

0) smaraal opun 1doy ‘Apjuonbasqns ‘pue aqrssod se
uoos se pasifeurj are saxmonns diysioulred mou ay) eyl
2INSU? 0) Paau [[Im s1oujred 19yj0 pue [1ouno)) ‘1Dd YL

*dnoi3 drysiopea Jutor

AU 9Y) 0JUI pawnsqns uadq sey dnoi3 eouewioyrad
pue SUIUOISSTWIWIOD JUIO[, Y} J[IYM ‘Sjuswasuelie
sonIUNWWO AYI[BY MU Y} YIIM JIS MOU [[IM

dnoi3 Juraqqrom o1rwouods pue 9J1 jo Ayenb pasoidury,
oy} Jo epuade Ay, “JUISISUOD JOU SeM SIY} [[9Mm Surjiom
a1om sdnoi3qns pasnooj awodIN0 AWOS Y3noyi[y

1940100 11

U0 9ANNOAXH SsIreyD Furdq[op 2yl Jo slequiawt snotadid
P doysyiom e st dojs 1xau peaiSe uy “pIemiof s1y)
3unye) uo uonodaIp 393 03 Joquuaydag /[ uo wnio L2104
jauIqe)) 91 03 apew Juraq st uoneiuasald v -sdiysiouired
pue [1oUN0)) Y ueds [[IM YOIYM SOIITUNUILIOD

UOI)BPUIWT0IIL
s[reyp suodsay 6007 Isn3ny UOI)BPUIWWOIAI

uonejuwRduy JUdUIRGRURIA] / uoIsnpuo)) snje)s (07 dunf 800z dunf |‘oN

dn-mojjo} sanienbau] yyesH



Page 73

L "pansasal SIYBU |1V "dTT MN uoluioy] Juels 6002 @

(8ur03uQ "dnoi13 sway) Suraqop ODAVH oW 1S319)uI
I[eoH o1qng | Jo 1030911 9Y) pue (ODAVH) suonesiue3io Ajunwuio)) JO seapuUNWIwod
JO J010QII(] JUIOf) | PuR AIRJUN[OA JO UOIBIOOSSY AQSULIBH U} JO 9AINIIXH pue d1iqnd ay)
JoryD oy Aq pareyd-09 st i ‘dn 19s u99q sey dnoid PPIM JuduIsegud
V/N V/N yoen uQ -pasnd0j AWOINO UONNQLIIU0D) 9ANISO] B SUDBIA QUL droadury

‘sepuade Mau 9y} JO Y10q U0 SISNI} 9Inoe YIim a3e3ud

01 SAem 159q 9} AJIUSPI 0] ST SN [[IM IM PUB AISAI[OP

aIed YI[BaYy JO seare o1j19ads uo 93e3ua 03 senrumuioddo

sapraoad 1is1A sanienbaut Yieay [ SN Surwoodn ayy

‘uonIppe uJ "SIy} 9AMYIE 0) PIPUAUI ST (Joqualdag 77 uo

PI9Y 2q 03 Sunoow 1811j) IS Y} JO epuasSe pasiomal

9y, "uonngrIuod pue JULPUINIE AINSUI 0] 19))oq WY}

s 93e3U9 01 Paau ay) ASIUF09aI [ D PUe [1oUno)) 2y}

‘JoAMOY (gdSgM) preoq diysiouired Suraqrem ay) jo

drysrequiow oy ur papnyour aIe sisni} AJnoy "adeys aye)

ot s | VTS0 g

ey oy 099JJ 41 Jo uonerspl [ d

U} 101995 9MoE 9 JO ‘pauodisod sem doysyrom SIy} yeaIqino nij

JUSUISA[OAUT J9})aq . e & do
10y sued uowmd QuUIMS 9} 0] NP ‘I9AIMOH ‘60, ABIA Ut doysyrom FOgM 8002
ay) ur parodxa aq 01 anp sem ‘sdnoi3-qns Supnour | UWNINY :PDUI[PLI
600T 19qUIDAON Jo uonejuowadur o : : :
SISnI) 9INoR M 19139q 383U 0) sAem 159q Y, WNIPIAl : ALI0LIJ
QAT}ORJJS A} INSUD
1S9 A\ /SUTUOISSTUIWO))
A 0] POaU [[IM SIQulIRq .
Jo 1030011 sToquiaw sysnay Japiaoad
{UONBPUIUITIOIIY

pue yIfesy d1qnd : Apeaire a1e (y3no1oq 2y} Jo 1Seq Y} 03 XSI[PPIAN YHON Jo yudwaA[oAUr
JO I010211(] JUIOf paeIdy ssoroxd uf | pue 1S9AN A3 01 UOISUINIYAY ) sIapraoid 9inoe Jolew oy, ANPH

s[rejap
uoneyudwRduy

suodsay

JUIWRSRURIA]

UOI)BPUIWIWI0IIT
600¢ 1sn3ny

/ uoIsnpuo))

smyes GOOg sunf

UonNepuUaWUIOIII

800 dunf

dn-mojjo} sanienbau] yyesH




Page 74

4} "pansasal SIYBL IV "dTT YN UOIUIOY L JUEID 6002 ©

-01d0) s,91dosg Sunox 29 uaIp[IyD oY

Jo 1red woy [im 9pdoad SunoA 10y A391ens uonedionted
€ 30 SMIIA ,SIOP[OYaYe)S SUIIOI[0D JO JUSWI[S UB

aAeY [[14 $21d0) Y JO [ora ‘7 aseyq 10 IUAD Ad3uLey
JOIY)[BSH, OU} & SIOP[OYN LIS WOIJ PIAIIIAI YOrqPIS)
SY) U0 paseq 1M YNS[ a3 Jo senuord oy ‘T aseyq uf

‘[ady Jo pus 9y} 18 papu pue OOZ YOIBJA Ul Pa1Inddo
SIomaurel] 9y} uo uonejnsuo)) ‘Yieay s,o[doad uo sey
ST 109]J9 aAnIsod o) pue JustIomodus 0] 0USIJaI
o1j10ads © oyeU [[1M I1 1B} POWLILJUOD SBM )1 PUR ‘60/E/C
U0 gdSIM 9 18 PassnosIp sem STYL, I0MIWERL]
juowageduy Ajunwwo)) e Sune[nuioy st JSH Y,

‘pIeog ay) urol 01 AJISI9ATU)

XOS9[PPIA Woly aanejuasaidar e Suniaur pasoidde
ddSam U ‘60, AN U] “A[[e20] oM dwos op 01 1 Dd
9} 0] W0D 0} SJUIPIIS AJISISATU() XASIPPIA 0] 2d02s
SI 919y ], *A)[NoeJ aI1e)) [B100S 29 YI[BaH oy} uryiim ojdwexa
J10J ‘YoIeasal J1Y} ASIIN 0) pue AJSIAATU[) XASPPIA
m Joy3a303 yJom 03 padofeasp Jureq are sentuntoddo

"S9[K1S9y]

Aqireay 03 s1otieq urpreSal (/0 UI) SUOIBIOGR[0D
snoraaid uo Surping ‘sansst A11saqo pOOYp[IYd Uo YIeaH 8007
PIIYD JO amnsu] (TD[)) UOPUOT 23[[0D) ANSIoATUN )sngny :duIpedq

) I SYUI] SUTUTRIUTRW ST WEd) YI[BH O1qnd YL, WNIPIYA] :LJLI0LLJ

UOI)BPUIWT0IIL
s[reyp suodsay 6007 Isn3ny UOI)BPUIWWOIAI

uoneyudwRduy JUIWISBUBIA] / uoisnppuo) snje)s 600z dunf 8007 dunf

dn-mojjo} sanienbau] yyesH



Page 75

€l "pansasal SIYBU |1V "dTT MN uoluioy] Juels 6002 @

-aoe[d UI [[e MOU SI WIBd) JusWageuBW JOTUAS AY) Jeyp)
sueaw s1y [, “3sod ur juswdorera@ Arunwwo)) Jo pesy
® OS[e ST 919y [, "'yireay orqnd [e1ouag 10 Juruorssruwod

‘grdoad 3uno£ 29 uaapyiyo ‘ojdoad 1ap[o 29 s)mpe :SNd0J 8007

JO BAIR UB Sey JUe)[NSU0d yory "I1sod ur sjuei[nsuod yieay Isngny :durpesdq

oriqnd juoreamba own sjoym Inoj sey mou 1Dd YL, WNIPIYA :LILI0LLJ

'S90IN0SAI Jo Sutreys ay) Suipae3ar 1D 2yl pue SNSSI

V/N V/N pae[dwio)) | [OUNOD Y} UMIAq Py 3uraq a1k SuoIssnasIp Suro3uQ) Leded ssaappy
‘A[of ur Sunesw dnoin
3u11901S VNS QU3 38 PIsSnIsIp 2q 0} anp sem sy} JoJ
9sBO ssauIsng Ay ], ‘[opow weymaN Yy idope 01 peaide

sem 11 pue ¢(), Arenuef Jo pus oy} je dnoi) urieas YNSI 6002

1dag ¢ uo preog I 9y} J& paIapIsu0d arom wojed oy Joj suondo oy, YOIB]A dulped(q

sJouno)) Ayl Je pue wnIpIA :AJIoLIg
1dog ¢ uo dnoi "VNSI

3uL1991S VNSI 91 JO 19 E1ep 2102 A} pue a[yoid y3norog 9y se yons SPadu J1RY) I0j )3S

9} 18 passnosIp [oIeasal A9y 01 $sa0oe Asea Suipraoid ‘diysiouyred oy | ejep 9y} djedoardjul

9q [ waojrerd | ssoroe Surreys uonewrojur aaoxdur s siy, sxoured £q ued SIIsn jey)

©IBp 9U) 10J 9S8O | PISSAOOE 9 UBD Jey) S}osejep 9Aed[ ued sioulred [[e o1oym | INSud 0) paIofdxd

SSQUISNQ PASIAIL A, jutod [enuad © - A1018AI9SqO BIEp AQSULIBH ® 9q [[IM 1] JIY)Ing 3q pnoys

(010€ yorey Aotjod PaBESIALD st Jeu)

aresodior) 1o csumv ‘sordoy ¢ woperd Loy

Jsey oy} 03 Juddelpe peonponur oq 0} anp SI pue ‘elep Jo |  A[eoyads ‘yNSI

V/N V/N yoen uQ UoneIOLIAUI 10139q Mmo[[e [[Ia uojierd 1] pouueld ayJ, Y} pPIBMIOJ IAOIA]

s[rejap
uoneyudwRduy

suodsay

JUIWRSRURIA]

UOI)BPUIWIWI0IIT
600¢ 1sn3ny

/ uoIsnpuo))

smyes GOOg sunf

UOI)BPUIWITIOIT
800 dunf

dn-mojjo} sanienbau] yyesH




Page 76

- "PaAsasal SIUBH IV "d71 YN uoluIoy L Jueln 6002 ©
"9A0QE € UOTIEPUSWIWOIY T8 SIUSWUIOD 93§
*SIQOIJJO JOIUQS SB [[oM SB ‘SHN PUE SIoqUIdW pajoo[ £q
‘Ayiumioddo | papudne [[om sem 1] ‘8007 JRqUIQAON UI YI[BdY o11qnd Jo
d[qrssod 1so1[IBa | 103011 9y} Aq P[Y SBM 0UIJUOD sanifenbaur ey v
oy Je [1OUN0D) Ay} 0)
papraoid aq pinoys "PAUWLITIUOD 2q 0) SI AJep A,
Sururen juowssassy | SIUBIMSUOD) YI[BIH I1qnd Y} JO U0 AQ PI[ JUSWISSISSY 8007 JIQUIDAON
spaaN pauuerd ayJ, SPION U0 9q [[IM UOISSAS Sururen) 3siy Ay} eyl :uIpedq
6007 12quatoN T2 | e 1oy st i 10 2y NSE o 6 ooy | O
UI[eaH 21qng oy} uo 3ursnooj dnoa3 yeay orqnd yerodios sanssI TH
JO I030011(] JUIOf poaIdy NoeI UO JON |  [IOUNOD) B PIYSI[QRIS? SeY I[BoH O1qnd JO IO Y, uo SurureI) IO ‘S

s[rejap
uoneyudwRduy

suodsay
JUIWRSRURIA]

UOI)EPUIUITIOIIT

600¢ 1sn3ny
/ uoisnpuo))

"LOd oW Je Wes) yjfeoHy

a1[qngd Y} YIm A[3SO[0 I0m 0} pasu p[nom uostad

SIY} PAINIOAIL JT "YNS[ oy 1oddns Joyying 01 JoFeuey
uorjewLIojuy ue 10J urpuny 393 03 Jurkn sty ‘sysod
19013 UOTJBWLIOFUT UTY}IA SWIT) PIJBIIPIP BIA YN[ U}
1oddns 0} $301N0SaI I9YIING PIYNIUSPI SBY [IOUN0)) YL,

“BJEP SOIRYS PUB PAYSI[qRIS? U9aq Sty dnoin [estuyoa,
VNS QUL "Sunjiom jutof 98einoous toyny [[im woperd
BIRp QU] ‘SWeansyIom pue sepuade ur pasnuond

SI [1I0UN0)) Y} pue 1.Dd Y Ueamiaq Sunyiom diysiouied

smyes GOOg sunf

UonNepuUaWUIOIII

800z dunf | °"ON

dn-mojjo} sanienbau] yyesH



Page 77

Sl

"pansasal SIYBL IV "dTT YN UOIUIOY L JUEID 6002 ©

(010T yoIeIN
Y[y orqnd jo
J0JOAII(] ARIOOSSY)

pue sy0afoxd ‘saaneniur Apeaie aIe 219y} ‘UonNIppe U[

2
Sunuowerdwr 1oy Apiqisuodsar aary A9Y) - SI9IJO SO}
103 100fo1d © se pajean s1 YSD "sioped] [enuajod are oym
s1901JJ0 J0J 9oe[d ur swwes3old diysiopes] e st a1oyJ,

“JUSWINOOP A} INOYSNOIY) PBAIY] B SB YSD YIMm
quowkorduwa Jo s30adse [[e S10A09 SIY, "§00Z Foquiaidag

6002
oI duIpeaq
wnIpayy :AJI0LIJ

¢t Ye))
LAqisuodsax
[enos derodiod
10} saanpadoxd
pue sueyd

V/N V/N Yorn uQ) | ur 91-800z 10J A39enS 9[dood € paaise SI9qUIdJA [IOUN0)) [eurio} dopAad(q 11
80 dunf :duIpeI
WNIPIJAl : AJLIOLIJ
$)98.1e) V'] 3Y) 10j
V/N V/N patordwo) "800 JO Jouwrwng Jy) ur pajo[dwod sem SIyJ, PIBIAI0DS ISIANY 01
"SUOISSIWIPE [OYOJ[e
punoie uonejuasaid e sem 213y} (), YOI ul o[dwrexa
J10J ‘UOT)UR)IE Paau Jey) seare uo paoerd st siseydur
J uor P q paoe[d ST siseydury 8007 AIf :ourpeaq
‘Aroyrenb ggsgm om WNIPIA :AIIOLLJ
pue Ajypuowt DG A U3 031 A19I1)U9 SI Ul S903 pIBIAI0IS
oY, ‘paruasaid Suroq [1e1op AIeSSadouun PIOAR 0} JOPIO siseq
ul ‘popniour aIe snje)s Joquie Jo pal Ym s)o3Ie) asoy) uondadx? ue uo
A[uo Jey) sueowW SIY ], 'g00T JO UWNINY UL PIONPONUL |  MIIA - PABIAIOIS
V/N V/N patordwo) sem SIseq U0oNdadxa UB UO PIEIAIOIS M ) JO MIIAY () SuRy [P ‘6

s[rejap
uoneyudwRduy

suodsay

JUIWRSRURIA]

UOI)BPUIWIWI0IIT
600¢ 1sn3ny

/ uoIsnpuo))

smyes GOOg sunf

UonNepuUaWUIOIII

800 dunf

dn-mojjo} sanienbau] yyesH




Page 78

91 "pansasal SIYBL IV "dTT YN UOIUIOY L JUEID 6002 ©

"wInioj
ey} Je paaide pue JSH Yl YSnoay) pasiel 9q 0} pasu
pnom Aorjod jutof ® do[aasp 01 JuawaaI3y ‘[1oUno)) 2y}
18 (DIAJ) dnoin) JuswaSeury 2OUBWLION A1 Y3noIy)
A[[enIur YUWoaISe pUe UOISSNISIP SPAdU SIY) JOAIMOH
'sdnoi3 Ajrunwiod pue A1ejun[oA [BJ0[ PUE [IOUN0))

Ayl ‘1.Dd U3 usamiaq padoreaap aq p[nod YSD Jo Aorjod
SUIYOIBISAO UB ‘SOATISWIAY] SIAIPOQ Y} AQ PIJIIUIPI SY

SIom
Jo uoneoridnp proAe 0} JapIo Ul ‘[1ouno)) ayj Je aoed
ur mou aIe ey seanpadoid pue suepd jo uononponur
oy ayeorjdar 03 Suruued st 1D QY] [rouno))

AU} YIIM I0M 0) Pea[ PIWRU SII 9q [[IM S)IUBI[NSUOD
I[eoy o1qng si Jo auo yeyy paaise sey 1Dd YL

‘[rouno)) Ay Je premio] epuade YD ay Surysnd

uosiad pawreu ay) st oym ‘sLIO eddijyq ‘Surures

29 Juawdo[aaa(] [euonesiue3I() JO peay Y} Woij

ASD uo uoneuasald B paa1adal [1ouno)) Ay 1e (GINAD)
pIeoq JUaWFeURIA S,ATNIXH JOIYD Y 6(), Arenue[ uf

“QuIAYDS

Surpeay pauoddng ay) pue sjuswaded dousrIadxa yIom
[00YDS ‘[B007T 9pel], / 29jueIens) A9SuLIeH 3yl ‘§10¢
-8007 A391e1S y3noiog 1sauaain) oy :oidwexa 104 "10d
PUE [10UNOD) Y I8 YSD M 9)B[1I0D Jey) SAIFeLS

UOI)BPUIWT0IIL
s[reyp suodsay 6007 Isn3ny UOI)BPUIWWOIAI

uonejuwRduy JUdUIRGRURIA] / uoIsnpuo)) snje)s (07 dunf 800z dunf |‘oN

dn-mojjo} sanienbau] yyesH



Page 79

o Grant Thornton

www.grant-thornton.co.uk
© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

"Grant Thornton" means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited liability partnership.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm within Grant Thornton International Ltd ('Grant Thornton
International’). Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership.
Services are delivered by the member firms independently.

This publication has been prepared only as a guide. No responsibility can be accepted by us for loss
occasioned to any person acting or refraining from acting as a result of any material in this publication



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 81 Agenda ltem 10

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

[No.]

Audit Committee On 1% February 2010

Report Title JAR Action Plan Update

Report of Peter Lewis, Director Children & Young People

Signed ;== ——= .

AL R

. <AL}

Contact Officer : Mark Gwynne, JAR Programme Manager

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-Key Decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1.  This programme update report provides an overview of progress in delivery of
the Safeguarding Plan up to the month of December.

1.2.  Audit Committee note:
* The programme management arrangements for the Safeguarding Plan;
e Progress against the milestones set out within the Plan;
¢ Progress against safeguarding performance indicators; and
e The Safeguarding Plan risk management report.

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member
2.1. N/A

3. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:

3.1.  The Haringey Community Strategy 2007-2016 in particular the ‘Safer for all
key outcome. In response to the JAR Action Plan we have strengthened our




Page 82

3.2.
3.3.
3.4.
3.5.

3.6.

commitment to provide support and protection to the most vulnerable people in
our community through the following priority: We will ‘Safeguard children and
adults from abuse and neglect wherever possible and deal with it
appropriately and effectively if it does occur’ — Community Strategy
Update, March 2009

The Council Plan 2007-2010 priority of ‘Encouraging lifetime well-being at
home, work, play and learning’

The Children and Young People’s Plan 2009-20.

Haringey Strategic Plan (NHS) 2008-2013

Priority Actions for Health: arising from the Safeguarding Plan for Haringey
Plan 2009

Safer for all, Haringey’'s Community Safety Partnership Strategy 2008-2011

41.
4.2.

4.3.
4.4

. Recommendations

To note the programme management arrangements for the Safeguarding Plan.
To note progress in delivery of the milestones up to December 2009, contained
within Appendix 1.

To note current performance to November 2009, as contained in Appendix 2.
To note the key risks associated with delivery of the plan and the actions being
taken to mitigate them, as contained in Appendix 3.

. Reason for recommendation(s)

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

Revised programme management arrangements were put into place in
September 2009. This involved the establishment of a Safeguarding Plan
Steering Group (SPSG) comprising chief officers from the Council, police and
health. The steering group usually meets on a fortnightly basis. This
frequency of reporting enables prompt management action to be taken to drive
improvements in safeguarding across the Borough.

Monthly progress reports covering milestones, performance indicators and risk
management are considered by SPSG and CEMB. These reports focus on
achievement of programme milestones and management of performance
indicators, providing an indication of the direction of travel as well as identify
areas where further support is required. Risk are considered on a bi-monthly
basis by these groups.

Managers responsible for delivery of key milestones and performance
indicators are invited to SPSG as appropriate to be challenged on progress, or
provide an update to the group. For all actions marked as achieved, an
evidence log is being maintained, which incorporates the evidence to
substantiate the milestone’s achievement. For all reports, no action will be
marked as achieved until evidence has been provided. This evidence has
been used in preparation for the follow-up inspection in January.

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 83

. Other options considered
6.1.N/A

. Summary

7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

7.5.

7.6.

The Safeguarding Plan was developed following the June 2009 follow-up
inspection. At this time it was agreed that the JAR Action Plan was large and
that we should provide greater focus on the key improvements that were
required. These key improvements formed the basis for the Safeguarding
Plan, which is structured around 5 themes:

e Leadership & Governance
Early Intervention
Good Practice
Capacity & Staffing
Performance Management

The Safeguarding Plan is actively managed on at least a fortnightly basis by
the Safeguarding Plan Steering Group, comprising senior managers across the
Council and partners. This seniority reflects the importance of safeguarding
within the borough and ensures that responsibility for delivery resides at the
highest level. This group of senior managers enables individual responsibility
for each theme and collective responsibility for delivery of the plan as a whole.

For this report, progress has been reported against the milestones /
achievements of the new Safeguarding Plan. The programme milestone
progress report (Appendix 1) and performance indicator report (Appendix 2)
give a progress update on delivery of this refreshed plan.

The simplified approach adopted for reporting milestone progress enables
greater focus on issues arising and the identification of any support that may be
required to ensure that milestones and performance outcomes are achieved.
Building milestone reporting into the Covalent performance management
system resulted in a change of reporting style last month and we are continuing
to develop this to fully meet our reporting requirements.

Key issues arising from the December progress report are:

o Development of phase 1 of the CAMHS outreach service has been
achieved. This will be used as the basis for linkage with First Response
ahead of creation of the Multi Agency Team.

e Team evidence files have been developed in many areas, but are currently
inconsistent and work is underway to improve this and learn from good
examples.

Performance reporting continues to be drawn from the Covalent system,
enabling Safeguarding Plan reporting to be integrated with other performance

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 84

7.7.

7.8.

7.9.

7.10.

reports within the Council and to the Children’s Trust. Training has been
carried out for the PCT to enable their direct access to the system and this will
subsequently be expanded to the police.

Key issues arising from the performance reporting are:

e Although priority performance indicators (NI 59 & 60 - Initial and Core
Assessments) are showing an upward trend the rate of progress is not fast
enough to demonstrate significant improvement before the inspection.
Performance information has been collected to enable reporting of the
percentage of cases received for initial assessment in December that were
completed within time — demonstrating that current casework is being
progressed in a timely manner.

e HR data demonstrates that small improvements are being made in
addressing the balance between permanent and agency staff. An
improvement should be seen with the arrival of the second batch of
American social workers during February, which will feed through into future
reports.

Risk management has also been built into Covalent, however further work is
required on the presentation of reporting. Key risks have been identified and
are being actively managed (Appendix 3).

Key risks that could impact on the inspection and our progress are:

e The rate of progress being made with improving times for Initial and Core
Assessments (NI 59 & 60).

o Consistency and quality of supervision has improved overall, but further
work remains to ensure that a consistently high standard is achieved;

¢ Quality and recording of decision making has improved overall, but there is
some inconsistency which is being addressed.

e Recruitment of social workers and shifting the balance in favour of
permanent staff and away from agency.

In the light of progress in delivering the milestones within the Safeguarding
Plan, the improvements that have been seen within the service and the
performance indicators, we now have greater confidence in our ability to
safeguard the children and young people of Haringey.

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments

8.1.

The Council in forming its 2009-10 Budget Strategy recognised the need to
address the issues which had been identified in Children’s safeguarding by the
Joint Area Review. It made available one-off provision for an additional £4.2m
which has been earmarked for the actions set out in the attached Safeguarding
Plan. Confirmation has been received from the Government about the extent to
which they are prepared to provide additional resources which is consistent
with and reflected in the assumptions set out above.

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 85

8.2. To the extent that the actions in the Safeguarding Plan have on-going resource
implications, they have been reflected in the Council's 2010-11 Budget
proposals that are currently being considered.

9. Head of Legal Services Comments
9.1. No legal comments.

10. Head of Procurement Comments
10.1. N/A

11. Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments
11.1. N/A

12. Consultation
12.1. N/A

13. Service Financial Comments
13.1. Meetings were held between all Area for Improvement Lead Officers and the
Head of Finance. Based on these meetings an update of the allocations
necessary across the themes was undertaken.

13.2. The revised analysis reflects the fact that as additional support has been
engaged this has been deployed across various themes.

14. Use of appendices /Tables and photographs

14.1. Appendix 1: Safeguarding Plan — Milestone Progress Report, December 2009
14.2. Appendix 2: Performance Indicator Report, November 2009
14.3. Appendix 3: Safeguarding Plan Risk Register, December 2009

15.Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

15.1. JAR Report (December 2008)
15.2. Annual Performance Assessment (December 2008)
15.3. JAR Monitoring Visit Report (July 2009)

Report Template: Formal Bodies 5




Page 86



paaJbe sjuswWWod [epueRUlY
SIM3T 1939d yoea3 uQ - 600¢ 2a & 0TO0Z 48l TE| 600Z 0 T€|buissedwooua juswaalbe diysJauiied
juswaaube diysiaujied
SIMa7 183ad PaA3IYIY - 600C 224 _@ 600C AON 0€| 600¢ 320 TO|Welp jo juswdojprdp ul pabebus sisupied
'600¢
Jaquwiada@ UYiZT 3Ishdl s,usJpjiyd aya _@_ paaJbe yoeoiadde pue Abajesys
SIM37 4939d |Aq JJo paubis 'pansIydv - 600C 2°d 6002 0 T€| 600¢ Bny To|suonediunwwiod  juiof  3snil  s,ua4piiyd
sabessaw A2y uo pasndoy ad1oeld
Buipienbajes oAOLye pue djes djowoud
_@_ 0] ubjedwed uonediunwwod diysisuped ojdoad
SIMO7 J939d pPaA3IYdY - 600 das 6002 d9S 0€| 6007 INC TO|-SSOJD 3uISISUOD B youne| pue dojdAaQ BUNOA g UBIPIIUD
swisiueydaw aoueulanob s,Aabuliey |e
ojul oeqgpaaj uonedpiyed  ‘ssuepusiie Joj Ajljigisuodsau
9JURUIDA0D) _g_ 9jelidoudde ybnoayl 4dsH pue gdsST ‘asndl paJeys Jo ain3nd
pue diysispesa SIM3T J3319d paAaIYdy - 600C dos 6007 doS 0E| 600Z INC TO[S,ua4pliyD Ul 3jod ||ny e Aejd sssuped Ad)| simaT J931d e s3eald 10°T
awaylL sU03 m_u %..wh 90N ssa.4boad snjels | 9jeg@ang | 9jeq Meis S9UO01SIOIN pea uonpy uonpPy

Page 87

paA3lyde awodINo
paJisap pue pa3a|dwod uoRdY

pa319|dwod
9( 0] oeJ} uo pue ssaiboud ul uoiPy

Sanss| ssalppe 0}
paJinbau Juoddns ou Ing >deJ3 uo JoN

SaNss| ssaJppe 03 paJdinbau
1doddns oely uo Jou / paAsiyde 10N

@
4
@

snjels uoidy

Aabuliey

0T0Z Adenuer G0 :uo pajelauan

110d3Yy 3U03S3d|IN ue]d buipienbajes "1 xipuaddy




Page 88

‘Adenuer u bupasw ayj je
J0 ubis Ajjewuo) 03 payse aq ||im dnoao
juswabeuely SdUBWIOLDH DAIINIDXT

@

paysiiqnd

pue padojoAsp

snay s,uaJp|iyd "UOISIDA jeuty Abajens
yyMm paysnies sisuped |je - paidwod pa39|dwod uoieyNsuod Moddns Ajlwed
UOIJUSAIRIUT Alue] Isnoq uer|Abajesis panlIydy - 600C 224 600Z AON 0E| 600z INC TO|pue jusawdo|aaap Abajesys joddng Ajwe 3snoq uer| diysiauned +0°'T
QwayL pea’ 910N ssa.4b0.d snjels | 9je@ang | 91eq Mels S9UO01Sd|IN peaT uonpy
9UO0]}SIlIN ) uonpy :
'0T0C “elW-uer T1/0T0C 104
sawuwelsboud Maom ueld 03 sdnoib-gns
‘umouy aJde saJnbly souewdopad pue
doueuly JesaA pus 20uo QT Aep/|Hdy g_
ur pasileuy a9 03 - (0T JBeW-60
uer) JodaJ |enuue yuow GT paadbe padojanap sassaooud
199d yedes|29x3 gDST 'POASIYIY - 600C AON 600C AON 0E| 600 PO T10|buluueld ssauisng pue swwedboid M40\
paje|dwod sdnoubgns Jo aoualajey
[92d yedes PaA3IYIVY - 600C PO g_ 600C 0 TE€| 6007 doS 10|40 sSwidl pue diysioquiaw Jo  MIIADY
paaJtbe ainjonuys (z0'z uonoe
|94 yedes PaAdIYDY - 6002 3P0 @ 600Z 120 TE| 6007 dos 10|dnoib-gns pue sjuswasbuelle 2DOUBUISACD 99s 0s|e) 90571
9OURUJIDNOD) uewpeg 9y3 Jo bupjaiom
pue diysiapea [92d yedes paA3IYdy - 6002 das 9 600z das 0g| 6002 bny 10 paaJbe saniold 9157 weyels anoldwi €0°T
QwayL pea’ 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels | 9je@ang | d1eq Mels S9UO01S3|IN peaT uonpy
9UO0]}SIlIN ) uonpy :
sbunesw
9 wea) ybnoayl uoneulwsssip Joj padojaasp
[92d yedes PaA3IYIVY - 600C PO 600Z 320 TE| 600¢ 30 TO|sebessaw  pue  sjeu@jew  uopedUNWIWOD
g sbuinesw yjeis ybnoayi uoneuwassip
|[92d yedes PaA3IYIY - 600C PO d 600C 320 TE| 600¢ 320 TO|404 pado|aAdp YIoMdWel) pue seudiell ¥DS SMOINGY
|[92d yedes PaA3IYIVY - 600C PO 0_ 6002 0 TE| 600Z 3P0 TO|SYDS Jo sbuipulj 33ed1UNWIWOD 0} P]BY SIUSAT ase) m:o.twm
o
SIMa7 J932d PaA31IYDY - 600C 3P0 Q_ 600Z 224 1£| 6002 bny T0|2wwedboid suonediunwwod bHuipienbajes ULMom_. UBIPILD
9OURUJDNAOD) padojaAap syIS ||e 40 sbuipuly uewpeg mc_Em:mwu._mm
pue diysispea [92d yedes paAaIYdy - 600C Bny 9 600 BNy T€| 6002 INC TO|48Y32603  bBuynd ueld uoioe  sysodwod weyels |1B307 ¢0°'T
QwayL pea’ 9]0N ssa.4b60.d snjels | 9jeq@ang | I1eq Mels S9UO01S3|IN peaT uonpy
9UO0]}SIlIN ) uonpy :




(mepdn 9SdSs) ‘sjuswabuedie
1V ojul aAoWw 104 siseq
9y} Se pasn g 0]} MOU S| SIY] "SSadde
Jo juiod 3|buis pue (1I4I) S92IAIBS
yoeaJino SHWYD dojaAsp 03 paAalyoe

wea) Juswssasse Aduabe-pinw 1oy
padojaAsp |esodoud 3s|lym paysiigeiss vy

Page 89

Asuno el |T 8seyd ‘peAdIYY - 600C 2°d 6002 AON 0S| 600z INC TO|404 INdUl Yijeay |ejusw 3siedads pajedipaq
19w AJUS]SISUOD S4B SpJepue)s Wnwiuiw sassanoud
L) 24Nsud 0} paAoJdwl S| SJUDWISSISSE 2400 pue JuBISSOSSe
A41n9 ey PaASIYDY - 600C PO 600C 0 TE[ 600Z INC TO|[BMAIUL Ul SISAjeue pue uoiew.oul JO Ajjend pue |ella)l
anoJdw) Juswssasse Jo) uaye] uondaj0.d pliyd
Aa1inD ey pPaAsIYdY - 600z dos @ 6007 doS 0€| 600¢ INC TO|S9|eISaWI 1Y) BJNSUS 03 palyiuap! Ajdede) buinosdwi Aq
|Izeag|921A43S Jo Ajjjenb
@o1deld poon|  AsuinD le panaIyoy - 600z dos| &2 | 600z dos 0g| 600z INC TO 4vD yum pajesbaul shemyed |eltsyey Jouea|g ainsuj 90'T
[awYyL peoT 910N ssa4bo.d snjels | 9jegang | 21eg Meis S2U03S3|IN peo1 uonpy
auolsain : uoIPy :
|020304d
‘0T0C & 4vD uopuo ued
AINC |RuUN pasiueblo sajep pue papels pasiueblo bujuiesy pue ay3 uo paseq
weylog uosl|y|buiuied] ‘paalIydy - 600C D2°d 6007 2°d TE| 6002 AON TO0|21doad JueA3[4 03 PaILIIUNWIWIOD M}Jomauled Slomawe.y
posibe soueunsse
weyiyog uosi|y PaA3IYDY - 600C 3P0 g_ 6002 0 1£| 6007 dos 10|swuwelbold pue ssjedsswi} uoniejuswa|dwi Ajllenb
weylog| dvD jusws|duwl
uonuUaAJIRUT Ajde3| weyjog uosiy PaA3IYOY - 600 das 0_ 6002 das og| 6002 BNV TO paaJbe ylomawed) soueldnsse Ajljenb 4yo uoslly| pue aa4by 50°'T
pea @jeq Heis peaT
waylL auoisaIN 910N mw@._QO._n_ snjels 9}jeq 9nag pauue|d S9UO0]SO|IN uonoy uoipPy
‘9jelidoadde
se 3snJl s,usJp|iyD o3 syoday ‘poriad
yuow 9 |eniul Joj 3ybisiano ujelad g_
M  Abajesls dojaAasp 03 paysliqeiss
isnoq uer|dnodb HuIeS "PIASIYIY - 600C 224 6002 22d T€| 6007 22@ 10| paulwIsIEp WSsiueydaW pue 3[2Ad Huinioday
*Adenuer bunp sjpuueyd Jo Ajaliea e
ybnoJyy pajenddid usyy pue Jaquiadeg
IsT€  Aq ausgam  uo  paysiignd @
IsnoQ uer|{aq [IM "PRASIYIY - 600T 2°a 6002 224 T€| 6002 224 T0 paysiiand Abajens
[awYyL peoT 910N ssa4b0.d snjels | 9jegang | I2iedg Meis S2U03S3IN pea1 uonpy
auolsajin : uoPy :




Page 90

(Hs0D) sjesodo.d uiyym padajsad
sel|3 auer PaA3IYIVY - 600C PO 9 6002 320 T€| 600z doS TO|bupjiom pajelbajul ojul Indul 221j0d pue SHN
(AsburieH
se||3 aue
SHN) 0_ padojanap Mu__r_%m__wpbl_mm.‘_v
uosdwoy| d SpJepuels pasiAdd pue pajpne siap|o} pasN u_m.wumbm o
Auuad paA3IYdy - 6002 das 600¢ daS 0£| 6002 ddS TO|U!l UBJP|IYD @ UOIR0Id PlIYD SIONSIA UijesH sso.Ioe BUIOM
9DIAIDS asuodsay 3sdi4 pajesbajur ue pajedbajul
Jo juswdojaAap poddns pue joday Bupom Jayny
(Hs09) O_ pajeldbajul 8yl UIYIM suonde Jo  AJdAIIBp (HS0D)| 404} sailunyuoddo
ad1peldd pooo sel|g auer PaA3IYIVY - 600C PO 6002 30 T€| 6002 Bny T |403uow 03 dn 39s dnolo uonejuswa|dwi] sel|3 suer AJuapI 60°T
pea7 pea7
awaylL 5U0ISaNIN 9]j0N ssa4bo.d snjels | 9jeq@ang | Iaj1eqg Heis S9UO01S3IN uondY uoipPy
'SN20J 491399 aAoidwli |[IM
60/0T/ZT Wouj pataAldp bulaq waisAs
dD MdN -indui jo Ajenb aunsesw 9 S93nuUIW dUaI94U0D / sueld aled Jo
AS4unD MUe |[IIM 9A0QY PIAdIYIY - 600C d3d 6002 224 TE| 6002 320 T0|ANenb ybnouayy pajesysuowsp syjuswaAosdw]
*S9]IAUI PaSND04 191319q aA0J4duwl 1M
60/0T/2T wolj paiaalop bulaq waisAs S90UaJ3ju0d ‘Je Indul jo Ajjjenb
dD MaN ‘Indui jo Ajenb aunseaw 0_ 2bpn[ pue ‘03 sa9jAul Jo ssaudjelidoiadde
A31InD e ([[IM  dA0QY ‘PIARIYIY - 600C 220 600Z 0 TE| 6007 doS TO[2budjey> 03  paysiiqeiss  SWSIURYIS 30UBJ94U0D
‘uonewJolul uo1a304d
SIy3  399)j00  |IMm  wJoy  buliojuow g_ 9251 Aq lizeidd| p[iyD e bupiiom
a01Peld pooo -YvL| AS4IND diep |MaN  "PIAdIYIY - 600¢ 2°da 6002 320 TE| 6007 BNy TO|pPa329(|02 S22UI24U0D B ddUBpUIR U0 ele( Joues|g 9AI3091J3 80°'T
peaT 2jeq Mejs pea’
QwayL SU0ISBIIN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels | 9jeq ang pauue|d S9UO01S3|IN uonOY uonpy
Bupjew uoisap
Q ul siabeuew weal / suaydom |epos poddns
AS4uno) e pPaA3IYdY - 600 das 600 3P0 TE| 600Z INC TO|0} poabebus siayiom |eIDOS Juspuadapul
s|aued |e
9 10J pays||qgelss 90uaJajad JO SWID) Jed|d yim
As4an9) e pPaA31IYdY - 600C Bny 6007 bny TE€| 600Z INC TO|pPaysiigeise |aued sao4nosad  bBuipienbajes BuIjewW UoISIIap
JJB3S 0] pajediunwiwiod pue pue spjoysaJyy
9 S9OIAIDS |BSIDAIUN pue pajabie} ‘Isierdads |1Izeag| ul syuswaAoJiduwi
ao1Peld pooo|  Asauno el PaA31IYDY - 600C 3P0 600Z 300 TE| 6002 INC TO|SSoJoe ajetado 03 padojaAap spjoysalyy Jes|d Joues|g JoAIIRA £0°T
QwayL pea’ 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels | 9je@ang | d1eq Mels S9UO01S3|IN peaT uonpy
QUO}SI|IN ) uonpy :




Page 91

|euonyippe pue 2oe|d ua)e} Sey MJom Q_ A1030241p
awos ‘S9lIEWIWNS  9Say} sulejuod d sa0IAJIBS AQ papiaoud BuluolIssIWWo)
a2130e.d PO0D As|leg ueg|Ai010241p 3yl ‘PIASIYIY - 600C 2°a 600C 2@ T€| 600Z bny To|Alewwns yum sjepdn ssuoyalip bunsixg|  Asjleg uel €T'T
pea’ pea’
[awyL SU0ISOIIW 90N ssa.4bo.ad snjels | 9jegang | 9ieqg Meis S9U03S3|IN uoRdY uonoy
S9DIAIDS
EEN]
/ pa1abuey
0jul »oeq aJIAISS
1sljepads Jayio
o 10 24ed |epos
wo.) buiaow
uaJp|iyo 4oy
0102 AInC |euolissajold pes|
[laun sajep yum pasiueblio buiuies) pue e Jo uonesoje
weylog uoslly| pajuswsa|dw] ‘paA3IYdV - 6002 22d 600z 220 TE| 6002 20 TO| Ssapusbe |je ssotoe pajuawajdwl SaINpado.d 93 aInsus
weylog 03 sainpadoad
do1Peld poon| weyjog uosiy PaA3IYdY - 600 das 9 6007 das 0€| 6007 unc 10 sapuabe juens|as Aq passbe saunpadold uos||y| Juswaldwi Z1°T
awayL pea’ 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels | 9jegang | 9eq Meis S9U03S3IN peaT uondy
QUOIS3IN ) uonody .
|enuew lenuew
9 ayj 03 sajepdn Ajayienb jo swwesboud aunpadsoud a1ed
AspieQ |pyoey PaA3IYOY - 600 3P0 600¢C 0 T¢| 600C 3O 10O Buijjod e ysijgeiss 03 pabebus ye1s [BI20S S,us4p[Iyd
Aapieo ;pyoey panaIy - 600 0| & | 600z PO TE| 600Z PO T0 Je3s 03 paypune| [enuew pajepdn wﬁnwum,__ww_
pajepdn uoISIaA Aspleo pue ajepdn
do1eId PooD| A3]ieQ [PYoey PaASIYIY - 600C 3P0 @ 600C 0 TE| 600C INC TO auljuo pue pa3d|dWod |enuewW 0} SUOISIADY [yoey ‘asIneY TT°T
pea’ pea’
[awyL SU0ISOIIW 9]0N ssa.4bo.d snjels | 9jegang | 9ieqg Heis S9U03IS3|IN uondY uonoy
uosdwoyl uolewioul
Auuad PaASIYIY - 600C 3P0 @ 6002 30 T€| 600Z d3S 10 Buligis jo uoisnjoul 4oy paaJbe piepuels
buiuueld
uosdwoyl jJuswaAoldwl ajelisuowap :
Asburiey aJed jo Ajjenb
Auus, AA3IYOY- > @ o) da 03} padojaaap sueid 1oy 2 edboud 3pn ( y :
uuad PaA3IYOVY- 6002 IP0 600¢C 30 TE| 600C d3S TO 1 p2do|oASp suejd J0j swwelbo.d 1pny SHN)| ay3 1oy paepuess
uosdwoy | sjuswano.adwi 40j ueld uoioe dojpAsp| uosdwoyl 9|qeydadoe
20130814 P00 Auuad pPaAlIYydY - 600Z dos @ 6007 doS 0€| 6002 INC TO| pue SsisnJl ||e ssoJoe a2130eld JUaLINDd MIIASY Auuad| ue ansIydy 01T
awayL pea’ 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels | 9jeqgang | 9eq Meis S9U03S3|IN peaT uondy
QUOIS3IN ) uonody .




Page 92

papuedxs 03 diystauped
AspieQ |pyoey PaA3IYIVY - 600C PO Q_ 600Z d9S 0€| 600C INC TO|dWayds daulesy ajenpelb  Iom  |e1OS 3 %r_u mmeum
buiyyers paydune| ubiedwed BunoA | J4e3s poob uieiad
pue Ayoeded| AspjeQ |ayoey paA3IYdy - 6002 das 9 600¢ d9S 0g| 600C INC TO[IUSWINIODL pue payiuapl Jayo AsbulieH Henis| pueliniday ST°T
peaT 9jeq Mejs peaT
CIUEITHN SU0ISIIIN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels | 9jeq ong pauue|d S9U03SO|IW uonOY uonPy
SJ9XJOM |BID0S 03 uoisiAiadns apinoid pue
|lzeag Jouea|q oed] uQ - 600¢ 22d & 0T0Z 4eIN TE| 6002 doS TO|sased xa|dwod uo axe3 0} pasealoul Ajpeded Ajpeded
9 PalJ13UdPI S92.IN0SDI pue PalJIIUBP! S|DAJ| U:M,_LM_WMWMM_HME
|1zeag Joued|3 PaAIYydY - 600Z 10 4 6002 0 T€| 6002 BNy T0|bulyjeys pue spasu Ajpoeded wusy JabuoT] SOM _m._u.Om o)
buiyyeis paljiauapl syuswalinbad [lzeag| 3oys |euonippe
pue Ajpede)| [1zeug Jouea|3 PaA3IYdY - 600 das g_ 6007 BNy TE| 600Z INC TO|224n0sad pue spasu  Ajpeded wlaa) JoOYS Joues|3| Sonpoaul pT°T
pea7 pea7
[awyL 5U0ISaNIN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels | {jegang | 9ieq Meis S9UO03S3|IN uondY uonpy
pado|anap
ssoo04d  9oueudjulew  buiobuo pue pappe
pue passasse paau JO S|9A9| dielidoudde
As|ieg ueg 0T0Z unf 0€| 0TOZ uer T0|'paayd Ajjenb salud A1opaaig
sisAjeue
deb pue !saoiAu9s ||e AQ pajieiap uoisiaold
yoddns bBupuaded jualund  {suonuaAldUI
‘Adenuer g_ pue sswuweusboid juoddns Bujjusied SAI1309}40
Aldea ul papeojdn aq ||IMm SjusaWNd0p Jo 13sI| jo juswdo|aAap buimojjo} pals|dwod
A3jleg uel|paysiuly 9yl ‘pPaAdIYdy - 600C d3d 6007 224 T€| 6007 das T0|suonuajur Buluoissiwwod oddns Bupuaded
*Adenuer sisAjeue deb e pue uoisinodd Jualind !aseq
AldeS ul papeojdn 3q ||IM SjUSWNJO0P g_ 9OUBPIAD JO SMIIADL  Buimolioj pa3sjdwod
As|leg ue1|paysiuly ayL ‘PIAdIYIY - 600T 22d 6002 22d TE| 6002 ddS TO|SuUoUAIUI BUUOISSILILIOD  32UB|OIA dl3sawod
‘Adenuer Ajea ul
papeojdn bulaq (mo|aq 93s) sallewwns
Bujuoissiwwod jioddns |ejusied pue a|ge|ieAe
Ad dU3 Sapnpul ydiym ‘molaq uoipoe S2W0d3No pue
Y3 Ul udeMIPUN 3] [|IM MIOM JBYHN4 eLI9}ID ‘SDINIDS
*A1032841p Bujuoissiwwod e se ajesado 9qlIosap
0} QSId mojje 03} pappe Ajjeuoouny 03} padojanap
QawYyL peaq 9]0N ssa.4bo.d snjels | 9je@ang | di1eq Mels S9UO01S3|IN peaT uonpPy
QUO}SI|IN ) uonpy :




Page 93

L
AspieQ |pyoey 'POASIYIY - 600C AON - 6002 AON 0€| 600¢ doS T0|sawwelboid Juswdo@Asp paJojie} [enpIAIpU]
uoisiaiadns 015
_9 Ayjenb  uaaep 03  Ajjige  susbeuew a8 _m_uo%'_wt
A3pieQ [pyoey 'POASIYIY - 600C AON 600¢ doS 0g| 600C BNy TO|ysligeis® 03 pldY  SSJIUSD  JUBWISSISSY mucwEm.mcmtm
pajepdn uoisiaiadns
buiyieis _@_ |enuew 21u0J309|2 pue ajuelenb uoisialadns |1zeig EYYHRETIE]
pue Ayoeded| A3peQ |ayoey paAaIYdy - 600 dos 600 doS 0g| 600¢ Bbny TO(2U3y  Ajuepp 0y pspuswe  saul|spind loues|g 2Jnsu3 oT'T
pea7 pea7
awaylL 5U0ISaNIN 9]j0N ssa4bo.d snjels | 9jeq@ang | Iai1eqg Heis S9UO01S3IN uodY uoipPy
(Asburiey
SHN) o sulleseq 600¢ aung
uuind alng ‘PRA3IYDY - 60 AON 600Z AON 0E| 6007 Bny TO|2A0ge pasealoul siaquunu  JaXJom  UjjeaH
(AsburieH
SHN) o 1s0d ul
uuing alng 'POASIYIY - 600C AON 6002 AON 0€| 6002 Bnv TO (4483 pue pa||ly sapuedeA Bulpienbajes yyeaH
3sod ul siabeuew
A3pieQ [pyoey 'PRA3IYIY - 600C NAON _9 600T 224 T€| 600 d9S TO[>4OM  [BIDOS  puBR  SISX}IOM  |BIDOS  M3N
(AsburieH
SHN) sueidljeIpaed pue Sasinp |0oyds
@
uosdwoy| ‘SIONSIA Y3j|leSH JO SpeOPdOM  JO  MIIAI
Auuad pPaAdIYdY - 600C dos 600¢ bny T€| 6002 BNy TO|2|geus 03 paysi|qeiss wsiueydsw Bullo)uo
60 J2qWaAON
(AsbulieH |a3epdn 9DIAIBS Bunisin yleaH
SHN)|99S ‘pa3o|dwod 8g 03 ety uo pue & 3sod
uuin® alnc|ssaliboid ur yoedy ug - 600¢ 2°2d 0T0Z 41BN TE| 6002 BNV TO|uUl IS pue pajji} SIDURIRA SJ9XJOM Ul|eaH
‘saJnssaud
3S0D pue suoppedojle 1Dd 03 303lgns
JJo-ubis |euly J0j 0TOZ Adenuer ul pieog
3snil 03 pajuasaldd Bq |IM Cweal &
(AsbulieH [Juswabeuely Joluas AsbulieH SHN
SHN) |Aq 3)dpulid ul paaoidde pue padojarsp AsburieHq SHN
uuind alncjueld 924nosay "oedy uQ - 60 2°d 0T0Z uer 1€| 6002 BNV TO|Aq panoidde pue padojaAap uejd 221N0SdY yers Aousbe
(Asbuliey uo aduelad
SHN) pue sapuedeA
uosdwoy| 9 paja|dwod sueidlieipakd pue sasinp Jo Jaqwinu
Auuad paAaIYdy - 600 dos 6002 0 T€| 600¢ BNy T0||00YdS ‘sIOSIA  UyeaH jo Bupjlewyouag 93 3donpal
peaT 2jeq Mejs peaT
QwayL SU0ISIIIN 9]0N ssa.4bo.d snjels | 9jeq ang pauue|d S9UO01S3|IN uonOY uonpPy




ueld 40 ysa4yad 03Ul Pa3) 03 palIuSPI
suoipoe  juswaAoidwl pue  aulseq  Yim

Page 94

jueds aaeq PaA31IYDY - 600C 3P0 600Z 224 1£| 6007 dos 10|a4edwod 03 N0 pawued ASAINS uoisiAladng
uosipsadns e3s 921j0d Jo.
g_ loj saunpaooldd bupesado plepueis yim hm_ mem.wcmtm
jueus) aaeq PaA3IYIY - 600C 0 6002 AON 0E| 6002 das T0|2oueldwod ainsua 03 padojaAsp awuwelboid 1 Loisiaadns
buiyeis syuodad Jayio (@o1104) .w.\,_uumtw
pue Ajpede) juels) aneq paAd1ydy - 600C 120 0_ 600Z AON 0E| 600 doS 10o|o3ul poajesbajul  uoisindadns jo  bBupuoday| juels aneq 24nNsuj 8T°'T
pea7 pea7
awaylL 5U0ISaNIN 9]j0N ssa4boud snjel}s | 9jeq@ang | Iieqg Heis S9UO01S3IN uodY uoipPy
MO||0} 03 Hoday
(AsbulieH | 6007 J9QWIIAON Ul INO PaLIIRD SISINN ue|d Jo ysaijod 0ju| pas4 03 palyIuUdPI
SHN) ||00YdS pue SIOJISIA YilesaH Jo AaAins g suoioe juawaAolddwl  pue  auleseq  Yim
uuin alncfuoisiagadns "paARIYIY - 600C 2°d 6002 22d T€| 6007 do9S T0|24edwoODd 03 INO palIed ASAINS UuoOISIAIDANS
uosdwoy| uoisialadns buipiebad sanljiqisuodsal
Auuad PaA3IYIVY - 600C PO 9 600C AON 0€| 600Z doS TO[8 904 Ul paulely sisbeuel  yeaH
uosdwoy | buipiodau
Auuad panlaiIydy - 600¢ das 9 6002 AON 0€| 600z doas 10 |ased ojul pajesbajul uoisialadns jo builioday
uosdwoy| uolisiagadns sdo jnoge 4835 Wijesy Joj
Auuad PaA3IYOY - 600 das Q_ 6002 das 0g| 6007 dos T0|dnodo 22ud|PIX3  |B2IUID  YIM UOISSNISIQ (AsbuLiey sjuswabue.e
- T : : : SHN) uoisialadns
buijers uosdwoy] padojaasp swwesboud 3pne pue| uosdwoy| EYNRRETIE]
pue Ajpede) Auuad panlaIydy - 600¢C das 9 6002 das 0g| 600z Bny TO|paa4be uoisiniadns 1oy plepuels Isndl SHN Auuad 24nsug /1°1
pea7 pea7
awaylL 5U0ISaNIN 9]j0N ssa4boud snjej}s | 9jeq@ang | Iieqg Heis S9UO01S3IN uodY uonpPy
pajuawa|dwi 303foad
AspeQ |pyoey PaAlIYIY - 600C PO Q_ 600Z AON 0€| 600z doS T0|(AsbulieH / >poisiael) abueyd jo sqny
ue|d Jo ysaijod 0jul pasas 03 palyiuapl
[I119330D g_ suoioe jusawaAoddwl pue duldseq  yim
a1qgag ‘PAARIYDY - 600C AON 600Z 224 1£| 6007 dos 10|24edwod 03 N0 pawled ASAINS uoisiAladng
syuodads bunsixa
abaor aunsuyd 'PAA3IYDY - 600C AON 0_ 600Z AON 0€| 600z dos To|ojur poajesbajur  uoisiadadns  jo  HBuijuodey
pajuswa|dwi siabeuew aul| Juoly 104
QwayL pea’ 9]0N ssa.4bo.d snjels | 9je@ang | di1eq Mels S9UO01S3|IN peaT uonpPy
9UO0)S9|IN ) uonpy :




Page 95

1edA Jad paau |im Aay] saoe|d Auew
moy Ajiauspi sapusbe - H g g sdnolb
je pajabiey asuno) uoiepunod Aep T
- uoI30930.d p[IyD Ul Jaysboy Bupiiom
paubisap-al - oM} Jed -juswAojdws
J19Y3 JO JelS 3y3 wodj sanijiqisuodsau
Buipsenbajes jJo sdeme spew aJe jjeis
||e 32U} OS - uoRdNpul YH ul buneibajul
0] M3IA B UYlIM Sjuswpedap YH Yim
buisiel] aue sapuabe Jsupied s}vays
uoneWJIOJUl JO SOIIBS pue s|od0304d
bulieys uonew.ojul yooqpuey
dD pazis 3194004 ‘snpow  bujutes)
-3 dD 03} uOoI3PNPOo.JIuUl Y3 JO SISISUOD
ped 3su) Syl "pasSIAdp Uuddq Ssey

awuwesboud
uondNpul
Bbuipienbajes
9400

~

buiyieis sawuwelboud uoippnpur  Adusbe-pnw padojaasp sawuwesboud Aspleo Aouabe-;3nw
pue Ajpede)d| AspieQ |ayoey|paseyd om} v ‘pPaAdIYdy - 600C AON 600C AON 0E| 600C 4N TO|buluiesy bBuipaenbajes 210>  Adusabe-;jnp |oyoey| e dojPAsaq 0Z'T
pea7 pea7
[awyL 5U0ISaNIN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels | {jegang | 9ieq Meis S9UO03S3|IN uondY uonpy
swea)
Aseujdidsip-nninw ssoude pue suonesjuebio
(®0110d) & uIyIm [opow Bulysiig-aq juapIdU]
juels aned )oed3 uoQ - 6002 AON 600Z 224 T€| 6002 doS T0||e21ID B UO yyels ulely pue Juswa|dwi ‘2a1by
(@2110d) pajuswa|dwi
juels aned PaA3IYIY - 600C IP0 g_ 6002 224 T€| 6002 doS TO|IIDVIW Buisn 9SIDI9Xe Aduabe-13np
pauoISSIWWwod
'60 Joquwiadag pue paydieasas AJojsiy |e1pos pue 3d130edd
ul 2oeld o003 sdoysdiom dd130eud & 9AlRIOYINe  pue  ddoeud  paJiusad  plIyd
A3pieQ |Yoey [2A)eRIOYINY “Hded) uO - 600T 224 0TOZ uef T€| 600¢ INC TO|ul douepinb yim papirosd pue pauled) Jjeis
suolsIoap
‘P|9Y SUOISSDS ».0M |BID0S { pue g_ jo buipiodas ayy pue buleys uopewdosul
M3YD BIAJAS [4obeuew T ‘pamdIydy - 600¢ 2°d 6002 294 TE| 6002 INC TO|‘IUSWSSaSSe »Sid U0 paulet) Jje3s YJ0M |eID0S
*diysiauned
ssouoe  sdoysyJom  pue  SaAReIUI Bujuie.y
Buiuiesy Jsyjo pue  IRAO  ‘dDST & Aouabe-;3nw
buiyjeis ojul pajesoduaodul - abenbue| uowwod abenbue| uowwod Jo asn pue spjoysaiyjy ui |1zeag Jo swweuboud
pue Aydede) -yvr| ASPieQ |9yory |pue Sspjoysalyl "yded3 uQ - 600¢ 22d 0TOZ uer TE| 600Z INC TO|pauledy diysiauried ayj SSodde saauonoe.dd Jouea|3| juswsldwiI 6T°T
peaT 2jeq Mejs peaT
QwayL SU0ISIIN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels | 9jeq ong pauue|d SOU03SO|IN uonOY uonpy




01

S.103ed|1pul dduew.oiad

Page 96

abJor aunsiHyD PaA3IYdV- 600C PO g_ 600Z 30 TE€| 600Z doS TO|J0 IpNe  |BUISIXD WO} SUOIPE  MIIADY
wea} aouewJoglad
@_ U3 JO >JOM dY3 3Iipne 03 SaIAISS a3elodlo)
abaor aunsKyd pPaA31IYdY - 600 das 6002 das 0€| 6007 doS TO|UIm poaube swuwedboud 3Jpne  |euJdalul
21607 240D yim uoipunfuod
abJor sunsuyd PaA3IYDY - 600Z 3P0 Q_ 6002 20 T€| 600z BNy TO|ul syiodad [ MJomaweds Jo Adeundde M3IADY eep Jo Ayjigeljad
juswabeuepy |lIzeag| pue Ajjenb sy}
2DURWI0IRd | @bJor aunsiyd PaA3IYdY - 600 das g_ 6002 das og| 6002 BNV TO padojaaap sawwesboud jipne Ajijenb eyeq Joues|g bunsug zz'1
CIUEITHN pea’ 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels | 9jeq@ang | 91eq Mels S9UO01Sd|IN peaT uonpy
9UO0)S9|IN . uonody :
"UDRIIM 1| SM00]| |elua94 Ajljlenb
M3YD BIAJAS|20ouUBpIND  "PaAdIYIY - 600C 2°d Q_ 600Z 224 TE| 6007 100 Zz|e 1eym uo 2ouepinb a3eatd asuodsay 3sdid
(jeyidsoH pJiepuels
SPIIN YON) g_ 9|geydoddoe ue 199W  S|edddjad  SHN 40
s|aiueq unsng "POASIYDY - 600C AON 6002 daS 0£| 6002 d@S TO|ANenb ayy ainsua djay 03 pajuaws|dw| S|00 L
uonesjuebio yoea uiyum
|Izeag Joued|3 PaA3IYdY - 600 das _g_ 6002 doS 0€| 6002 Bny TO|pas4be 3pne 3|1 9Sed 404 MIoMawed) |enuuy
paAoadw] pue pamalAal
Allenunuod  aJde  yoiym Lduewdoiad pado|anap
uo syodaJ Jenbau SOAI9D3. & diysiauied ayj ssoJoe ao130ead buipaenbajes
|1zeag Jouea|3|dnoib-gns vO "oedy uQ - 6002 2°2d 6002 224 TIE| 6007 INC TO|40 2ouewdopad pue Ajjenb Joj saunsesp
bunipne aininj wJojul diystauped ayy
IM sased QT uo pa3g|dwod 3jpne & SsoJdoe pajuswaldwil S9|1} 9SeD JO JUBWISSISSe
|Izeag Joues|J | Aouabe-jn "ded3 uQ - 600C 224 6002 224 TE| 600C INC TO|2AnRYNEND pue  bHujdwes jo swwelbold sonpeud
juswabeuely JJe3s 0] pajediunwiuwiod |1zeag Jo >.u__m:c
DURWIOMD]|  AdJ4IND) e PaA3IYIY - 600C 0 g_ 6002 0 TE| 600Z INC TO|pue padojoAap sl 3Sed J0j Spdepueis Joues|3| ayy aunssy 12T
pea’ pea’
awaylL 5U0ISaNIN 9]j0N ssa4boud snjel}s | 9jeqang | Ij1eqg Heis S9UO01S3IN uodY uoipPy
‘Jers
JO siaqwinu  3uaDIINS  }PpOoWWOdde
0} - pauueld buldg sdoysyiom &
A3pieQ [pyoey [4aynng ey upo - 600C 9224 0T0C g°4 8¢| 600¢ 0 10 swwesboid pusype yeys sjeridoidde ||y
QwayL pea’ 9]0N ssa.4bo.d snjels | 9je@ang | di1eq Mels S9UO01S3|IN peaT uonpPy
9UO0)S9|IN ) uonody :




I

pue AsbuieH ul HSOD ‘1Dd 404 pue HNWN
pue uolBUNIYM 1B JJeIs IRy J0) Paysiigelsa

Page 97

Bujuuna pue dn - 30afoid 4D jou Jo uejd uonpajodd pyYyd> e sey plyo mwmmwuo'_n_
A3PIEO [9YoeY |UOPUOT SHN "POASIYOY - 600Z AON 600Z AON 0€| 600 BNy TO|e 41 BUIMOYS uOEWLIOJUI 0} SSBDIR DIU0.13I3(T H%HHMMM
slauled ssoldoe paleys pue bujuue|d
pue pa3dd||0d 9 0] UOIjRW.IOJUl 3d|qeud ssauisnq
0] paysi|qeisa Swsiueydaw pue  paliauapl pajedbajul
6002 g_ aJle uoljewJojul Souewosad bulieys ‘diysJauyied
juswabeuely Jaqwiadag YiZT U0 3Isndl  s,ualpliyd 0] sJaiueq buinsus aouepinb pue sjod0joud |1zeig ay3 ssoJdoe
90UePW.I04Dd 3snoq uer|Aq passby "paAlIydyY - 600C 294 600C AON 0E| 600z INf TO|buleys uonewdojul ysijgnd-ad pue MIIADY Joues|3|‘buidojoAsq sZ'T
pieog AabuiieH
uosdwoy | g_ SHN R dnous uejd uondy Yvr yiesH ybnoayy
Auuad pPaAdIYdY - 600C dos 600 doS 0g| 6002 INC TO|Payslideise  Bupdodal  @duewldopdd  SHN
uosdwoy| pajjely pue padojaAap
Auuad panlaIydy - 600¢ das 0_ 6007 das 0€| 6002 INC TO|pleoqysep douewJopad buipienbajes
panoaduwii
swea) buluoissiwwod pue aduewdoad wody Anigedes
uosdwoy| Q_ 9AIjRjUaSaIdal dpnpul 03 pamaiAad  dnodo S
Auuad paASIYY - 600T dos 6002 6V T€| 6007 INC T0|eouRINSSY Auend @IS 4o diysisquisw sHy|  CAOPUHEH|  Juswabeuew
- : : SHN) 9ouewlopad
juswabeuep uosdwoy | pieog HSHN 03} pajuasald pue| uosdwoy]| sisnJy Jopinoid
2DURWI04IDd Auuad PaA3IYOY - 600 das g_ 6007 bny T€| 600Z INC TO|paa4be dlomaweld aduednssy bBuipienbajes Auuagd SHN ¥2°T
QwayL pea’ 9]0N ssa.4bo.d snjels | 9je@ang | d1eq Mels S9UO01Sd|IN peaT uonpPy
QUO0)S3|IN . uonody :
sjuswiadinbau
Buiyjeis |euonippe Joj spiq ose pue
(32bpng sjuswde|d S4ED Ul UBJIP|IYD)
Spuewap 9DIAIDS |euonippe Joj Sspiq
yjoq sJanod siyl -sjesodoud 3196png 0_
S,|IDUN0D 3Y3 Ul papnjoul pue papiwgns
usdq 9ABY  S9D2JNOSDJ  |euonippe 196pnq pue buijeis
pOOH saule[|lo} splg 'PaAlIYdyY - 600C 9°d 6002 22d TE| 6007 doS 10|03 uoneal ul sisAleue deo e axepapun
9o130e.4d poob pue
@_ suoljepuswwodal |euoineu jsuiebe pasAjeue puewap a1n3ny
pooH sawer paAaIYdy - 600 dos 600Z 224 T€| 600C doS TO|pue  payiIuSp! SPEOISSEd  pue  SPeO|}IOM Buiisesauoy
uoiIpaJd Joy siseq pue sa3IAISS
POOH sawe( pPanaIYdy - 600C dos @ 6002 320 €| 6007 BNy T0|e apiroid 03 pasn ejep JaYjo pue [EILOISIH 4104 puewsp
juswabeuep |1zeig JO dWnN|oA 3y}
dUeLLIOMRd - YV( pooH sawer '939|dWwo) ‘PIASIYIY - 600C NON g_ 6002 390 T€| 600¢C Bny 10 60 dun( 0} Alenue[ wWoJly puewap ysi|qeis3 Jouea|g|Buysiigeisy €2'1
peaT 2jeq Mejs peaT
QwayL SU0ISIIN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels | 9jeq ang pauue|d S9UO01S3|IN uonOY uonpy




4!

panoidde

diysiauped

Page 98

SIM37 J939d )oed3 uQ - 600¢ 22a 0T0Z 18l TE| 600 INC TO|pue padojanap s|oo030.d diysiauped U3 50108
buipienbajes 03 uonead sjuswabuetie
ul sjuswabuedte sdueulaA0b suonesiuebio 2oueulIan0b
QOURUIDA0D g_ 9Yyy Jojluow  pue  SS3SSe  [[IM  Oym 9sod.und Joy
pue diysiopean SIM37 J3lad PaA3IYIVY - 600C PO 6002 daS 0€| 600¢ bny T0|Adusbe yoes ul payluspl S| pes| Joluss Y| SIM3T J933d| I dojpAaQ T10°C
QwayL pea’ 910N ssa.4b0.d snjels | 9je@ang | 91eq Mels S9UO01Sd|IN peaT uonpy
9UO0]}SIlIN : uonpy :
‘padojanap
Asauno duep|sueld paadIydy - 600C 224 Q_ 600Z 224 1£| 6007 dos 10 padojaAap Ssue|d 92URW.IOMDd Wed |
(31epdn 9SdS) "9S2U3 Jo JUU0D pue
Aoua3sisuod ayy anoudwi 03 Aemuapun :mww____rcmm__ 9_‘_\”
S| 3IOM puUB SWea} 3SoW  SSOJJe . co_cwmcnwo .c_t. A
padojaAsp u22q 9ABY S3|l} DIUDPIAD n__,._wLm:;m_u mum
AdJ4un9 e |wea] “paAallyde 10N - 600C 23d 6002 22d T1€| 6007 doS 10O pado|aAsp s34 20USpIAg wea] co_umquaqucH
juswabeuely DIAIDS JO SpeaH yim pasiuebio sbupaasw |1zeig |es0o
90UBWLIO0IRd | 9bJor sunslyD PaA3IYdY - 600 das _g_ 6002 d3S 0£| 6007 d9S TO|MIIADY DduURWIOMRd AJYIUuO JO dwweldboid Joues|3| bBuinosdwi 92T
pea7 pea7
awaylL 5U0ISaNIN 9]j0N ssa4bo.d snjej}s | 9jeqang | Iajyeqg Heis S9UO01S3IN uondY uopPy
ue|d 201AI9S / ssauisng
(32110d) 0_ suonesiuebio AJSAIBp ulyum pajesodiodul
juelds aaed PaA3IYIVY - 6002 10 6002 0 TE| 600¢ doS TO|SauoIsa|iWL  ueld UOIPY pajejal adljod ||y
(AsburieH
SHN) ue|d 921A13S / ssaulshq
uosdwoy| 0_ suonesiueblo AJSAIIBP ulylM  pajedoduodul
Auuad PaA3IyIVY - 600C 10 6002 0 TE| 600¢ doS TO|SaUO0IST|IWL Ueld UORDY paiejad yyesy ||V
ue|d a01AI9S / ssauisng
g_ suonesiueblo AJSAIIBP ulylM  pajedoduodul
|lzedg Joues|3 pPaAdIYdY - 600C dos 6002 10 TE| 600¢ doS TO|S2U03IST|IW Ul UOIDY paje|al aled |eldos ||y
‘dwwesboid
3dom  ojul  pajesodioour  bBuisq  si
Buluies| pue aoe|d uaxe} mou sey jipne g_ usyeuapun sypne Jo
|izeag Joues|3 | Aduabe-nnnp paAlIYdY - 600C 224 6002 AON 0€| 600z doas 10 |a|dwes wopued - jipne plodad Aduabe-i3np
He1s SHIWVD
QwayL pea’ 9]0N ssa.4bo.d snjels | 9je@ang | di1eq Mels S9UO01S3|IN peaT uonpPy
9UO0]}SIlIN : uonpy :




¢l

Page 99

doe|d ul sajep bujuiedy pue ssnupuUOd Aspleo AsbulieH
uopuaAJIRluUT Alleg| weyjog uosiy(Ino |0y "}oed} uQ - 600Z 9°a & 0TOC INC TE| 600C 9°4 10 sbumss pue sjooyds ||e ssoJoe 3no-||0y [ayoey IV S0°'¢
peo peo
CIUEITHN SU0ISIIIN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels | 9je@ang | 91eq Mels S9UO01S3|IN uonOY uonpy
Sawo02Ino
annebau
40 pooy!=x|
ay3 bupnpau
iIsnoq uer 0T0Z 4Bl TE| 0T0Z 924 T0O isnu] s,uaipliyd Aq panoidde Abajenys Ul S92IAIBS
"}Jedp IXau wJiojul cmum_m_mwu%_ Qmm
|IIM  sjuswwod pue pajnsuod buiaq P " mewzcm
Ajusaund  sisuped ||y "uoiejNsuod & 0o o_L oU1 10
Joj Pyedp IS4y 0} paINguIuU0d ABajeu3s 3jeup ayj ojul >peqpasy hwm n_u >m._%m“\_ s
3shoQ uer|siaulied “paAlIydy - 600¢ 2°4 0T0Z uer T€| 6002 3°0 TO|SHN wod ‘pajesodliodul uoiNQgIUOD Jaulled 1 w>_wmucwu\,mwa
*uoI3RYNSUOD 104 INO . |e20|
uonuaAJlaul Ajeg 1shoQ ue(|Ajaualind yeiq Hoedl ug - 600Z 22d & 0T0Z g°4 82| 6002 bnv 1O padojanap Abajeals 1snoQ uer dojaAaa +0'¢
pea pe9al
awaylL 5U0ISaNIN 9]j0N ssa4bo.d snjej}s | 9jeqang | Iajyeqg Heis S9UO01S3IN uondY uopPy
ue|d uonidy ¥vr
93 JO AJDAIDp Ul paAjoAul Bulaqg ul pajsalajul
SIMDT 1919d ZT0Z unf 0€| 010Z 4B T10|sdnoub 9AIRIUDSDIdD yim abebug
ue|d uonoe Yy[ Jo AIdAIBp
SIMa7 J932d )oed3 uQ - 600¢ 22d & 0T0Z 41BN TE| 6002 daS TO|ul paAjoAul aq pjnoys sdnodb moy aulwiaiag
"Wy Y3IM p|ay SBm UOISSas 10329s Adejun|oA
Jamsue pue uopsanb vy -Jaquadag ay31 pue
UITT Sy} UO ,39941S SU3J UO PJIOM, JUDAD & salbajeuys pue 9|doad BunoA
9OURUJDA0D) S,|louno)  yinoA AsbuueH papusne sue|d ‘sapijod Jo juswdo|aAsSp Ul PIAJOAUI JO JUBWIBA|OAUL
pue diys.tapes SIMOT 1939d |SIMT 19324 "Moed} uQ - 600C 224 0T0Z 4Bl TE| 6007 BNy 10|29 03 9jdoad HBunoA J0j swsiueydaw ysijqeis3| sima J1939d 9seaduI £0°C
peal pe9al
awaylL 5U0ISaNIN 9]j0N ssa4boud snjel}s | 9jeqang | 3ajyeqg Heis S9UO01S3IN uodY uoipPy
d051
9OURUJDNAOD) O_ €0°T UoIi3oe Yym aul| ul pajuawadwi uewpeg 9y3 Jo bupjiom
pue diysiopea |92d Yyedes ‘PAARIYDY - 600C AON 0T0Z unf 0£| 6002 AON TO|Ssiuswabuelle Bupjiom a0s7 M3N weyelo anoldwi z0'¢
peo peo
QwayL SU0ISIIIN 9]0N ssa.4b60.d snjels | 9jeq@ang | I1eq Mels S9UO01S3|IN uonOY uonpy




14!

*buissaiboud

wea| y3esH

Page 100

A3pieQ |yoey|uoissndsiq }oedy upg - 600 224 & 070z 4dv 0€| 600C 30 T0|24eD Ul UBIP|IYD 0} PIpPUIXd I-M4 JO 3SN
‘sjuswiadinbau buisues|d eyep bujobuo
9y} poddns 03 aoejd ul buijeis pue 0_ I-M4 Buisn ul @duapijuod J19y3 pjing 03} ‘uoneanbiyuod
A3]eQ [ayoey |swsiueydsy "PaAdIYdY - 600C 224 0702 4dv 0£| 600C doS TO|SIaI0M |BD0S UIIM P|dYy SdAIRRINUI [ed13deld a24ninj Jo
pajuswsaldwi (buisues|d co_umucwEwn__mE_
g_ ejep ‘6:9) WIISAS I-dJoMaweld uo uoi3da30.dd Hodadns
AspieQ |ayoey ‘PIASIYIY - 600¢C 2°d i 6002 22d T1€| 6002 BNV TO|PIIYD 40} sjyuswaanoadwi  Ajjenb  ejeQ pue asn WaisAs
: : : : jua.dnd asijigels
uonejuawa|dwi 3d130e4d 3s9q 03 swe?a) 1oddns
& 3|geud 03 [-Md UO Sassad0.4d U0I323304d P|IYD AseQ IM4 / SOI
do1eId PooD| A3]ieQ [pyoey )joely uo - 6002 0 600C 320 TE| 6002 INC TO|SDI Jo mdlral Joj padojpasp ueld 309fodd [ayoey ysligeiss £0°'¢
awaylL 5U0) %om__w_\.,“ 9]j0N ssa4boud snjels | 9jeqang | Iajyeqg Heis S9UO01S3|IN :_”...WWU._< uoipPy
sapoyIny ")J0M |BID0S
& |E207 J9Y30 yim uoipunfuod ul pamalAal ul syuswadinbau
AspieQ |pyoey 0TOZ INC TE| 0TOZ uer TO|waisAs ayy jo sipled uopdsjold pliyd UoON 9d130e4d
- - 1s9q noddns
oeJ3 uo 393foid 7 aseyd Jualin)d ‘4o U1 SoBuUBUS
paubis pue pajo|dwod sajep pus Yim & 1 cw oW um
AspieQ |yoey|(syoafodd ||y }oedy u0 - 600C 224 070z 4dv 0€| 600Z 3P0 T0 pajuswsa|dul uejd 303(0.d H-V_LMEwEWL“_
pado|anap uo sassanoud
9 MOJ} MJom pue siejdwaxa paje[dd uoiydazold Aspeo SDOI JuaJund
d2130eld PO0D| A3 RQ |3ydRY paAllydv- 600¢C 0 600Z 320 TE| 6002 INC TO|PIUD 404 ued afoid pue 3|qe} swiy pasinSy [a4oey | 3yl maiasy 90°'¢
awaylL 5U0) %om__w_\.,“ 9]j0N ssa4boud snjej}s | 9jeq@ang | Iieqg Heis S9UO01S3IN :_”...WWU._< uonpPy
Spaau |euonippe
BuiAjuspl
ul abe3s 35414 ay3
se ‘g|qelau|na
9Qq 03 JopISuod
Asys jeyy
uaJp|iyd Aue Joy
4vD e axeyapun
|lIM SjooydS
pue sa.jua)d
"0T0¢ AInC 4o pud |i3un s,uaJp|iyd
peo peo
QwayL SU0ISIIIN 9]0N ssa.4bo.d snjels | 9je@ang | di1eq Mels S9UO01S3|IN uonOY uonpPy




Sl

DSdS) ‘Jeqwedag 1ST Seuewnd 03
JUSM pue SSLIBPU0D3S [|e 03 PaINqLIsIp

@

g7s71 9w

Page 101

As11n9 >ueW |SpiepuelS ‘PRARIYIY - 600Z 2°d 600z dos 0€| 600Z doS 10 paydune| spepuels ybnoaip ‘sbuimas
pue sjooyds
doI1peld P00 |  Ad.InND e PaA3IYIY - 600C PO 0_ 6002 doS 0£| 600 924 10 paaJbe pue padojaAsp spiepuels| ASnD dJeW| UIM JIOM 0T°C
ed ed
awaylL 5U0) %o___\.,“ 9]j0N ssa4boud snjej}s | 9jeqang | Iaieqg Heis S9UO01S3IN :ﬂ.uo._< uoipPy
paysi|geiss Asuow Joj anjeA
panoddwi  Bujjesjsuowsp 104  wsjueydsw w\ww\__._umﬂ_oﬂ_\mwwﬂ__u_mm
A3|leg uel 0TO0Z unf 0€| 0T0Z 4dy TO|pue paunuapl spasau Joddns pue buinosay saljiwe; xa|dwos
A3jieg uel 0T0Z 48l TE| 0T0Z 4B TO paaJbe yoeoiadde Bujuoissiwuwio) 1sow 9yl yym
Y40M SBDIAIDS
padojaAap Moy aAolduwil o
"D ISNJL S,uaJp|iyD 40 pa|npayds Q_ (siouped pue S32IAJISS JNpe yyum) yoeoidde mcpuco_mm_EEow
A3jleg uel[3Jomaweld HPedy upo - 600¢ 22d 0T0Z g°4 82| 600 0 TO|buluoissiwwod pue bBuplom  pajelbajul .U:m mn_v_Loi
paio|dwod ajdoad bunoA UBE.m.Ec_
g_ pue uaJ4p|iyd 3|qesauina pue buipienbajes JoJ yoeoudde
0peldd pooH wi uic paAaIYdy - 600 dos 0T0Z doS 0E| 600Z INC TO|40 JuswssSassy  speaN  dibajesys  julor As|ieg uer| Buidojaasd 60°¢
peaT pea’
QwayL SU0ISIIIN 9]0N ssa.1bo.d snjels | 9je@ang | I1eq Mels S9UO01Sd|IN uondY uonpPy
A3pieQ [pyoey 0T0C 41BN TE| O0TOC 4B TO uonejuawd|dwi 1oy paa.be ue|d
'suondo Bupiom ajiqow buijiesy
‘sBuI1Ios MJOM JUDIDYIP Ul JJBIS IDI0M
|enos /T 'pastbe sabueyd uoy sanlold
‘po39|dwod 9di30edd  Bupjom  Jud4und & (piemuo4 Asburiey pue
JOo sIsAleuy ‘Adenuef Ul 392USWIWOD oddns M4 ‘LI 92IAIBS dARD ‘11 23edodlaod
ASpieQ |2Yoey |03 30|ld "}oedy uo - 600C 224 0TOZ JelW TE| 6002 doS TO|yum) pajuswsaldwi pue pasiAsp ueld MIN
*Adessadau jou Apnis
|PUJDIXT 'SUOIIN|OS 11 SAIRUJI}E JO DINIDS
edw] passasse pue juelb jno pajjod ay31 buaalp
9ABRY OUM Y1 JBYl0 YjIM uonieynsuo)d ul jjeis yoddns
.29 03, pue ,sI se, JO SisAjeue g_ pue aAoidwi
‘Bupjiom 3jiqow oddns 03 Abojouydsl 03} Abojouyday
loj spaau suobeuew pue  yeis pajs|dwod ajiqow buipnpoul
JO uOneN|BAD S3A|OAUl UDIYM panIeIs ADUBIDIJO  puB  SSDUDAIPDYD  ASlwixew Aspeo Abojouyday
do130Bld PO0D -YV[| ASPRO [9Yory (Us3q Ssey 10|id "PIASIYIY - 600C AON 600¢ das 0g| 600¢ 1dy 10|03 ABojouyoay jo asn uo Apnis |eutaix3y [yoey Mau 8sn 80°'¢C
peaT pea’
QwayL SU0ISIIIN 9]0N ssa.4b60.d snjels | 9jeq@ang | I1eq Mels S9UO01S3|IN uondY uonpy




Page 102

91

Bulurely

BunoA Jenis 0TO0Z unc 0€| 0TOZ 4dv TO ue|d bujuiesy diysiauied-ssold dojpaag 40 swwesbo.d
diyssauped ayy ssouoe buipienbajes e dojaasp pue
BunoA Mens 0T0Z 4dv 0€| 0TOZ 924 TOful  spasu  bBujuiesy |euonippe  MIIADY Bbuipienbajes
siabeuew wea} saljiwe) pue uaJpjiyd 1oy UJmcMmhMmmwMﬂ
BunoA Mens 0T0Z 4Bl TE| 0T0Z uer T0|padnpoJjul awayds bHuuojusw pue poddnsg ul spasu Bulien
siobeuew aied |eIDOS diysiauped
buiyeis Joj sawwedsboud oypads e buipnppul padojaAap BunoA -SS0.4D
pue Ajpede)| bHunoa penis 0TO0Z {8l TE| 0TOZ ver T0|2wuwesboid Adualadwod |eluabeuely Henis 9sAleuy 21'¢C
pea7 pea7
awayL 5U0ISaNIN 9]j0N ssa4bo.d snje}s | 9jeqang | Iaieqg Hels S9UO01S3IN uodY uoipPy
‘0T Yd4e|y 1IN0 p3jjod 29 03 saniAlRde
juswdojansp pue bBujuies| pajelad sapuabe
- padoaasp buldq |00] JUBWISSISSY pajuswa|dwi e 10 11B1S
ASpeQ |aydey Msiy MaN Pedy uQ - 600 2°a 0T0Z 4B TE| 600 20 TO|2wuwesboud  bBululesy  JUSWSSISSE  MSIY 103 F_F_S_L:u%&.u_u
'SN204 JuswaAoiduw ao130e.d m:_n_mb
QUIIUOdy  YUM  DDIAIBS  S,udIplIyd 9400 uol30a304d
buiyieis 0] papu0odas J03eulplo-00 AQ ‘pauueld & pajuawajdwi Aapeo | pliy2 aya dojansp
pue Ajpede)d| AspieQ |ayoey|buiaq buluies] -yded3 uQ - 600¢ 2°2d 0T0Z 48l TE| 600C 3P0 TO|Pwuweabodd  Bujuiesy S0USIOIA  d13ssawo(d |ayoey J|yMng 11°¢
QwayL pea’ 9]0N ssa.4bo0.d snjels | 9je@ang | d1eq Mels S9UO01S3|IN peaT uonpy
QUO}S9|IN ) uonpy :
*'SDIAIDS
Jsijedads
pue pa1abuey
0] |eJJajad
104 spjoysaJayy
jo Buipuejsispun
& jurof
B pue S92IAJDS
|esJaAIUN
Jo suoneyadxs
JO 39S Jeap
As4ano) e )oed3 uQ - 600¢ 22d 010z 4dv 0€| 6002 das 10| 4oyoeaipeaH yoea yim 4o paubis Juswaauiby € dojaAap 03
: : wnJo4 sjooyds
(3epdn ul buipaenbajes
QwayL pea’ 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels | 9je@ang | di1eq Mels S9UO01S3|IN peaT uonpPy
QUO}SI|IN ) uonpy :




L1

uoi3oadsug
pa1sj0 031 Joud suop bHuidg iom
9AI}DE OU Ing 93ep pus Ag pa39|dwod

pajuawsa|dwi bupjdom juiof ul susbeuew

Page 103

[lzeag Jouea|3(agq [IM ™Pesy uQ - 600 2°da 0T0Z unf 0€| 600C AON T0|2ouew.opad oddns 03 swuwesboud M40
SIY3 403IUOW pue SIDIAISS
anoadwi 03 diyssauped ul bupjiom
Jo sojdwexs |e ale dnodb-gns VO 0_
pue juswdoPAap VI ‘dnoub Bupjiom padojaaap awuwelboid dlom
lizedg Jouea|] pajelbaiu] "paAlIYdy - 600C 2°d 600Z AON 0€| 600 doS TO|pue paynuap! 1ay3aboj diom 03 saniunuoddo
diyssauped o
& paysiiqelss ssorme Mu_uma%
|1zeag Jouea|g ‘PIAdIYDY - 600 AON d 600¢C NON 0£| 6007 doS TO|siebeuew  Souewuopad  jo Y40MIDN ucwEmmm:mE
juswabeuep uaxepapun Ajpeded |1zeig 9ouewJopad
dUeWIO0MAd| |1zeug Joued|3 ‘PAA3IYIY - 600 AON 0_ 6002 0 T€| 6007 9°4 T0|3uswabeuew  sduewdopadd  Jo  sISAjeuy Jouea|3 aoueyuly q1°z
QawyL peaq 9)0N ssa.dboid snjels | 9jeqong | 9ieq Meis SOU01SO|IN pea1 uonPy
QUO0]}SaIIN ) uonpy .
sisabeuew yym uoipunfuod
|lzeag Jouea|] 0T0Z 4B TE| 0TOZ uer T0|ul padojaaap ue|d JuswaAoldull dURWIOL
103B21pU (60°¢ @9s
T 0s|e) juswulene
|lzeag Jouea|] 0T0Z 4B TE| 0TOZ uer To|yoea Joj paysiigeiss s3abuaey ajeldoisddy ajnJenb
panoidwil pue pamalAald doy foaa:w
Allenujauod  aue  yoiym dduewdoylad paJinbaJ juswanoidwi 0] SJ403edipul
juswabeuep uo syodaJ Jenbau SOAI9D3. & jJo 9a4bop Byl sSulwilep 03 pa3s|dwod |Izeag| 9ouewloiad A
2dURWIOMAd| |1zeig Joued|3|dnoub-gns yO "¥oedl uQ - 600¢ 23d 0T0Z 9o4 82| 600C AON T0|S403edipul dduew.opad A3 Jo  sisAjeuy Jouea|3 asAleuy $1°¢
pea7 pea7
[awyL 5U0ISaNIN 910N ssa.4b0.d snjels | 9jegang | 9ieq Meis S9UO03S3|IN uodY uopy
bulieys
isnoQ uer 070z 4dv 0€| 0TOZ Ue[ TQ|uoneW.IOjUl 3|qeud 0} paysi|qeisd WsIueyds
'JJe3S 9J43UdD UIP[IUD Sa43ud)
usamiaq sI poddns |im 2douepinb s,uaJlpjiyd
sJauooeld pue saJ3ud) s,uadpliyd o3 & yym bupeys
juswabeuep Aldde |jim [020304d Bulieys-uolewJdojug padojaAap $8J43uUdd S,udIp|Iyd uoljew.ojul
dURW.I0IDd ISNoQ uer|isnJl Ss,uaJp|iyd ‘paAlIYdY - 600T 22d 0TOZ uer T€| 600Z dos TO|yum  Buleys uopew.ojul Joj  |02030.d isnoqQ uer anoadwi €1°C
QawYyL peaq 9)ON ssa.dboid snjels | 9jeqong | 9ieq Meis SOU03SO|IN pea1 uonpy
QUO0]}SIIIN ) uonpy :




81

Page 104

2210ead
poob Jo uopjedyiauspl ayy pue suojyadsul /
SM3IADJ 13U30 wod) sjesodoud uonejusws|duwi

Aljenuue

sima 1933d 07Oz doS 0€| 0TOZ INC TO|ul  Buipsay Joj paysiqeIss  WSIUeydd PaMBIASI SI S
uonepuswwiodal
SIMaT 49194 )oed3 uQ - 6002 2°d & 070Z 9°4 82| 6007 g°4 10 uSeapuUN 3ouel|dWod JO MIIASY M3IAS 19430
: : : pue buiwe ay3
92UBUIDA0D) suonepuswWwWodal buiwe yim yum aouerdwod
pue diysispea SIMa7 J919d PoASIYDY - 6002 AON @ 600Z 22d 1€| 6002 dos T0|ooueldwod Jo MalAad J0) padojoAsp Sse204d| SIMET J919d aJnsug zo's
awaylL peoT 910N ssa.4604d snjels | 9jed an@ | 93eqd Meas SOu03S9|IW pea1 uonPy
auoIsaIm : uonPy :
Bbuipienbajes
9AI1D9)40 pue
9o130eud poob
paluap! pa2UPIAG Ssey
|99d yeJes z10Z ver 1€l TT0Z 220 TO JuswaAoIdwl 10} Seale pue Juled| SUOSST 18y} gds1 ue
1994 yeles 1102 AON 0€| 110z dos 10 aoe(d sexe MaINSY w0l maine. Jo3d
20URUIDA0D i uewpeg| e uoIssILIWOD
pue diysiapea |93d yeies 110z ew T€| TTOZ uer 10 M31Aa4 193d 10y paLRURP! §IST weyels 10°€
awaylL peoT 910N ssa.4604d snjels | 9jed@ an@ | 93eqd Meis S2U03S9|IW pea1 uonPy
auoIsaIW : uonPy :




61

Page 105

buiyieis S9S5900.d U01309304d P|IyD 104 |1zeig 10309S pJiyL
pue Ajpede)| |1zeag Joued|3 0T0Z 224 TE| 0OTOZ INC TO|Moddns 103095 pAiyl 104 |eiauajod S3ebiysanul Joues|3 MB3INDY 90'E
pea7 pea7
awaylL 5U0ISaNIN 9]j0N ssa4boud snjel}s | 9jeqang | Iieqg Heis S9UO01S3IN uondY uoipPy
|euonesado weal Aldeulddsip-13inw pue
jueus) aaeq TT0Z 48l TE| 0TOZ 29Q TO|sa4npadcoad pajesbajul mau ul pauledy jjeis
"Ay2413ud s3I Ul 0TOT |HdY IST Aq
wea] Mmau juswsa|dwi 03} oe|d bupjey & po31edo|
jueds aneq|sbuiesy HPedl} ug - 600C AON 0T0Z 224 T1£| 6007 doS T0|-00 yeis pue poabuesse uoiIRPOWLIOIDY
jueus aneq )oeJd3} uQ - 600C AON & 0T0Z 22d 1£| 6007 doS 10O paje.dbajul saunpadold pue s9sS920.1d >_w%,wu_w_w%>w
L1V¥D Sdi pue paonpo.ul
9 pue yjesay ‘Juswssasse R |edddjad |IDUNod Jo (92110d) | weay Aueurdipsip
Eelhl=SN Wslelel5) jueds aaeq 'P3A3IYDY - 600C NAON 600Z 224 T1£| 6007 dos 10 |wea) Adeuldidsip-13jnw 93eaJld 0} Juswaalby| 3juelds aaeq -INW SO'E
pea7 pea7
awaylL 5U0ISaNIN 9]j0N ssa4bo.d snjel}s | 9jeqang | Iaieqg Heis S9UO01S3IN uondY uonpPy
‘saJinpadoud
22130eud
pa3a(duwioo pue hi0ddns
AspieQ |ayoey ZT0C 1eW TE| 0TOZ unf TO|a210edd 3saq j9aw 0} JuUSWdO[PASP I-M4 Aapieo 03 padojonsp
do130eld pooD| AspieQ |ayoey ¢T10C 18N TE€| 0T0C uUn( 10 swea) As [|e 03 papudIxd I-Md JO SN [aydey I-Md ¥0°€
QwayL peat 9]0N ssa.4bo.d snjels | 9je@ang | d1eq Mels S9UO01S3|IN peaT uonpy
QUO0)S3|IN . uonpy :
uonejuswaduwi
|lzedg Jouea|3 "joedy uQ - 600 22d & TT0Z unf 0€| 6007 das 10|31oddns 03 padoeasp swuweldboisd abueyd
|Izeag Joued|3 "joed3 uQ - 600¢ 2°2d & TT0Z unf 0| 6007 dasS 10| pojuswa|dwi pue panoidde sainpadold map
& saanpadsoud
|lzedg Joues|3 )oeu} uo - 600¢ 224 TT0Z Unf 0€| 600 dos TO|bunsixa jo MmalAal  ojul ying  Bululea] _oonpead 1saq,
*Aemuapun Jom jo swwedboud [1zeag Buusws|dwi
ao1Peld pooo| [1zeig Joues|3[snonuiuo) "Pedy uQ - 600¢ 22d & TT0Z unt 0| 6007 das 10 pauiuapl saunpadold uj 22130e4d 3sag Joues|g €0'€E
QwayL pea’ 9]0N ssa.4b60.d snjels | 9jeq@ang | I1eq Mels S9UO01S3|IN peaT uonpy
9UO0)S3|IN . uonpy :




Page 106

0¢C

diysiauped

suipey 9yl ssouoe  pajuswsadwi  syuswabuedse
apLuer 1107 4dv 0€| 0TOZ uer 10|iIuswabeuew 9ouewJoad snqoy buned
ETERNCIEINIE]s)
sueid 03 paJdinbau
sulpae AJaAlDp pue s3abaey pajjolsd yym paiauspl mu_wmﬂto 1ad
anLuer TT0Z 48l TE| 0TOZ uer T0[iuswanoidwi Joj siojedipul aouewdopad Aay 10 m_m>wmcm
Juawabeuely suipey paje|dwod sanoyine suipjey | pajielsp “_mELE
9dULRWI04IDd apLuer TT0Z 994 82| OTOZ uer 10|, Alwey, Jo  2duewdopad Jo  SisAleuy 9132uer| 9xeMapun 80°S
pea pe9al
awaylL 5U0ISaNIN 9)0N ssaiboid snjels | ajeq ana ?jeq Heis S9UO01S3IN uondY uoipPy
pa319|dwod
S)0BIJU0D d9 0jul dd13oead poob buipaenbajes
uuing alng 0T0Z INC TE| 0T0Z uer 10|6unelodiodul ojul Apnmis Ayjiqisead (1od 300)
sdD Bbuipienbajes
JOo uonepijeAals pue buisuadl mau ‘|esieadde mw MMMmH_ocw%wv“MM
uuing alng 0TO0C INC TE| OTO¢ uer TQ|ojul  1ing sjuswaJinbau buipienbajes (Asburien |eAoy ay3 pue
buiyieis juswdolaAa( |BUOISS3J01d |BNUIIUOD SHN)| Adaueaq uopuon
pue Ajyoede) uuing alng 0TOZ INC TE| O0TOZ Ue[ TO|SdD ©O3jul 3INng sjuswalinbas bulptenbajes| uuind alnf| Yum JIOM £0°€
2wyl pes1 9]0N ssa4bo.d snjels | 3jeq a2na ajeq Meis S9U0}S3IN peat uoinPy
9UO0]}SIlIN . uondy :
(480
aq) sspusbe
AJoiniels
ssoJoe Ajpeded
aseaJoul
|Izeag Joued|3 2107 48l TE| TTO0Z 4dV 1O JUSWAA|OAU] J0J sjesodouad juswadw] 0] JUSWIDA|OAUI
2wyl pes1 9]0N ssaibo.d snjels | ajeq a2na ajeq Meis S9U01S3dIN peat uoiPy
9UO0]}SIlIN : uondy :




Page 107

09 B 6S IN — S9IIAIPY JuUd.IN)

payoeaJ 8q j0uU sey J4aquiada JO pus ay3
J10J 396ue) paJepap sy pue pajedpijue ueyy Jamols buiaoud
s| ssauboud JaAOMOH ‘sjuswaAosduwl SNOIINED SWOS MOYS 0}
Buiuuibaq aae spuaJ] Juddad - e paAlIe 3q [|IM dduew.oad
24niny JO aJ4nsSeawl 23eJdndde dJow e Ja)ealay) eyl adxs
9M '9DIAISS BU3 ul MJom bBulpueisino ||e ylm |esp 0} 3I0M
3y} anunuod am se Jood aq ||IMm Sduewdoad jeyy ajedppue
9M ‘sjuswssasse bulpue}sino ‘s|edsawil Jo N0 JO Jdqwinu e
Jo uonedwod ayj pue ptepueis ybiy e 03 si parsjdwod buiaq
sjuswssasse jo Ajyjenb ayj jeyy bulnsus uo sSnd0j paseaddul
ue bBulpnppul Sanss| JO Jaquunu B JO }NSaJ e S| d|edsawl}
ul pa|dwod sjuswssasse 9400 jo abejusouad mo| Byl

09 IN — @dueuw.o}idd judiin) jo uolnjeue|dxy

payoeaJl aq J0u Aew J4aquiada( JO pus ay3

J10j 39b6uey paJepsp ayjy pue pajedpijue ueyy Jamols buiaoud
S| ssaJboud J9ASMOH SsjuswaAosdwl SNOIINED SWOS MOYS 03
Hbujuuibaq aue spusdy jJusdad - e paALIR 3] ||IM dduew.oad
94njny JO SJ4nsesaw 91eJ4nNdde dJow e Jayeadsay) eyl 30adxs
9M "9DIAISS BU3 Ul MJom bBulpueisIno ||B ylIm |esp 03 XI0M
QY3 Snupuod am se Jood 3q [|IM duewdoiad jeyy ajedpiue
9M ‘Ssjuswssasse buipueisyno ‘s|edsawi Jo N0 Jo Jaqwinu e
Jo uonedwod ayjy pue pJepuels ybiy e 03 s| parsjdwod buiaq
sjuawissasse Jo Ajjjenb syl jeyl bupnsus uo sndoj paseatdul
ue bBulpnppul sanss| JO Jaquunu B JO }NSaJ e S| 9|edsawl}
ul paje|dwod sjusuwissasse |epiul jo abejusosad mo| Yyl
6SIN — 9duUeuw.0dd Jua4in) jo uolnjeue|dxy

%¢€9

%cC ¢y

%7¥'St

%T ey

JUSWIDUSWIWIOD I3y}
Jo sAep Bupdom GE uiyym ino
palled 2J9m jeyl aJ4ed |eIDoS
S,uaJpliyd  Joj  sjuswISsasse
2100 jo obejuadiag

09 IN

%¢€S

% v

%6°vE

%9¢

|eluajad Jo sAep bupjiom
[ UIY}M INO pallied aJed |e|oos
S,uaJp|lyd 10}  SIUBWISSISSE
|eniut jo 9bejusniad

65 IN

Alejuswwio)

yobie]

snjels

anjea

0T/600C

puaiy

60 92°2a

60 AON

60/800¢C

uondidsap IN

apoo IN

JUDLUSSISSY B [B1IDJ9Y T

Aabuuey

OT'TO'CT :uo paje.ldauad

600¢ 1°2quadaqg

110d3ad sJ03edipu] 2o3uew.io04idd uejd buipienbajes "z xipuaddy



"SJUBWISSASSEe
ul @ouewJdopad ano aAoldwl ||IM Saanseaw asayy ‘pauiquiod
'oe|d Ul aJe  usuonpeld Jojuss pue udbeuel wes|
92Ul Ajjuauind pue asuodsal JO ADUD3ISISUOD B 2INSUD 0} wed)|
Buiusalds pajesipap e buiieadd ade 9\ “S|eddajad 03 ssuodsal
|eljIul 23S0y 2Jow B 24nsud 03} sanbes|od yjesH pue
90110d Yl Yym sbuijoaw 499m e sawil € MOou dJe aJ3y3 pue
‘asuodsay 3sdi4 ueyl Jayied ssaoodd 4yD ay3y ybnoayy buiob
2.e sased 9jeludosdde jey) a4nsud 03 J03eulpliood 4D 33Ul yIim
syul] buiroadwi uo BUINUIIUOD SI YJOAN “JUDWISSISSE 10} DDIAIDS
9Ul 03 paJdajod 3G pINOYS jeym ul AdUDISISUOD d|geud pue
Ajuep o3 buidjay si yoiym acejd ul S| JusWINI0p Sploysadyl v

%8S

%T°1S

%€"€9

%99

juauwissasse |eniul 0}

uo bujob sued |eIDOS Ss,udlp|Iyd

0}

s|edtsjad  Jo  abejusduad

89 IN

Page 108

"SUOI}PPUBWILIOIDI puR SBWO0I3IN0
9jeuidousdde  yum  usdeuLdpuUn  sjuswssasse  Jo  Ajllenb
9yl ul jJuswaAoidwi ue udaq Sey 343yl 1Byl MOYS JOqUIDAON
2ouls siabeuew J0lU3S AQ Pa3dNpuUOd S}ipne G9T Yy} wod pue
IO\ [B1D0S juspuadapul ue Ag uddemspun SHpne jusddy

"SJUBWISSASSEe
ul @ouewdopad uno aAoldwl ||IM Saanseaw asay) ‘pauiquiod
'2oe|d Ul aJe  usuonpeld Jojuss pue udbeuel wes|
92Ul AjauaJind pue asuodsal jJO ADUD3ISISUOD B 2INSUD 0} Wed|
Buiusalds pajesipap e buijieadd ade A\ “S|eddajad 03 asuodsad
|elliul 23S0y 2Jow B 24nsud 03} Ssanbes|od yjesaH pue
90110d Yl Yym sbuijoaw 4a9m e sawil € MOou dJe 3J3y3 pue
‘asuodsay 3sdi4 ueyy Jayied ssaooud 4yD ay3y ybnoiyy bulob
2.e sased 9jeludosdde jeyy 84nsusd 03 J03eulpliood 4D 33Ul yIim
syul] buiroadwi uo BUINUIIUOD SI YJOAN “JUDWISSISSE 10} DDIAIDS
9Ul 0} paJdajod g pINOYS jeym ul AdUDISISUOD d|geud pue
AJuep o3 buidjay si yoiym adejd ul S| JuswNdOp Sploysadyl v

09 B 6S IN — @d13deld }sog

*24n30Nnans
juswabeuew 3jusuewdsad e 939D 0} pIdU B SuleWAM
9493 0S jjeys Aousbe ujewad g Ing ||e JSASMOY - 3|ge3s AJdA
S| wea) juswabeuew ay) pue aoe|d ul mou aJe siabeuew
IV "poulad uononpul dAIsusayasdwod e Jaye d4om dn Buppid
JO sabeis Alued AJ9A Byl 3B pue dDIAISS Y3 Ul MOU dJe S3INIdad
uedlBWY 9Yj pue peojased |ny e uo bupjey Ajbuiseasou
ale (MSON) sdaddiom |epos paylienb Amau jo dnoub ayl
‘9ouewJuoad Jno uo payedw sey ‘yeis paulienb Ajgeyns
Buninioas saiyNdip panunuod yum Jayiaboy ‘siyl rsiesA
OM) snolAaid Byl ueyl oW 9%(0SG ||B4SA0 SI Ydlym ‘901A49S
U3 03 paJtlajad sased Jo awn|oA ybiy e ag 03 SSnURUOod a4y

Atejuswiwio)

1obae]

smels

anjea

0T/600C

puai]

60 92°a

60 AON

60/800¢C

uondidsap IN

apoo IN




Page 109

UdIYM %G9 3 Ajjuatind aue ap\ '39bue) pus JedA uno spiemol
uoiadip 3ybu ayy ur Ajpesrs buiaosdwi S| SdURWIOLIDd

%0,

%L'69

%L'69

%69

%<¢C 99

40 yabua| :uaJp|iyo Ja3je paxoo|
Jo sjuswade|d jJo  Ajjgeis

€9 IN

"9DIAIDS SjuUBWdR|d BYI YIIM uosiel] poob pue s,0¥] 03
S9SED Mau JO uojiedo|e Ales uo siseydws ue yym buinuijuod
S| Jojedlpul siyy jo bBupojyuow 9sS0|) ) JO) SuOSeaJs Ised
|ENPIAIPUI S4B 343Y) 9|BISSWI} JO N0 SIe SMIIASI dIdYym pue
poob AJaA sulewsad Jojedipul Siyl 3suiebe souewloyad |[easAQ

%086

%796

%796

%796

%9°56

sa|edsawy
paJinbaJ UIY}IM pPIMIIADI DI9M
UdIYM S3sed aded Ul uadpliyd

99 IN

"U3IM |eSp 0} pey dABY 9M S9SED 3y} JO SWOoS
ul sanIxa|dwod |eb3| auow 9q 03 WIS 0S|e a4y} INg ‘240J9q
ueyj 93eJ U9)Sey e Je SISPJQ Judwde|d 03 spiemol bBuirow
9Je UaJp|lyd uedW SMNOD DY} Ul SI|RISSWI} 03} uoiudINe
J93ea4b Inq ‘3sed ayj ul sAe|ap pasned sey Siyj pue ‘pauieiqo
S| J9pJO juSWIde|d B |I3UN PIsidApE g Jouued uadp|iyd
‘saljiwe) SAndope yim Saydjew SASIYdE 0} WNIHOSU0)
uopndopy uopuol YMON dyi ul sanbel|od yym  A|@so|d
YJOM S\ "SJUSAS uondope |euoljeu pue |ed0| 3B pue ssaud ay)
ul pajijoid ase ualpjiyd aoe|d 03 pley - AJpignd jo apew buiaq
S| 9sn ||nj pue ‘saljiwey puly 03 apew buiaq sJe S3I044e jesaln

SIIMAIPY JUdLIN)

*UMO SIy uo pade|d aq 03}
wiy Joy Ajlwiey d|qelNs e puly 03 syyuow g1 %003 ) buisiaape
M3U UM SJ9Ulodq Syl Uud3MmI3q JINOIARYSQ Pasi|enxas
03 anp pabueyd aq 03 pey Jayjolq JBp|o SIY Yyym wiy aoe(d o3
ue|d |eijiul Y] *sJa3dope Joe.aire 03 YNJIYIP Sem 3 punolbypeq
SIy JOo 9sneddg ‘9snge |euojjowd pue |enxas ‘3o9|6au
Snods Jo punolbyoeq Ajjwes e wod) 9 jJo dnosb psjgnosy e
ur buiiqis § @y si ssjedsawll 3yl dpisno Buljjes plIYd Yig syl

‘yjuow 3jse| payodad

9J9M 9S3Y3 JO { ‘SYuoW ¢T Ulyym paoe|d Jou aJam uaip(iyd g
‘ue|d ay3 aq p|noys

uorpdope jeyj uoIsIPBP Y3 JO Syuow g1 ulyum uopdope oy
paoe|d a1om 9soy3 Jo G pue ‘pajdope uaaq aAeY uaJp|IYd 0T
‘JedA SIy} Jej 0S 3yl sueaw ydiym ‘yjuow siyy pajdope aiam
uaJp|iyd om] ‘2Jed yim pajaJdaslul aq pinoys sabejuaduad
pue ‘mo| AjpwaJaixe aJe Jojedipul SIyy J0j sidaquinu Byl
duUBW.I0J19d JudlIn) jo uoneuejdxy

%SL

%08S

%08S

%08S

%08

uonndope Joj pase|d aq
pinoys pjiys sy3 eyl uoisiosp
Aousbe ue bHuimo|joj uondope
10) uaJp|lyd U1y poO|
Jo sjyuswade|d jJo ssaulPwi]

T9 IN

(%6) 60 |14dy 9ouls syusawade|d
2J0W 1O € pey aAey uaJpiiyd Aul4 ‘60 Jaqwadag jJO pud
9y3j 03 syjuow T 9yj uo paseq S| uonisod ajep 03 JesA ayl

%TT

"
A4

%ST'¢CT

%S¢t

%S8°¢CT

%69°vT

SaAOW JO
Jaquinu :uaJpjiyd Jaye paxoo|
Jo sjuswade|d jJo  Ajjgeis

Z9 IN

Atejuswwio)

yobie]

snjels

anjea

0T/600C

puaiy

60 92°2a

60 AON

60/800¢C

uondidsap IN

apoo IN

24eD uj ua.pjiyd pue uondopy ‘T




Page 110

9y3 se ‘bupjew Jno Jo jou 3|geiawil 1Unod e ul dn ybned aq
ued ue|d e 03 303[gns pue au4ed ul yjoqg aJe oym uadpjiyd asoy

")JOM3Sed ul YLIp ou

S| 949yl pue Ajlioyoeysiies buissalboud s Y40m jeyl ainsus 03
(poltad aesA-g auj jedpijue 03) aJow J0 syjuow 8T Joj ue|d
uonoazoldd pliyd e 03 109[gns usaq dARY OYM UJP|IYd S0yl
Jo Buniipne Juayiiny axepapun [|IMm JIAIDS U0I309304d PIIYD UL
S3IIAIPY JUdLIND)

"WDISAS aJ4ed ayj ojul paAow ue|d e 03 30algns buiaq paddols
OUM UJIP[IYD JO %79 3IRY} SMOys SiSAjeuy ‘powad yjuow
XIS B 1SE3| 1B JI9A0 paMdIADJ 2q 03 paau sabuey)d *Alejuswiuiod
Alyuow 03 J|9S)}I SpPUd| yYdIym Jojedipul ue 3jou S| Syl

DUBWLIOLIDd Judlin) jJo uoneue|dxy

%S

%L 9T

%6T

%¢€’S

%L'Y

2Jow JO siedA
¢ Bunse| sue|d uondal04d PIIYD

79 IN

0% T Sem 3 suinoqybiau [ed13s13e]S UNOo 10) pue ‘o5 TT Sem

3 UOpUOT 404 ‘9% ET SemM 60/800¢ 404 pue|bul 1oy abedaae ayl
‘ue|d e 03 303[gns uaaqg A|snoiaaid pey 3soyj

JO 67 pue ‘ue|d e 03 303[qns apew u33qg aARY UIP[IYD 027
‘a3ep 03 J1edA ayj uJ 'siseq A|yjuow e uo A|qetapisuod AJeA |[IM
sabejuadiad ‘mo| a3inb ale Jojedipul SIY3 104 Siaquunu 3yl sy

%0T

%cCET

%S¢

%8

%9°S

awi} uanbasgns
10 pu0odas e 104 ue|d UOII3304d
PIIYD 4o 303[gns ay3 Bujwodaq
uaJpiys J0 abejuadiad

S9 IN

"WA3SAS 9y} JO sjudWwa|d

Buimalaal ay3y ojuo ainssald sawos buiaind si suejd o3 3[lgns
Bujwodaq uaip|iyd Mau Jo siaquinu ayj ul aseasdul buinuiuod
9Ul "9IE2SaWI} UIYIM pdYy 248 SMIIADJL 2Jow Jeyj a4nsud
0] WI)SAS MdU B paonpoJiul sey 3JIAISS UO0I3I}0.d PlIUD DUl
S3IIAIPY JUdLIND)

"Jlaqwiada(
Ul 21e| aJoM SMB3IABL ON ‘Ploy usaq Apusnbasgns aaey
SM3IA3J ||V "23ep 03 JeaA 3yj Ul 21e| U93g dARY SM3IASI dD 6

2oULWLIOLIDd JuUdLIND Jo uoneue|dxy

%00T

%€ ¥6

%€ ¥6

%9°€6

%00T

S9|edsawi} paJdinbaJd ulyym
POM3IADL  BU9M  UDIYM  SIBSED
uoidalold pliyo Jo abejusduad

(9 IN

Atejuswiwio)

3abae)

snejls

anjep

0T/600TC

puail

60 92°2a

60 AON

60/800¢C

uondiidsap IN

apoo IN

uonodajoid PIIYD "€

'SJ9Jed JI9y) pue way3l 03 DIAISS
AsbulieH o03siAe] ay} wod) Joddns pue joddns MJOm |BID0S
‘Joddns  |euonzeonpa punode salbajesys pajsbuey jo jnsad
e se Ajjigeis juswade|d pasosdwi Buimoys ade Joyod Syl
Ul UaJp|iyd YL *u4n3N0 60/80 4NO UO JudWIAOCIdWI %QT € SI

juswaoe(d

Atejuswiwio)

3abae)

smels

anjep

0T/600C

puai]

60 92°a

60 AON

60/800¢C

uondidsap IN

apoo IN




AuQO eleQ W_
umouun B
aslop buyen .Ev asJop buiyen $. MO @
abueyd) oN| mm abueyd oN| em Buiulem /I\
Buirosdw] .ﬂ... Buirosdw] @ HolY .
SpuaJ] Wia) 34oys spuat] wus] BuoT snes Id

A9 sjoquiAs

Page 111

*QT S| 9402S ||_JDAO WNWIXew
‘-1 JO 9|BJS B UO PaJ0dS pue (UOIIUDAIDIUI puR UOIIRDIJIIUdPI S9OIAIDS (SHIWVD)
Aldea ‘pjo sieaA /T pue 9T J0j SDIAISS ‘yijeay |ejuaw juabin abuel siyy yajesy |jeusw juadsajope
J9A0D Unoy Hz ‘sainoiyip buiuies]) SHIWYD JO SIUSWSID Jno4 ST Joj eyep oN | @bueu siyj J1oj ejep oN €T pue pjiyd JO SSDUDBAIRYT IS IN
19bae) snjels anjea
Aiejuswwo) puailL | 6022d | 60 AON |60/800C uondidsap IN| 9pod IN
0T/600¢

_ SHWVD 't
"%T'6 Sem 3}l suinoqybiau |eonsiels
dno Joj pue ‘o8 sem 3 uopuoq Joj ‘99 sem 60/800C
J0j Jojedipul siyy Joj abeusaae puejbuz syl ‘%/'y paAdiyde
aM ‘60/8007 Je9A Byl Ul '9%G SI JeaA ayjy Joj 319biaey unQ
adoeldd isag
‘JuswiaAoldwil paulelsns pue X2inb 03 J|9S)1 Spud|
jeyy buiyzswos jou s| siyl :30916sau jo Aiobajed e yum ueid
e 03 109lgns uaJp|iyd jo abejusdiad ybiy e si auayy ruondajold
Jo |9A9] Jaybly e 03 peossalsboud oAey plnoys waisAs
94D 9yl 0jUl paAOW dABY OYM 3Soy] ‘pasead aAey sue|d
uonodalodd pliyd woym Joj uaJapjiyd ayy 23ebiasaaul |im M
‘9pew S| J9pJo aJed
B [13un wa3sAs uoi3oalodd pliyd ayl ul wayj uielad o3 st Aoljod

3abae) snjels anjep
Aejuswwo) T puaiL | 6022d | 60 AON |60/800C uondidsap IN| 9pod IN




Page 112

€ |0 0 0 paue)s 184 jou Inq pajuioddy e 0 0 - paue)s 184 jou Inq pajuioddy
€« |1 | 0 (03 Bumnioal) seouede) « z Z - (03 Bumnioal) seouede)
€ 0 0 0 juswysi|geise JaAQ « 0 0 - JuswiysI|qe1sa JanQ
€ |1 | L sjsod paidnoooun « ) L - s)sod paidnoooun
€ |0 0 0 aAes| Ajulele « 0 0 - aAes| Ajulele
€ |0 0 0 OIS wus) buoT « 0 0 - OIS wus) buoT
€ |0 0 0 Aousby « ) L - Aousby
€ 8y R4 'Y JJe1s jusuewlad « g 9 - JJe1s jusuewlad
€ |89 8'G 8'G sisod paysi|qels3 e oL ol - sisod paysi|qels3
10 ol 60 60 SI0SIApY uonjadjoid pIiyd ol 60 60 SI92140
ueryyg | 99a Yy | AON Y39 uer yig | 99a@ Yy | AON U9 Buimairay 1 yJuspuadapul

« vl ) 22 palels 194 jou 1nqg pajuloddy « I ] 2 palels 194 jou 1nqg pajuloddy
« ov ov oy (01 Buiinioal) saloueoe) « Zl Zl Sl (01 Buiinioal) saloueoe)
€ Gl Gl €l juswysiigeiss I8AQ € 0 0 Gl juswysiigeiss I8AQ
« 0 0 G sysod paidnoooun « I L Gl sysod paidnoooun
« 2 Z G aneg| Aluiaiep « | L L aneg| Alluiaiep
« 2 Z 5 oIS wa) buoT « I L Z oIS wa) buoT
« GS GS ZS Aousaby € Ll Ll A Aousaby
€ 910l 9101 996 HE}S Jusuewlsd € Ll yXé 9C Jjels jusuewlsd
€ 9Lyl 9'Lvl 9'8¢l sysod paysiigejs3 € 6¢ 6€ 8¢ sjsod paysiigejs3
104 ol 60 60 SIIOM ol 60 60 siabeuepy
uer yjg | 29a Yl | AON Y}9 | |BIDOS pue Siduoljjoeld J01uUdsg uer yig | 9ag yy | AON Y9 wea | /siabeuey wed] Jojuag

6002 1aquiada( s3sod pajjun pue juswysijqejs3 saljiwe g uaip|iyd

SJ0ojedIpul eouewioyad 00 ]




Page 113

ainjonJisal 0] anp ajgejieAe jou aunbid

80l .-w ! 2991 1891 9Z'LL ainbl4 ||eJdaAQ salliwe] pue uaipjiyd
1

801 ‘ AW GZ'8 GZ'8 92IAI8G 9oUBWIONSd pue Adljod

801 = " 3 3 €l uswabeuepy
[}

80l ‘ . 80 Ll 10 92IAJ9S doURUI

" SpaaN

80l .' | ¥S'S 4 GZ'8 [er0ads ynm ajdoad BunoA pue ualipjiyo

" (mainay

80l » , €0°€C €v'ce 16°0C pue uonodj0Id p|IyD) doueInssy Ayeno
[}

80l ;- ‘el 8G7Cl 62°Cl wnjAsy pue aie) Buires

r (e1en

80l .-w 1 82°1C 1A Y ¥0'€C Ul UaJp|IyQ) SUSWSe|d PUE SBIIN0SY
[}

80l » 1 802 0. €99 8led ul uaJp|iyo
1

80l =  990Z « . asuodsal }sliq
1

80l = | g9°Z¢ x * poddns Buipienbajeg

jobie] puail 60-22d 60-AON 60-320 92IMIBS

Hoys

(4edA Buijjou) sailjiwe4 pue uaipjiyod asAkojdwa 1a9d shAep ssauyols abesany




Page 114

0 0 0 00 Tvrloolps Tvvoo)zo J6c]85 09 [sc[es69 [6c]26]29 [sc]isk69 [6e[ssk69 [6c].G]reroL

| (0T uer ui payu - payuiodde g pajeatd 1sod mau) ate) Alewlld
Joor] v ] v Joor| b [ Qoo v ] v Joor| b [+ Joor]s [ Joor]s ] Joorfr ] Joor]) |1 D1uD Ul 3jep
Joor [ 1[4 Joor] v Jv joor] v |+ Joob|s 1 Joor]s |1 Joor|s ] Joor]s |1 Joorfi ]t HN X3S3|pPPIW YHON
Joorfefecoorfelecfoorfefefoorfe]eloor]elehoor[e]ecfoor]e]efoor]ele Uo3bUIYM 3YL
Jool| v | v Joor] v [ ¥ Joor| v |+ JooL]|# |+ Joor|v |+ Joor|+ |+ Joor]+ |+ fooi|v|v AsbulleH Ul HS0D
S}SO0d psweN \ _uwuN:m_mwn_
 EHEIR SEEIE ZAEIA AR A ZAEA AR A EA A ER Spaked Ajunwwo)
| EHEA M CHEA M 23 AN 2R A A 2 buisInN [00yds
29 |iz]veleo [1z|vefis |61 |velis [61 [ve]o oz|eches [61|echro [oz]eckyo [1z]ee buiIsIA y3eaH

%|d|vl%|[d % | d %] d %|d|VE%|dVvI%[d|VI%|dIVv % [d[v]%|d|IvVi%|d]|v]% |d{v]%[d]V

uinpnnQ Je\ qo4 uep 29Q AON 190 dag pny Ine unp CIT] ady
0 €0 [43) 10

1sod ul 9jdoad Jo 9, = 0

‘}sod ur 9|doad = d  ‘dlqe|leAY SISOd LM €101 = V

Juswebuelie wusul Buipnjoul - Yjuow yoes Jo pus ay) je jsod ul ajdosd = (d) 1sod ui ajdosd

yjuow ayj jo Aep ise| ay} uo s|gejieAe sisod |e1o] = (JLAA) Jusjeainbg awi| 8j0ypA

3s0d ul Jje1s pue sapuedeA buipienbajes jo slaquinu 3yl :Ajipede) jeuonesiueblg ‘9




Page 115

031 anp Jed uil si syl "ybiyle ‘suoxueg ybnoayy Asbuiiey 9Je 3J9y] ‘92IAJIDS JudWISSasse 0} wnipaw
sulewad snjels s dylful Mdom |epos bujubisap-ay (g pue |edudja4  dY}  UIYHUM 9yl ul Jeis
‘syjuswijulodde jo yaqwinu e| (juoddns pue Ajddns ABojouydal 0102 'sybnoJoq uopuor] Jayro payijenb pue
ASpieQ |1ayoey |apew aAey pue buniniodad|‘add ‘uoisiniadns |eanp . ST € S ue 71 yum bunadwod Asbuiey yim paouaadxa
Joyiny |Ajqusaund ade am ybnoyyy|pue |euoissajodd sspnpoul) Jaj40 sJaxdom |e1dos Ajljenb ybiy oy uielyad
AapieO |ayoey ‘Adpjeo |Asbuliey ay3 jo juswdolpaaq (e Alddns pue puewap usamiaq pue 3nJoal
1 1UMQ 1?yoey 0T-10-1T :opnpul o] deb e Apusaind s aJayl 0} ainjieq ‘¢
sjusawabuedle buiwdiuod
S,9J3Ud) UuaJp|IYD pue sjooyss
lle 0} aduepinb uapMM (P 4vD
BuiMBIASL Ul SBJ4UdD S,udJplIyD
pue  sjooyds BuinjoAur (o
ssa20.4d
Aem om) e S| S|y} pue sanss| uo
S|O0YDS MIOM SDIIAIDS S,uddp(iyd
9J9ym  S|ooyds  J0oJ  wnJoy
buipienbajes dn  bumpes (g 9 9 z c 0T0¢C
suoned||duwi _/ uer ¢t ‘||e e s|e.dlajaJ 9)ew jou op
oS ayl jo SJOUJDA0D) pue s 1e uaJp|iyd Ajiuapl
pue speaH buyalqg ‘sidwexs 0} [lej Aew Sa43juad uaJIp|IyYd
Jo4 "wayy Jo  suoieladxs pue sjooyds ‘ssouwdypn4
S,[1oUno) ay3 pue sanjiqisuodsau *SDIAIDS 1sijenads
J19Y]  SWJPuod  ysiym  uadpjiyo pue pa31abuey 03  |edudsad
ysnoQq uer 3|geJau|nA Joj Ajjigqisuodsad yjm Jjo ELE]! 9jeuododoidsip UOIUdAIDIUI
1loyiny 4eis Jsyjo pue suayoealpesy ul Bbuiyinsau uoipe| Aled aAI30949
{3snoq uer 'snyels ul abueyd oN|ym  sbuiesw  Jenbay (e 9jendoisdde axe3} 03 |1y Aew ysijgeiss
:IoumQ| :3snoQq uer 0T0C-10-IT :opnpul o] S2.43Uud) UudJp|IYD pue sjooyss o3 aunjieq 'T
diysisaumo 24008 poo 1 ojeq "
T T S 9JON 31s93e7] Sa4nseawdajuno) snmels a5 | qiean [oedwy BWm_Hm uondiidsaqa sy

Aabuuey

0T0Z Alenuer £T :uo pajelaudn

0T0C Adenuer J10day sy ueld buipienbajes "¢ xipuaddy




0} uonels =0ljod ebybiy

ybnoiaog '6°9) diysisuped yoes

Page 116

1B SIIOM  |RIDOS  JO|wod)  SdAnejuasaldal  Joluds
S| 9|dwexa 31s93e|) siaxdom|jo dn apew dnodo juswabeuely “JuswaAoldwi J0) eade
Jo uol3ed0|-02 ‘swea] [9ouewdojiad Isndl s, uaJdpliyd ue se bHBupjom diysisuyied
Adeundpsip iInw  ybnoayije sepnpul syl -passalboud juapinsul paynuapil (80 22Q)
Bupdom auljjuold  ‘s|aAd||bulaq aJle sjuswabuelle @ 9 Z c cﬁwmﬁmowmo Modas uonippadsul WYL ayl
e Ajenmia  3e  Bupom|isnil  s,uaJpiiyd 9yl  Is|Iym Jo sbuipuly uiew ayy Jo suQ Bupiom
A9|leg uer|diysiauped dAIDRa|dn 19s oq 03 aJde swwedboud ‘Bupjiom diysiauped aAndale diystauped
Joyiny|jo  2ouspiAs  juedyiubis|ayy punoJe syjuswabuelse uo jusapuadsp sI ybnosoq SAII094JD
siIma7 J19319d :SIM3T |9oueulanob wiJa]ul (e 9yl ssouoe jdoad HunoA ysijgeiss
:12UMQ 1919d 0T0Z-TO-TT :9pnpul 0 pue uaJp|iyd> buipienbajes 01 ainjieq °¢
"19440
/ sSuonRIpuod M3au 303|ja4 03
paJedaid bHuieq ubiedwed
M3IN ‘uoljewJyuod
Buipuny buijieme
- 9dpew sjesodoisd pue
pamainal siobeuel wea]
Joluss g suabeuey wes)
104 uojjeJaunuwal pue soanss| Ajoeded ayj Jo
9|0y r"jusuewusd sSwodsq|buipuelsiapun JespD B dABRY OIM
0} uoIspap 8yl bupjew|aunsus o3 bujuue|d peopdop (4
jou aJe yeis Aduaby opew| souewdoyiad sAoidw] pue dIom
sjuswiujodde Jabeue|y |aAp 01 peis apisbuoje buniis
wea] € °SI9)J0  opew(siauopioedd  JOIUSS  SIA|OAUI
JayJ4om |eOoS § Juswiinidad|ydiym  buiyoeod qol-ayz-up (8
N "(9o4 03} AON buisiyianpe
Hel}s 03}) SIIom  |epos|palabiel djqeus 03 bHuiddew
8T po3jinJoad sey ubiedwed|adiopiom bupeyapun (p
juswilinidal  MJIOM  |e1D0S |00}
vsSn buisipoape |euoijeu|juswdo@Asp  pue  juswlinioal
woJ) spew sjuswiulodde|e se sa3ud3}2dWOd HJOM |BIDOS
Jo Jaquinu paywi||bunusws|dwi pue buidojaaaqg (2
93Uyl pue SIJIOM |RIDOS Aduabe ‘sjuswijulodde
Jo juswiyinioad buipunouans|buisiyianpe pue Bbunaxiew jusuewlad aue oym sisbeuew
sanss| |euonjeu ay31|uswiinioal sijeroads wiea)l aAluURISgns ou Ajjualind ‘w193-buo)
CIDREE TG 9JON 31s931e sainseawidjuno) smeys | 2192S | Poo H BMu.Mmm uondiinsaqg NSy
|O13U0) pue sy s | Y191 | dedwig " T .

iseq




aney| dipjny
1oyiny

f1auupns saeyd
:JumQ

"pappe
S9INSEaWIsIUN0d M3aN

1auunis
soldeyd 600C-CT-v0

'S9sed> Mau Aue uo suoljoe
‘Swwod  Ajpwiy JoJ SdAD pue
|leba1 yum poaasbe |0o0joid (@

*Adessadau aJiaym aoe|d
ulr Ind 9q ued SaINSEaWIIIUN0D
Jayuny 31eyly os  padojuow
Ajjueisuod s| abeuanod eipan (p

'9sed NRYX 2y} 03 uolle|ad ul
¥DS dy3 jo uonedjgnd ay3 pue
ey ayl Jo pua ayj Joj pasedaud
buieq ueld buipuey eipsi (2
*3INsaJ uoI130adsul paisiO 104
uoijededasd ul dn umedp ueld (q

"SIY3 yim ob 03 jalqg v30
e S| 249yl "9Xe] 03} saul| elpaw
9jelidoiadde aAey pue [1DUnod 3yl
jsuiebe 4o Jo4 '9°1 ‘3NsSad J4dYUD
buldA0D  ‘podunouue s| jnsaJd
MDIADY [BIIPNL Byl JIAdUIYM
Jdoj dn umedp ue|d buipuey (e

apnpul 01

0T0¢
uer +0

"|EO1ILID B4 [|IM A[DAI0DY40
suol3ed1IuNWWOod |[eulaixs
pue |euJdajul sbeuew 03 pasu
9yl ‘SMdIABL BSed  sSnoLIsS
pue ased> Jnod buipusad syj
Jo b1 ur ppouno) AsbuleH
uo s@dusnbasuod |euolleindad
jueoyiubls  pey sey osed
d Aqeg ayj jo uonuaye eipaw
jusnbasqgns pue Joedwi syl

sSuoI3edIUNWIWOD
|eutaixa

pue |euJajul

Jo Juswabeuew
SAIOBH{UT '

Page 117

‘(sanssi
buipienbajes ‘malnal  pue
‘uo 93epdn 03 siseq Je|nbad
e uo piaeog AsbuueH SHN
Buipusyie saoIAIDS uaJp|IydD
Jo Joyauig sI 9jdwexd
1s91e|) juawabeuew |9A3|
doy pue 3|ppiw (ssuodsay
35414 03} uolssiwgns 0}
Joud sg/ Ull4d\ M40Mm 3Juiof

(1€ 1dv)
paiuspl 8q 03} sapjunpoddo
Jaypny S]] pue Bupiom
pajesbajul 93e|IDR) 03 SIIIAIDS
ubile 031 si uejd uoipPe YL ayl
ul JuswaAoJddw] Joj ealy auQ (2

diystaupied yoea 109j0.

uiebe |m uonisodwod s3I pue
ue|d ayj Jo A4dAlBp By3 abeuew
0} paysiigess a9 |im dnoio
Bulesls ueld uoldy VL Vv (g
(SHN Asburiey
YD Andag
IAIDS  ,udIp|Iyd
‘Jopuewwio)

2A13ND9X3
o4y pue
Jo Jo302.41g

diysisaumoQ
|od4juo) pue sy

910N 1s93e1

sa.Jnsesw.i2juno)

smeils

2400S
Asid

poo
LHE 1]

}
sedwy

ajeq
MDINDY
iseq

uondlinsag

nsy




Page 118

9J9ym  S|ooyds  J0J  wnJoy
buipienbajes dn bBumes (q ‘sapuabe
suoned||duwi snoleA
oS ayl jo SIOUJDA0D) 3y3 usamiaq
pue speaH buysuqg ‘s|idwexa *AsbulieH uiyym bulieys
Jo4 "wayy Jo  suoneadxs W 0T0C |91doad bHunoA pue uaipjyd uoliewJolul
S,|Iouno) ay3 pue sajljiqisuodsal v 8 4 v uef ¢T (03 uopeds  ul  sapuabe |eHA
J1I9Y]  SWJPuUod  yaiym  uaJdpjiyo JuLJaIp a3y usamiaq| 3usaaaud / jwi|
A3|leg uel 3|qeJau|nA 104 Ajljigisuodsad yim Bbuleys  uonewJojul [EHA| |[IM SIUIRJIISUOD
:loyiny 4eis Jsyjo pue susyoealpesy JuaAaad / Jwi| |IM Sjuledisuod|  Ajljeizuspijuod
{3snoq uer 'sniels ul abueyd oN|ym  sbuiesw  Jenbay (e Ajljelauspijuod pue uoiajoad| pue uoidajold
:IsUMQ| :3IsnoqQ uer OT0C-TO-TIT :opnpul o1 elep 3jeyy >sH e si |49yl ejeqg ‘9
(pad4inbau
J1) Jeis Joy papinoid aq 03 yjeay
jeuonnednodo  wody poddns (@
9|doad jioddns
0} popadu S| uoiPpe  JdyMny
J1 9p12ap usyj o3 Japdo ul ‘buiPsy
2Je  jels Jo  siaquaw Moy
abneb 03 4opJo ul ‘ASAINS ssaUIs
B 0} SS900B YiM JJe3s aplaodd (p "IN0 uJanq
sjuswdolaAap ||e 10 / pue ssaJ3s ul 3INsad p|nod
JOo pawuojul wayy dasy 03 Jjjers ased o1beuy siyy wouy buiynsad
SdAD |le 404 sund|Ing-a Apjoam 0T0Z |sutsouod |easusab pue
‘abueyd|pue  ydomiau  obueyd  pue 6 € € uer 80 (Iybipods eipsw  ‘speopdiom
jou saop bHunes s ayiz/Ayenb jeis ayy padopasg (0 AAeaY 1BY] SUJIDDUO0D ale alay)
sueaw yalym ased NRX 9yl sawweiboud sbueyd ‘uonippe uf ‘93jendoadde
ul [edy buipuadwi ayy wodjlayy uo onbojelp abeanodous pswaap aJaym  saianpadodd
3noj|e) awos aq Aew auay] |pue ash jeis Jayjeb pue 3jnsuod Ateujdpsip jo  uonebnsul aJed
'aAlIsod ueyy Jsayjo buieqg|oyl sessadold  bulysiigeisy (g ay3 pue 9jendoadde |epos buowe
uoneAlow  pue  djeJow 90UdplUOD pawaap 2J9ym Jeis Aldenojued
Jo >su Bupnpal sa3jedipul|adnoeld buidojanap pue Jo |essiwsip ‘juswasbeuew 9leJow
Ag|leg uer|(jjers jo sdnoub abuae| pue|adnpoeud ydom |epos buiaoadwi Jo Joluas 0] sabueyd juanbasqgns| pue uoizeAizow
oyny|[jews yym Jdom  usypndg|sawwesboid Buo| JedA e si yoiym yum oased 4 Ageg 9yl jo aAlsod
'siMa7 J4939d ISIM3T|uoijuaAIuUl MDo3sInel Byl (e }INsaJ e se pajdaye ussq sey ysi|qgeisa
1 12UMQ 19192d 0T0CZ-TO-TT :opnpul o] uoljeAljOW pue djedow jeis 03 a4njied 'g
diysisaumoQ 24008 poo 3} 2ied
10131105 pue Nsiy 90N 1s931e1 Sa4nseaw1djuno) smejs sisnd. |yt [oedws MIINDY uondisaqg sy

iseq




Page 119

painbyuodas buldq oydsap 9|ge3s jou
"WJ9] wnipaw 3yl ul weal vy YJoM  JO  BaJER  DARISUIS| SI JN3ONJisedjul
9y} asnuold 03 paxsld oq ued pue Ajyuoud ybiy e s jeym bunaoddns
ApieQ |1ayoey | "aoe|d ul walsAs Auoydajal |1pafold syl JI pue wea] VY 3yl a3ason umMoHNo JModdns 03 ybnoua a|gqeis jou pue walsAs
oyny 'POSO|D MSIY |03 uoninjos e J4ajjo ued afoud S| aJnjonJiseyjul  buipoddns| Auoyds|al vy
!lizeag 4oues|3 nzeag|(sayy J Suiwislsp 03 3afoud pue wa3sAs Auoyda|a] 3y3 1eyl Msu
:I9UMQO Joued|3 600C-CT-T0 |AuoydajaL dI @yl yium asiel| oL V34 34l eyl Xsu e sl alsyl e siaidyl '8
dom
Jo  Ajjenb ayl oaaoudwi (09w
pue sased xa|dwod awos 6S IN sl03ed1pul
yim |esp ‘sased asiydold souewJoyiad
o0y} buidpy s1 pue osoe|d 03 payul]) sased
ur st (LviW) weal Aousby jo dn pjinq
-I}INIA 9suodsay 1sidi4 dYL 8y boppoeq sayny
"dWI3 Ul Y3IM }[BeSp S| MJOM|Ul SIDMIOM [B1D0S paljilenb Aimau 'SWI)SAS| pIOAE pue gy
M3U 3ey) ainsua 03 buididy|jo wes} mau jo uolpnposiul (9 ay3 ybno.uyl ssaJboud uo spuewsap
pue s9sed  pajedo|eun (peoJage pue N ul) saiARDe W 600 |ASy) se s.uadJom |BIDOS JOMBJ yym adod
Jo Jusqwnu 3yj bupnpad(juswiinioad BbulobuQ (p v 8 4 v 29d TO |Yydm |esap 03 SJasn 3DIAISS 0} paJinbau
Sl SIylL "9JIAIBS 2y} loyaliig Joj oousuadxs Jo  Ajenb| sjuswaAosdul
01 ul buiwod ydom mau se|pue 490Aad Aq buuojiuol (0 a2yl aaoiddwi osie M 1 Alessadau
[[oM se uom bBujpueisino siobeuew Aq ssadoud ‘syjuswissasse  Jo  buissadoud| dyj J3AI9p JOU
2Jow yjym |esp 0] papels(ayy Jo oouednsse Ajend (g 39Ul Ul uMopXeaJq ou S| 9J9U3| ||IM JUBWSSISSY
aney SIDYI0M |enos (340m jo Aunnaos jeyl aJins axew 03 paubisap R |ell9joy
SIM3T 1919d |Mau ayl s (bupnpad) e|pue uonesnoud SAISUDIUT Sl ssaooud pajedbajul| ul Abojopoylaw
:Joyiny|sulewsal aJayl ‘spew us3q|'d’l) MOPIoMm  Jo  Bunojiuow ‘91buls B 0] SIUBWISSDISSY 910D Mau
!lizeag Joues|3|aAey sjuswaaosduwl IS[IYM ||nJsaed pue Jlenbay (e pue |eniul yum buiesp swesy 9y3 1eyl ysu
:J9UMQ | :uuAmp yiew 0T-T10-8T apnpul o] 9jededas omy wody BulAOp e s|aJayl '/
sjuawabuedse bujwiijuod
S,2J3Ud) UuaJp|IYD pue sjooyss
lle 03 aouepinb  usnpum (P
4vD
BuimalAal Ul saJ4jud) s,uadpliyd
pue sjooyds  bBuiajoaur (O
ssaoo.d
Aem om] e sI SIyl pue sanss| uo
S|O0YDS MIOM SDIIAIDS S,uddp(iyd
CIDREE TG 90N 1s931e1 Sa4nseaw1djuno) smeys | 2192S | Poo H BMu.Mmm uondiinsaqg NSy
|O13U0) pue sy s | Y191 | dedwig um.m._ T .




Page 120

(T'v°€ 14v)
payiusp!l 2q 03 saniunyoddo
Jayuny JoJ pue Bupiom

pajesbajul 93e|De) 03 SOIIAIDS
ubije 031 si uejd uoiPe Yy[r syl
ul JuswaAoddw] Joj ealy auQ (2

diysasuped yoes 109|j0.
uiebe |m uonpisodwod s3I pue
ue|d ayj Jo AiaAldp ay)y abeuew
0} paysiigeiss 3q |m dnol
Buleals ueld uomdy Yvr v (g

(SHN Asburiey
"NBX|‘@A13N29X3 LIy Aindaq 0102
apnpul 03] pajepdn usaq(ayy pue  BWIAIBS  UJp[IYD . al € L4 uer 80
940J249Y3 Sey >sH Syl |Jo loyaiig ‘Japuewwo)
‘weaj suonesunwwo) (ybnosog '6'9) diysisuyed yoes ‘dloym
yim padojoAap|wod)  SoAlejuaSaIdal  UOJUdS e se 9JIAJ9S 9y}
Abajesys  buijpuey eipap|io dn apew dnouo juswabeuely Jo uoneindau
's3sisJad Sid B Jeyl SURDW [9DURWIOMDd  3IsnJl  S,udJdpliyd 9y pue
n¥X J0 ey buipusdwije ssapnpul syl passalboud SIDIAIDS SAARD
2yl  ‘J9AaMOH ‘passed |bulaq aJe sjuswabuelse uo jedw|
MOU  Sey JayJdeg pue(isnil  S,UaJpjiyD  dYyl  Is|iym '9]0YM B Se IDIAIDS By3| aAlzebau e aaey
aney dip|ny |Ajjlauuo) Jo |el] puodas ayy|dn 19s aq 0] ale aswwesboid 40 uonpendad ayjy pue SIAISS 1M 1Y NRX
:Joyiny UM pajeidosse s ayl oyl punoJe sjuswabueuie SdABD uo 1pedw| oA1ebaU| pue |el] puodas
!siMa7 49394 :SIM31 |2dueulaA0b WU (e B 9ARY ||IM |BU]} PpuUOIS 3yl 1eya Msu
FELNe] 19313d O0TOC-TO0-TT :opnpul o1 94yl ey >su e sI adayl B Sl a9yl "6
"S9SBD JUDWISSISSY R |ell)oy
jo bBoppeq syl o3 swajqoad
Jayuny ppe [[m asue vy Hoddns
swalqodd 41 yoiym ‘Appuadad 03 ybnous
CIDREE TG 9JON 31s931e sainseawidjuno) smeys | 2192S | Poo H BMu.Mmm uondiinsaqg NSy
|O13U0) pue sy s | Y191 | dedwig " T .

iseq




‘|lensn se ssauisng jo jed

pasn buiaqg saquinu

pejuod  asuodssy  Isdi4  ueyi
Jayied s|ieldop 10e31UO0D |[BNPIAIPUI
01 uanlb aq 03 uonesapisuo) (p
sanss| yjim a2dod

Page 121

W04 ||IM pue paso[D SIy|0} d|ge aJe Jjjeis aJ4049q uaddey
‘suonedjunwwod (o}  jou pawiy  sabessap (0
JO jnsal e se sem 1541} SMIIA J19Y3 196 a3iso1n umm_oHNo
SIy3 J9Yyidym 03 se Jedpun|ol jjeis yym paisal sabessay (q w93 Joys ayz ul bopjdeq
S| 3} J9ASMOY paseasdu| abueyd paseatoul ue ul bupynsad paydune|
sey s|eddajod Jo Jaquuinufanolaeysq Syl 9sSned 03} papasu pue QY UIYIM S324n0sad s| ubledwed
QUUAMD Jep|ayl -parejdwod uaaq sey|sabessow uoljediunwwod pue >lom 3ayy uo bHuippedwi| uopedIUNWWOD
:Joyiny|ubledwed suoljediunwiwio) |pue s.noiAeyaq paJisap ‘Spew s|eJJajad Jo Jaquinu ay3 usym vy
!lizeag Joues|3 ![1zeag |03 usaAIb uoljesapisuod |njate) (e asealdoul ||IMm AJAIPDE SwWWwod J10J peopjiom
1 1UMQ loued|q 600Z-CI-10 :opnpul o] 9yl ey Msu e s| adayl| buisesuoul TT
Sjusawadinbal 9234nosal
|euonippe Aue aulwJI39p
0] Spea7 UuolPY pue dueulq
40 pedH SdABD Yium sbunesii (3
siseq Je|nbas e uo pabeuew
3dom Jo bBuidods pue buizis (9
pa24n0sSaJ pue payijuapl
juswiyingdad|joddng  suonediunwwo)  (p
Jaypny buipuad J9o1440
sisisiad Msl 0S - Ajedoj|uoddns  jueaund  Joj  Buueny| </ 8 4 v 600¢
pue Alleuoibau Alddns|juswabeuew sawweiboud - AON 0€
Moys ul aJde yjeis Ajenb|ojul apewl salinbug (o sjuswadinbau
ybiy se yons ,s924N0S9Y, Joddns juswabeue|y }obpng pue 324n0saJl Jayuny
*paseaJdul uaag|awuwelbold juiodde Jo Ajpgissod - aswuwedboud awweltboud
9AeYy pue paau APl Jo|ol 9oejd ul juswindy (g 9y} Jo AJsAlep ay3y sbeuew Ve @beuew
SIMO7 J939d|[SIsAleue uo paseq aJe 1102 Jlabeue ouURWIO0LDd B 10) AlIngsseoons 03 319bpng pue AlInjsse2ons
:1oyiny|-0T0¢ 404 sjesodoud 32bpng|sadiAlaS uadp|iyd JO 40309410 dY3 S92JN0SaJ JUBIPDIINS dARY JoU 03 32bpnq
Isima7 J1939d ISIM®T (0] pajywgns ased ssaulsng (e soop swuweusboud ue|d uOIPY| pue S324N0Sa
:13UMQO 1919d O0TO0C-TO-TT sopnpul o1 VL 94l 1eyy su e si adayl| jusapiynsul "0T
diysisumoQ 9402S | pooy 12 °led d
[043U07 pue 3SIy 90N 1s931e1 Sa4nseaw1djuno) smels sy | ooy | edwr BMM.w_m uondisaa ysy




Joluas jsow 31e spes| awayl (8
piemio) swuwelboud
abueyd aAlp 03 dnoub spes 14V

Page 122

Jo 2oe|d ul paysiigeisa dnoudo
bueals buipienbajes |ews (p
'9q VSEYNIE]s] ‘buipienbajes
0] wayj paau am se Apwiljuo 3juads ogq 03 Bwi} Mmoje ul sjuswaosdwil
se jou [|Is aJe ‘buinosduwl|sjuswasbuedse juswasbeuew paJinbaJ ayl o)ew 0}
siym “1eyy syD  pue|swuwesboud pauljweans ] 2oueyd |euly e yyum ybnoudoq
SYI punoJe s)Si panuijuo) padojaAap suoijoe . ST < S cﬁwmﬂmo%o ay3 sapiaoad yoiym ‘AsbuiieH
*(>oeJ3-40 T Aluo|pajs|dwod  jJo SoudpIA®  pue J1oj ue|d Buipienbajes ay3 jo
pue >JeJ} uo Gg ‘paAsiyoe|buppoayd jods yiym SsLu0ISI|IW A1aA119p 9y3 ybnouyy pabeuew
SDU03S9|IW /0T) >pedyjpue swuwesbosd ued) (g buiag s1 AjiAiRoe juswaAoadwl
uo si ueld buipienbajes SM3IAY 9se)d Oyl ‘ybnouioq 9yl 07107 Adenuer
ay3 Jo AJSAIOp|SNOIBS w04}  sjuswaAolsdwil ul ,91doad BunoA pue uaupjiyd 10J pa|npayds
QUUAMD uep [1eyd Moys uonoadsul|bunesodiodur mou ue|ld UuoIPY buipienbajes, spiemol Ajaloe| uondadsul ayd
:Joyiny oyl Joj suoijeaedald|yycr Jo a2oe|d ul padojaAsp ueld juswaAoldw] SSasse 0} JapJo|je sjuswadinbad
Isima7 J1939d :SIMmd7 |buipienbajes pasndoj aJo|y (e ul 0T0Z Adenuer Joj panpayds| s,paisiO Ajsnes
+I9UMO 1932d O0TO0C-T0-TT :9pnpul ol S| uonoadsul  pajsj0 Uy 0] aJinjied "€T
SY99M M3J IXBU dY3 JDA0
payadsul aie oym 3sSoyl wody
jules| suossa| ayj jo buueys (8
*201n0eud paJajo yoddns
poob bBuueys jo ped|pue  sjuswadinbad 2DUBPIND
se saldod pajsenbas aAeyfuo sjooyds oy IsIPpPAYD  (p
Syl J9yjo pue poapiaoad uolyadsul paisio
2ouepinb ayj uo AjgeanoAejjue anp ag 03 3ybnoyi sjooyds 404
pajuswwod aney|suoissas uonesedaid paisio (o N/ S T S 010¢ YV / ¥VC 943 ojul Ajpoauip
slojoadsu]  ‘jenbspeur T MJomaweldy N uer o buipaay pue juswissasse
‘1T ul 491399 40 A1030RJSIIBS |Pa1SIO MBU Y3} UO SJaydealpeay s,jooyds ayy uo bHuipoedwi Bbuipsenbajes
usaq sey bulpsenbajes|pue saipoq bujuisaob e 03 ‘passalppe us3q 19A Jou dAeYy uo siseydwa
pue suoljdadsul|paJayjo sbuyysiuq pue buiured) (q yolym sanssi  Ajauspl p|nod sasea.du|
suipjdey 911duUer|ZT ud3q d9ARYy Iyl buipienbajes uo sndoy ‘buipasenbajes uo siseydws s|jooyos J10J
1oyIny 600 Joquwieidas 9dulS|ayl Jenoied ul pue dJomawedy Jdo3eaub saoe|d yoiym ‘sjooyds| sjuswabuedse
Isulpy4e)y ansuer ISUIPj4e) |[P91SJO MBU Byl U0  S|ooyds loj Abojopoyisw uoidadsul uolyoadsul
:J9UMQO 9]12UeCOTO0CZ-T0-S0(l|le 0} 3uSs uopewdojur (e M3U 3U3 3Byl MSH B S| aJ4ayl M3N 'CT
diysioumoQ 9400S | pooy » °leqd d
[043U0D pue SIy 9]ON 1so3je1 salnseaw.idjuno) sneis sy | yenit | edwiy MBINDY uondiinsaa T

iseq




Page 123

:13UMQO Joueda|3 6002-CT-T0 :apnpul o] 9T 14 14 93A TO |spuodaJ jeyl sK e S| aJayl| aie spioday "97
*Ajjenb a|geains
Jo sI ) 31eyl pue suaddey
uoisiadadns  jeyj  LJansud "SIMJOM
03 2oejd ul Ind udaq aAey |e1os J10J
swisiueydawl buiyioday uolisialadns piepueis ybiy e
‘peaye  SYjuow  |BUDADS|JO SpJodaJd  Mod{yd  sypny (2 . ST € S umMoHNo "SI9XJ0M |BID0S ||e J0j| 03 AJJud3SISUod
pswuweiboisd ussq dAey paJojiuow pue pasiielp A]JUD3SISUOD  pue  A|DAIDB4D uaddey
ueAouOQ,Q B3I|suolssas uolsiadadns  pue|suolssas  uolsiadadns Iy (q usddey 03 9pew 3jou S| JoO jou sa0p
:Joyiny|play uaaq aAey sdoys)yiom uoisiniadns ‘uasddey jou ssop uoisiadadns 10 ‘D039
l1izeag Jouea|3|bujuies; uoisiniadns|ul paulesy  slosiagadng (e jeyy sdeb uo sabueyd buiyels apew jou si
:J9UMQ | (duUuAmD e 0T-T10-8T :apnpul o1 0} anp 3eyl s e S| aJdayl| uoisiaiadns GT
bupiom
Jo sAem ul sabueyd poddns 03
pue spew buieq sjuswaroidwi
je  pJemudoj >oo| 03 paubisap
sobessaw suonedunwwo) (2
sJauled ssouaoe ‘3loym
jno-pajjod g 031 ‘Alewwns 0102 e se 9JIAJ3S 9y}
9AINDax3 Joddns 0] sabessaw 4 6 < < uec 80 Jo uoneindau
'0T0Z|ASY yum  padopasp  buisq 9Y3 pue SaDIAIDS
yoJdel oJ4ojoq 0s 9q o3/swuwedboid suopedunwwo)d (q SdARD uo
A un pue 339|dwod jou SMBIADY 9SB) SNOLIBS pue *9|0UyM B se 921AJDS ay3| 1oedwl sAlebau
(SdAD) UUAMD(|13S SI MDIADY |eIPN[ 3yl |ased oayy buipiebas padojanap JO uojjeindad ayjy pue SaDIAIBS e aAey [[ImM
Mdep Joyiny|‘paonpas jou S| XS SIyl|usaq sey uol3ed1UNWWOD SdABD uo edwi aapebau| malaad |epipnl
1(SdAD) simaT :SIMd7 (03 yoeoudde diysssuped vy (e B 9ABY |[IM MdIABJL [epipn( 9y3 1eyl ysu
1312d 1duUMQ 1919d O0TO0C-TO-TT sopnpul o1 94l ey sd e sI 2dsyl| eslialayl ‘pI
Juswabeuew
Qouewolad AsbulieH SHN
yum obexul psusyibuaiis pue
wesa] juswsabeuely swweldbold
woJ4) [|od uo spuey o (4
suol3oe ay3 03 aAlp / diysiapes|
el}xe opinoad  pue  sawdyl
9)eu|plo-00 0} paysl|qeiss [9A3|
diyssaumo 9]ON 1so3je1 salnseaw.idjuno) sneis 81035 | pooy 1 BMH_MMM_ uondiinsaqg T
|o13U0) pue sy Sy | 11917 | edwix : S :

iseq




Page 124

01

iseq

oyiny ysiy|isel  9duls  =abueyd  ON|aJ4nsus 03  XiwW  [|MS  pue ued AsbuleH SHN 94nsud| ue|d 924n0SaYy

‘uimpleg Aased| :j]oeydey (uonesiuoud yeis ul yjoq ‘eoeid| 6 < < 0T0c 0} 9jenbapeur sI TT1/0T0C AsbulieH

:J9UMQ Sy eull 0TOZ-TO-ZT /Ul ApeaJje aie sjuswabueny| uerct 1o} ueld 924nosayY 9yl SHN 6T

YSEYNIE]s)

9DIAIDS WIS}

-buo| pedwi

|[IM SD1AIDS

Bunisia yyjeay

| s £ € cwﬁﬁomm ay3 03 Jels

AJDAI9P 2DIAJIDS WID]-BuO| 9jeldoudde

sel|g suer ‘93epdn pedw) |Im 201A49S  BulisiA }nJo31 01

:doyiny|ise|  oouls  abueyd  opN 2oe|d ul sI JoA0D 93eudoidde yijesy ayi 03 yeis ajeudoidde| |1ey AsbulieH ul

suyjj0D suer !|Ioeydey|ainsud 0} uonesnioud ynoas 03 |ley AsbuneH| HSOD i1eyl su

:19UMQO eull 0TOZ-TO-TT|Pue Xiw [|Xs buljjeis uo >om Ul HSODS 1eyl >sH e s| alayl| eslatayl "8T
*ubiedwed
juswiinadal  |euoneu  ayj

JO 3nsaJs e se pajulodde *uaJp|Iyd Ino

u9aqg 9Aey sJabeuely wea) pienbajes pue

994yl  ‘Auenugsq/Adenuer 9DIAIDS BY3 Ul

ul buiels ybis sjuswanoldul

[yuny e yym  ssiiwed uonsod . 0¢ b S uwMoHNo ‘uoladsul ayjy Jo peaye BEYNIE]s)

X} ualp|yd  ur bupjom|buiyeis jo buuojiuow deinbay (o douewoiad ul sjuswaaoaduwl 031 Ajpeded

unbaqg aAey SISNI0M |BID0S sawweiboud o|geJisuowdp 03} pes| pue paJinbau

ueAouoq,Q ejjuedldWYy BUIN ‘dde|d ul|uolPNpUl pue |eAlJe J0) ueld (q Ajpeded aseaJoul Apuapiins ay3 apinoud

:Joyiny |jjeys Aouabe jdoy aAey ap 3sod uj aJe jjels 0} SwWI} Ul dALJER  j0U|03 dwi} Ul dAIE

!lizeag Joues|3 ‘i1zeag||nun JuaA0d Adusbe Jo asn (e op pajinidaJ bBuldq SJI9MJIOM| 10U Op SIDYIOM

:19UMQ Joued|l 600Z-¢I-T0 :opnpul o] |[BIDOS MBU Jeyl MSid B S| 949yl | |eID0S MaN /T
"SpJ02aJ ul sjuswaAoldwi

us9q sey CICTIRI *90UdpIAD Jo Buiplodal ‘uopjesiuebio

3Byl podUSdPIAS S} NSIY sased 1o iom Jo Ayenb sy Aue

"J9qWIAAON pue 19qo1Q|0T 40 1pne Aousbe-ninp (2 ul sassauyeam bBuljesysuowap| ulyym paplodal

bunp  sajly 00T  J8A0 AsbulieH SHN pue SdAD ‘looyds 4o uonesiuebio Aue pue pajepdn

ueaouoq,Q ejr|juo aoe|d udxel} Ssey S uUIYIM S9I} ased jo bunipny (q ulyym pdepueis ybnous ybiy ‘paulejuiew

:doyiny|jo Bunipne aalsusyaidwo) siobeuew jo bujuiesy e 0} A[jus3sisuod paujejuiew IEL

lizeag Joues|3 !l1Izedg|pue s|00} 3jipne jo uopeals) (e 600C |3ou o2ue  s3|y 9sed  pue| Apuapiyns jou

diysioumoQ 9402S | pooy o °ied d
[043U0D pue SIy 9]ON 1so3je1 salnseaw.idjuno) sneis sy | yenit | edwiy MBIADY uondiinsaqg T




Page 125

I

uuind alnc
:doyany
‘uimpleg Asoed
1JUMQ

‘93epdn
1se| 9ouls abueyd oN
|]oeydey eull O0T-T0-CT

saunbyy bujuied) (p

(ueid

uoloe Y¥yr) ue|d buipienbajes (o
bujuiesy pue sainpadsoud
buipienbajes (q
uaJp|iyD buipienbajes
104 >Jomaweuaq dduednssy (e
:9pnpul o]

‘sapijod

0¢

0To¢
uef ¢t

‘uoizeindau pue Ajjenb
‘sjuswadinbal uoioadsul
pue Aiojnieys Jo  obued
e uo sypedw! siyl -Asbupey
ul yjjesy Joj JI2UOISSILIWIOD
se Ajpqgisuodsad
pue Ajljigejunodoe s,Asbuliey
JO M3IA Ul SpJepuels uaJpjiyo
buipienbajes syl 39OW 0]
aanjied :ualp|iyd buipienbajes

Asburiey

ul yjjesH 104
JauoIssIuwod
se
san|Igisuodsal
buipienbajes
JoaW

03} ainjle4 "0¢

uosdwoy] Auuad

‘93epdn

2oe|d ul s| JaA0D ajelidoidde

44e3Is yijeay
JusWlSaAUl
anunuod

suaippiyd
°@SeaJdoul 0]}




Page 126

This page is intentionally left blank



Sl Agenda ltem 11

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

Audit Committee 01 February 2010

Report Title. Data Quality Update

Report of: Wayne Longshaw — Asst Chief Exec. PPP&C

Signed . {4 / = 7 y
{ \'\_.fl /{J\ ,’.?{ —N

Contact Officer : Eve Pelekanos — Head of Policy and Performance
Telephone Number 020 8489 2508

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Information

1. Purpose of the report

1.1.To provide an update on work being done to improve data quality across the
council.

2. State links with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:

2.1.The Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) considers how the council is
delivering its priorities for local people and how well we are delivering outcomes
with partners for the area. Data Quality is assessed as part of the Use of
Resources and part of the managing performance judgement under the
Organisational Assessment. It feeds into the Council priority Driving Change
Improving Quality.

3. Recommendations
3.1.To note the report and the progress being made in respect of data quality.




Page 128

4. Summary

4.1.The OFSTED review of Children’s Services in December 2008 highlighted data
quality weakness linked to operational practice within the service. These
weaknesses were subsequently reflected in the Comprehensive Area
Assessment 2009. In addition the data quality audit undertaken by Grant
Thornton last summer identified further data quality issues in Benefits and Local
Taxation.

4.2.Since then a number of steps have been taken to improve data quality in these
two areas in particular, but also across the Council. These include:

¢ A rolling programme of ongoing performance data audits across services.

e The development of a Data Quality Strategy clearly setting out roles and
responsibilities of officers in ensuring the robustness of data.

e A series of workshops in the autumn of this year aiming to get across to
managers and relevant staff the importance of high quality data. These
workshops were attended by 150 managers.

o Focused work in Children’s Services and Benefits and Local Taxation see
paragraph 15.

e Appendix A sets in more detail the work undertaken last year and Appendix B
shows what will be done in 2010/11 to improve the robustness of the
Council’s data.

5. Chief Financial Officer Comments

5.1. Costs associated with data quality will be contained within existing budget
resources.

6. Head of Legal Services Comments

6.1. There are no specific legal implications in this report, however it is in the interests
of the Council to present an accurate and robust picture of its work and to
monitor improvements specifically in areas identified for improvement.

7. Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments

7.1.Equalities are a central thread throughout the Council’s performance framework
and many of the performance indicators have equalities implications. Ensuring
data is robust and accurate is in the interest of all groups as is producing reliable
information, fit for purpose and used to support decision making.

8. Consultation
8.1. The preparation of the Data Quality Strategy and action plan was undertaken in




Page 129

conjunction with services and performance staff within the Council. Cabinet
approved these documents in March 2009 and they have now been updated to
incorporate feedback from the Comprehensive Area Assessment.

9. Use of appendices /Tables and photographs

9.1. Appendix A: 2009 Data Quality Strategy and Action Plan showing
achievements and outputs over the last year.

9.2. Appendix B: 2010/11 Data Quality Action Plan

10.Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
10.1. Grant Thornton Use of Resources Report 2009
10.2. Data Quality Strategy

13. Background

13.1 The Use of Resources Report 2009 assessed the council as performing
adequately in all areas of the “governing the business” theme, with the
exception of a score of 1 (inadequate) for “use of data”. This reflects the
findings of the joint area review, the Ofsted review of safeguarding children and
mixed results from the auditors spot-checking work.

13.2 The report identified weaknesses in data quality management and reporting in
relation to child protection, in particular reducing the need for manual checking
and manipulation in performance reporting. It also made recommendations
around developing data quality checking mechanisms to minimise the high level
of errors associated with housing and council tax benefit claims, both of these
areas were classed as high priority actions.

13.3 This report details an update on the Council’s work in respect of data quality
over the past year and highlights key actions that have been taken.

13.4 The Data Quality Strategy is published on Harinet along with the 2009 action
plan and an action plan for 2010/11 based on the recommendations from the
Use of resources report 2009.

14. Actions taken in 2009

14.1 Appendix A sets out the data quality strategy and what has been done last year
in respect of data quality:

* A new web based performance management system (Covalent) was
implemented to ensure compliance with indicator definitions, the correctness of
performance calculations, ownership of information by services and robust
audit trails.



Page 130

* Roles and responsibilities for ensuring high quality data were set out and
communicated in the Council’s Data Quality Strategy and action plan.

= A programme of performance data audits was put in place. 52 audits were
completed in the year to December 2009. Outcome of the audits are reported
to the monthly Finance and Performance review meetings attended by
Directors and the Chief Executive.

» A series of Data Quality Workshops were organised last autumn to emphasise
the importance data quality and to ensure that officers are aware of their
responsibilities. These were attended by 150 managers.

» Adult Social Services and Children’s Services have put in place Quality
Assurance frameworks and operational practices to ensure data is robust with
sample audits and selected case file checking.

* Qverall good progress has been made across the areas identified as weak and
this will be reflected in the Use of Resources assessment next year.

15. Action for 2010/11

» On-going use of Covalent as the Council’s performance management system
with officers trained and Thematic Board risk registers set up on the system
and used to record key risks and actions including any associated with data
quality.

» An updated Data Quality Policy

» A continued programme of performance data audits including cross-cutting
indicators to ensure that the organisation is working with reliable data and
working with partners to ensure the quality of partnership data.

* A training programme established to ensure that staff understand their role in
delivering high quality data.

» Adult Social Services and Children’s Services have put in place Quality
Assurance frameworks and operational practices to ensure data is robust with
sample audits and selected case file checking.

» A monthly programme of quality practice audits in Children’s Services.

» The Framework | support team are driving forward changes that will
significantly improve practice, process and recording for all staff in Children
and Young People.

» Monthly ‘performance clinic’ meetings with services in Adults

» Benefits and local taxation have established a Data Quality board and a
dedicated Quality Assurance Team.

» Extensive work supported by the corporate Policy and Performance team
including a mapping exercise being carried out for the benefit assessment
processes with staff, to identify any issues and address these.

» Implementation of a Performance Management and Quality Assurance System
to reduce errors and improve accuracy.



Page 131

>3

Haringey Council

Data Quality Strategy
2009-12

aaaaa y 2009 Page 1 of 11



Page 132

Introduction

1 Data is one of the Council’s most important assets - it is increasingly being used
by external bodies to assess our performance. Data quality is extremely
important in Haringey as we want to be sure that information on which we base
decisions and inform our planning is robust.

2 The Audit Commission now assesses councils on the quality of their performance
data under the Use of Resources element of the Comprehensive Area
Assessment This means that at every stage we need to ensure that records are
accurate and that management information - especially that used for
performance indicators - is accurate so that performance information is correct.

Purpose and aim

3 The purpose of this Data Quality strategy is to set out an approach that will
ensure that the data we use is fit for purpose and represents an accurate
and consistent picture of the council’s and joint partnership activities.

4 Our aim is for high-quality data to be an integral part of the council’s
operational, performance management and governance arrangements so
that it drives service improvement and informs policy.

5 For the purposes of this strategy the following definitions will be used:’

e Data: Numbers, words or images that have yet to be organised or analysed to
answer a specific question.

¢ Information: Produced through processing, manipulating and organising data
to answer questions, adding to the knowledge of the receiver.

¢ Knowledge: What is known by a person or persons. This involves
interpreting information received, adding relevance and context to clarify the
insights the information contains.

Scope
6 The scope of this strategy applies to:
e all council employees who need to provide, use or access data
¢ all information that is entered onto a manual or computerised system
within the Council, whether centrally or locally maintained
e all partners and contractors with whom the Council provides services

! Definitions from The Audit Commission's Improving Information to Support Decision Making: Standards for Better
Quality Data (external link)

January 2009 Page 2 of 11



Page 133

The National Context

7 The 2006 Local Government White Paper, Strong and Prosperous Communities,
and the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 have set a
new performance framework for local services, the Comprehensive Area
Assessment (CAA). The CAA will rely greatly on data quality as performance
information will be used to inform ratings of the local authority. The expectation
will also be for public services to use information to reshape services and to
account to local people for performance (Duty to Involve).

8 The introduction of the Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA), from 2009,
will re-enforce the importance of reliable information. Under the CAA data
quality is a key theme within the Use of Resources assessment. Specifically the
‘Governing the Business’ theme recognises ‘the vital importance of fit for purpose
data and information to support decision making’. KLOE 2.2 of the Use of
Resources focuses predominantly on arrangements for securing data quality and
using fit for purpose information.

9 In November 2007, the Audit Commission published “Standards for Better Data
Quality”, for adoption on a voluntary basis by public bodies.? In summary, the six
key characteristics of good quality data detailed in this report were:

e Accuracy — data should be sufficiently accurate for their intended purposes

¢ Validity — data should be recorded and used in compliance with relevant requirements,
including the correct application of any rules or definitions

¢ Reliability — data should reflect stable and consistent data collection processes across
collection points and over time

e Timeliness - data should be captured as quickly as possible after the event or activity and
be available for the intended use quickly and frequently enough to support information
needs and to influence service or management decisions.

¢ Relevance — data should be relevant to the purposes for which they are used. This entails
periodic review of requirements to reflect changing needs.

e Completeness — data requirements should be clearly specified based on the information
needs of the body and data collection processes matched to these requirements

10 The approach set out in this strategy aims to use these standards, which are
based on good practice, flexibly and proportionately.

2 The Audit Commission's Improving Information to Support Decision Making: Standards for Better Quality
Data (external link) is a useful guide to the subject of data quality.

January 2009 Page 3 of 11



11

12

13

14

15

Page 134

The Haringey Context

In the 2008 Use of Resources and Data Quality assessment the council was
judged as performing well in terms of data quality. The report states that
‘corporate systems for collecting, recording, analysing and reporting performance
data are robust and well designed. Processes for collecting and reporting this
data are clearly aligned to the Council’s priorities and objectives.” The report
makes a number of recommendations which are taken forward in this strategy.

This strategy will help us deliver effective services and manage the delivery of

our targets.

Outcomes and Objectives
The outcomes we are aiming to achieve through this strategy are:

Outcome 1:
Data is accurate and reliable on which to base policies and decisions.

Outcome 2:
There is clear accountability for good quality data — everyone recognises
the need for good data quality and how they contribute to delivering it.

Outcome 3:
Staff have the knowledge and competencies to produce, interpret and
analyse good quality data

The table in Appendix 1:

e outlines the 13 objectives under each of these key outcomes

e assesses what is already in place — based on our independent annual data
quality audit

e Sets out what needs to be done to achieve our desired outcomes in delivering
this Data Quality Strategy.

An action plan, shown in Appendix 2 lists the activities we will undertake in the
coming year to achieve each objective.

January 2009 Page 4 of 11



Page 135

Our Approach to Data Quality

16 Our approach to Data Quality is based on the six key characteristics of good
quality data identified by the Audit Commission (see paragraph 9).

17 The diagram below outlines how we will manage data quality in Haringey from

the identification of risk areas through to reporting processes to senior
management and then implementation of actions to address any issues raised.

Data Quality Audit Approach

, i Previous i '
Risk Service Source of : Previous | Analysis of Management
\dentification outcomes data audits/ | Year'sUoR | data- concens

concerns inspections | assessment | (Variances)

VARVERVERY,

Data Quality Accuracy Validity Reliability Timeliness Relevance
Checks / Completeness
audits

Take action to improve
data quality
& report outcome

Report to DMTs &
CEMB

Review and Analyse
action :> Findings

Note: Joint indicator audits will be reported to the HSP Performance
Management Group.

January 2009 Page 5 of 11



18

19

20

21

22

23

Page 136

Data Quality Audits

Data quality audits are a key element of this strategy. Their purpose is to ensure
that data is fit-for-purpose by assessing representative samples of data against
the six data quality dimensions defined by the Audit Commission (see paragraph
9).

We have developed a methodology for carrying out these audits based on Audit
Commission guidance. The audits will be carried out by experienced
performance analysts with a good knowledge of the performance indicators and
the council. The Council’s Policy and Performance Team has responsibility for
the completion of the programme of audits.

Appendix 3 shows a timetable of audits to be undertaken in the coming year. As
data quality audits are resource intensive, prioritisation will be risk based and
informed by:

concerns around service outcomes

the data source

previous audits/inspections

previous year's Use of Resources assessment
analysis of national and local indicator data
management concerns

Responsibility for the signing off of performance indicators will sit the appropriate
Director for the service.

Directors will be accountable for ensuring actions resulting from data quality
audits are addressed in a timely fashion.

The robustness of data used by the Haringey Strategic Partnership or other
partnerships is equally crucial to the Council and as from April 2009 will be tested
by the Area Assessment. For this reason this strategy and action plan proposes
joint data quality audits of key partnership indicators.

January 2009 Page 6 of 11



24

25

26

Page 137

Data Quality Responsibilities

Responsibility for data quality does not lie with any one single individual but with
each and every member of staff at all levels within the council. The following
table outlines the specific key responsibilities and accountabilities for all
employees around data quality.

Role Responsibilities

All employees » Accurate and timely recording of data on appropriate systems
= Performance appraisals to set out individual specific responsibilities
regarding data quality

Directorate = Knowledge of relevant Performance Indicator definitions and guidance
Performance » Ensure compliance with indicator definitions and guidance.
Officers/ = Input accurate information onto Covalent
Managers = Up-to-date record keeping (not entered in a block)

= Maintain a robust control environment

= |dentify and rectify gaps in control environment

» Training/guidance
Corporate * Maintain and update Data Quality Strategy action plan.
Performance » Co-ordinate risk assessment of systems and PI Audits, liaising with

Manager internal and external auditors and performance leads

= Ensuring improvements have been implemented

=  Communicating the commitment to Data Quality

= Reporting progress on Data Quality to monthly performance review
meetings and CEMB

Head of Service » Ensuring the data is accurate for their service for presentation to Director
for sign-off
= Ensuring that actions arising from data quality audits are satisfactorily
addressed
Departments = OQverall responsibility for sign off of data and the reliability of performance
(Directors) information presented at CEMB and completion of actions arising from

data quality audits.

Performance Management Framework and System

The Council has in place a performance management framework which was
refreshed in 2008/09. Our auditors have judged this as meeting level 4
requirements, stating that ‘it sets out a clear policy framework and establishes
clear expectations and requirements for officers and members’. This Data
Quality Strategy complements the Performance Management Framework.

In 2008, the Council procured the Covalent Performance Management
Information System to capture, monitor and report performance data at several
levels in the local authority and our partners. The system will go live in early 2009
and will increase the sophistication and efficiency of our data collection and
contribute greatly to the quality of data across the Council.

January 2009 Page 7 of 11




27

28

29

30

31

32

33

Page 138

Ensuring Value for Money

The cost of collection, storing and collating data can be very high and there is
often a trade-off between cost, accuracy and timeliness. Our aim is to be clear
about the purpose of the data collected and its use. Where possible we will
ensure data is collected using the COUNT principle — Captured Once and Used
Numerous Times.

Information Governance

This Data Quality Strategy has been developed to ensure that the way we use
data complies with the principles of effective information governance as
embodied in the Data Protection Act.

The Data Protection Act is the legal framework that ensures personal information
held by all organisations, including councils, is used fairly and lawfully. Under the
Act, councils are required to ensure that only information for which use has been
specified is held and that the information is held securely and only for an
appropriate amount of time.

Equalities Impact

The use of good data quality to inform decision making and service delivery is
key in ensuring vulnerable groups are not discriminated against in any way. It is
essential in the monitoring of the national and local priorities and in ensuring that
the Council meets it obligations under Equalities Public Duties Scheme.

Monitoring and Review

This strategy covers a three period from 2009 to 2012. The data quality action
plan (Appendix 2) will be updated every year to reflect findings of the annual
Data Quality audit and any data quality issues that may arise during the year.

Next steps

The development of this Data Quality Strategy is the first stage in developing an
overarching information management framework for the Council. This is already
underway as part of the work of the Information and Knowledge Management
Stream Board within the Achieving Excellence Programme. Work is also
underway to develop area based data and the data quality strategy will apply to
that.

In addition, links need to be made with the development of the corporate
Geographical Information Systems and the development and implementation of
Council-wide policies and procedures for records management, in particular with
regard to data storage.

January 2009 Page 8 of 11



Outcomes and Objectives

Appendix 1

Outcome 1: Data is accurate and reliable on which to base policies and decisions

Obijective

What we have in place °

What needs to be done

1.1 Ensure that appropriate
systems are in place for the
collection, recording,
analysis and the reporting of
the data is used to monitor
performance.

Corporate systems for collecting, recording,
analysing and reporting performance data are
robust and well designed. Processes for collecting
and reporting this data are clearly aligned to the
Council's priorities and objectives, and the data
collected supports review of progress towards
these and delivery of business plans.

There is a need for increased sophistication and
efficiency within our corporate data collection
systems. To address this, a procurement exercise
is currently taking place for implementation of a
web-based performance management application
(Covalent).

1.2 Ensure effective
arrangements for monitoring
and review of data quality
are in place

Data quality is reviewed and monitored through a
number of separate mechanisms, including annual
self-assessment and challenge from the corporate
performance team. Data quality issues are also
identified and addressed through corporate
performance processes.

Establish a formal programme of annual risk
assessments of performance indicators

Embed provision for data quality checks to be
undertaken from collection to reporting within new
governance structure for the HSP, linked to the
performance management framework.

1.3 Establish effective
controls to ensure that
information systems produce
the quality of data needed to
report on performance and
inform decision making

There is a well-defined sequence of controls for
corporate performance data both at a corporate
level and within source systems at service level.
The Council's self-assessment process for BVPI
and key CPA indicators provides a good level of
control on an annual basis

Implementation of Covalent application should
ensure that controls are designed adequately and
proportionally to ensure that high-quality data is
recorded on the system (e.g. workflow
functionality). Subsequent reviews should assess
the effectiveness of these controls.

1.4 Specify standards for
shared data or data supplied
by third parties.

Developing the Council's approach to data quality
within partnerships is a key issue, which cuts
across most areas of this review. The Council is
already implementing new approaches to
governance and performance management within
the local strategic partnership.

Develop a formal data sharing protocol which
specifies the responsibilities of all partners to
provide data which is ‘fit for purpose’ to give HSP
confidence in quality of all of the data that it uses
Ensure that where services are contracted out,
agreements are in place that specify reporting
requirements and the quality of reported data.

3 What we have in place and what needs to be done is taken from our external 2008 Annual Data Quality Audit. For detailed actions see Action

Plan (Appendix 2).

6€| abed



Outcome 2: There is clear accountability for good quality data — everyone recognises the need for good data quality and how they

contribute to delivering it.

Objective

What we have in place

What needs to be done

2.1 Establish robust security
arrangements for
performance information
systems

The Council has good arrangements in place to
ensure resilience and continuity for business-
critical performance information systems. Manuals
and process maps have been developed, and
business continuity / disaster recovery plans are in
place.

Establish more robust assurance over all external
processes through which information is provided.
Develop and implement Council-wide policies and
procedures for data storage and record
management.

2.2 Ensure responsibility for
data quality is clearly defined

Responsibility for data quality is clearly assigned at
top management level. Data quality issues are
considered by senior management through a range
of different review and monitoring mechanisms.

Include data quality issues as part of the member
training induction on performance and budget
management.

Integrate data quality considerations into all
planning, monitoring and reporting processes.

2.3 Ensure clear data quality
objectives are set and
formally documented.

The strategic importance of data quality is clearly
understood, and is reflected in key corporate
documents. Haringey's performance framework
highlights the need "to be sure that information on
which we base decisions and inform our planning
is robust." The Council has a culture that focuses
on achieving high-quality performance information.

Establish formal data quality objectives for the
organisation through development and
implementation of a data quality strategy for all
individual departments or functions.

Extend data quality strategy throughout Haringey
Strategic Partnership (HSP).

2.4 Define a clear
organisational policy for data
quality supported by current
operational procedures and
guidance

The new performance management framework
sets out a clear policy framework and establishes
clear expectations and requirements for officers
and members.

The Council's new performance framework meets
the key requirements for level 4 in effect, but was
approved just after the end of the financial year
(although services have been operating in line with
the principles set out for some time).

2.5 Ensure that data quality
policies and procedures are
followed by staff and applied
consistently throughout the
organisation

The new performance framework is supported by
detailed guidance for officers and members, which
has been published internally. There is also an
internal network of performance specialists who
have been effective in tackling data quality issues
within services.

Embed the new "strategic partnership code of
corporate governance" within the HSP

0¥ | obed



Outcome 3: Staff have the knowledge and competencies to produce, interpret and analyse good quality data

3.1 Ensure the
responsibilities for achieving
data quality are
communicated clearly

Performance staff throughout the council have
clearly identified roles and responsibilities in their
job descriptions and staff are clear about their
responsibilities in relation to data quality. The
Council has a network of performance
representatives for each service and department,
and these officers play a key role in championing
performance and data quality issues.

» There are no specific improvement opportunities

identified in this area.

3.2 Ensure that staff with
data quality responsibility
have the necessary skills.

Data quality training is provided to key
performance staff through periodic performance
workshops and regular network meetings. Data
quality is a component of the new staff induction
process. The Council operates a range of key
performance systems, including SAP, Framework |
and Respond. A training programme for users
supports each of these systems.

Carry out needs analysis of which staff require data
quality training and extent of training needed.
Develop a training programme to ensure these
needs are being, or should be met.

3.3 Establish arrangements
to ensure data supporting
performance information is
also used to manage and
improve the delivery of
services.

Haringey have a sophisticated performance
reporting framework, which effectively supports
service improvement at a strategic and operational
level.

No specific improvement opportunities were
identified.

3.4 Develop effective
validation procedures to
ensure the accuracy of data
used in reported
performance indicators.

Audit trails for BVPIs and key CPA indicators are
captured through the Council's annual self-
assessment process. This requires responsible
managers to approve all values before reporting.
The Council has not had any reservations arising
from the BVPI audit in recent years, suggesting
that definitions are usually applied correctly.

Establish a risk-based corporate system for
proportional verification of all externally reported
data.

Develop a formal, documented procedure for
checking externally reported indicators.

11 obed



Page 142

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 143

010¢/10/CC

pabeuew ayj Bunisia Buipnjour ueid yipne ||

ay] pue sisAjeue

|[enuue ue BuidojoAsp uo Jipny |eulajx3 pue 18 eJe} "S|0JJUOD 8SBY) JO SSBUBAIDBYS | ‘Buiplodal ‘Uoid9||00
[eulaiu] yum Aj9sojo AIBA HJOM S82IAIBS | | uaydals By} SSasse p|noys smalAal Juanbasqng ay} Joj aoe|d ul aJe
‘60 1deg pieog adoueUIBAOD) JUNH eluy SHun ssauisnq jo sjdwes e 1o} sadnjoeud |e20| Jo | swalsAs ajeudoidde
uonewuoju| Aq panosdde ssad0.d ansuyp ue| | 600z 1des | Bunsal oipouad ay) 4oy ss8204d |ew.o) B ysijge)s] leyj ainsug |
aouewIOuad
JO PESH R

speoT pJeog Buiiodal eouewlopad Ausyuenb ayy jo ped se

onewsy | BulobuQ spJeog dieway 0] sanssi Ajljenb elep 1oday

1pny |eussiu] ‘ejep
60, wea | 6002 | j0 Ayjenb ay) Ajien 0} sisuped Aoy yym siojedipul -00e|d Ul aJe
Jaquieda(g Jo pua AQ paia|dwod siipne gG | eduewlousad laquieoag | Bumno ssod jo sypne Ayjenb ejep juioljno ALieD | Ayenb ejep jo mainal
‘swwelsbo.d pue Buriojiuow
soueyo|ed 6002 Jpne ||eJaAo 8y} Jo Jed se uoiewolul Joj sjuswabuele
a19|dwon aAg Arenuep dSH J0j sipne jo awwelboid ysiigeysy | aAI0aye ainsugy ¢°|

‘sbuijeaw aouewlopad pue adsueuly
Alyjuow je pasies SaNss| pue Jpne yoes Jo ‘ooe|d ul aie
soueyolod pud 8y} Je J0joalI(Q PUe 9JIAI8S JO peaH JueAslal | Aljenb ejep Jo mairal
‘BuiobuQ oA Buiob-up ay} 0} sypne Ajjenb ejep ayj Jo synsal Jodey pue Buliojiuow
soueyd|ad 6002 }Jo Jo} sjuswabue.se
a)9|dwo) oAg Aenuep | ubis gNTD Ag uonelapisuod 1oy swwelboud yelq | oAjodys ainsug Z'L
SJ90I0 ‘(Ayjeuonouny ‘SoueLiopiad
. A . . Jojluow 03 pasn si

aouewload Mopiom “6°8) ws)sAs ay) uo paplooal
] ejep ay} jo buipodau
sJoasn 9oIAIBS sI ejep Aljenb-ybiy 1ey) ainsua 0} Ajjeuoiiodoud oy} pue siskjeue
Mmau Joj 8oe|d ul Buluiesy buiob uQ pauies Bues| D pue Ajaienbape paubisap ale s|0Jjuoo BUIPI0DD] .co.;ow__oo
slosn (1| — paje|dwod Buiuies) jeis |eniu| qqud Y | 600Z YoieiN Jey) ainsua 0} uoneoldde Jusieao) Juswsdw| ou Joy s0e|d Ul BJe
soueyajad 8002 ‘(Jusjeno)) uoneoldde juswabeuew | swaisAs ajeldosdde
9)o|dwo) ang JaquiaoaQ aouewlopad paseq-gam mau 81ndold leyirainsug ||

ajep

ssaiboid Jaoyjo pea | uonsdwo) SOIIAIOY (s) enpoalqo

suois|oap pue saloljod aseq 0} YdIym uo a|qelja pue ajeindde si eje( ;| dwWoanQ

Z Xipuaddy

01/6002 ue|d uonoy Abajeng Ayjenp ejeq




Page 144

Z 010¢/10/CC
sJojoalag
| 92IAI8S
"9A0Qe Sy JO speaH BulobuQ "SWIOJ JUBISSOSSE J|os ubls 801AI8S JO SpeaH
s/awwng
uoa7 ‘uopnH
pJeyory "sJ0}eolpul
‘abeo) aouew.lopad
[IoN ‘Joueq pauodads ul pasn
‘0L0Z dunp | yeueg ‘ebiopr ejep Jo Aoeinooe
ul 0L/600¢ 104 pajeadad aq [Im ssao0.d aunsuy)d uolssiwqgns 0} Jold wea) 8duewIouad S,|1Iounod ay} aInsus 0}
SIy] ‘suinjal Jo}edlpul |euolleu 60/8002 ‘Jaybe|es ay} Aq painsse Ajjenb pue ‘saiouabe |eulaixs 0} | sainpadold uonepljea
8y} Jo} pajo|dwod SjUBWISSOSSE J|oS 101ebiep BulobuQ | papiwgns ejep |[e 10} Sjuswissasse-j|as a)9|dwo) | dAdaye dojeasq G'L
"0} Ajljlenuaplyuod ‘AjliNdas ayj SI9A0D pue
siseq Ajyiuow g e uo ‘Y1 Aq Ajleuleixs
pajipne S| jey} uonedunsd L00Le OSI sey
SBJIAISS || "UOIJBIBPISUOD JO} [Bued JIpNY
JaqWIB|\| 8y} 0} PaIIWIQNS puUB SI0joalIP
ybnouy} paies|o ale syodal ypne ||y "Blep |enuapiuod jo abelols pue juswabeuew
‘uoljewlojul Jo |esodsip pue Ajjenuapiuod oyl 0] pJebas yum siepinoid ooinles  Aued "‘aouewIopad
‘Ajundas Buipnjoul S|0JU0D SNOLIBA 8)eplleA pay} je aoeid ul sainpasosd ay) jo Aoenbape Jojluow 0} pasn S|
0] SIseq pa|Npayos e uo siapinoid aoIAIes 8y} ssasse pue Jojuow 0} ssadoid ysiigeys3 | elep ay) jo buipodal
ajep
ssaiboid Jaoyjo pea | uonsdwo) SOIIAIOY (s) enpoalqo

suois|oap pue saloljod aseq 0} YdIym uo a|qelja pue ajeindde si eje( ;| dwWoanQ

Z Xipuaddy

01/6002 ue|d uonoy Abajeng Ayjenp ejeq




Page 145

010¢/10/CC

yum pale|dwod usaq sey JUsWSSaSSe Sl
V '10Y uonoslold ejeq ay) yum soueldwos

[BUI0D) BABIS

‘uone|siba)
Jo uonejnbal ul sabueyd Aue 109|j81 0} ‘Alessadsu

swajsAs uojjew.ojul
Joy sjuswebue.se

Jo} saonoeud |eoo) Jo Bunsaey oipouad JUnH ejluy alaym ‘asay) ajepdn pue sainpaosoid pue saloljod Anoas
ay} Jo} 9oe|d ul ssao0.d |ewuoy e s| aley | /onsuy) ue| BulobuQ ay} mainal Ajjeoipouad 0} ssaooud ysiigeis3 | isnqod ysigqeis3 g
‘sypne Ajijenb eyep buiobuo
ay} pue sdoysylom Ajenb ejep wouy buisue
sSanss| ‘suoljepuawiwodal Ajjenp ejeq Jaybe|eo
$821n0saYy JO s 0} Buipuodsal padojarsp 104ebiep
ue|d uonoe maN ‘18ulleH uo paysiignd /soueyaled 6002 ue|d uonoe Abajens
pue paja|dwod 01/600Z 10} MaIASY aAg JaquiaoaQ Ajjenp ejeq ayi Jo mainal |enuue jno Aue)d
IWENEVERINES
pue Buiyew uoISIoap Ul Blep JO 90UBAS|S] 8y} e
Ajljenb
ejep 0} uoiejad Ul saljljiqisuodsal pue Sajod e
ejep Ajjenb ybiy jo sosuepodwi ay; e
‘6002 1990100 ul pjay sdoysiom soueyolod 6002 :9)E21UNWIWOI 0} IDUN0D 8y} SSOIoe Aes|o
Allenb ejep papusye siebeuew G| ong Jaquiaos( siebeuew 0] sdoysyiom Ajjenb ejep Joalag POJEDIUNWIWOD SJ.
60, lequaoaq payslignd Ajjenb ejep Buinsiyoe
Aalj0d Aylend ejeq yelp pue sjpne Jo} sanliqisuodsal
Jo awuweiboud pue ued uonoe pajepdn uonnH ayjainsug ¢z
‘9)9|dwo) pJeyory | 6002 YoIen JouleH uo Abajeng Ayenp eyeq ysiignd
‘6002 1890100 {7 uo |eaosdde uo) piseog paulyep Ales|o
90UBUIBAOL) UOljewWwIou| 8y} O} paplwgns s1 Ajijenb ejep Joy
pue padojanap Aaij0d Ayjenp ejeq soueyajad Anqisuodsay 'z'z
60/1/.Z AN3D e paaiby A3 | 6002 YoIe ABajens Ayjenp ejeq ounod dojeasq
‘pajuUBsWINO0op
‘sJa)s16al ysi Allewuoy ale
[eluswedsap pajepdn pue ueld ssauisng yoea | 9say] pue saAloslgqo
6002 Ul passalppe ale sanssi Ajijenb ejep ainsus 0} Ajjenb ejep Jes|o
9)9|dwon ppo | uejliq Alenuepr | 01/600¢Z 10} @ouepinb Buiuueld ssauisng asInay sey |Iounod 8y L'g
ajep
ssaJboid Jaoyjo pea | uonsdwo) SOIIAIOY (s) ennoalqo

"} Buiaalap o}

aInquiuoo Aayy moy pue Ayijenb ejep poob 10j pasu ay} sasiubooal auoliana — ejep Ajjenb poob 10} Ajijigejunoooe Jes|d si a1dy] g dawodnO

Z Xipuaddy

01/6002 ue|d uonoy Abajeng Ayjenp ejeq




Page 146

010¢/10/CC

dS| s.8/doad BunoA pue uaipjiy) e

dS| JepJosiq pue swu) :AabulieH Jajes e
ds| Aousby

NN SYnpy Buipienbejes s AsbulieH e

:aJe Aay] sjoo0jolid ayy

JO yoea Auedwoooe 0} S1a21440 10} sepinb

.01 Moy, |eonjoeud jo uononpoud ay} pue

(sdS|) s|00030.1d Buueys uonewsou| Aay ¢

"JSIX8 JOU Op 8S8Y] aJaym spieoq

'saled paiyy Aq
paliddns ejep Jo ejep
paJleys Joj splepue)s

s AabulieH Jo mainal 8y} pajeljioe) aAey SN unH BlIuY | 6002 Yoien oljewsay | Joj sjoo0jo.d Buleys eyep dojaaaq Ajoads 9z
‘0102 Adenuer ul pieog 80UBUIBA0S)
uoljewJoju| ay} o} pajussaid aq 0} anp
JeJp [BIIUI 8Y} ypm dse) joafoud e s Aojjod llouioD
Juswabeuey\ sploday ay} Jo uoneald ay | uaydals | 01L0Z UoJtein 18ulieH uo Aoijod juswabeuew spiodal ysiignd
6002 JBUleH UO JOY UOI}BWIOU| JO Wopaal
aoe|d ul ale sainpadold ajep 01 dn JUNH ejuy Alenigo4 ay) 0] Bunejal sainpasoud ayep-01-dn ysiignd
*0}9 Ajljenuapyuod ‘Ajlindas
8y} SI1oA02 pue siseq Ajyjuow 9 e uo ‘YO
Aq Ajleulaixa payipne si jey} uonedyIuad
10022 OSI| Sey S82IAI8S || "uoljeuw.oul uonesiueblio
JO |esodsip pue Ajjenuapyuod ‘Ajinoas ay} 1noybnouyy
Buipnjoul s|0J3U0D SNOLIBA d)epleA 0} Ipny Ajpuassisuod peaydde
[BUIBIU| YIM YJOM ]| "Smalral Buipnjoul pue jeis Aq pamoj|o}
saJnpaosoud pue sololjod uonewdolul |je ale sainpaosoid
JO Juswabeuew ayj 4o} 9|qisuodsal si pleog pue saioljod Ajljenb
90UBUIBAOS) UOljewloju| pawloy Aimau ay | Bjep jeyj ainsuj Gg¢
"0L0Z YoJe\ ul yipne jsuly ay) uibaq oy ueld
ajep
ssalboid Jaoijo pea | uonsdwo) SOINIAIOY (s) eAnpoalqo

) BuniaAlap 0}

ajnqLiuod Aayj moy pue Ajjenb ejep poob 10} pasu ayj sasiuboosas auohians — ejep Ajljenb poob 1o} A)ijiIqeunosoe Jeajd S| a1dy] g awod3nQo

Z Xipuaddy

01/6002 ue|d uonoy Abajeng Ayjenp ejeq




Page 147

010¢/10/CC

"oAOQe ¢ 93s 0S|y “ABajesis Ajllenp ejeq soue)o|ad ‘Aljenb
ay] UIyum paulep saljiqisuodsal pue sajoy aAg 6002 Yoleny Bjep punoJe saljjiqisuodsal pue sajol saulaq
aqud
B009Q9Yy ‘S|IIS
"S19Sh Maul ||e 1o} ‘uopnH Kiessaoau ay)
auljuo sI pue Buiuies; e In0 UBAIB [enuep pJeyory 6002 yolep ‘|ENUBW B Y}IM SJBSN JUS|BAOD B 8PIAOId |  saey Ajjiqisuodsal
Alenb
Bues| D ‘ul-60oj e o uoisinoid 0} Joud ejep Yum yels
‘Bululely |eniul paAlgdal siasn ||y qquo 'y BulobuQ | wa)sAs ayy Jo siasn 0} Buluiely Jus|eA0D) SpIACIH jeyjainsug |'¢
ajep
ssaiboid Ja01j0 pean uons|dwo) SaINIAIOY aAoalqo

ejep Ayijenb poob asAjeue pue jaidiajul ‘@onpoud o3 salouajadwos pue abpajmouy ayj aAey Jeis :¢ awodnNQ

ERIIVEIS
JO speaH SOOIAISS PB1ORIIUOD MBU
Juswainoold 6002 |dy ||e Jo} uoneoioads JoeiU0D a8y} Ul paljoads ale
JO pesaH wolj sy | sjuswadinbai Buiuodal pue Ajjenb ejep Ajoadg
"Jeak |eioueuly ay)
JO pua ay} je uiebe pajepdn aq [|Im Yoiym
ue|d UOI0y 92UBUIBA0L) 8y} Ul papnjoul "YIoMawel4 90UBUISA0L)
pue syjuow Jo 9|dnod jse| 8y} ul spieog dSH @Y1 Jo maiAal [enuue ay} Jo Jed se sjoo03j0.d
away] ay) Aq poalbe usaq aney s|000)0.d Ajjouuod N Allenuuy | Buueys ejep diysiaulied yum aoueldwod MaINSY
alep
ssalboid Jao1yjo pea | uonadwon SOIIAIOY (s) annoalqo

) BuniaAlap 0}

ajnqLiuod Aayj moy pue Ajjenb ejep poob 10} pasu ayj sasiuboosas auohians — ejep Ajljenb poob 1o} A)ijiIqeunosoe Jeajd S| a1dy] g awod3nQo

Z Xipuaddy

01/6002 ue|d uonoy Abajeng Ayjenp ejeq




Page 148

010¢/10/CC

aqud
B00909Y

‘0102 Yoten ‘uonnH uonejuswa|dwi Jaye Jeah

Aq paje|dwod aq 0} Aem Japun mainay pJeyory 010Z yolep BUO JUB|BAOY) JO 8SN 83U} JO MBIABI N0 Alle)
SO
L 1/010Z 1o} padojarap eddijiyd
8q 0} Ajllenb ejep uo uOISSas 9SIN0D 810D ‘Jaybejen
104eblep

‘6002 1900100 Ul paJdaAlap ‘soueyslad 6002 "]Jaw aq p|noys Jo ‘buiaq aJie spasu

siabeuew Joj sdoysyiom Ajenb eyep g oAg Jaquieydag asay) aJnsua 0} swwelbouid Buluiel) e dojansg
Buluue|d
a|doad Jo ped

‘Buiuueld ajdoad pue Se 92IAI9S ‘Buiuiesy Ayjenb

s|esieidde aouewuopad jo ped se Buiobup JO speaH 6002 YoJel\ | elep pasu yels yoiym Jo sishjeue spasau jno Aued

Z Xipuaddy

01/6002 ue|d uonoy Abajeng Ayjenp ejeq




Page 149

010¢/10/CC

pue ssao0.d wied [9Ael) 8y} Bulwliojey e
wea) Ajjigeuleisns
9 ABisus ajelodiod ayj ybnoayy
paJlajsiulwpe pue paJojiuow aJe jey)
S9JIS [10UN0Y JO Jaquwinu 8y} Buisealou| e
:9pNjoul SuoNoYy "suonjesado pue
a]e]so s Ajloyine [eoo] ybnoay) suoissiwoe
0LINd Atewid pue XQN Ul uononpal
abejuadlad — 61 |IN pue suonelado
V1 Wouj uononpal ¢0) abejuadiad
—Ggl IN 01 psebal yym Ayjenb ejep aaroidwii

eale sy} ainsesaw Aj9]einooe aJow 0] IopJo Ul
[9ABJ} Jels 0} uoljejal ul ainydeo ejep anosdw|

"9|qissod jou S| SIy} aieym ejep papndul
Allenuew Buoayd 1o} sjuswabuelle anoidw)
Jeayspealds yy43Q 9Byl 0} patisjsuely
Alisea aq ued jey} jewlo) B Ul paplwgns
sl ejep 1eyl Buunsusa Ag ajqissod Janaloym

0} padojaaap uaaq sey ue|d uoljoe uy umolg g | 010z yoJeyy | Anus pue uonendiuew ejep |enuew 8onpay e
suonesado
|I2UNOD WoJ} SUOISSIWS uogJed - GgLIN
*A}INUUOd 8iNsud 0} 18210 SdouBWIOouSd
BuisnoH o1681e41S 8y} yym A|asojo Burjiom
MOU S| Wea | aouewlopad ajesodiod ayl | souexsdd 3J 110jedipul siy) Joj 8e(d Ul aJe sjuswabuelie
Ajinunuod ajeldoidde 1eyy eunsug e
6002 19903100 92uls aoe|d ul usaq sey
yodas mau a8y Jojedipul SIy} JO suoniuLap .
3y} YlIM JUS]ISISUOD JOU S| Jey} ejep apnjoxa uope|ndiuew pue BuOBYD [ENUEBW JO [9AD)
Ajjeonewolne o) Liodal ay) papuswe jus.und 8y} adnpadJ pue J1ojedipul siy} 8je|ndjed
sey wea | uonewsou| BuisnoH ay | SuIeH d Alleojewolne o) spodas wajshs dojersq e
‘wea |
aouewlopad ojelodio) ay} Aq painsse Jojeoipul souew.opad ay)
Allenb aq [Im pue wJo 4 JUSWSSaSSY JO uole|Ndjedal MOj|e 0} pud-1eaA je pauiejal ejep aouewJopad
JIoS 8y} Jo Med se pua JeadA je Jpne 1oy S| uoijewJojul A1essadau ||e jey} ainsuy e Jo Buiodau pue
a|ge|ieAe aq ||IM uoljewloul A1essadau ||y suleH d | 0L0Z yoteN uonepowwodde Aiesodwal - 9GL IN | Buipiodal ‘uoioa|0o
Upny Ayjend ay} Joj 9oe|d ul aJe
eled 6002 ©Uyi Buninp sjipne |[eulajul pue siolipne | swa)sAs ajeudoidde
S, |Iouno0) 8y AQq pauiuapl senss| Ssalppy leyyainsug |-
ajep
ssaiboid Jaoyjo pea | uonsdwo) SOIIAIOY (s) enpoalqo

suois|oap pue saloljod aseq 0} YdIym uo a|qelja pue ajeindde si eje( ;| dwWoanQ

g xipuaddy

L1/010Z ue|d uonoy ABajens Ayjenp ejeq




Page 150

010¢/10/CC

| JJomawe. 4 ui ejep ayj jo buissaosolid
ay} pue ‘pajiodal suone|nojes

pue siaqunu ay} jo Aoeinooe ay) ‘@oe(d
Ul SWIa)SAS ay) ssasse 0] ‘sJo)ealpul
Buipsenbajes ay) Jipne 0} SanuUIUOD
wea| aouewlopad ajelodio) ay]
‘wea} Yy ay) Buipnjoul ‘yeis QL | 40}
aoe|d uaye} sey juajeno) uo buiuies |
"Blep 9|geljal pue ajelnooe Buisn

pue Buionpoud 1oy} S||INS pue aouspluod
anoidwi pue Abajess Ajjenp eleq ayy
ypm siebeuew aslieljiwe) pue [Iounoo
ayj Jnoybnouy) ssausieme asiel 0} uni
Buiaq ale sdoysyiom Ayjenb ejep jo

‘Buiiodas eouewuopad ul uonendiuew pue
Buposayd |enuew Joy pasu ayy buionpad Jenoied
ul ‘ue|d uoijoe BulsIxa S} YIM aul| Ul seae asay)

Buissalppe si JI ey} Moys p|noys [10uno) ay |

SB1I8S B ‘uoniquiy |eude) yym Bupiopy e Aauing |\ “lom Bunjosyo-10ds umo Ino Aq ps1eloqoliod
:aJe uaye) suoloe Aay ay) ale yoiym ‘uonosyold pjiyo 0} uonelal ul Buiodal
Jo awog -ueld uonoe pue Abeiesig Ajljend uisjpay 1 pue Juswabeuew Ajenb ejep ul sassauyeam
ejeq si jo bBuippaqwa pue uonejuswa|dwi Ajjuapl paisjO pue uoissiwwo) Ajenp aled
ay} yym Buinunuod si 1ouno) 8yl | soueydldd 3 | 0102 Yoien ay1 Aq pa1ojdwoo malnal eale julol Jusoal ay |
ejep
aled |e1o0s jo Bujjiodal pue Ajijenb anoaduwiy
pus JeaA ayj 1B SUOISSIWD
Pa1BId0SSE [19UN0Y) JO Julid)ooy
uogJeo e spwqns Japinoid aoIAIeS
paloeluod yoes jey) bunsenbay e
$9JIS aJow ssouioe ABojouyoa)
Buipea. Jajow pajqeus asind Buijeisul
Aq ejep jo Ajubajul ay) esealou| e
‘|loAed} ssauisnqg Jo Juld}ooy
uogJed ay] a1e|nojeo 0} sjiersp Asuanol
oly10ads pJooal 0} wa)sAs aoueuly 4vs
ajep
ssaiboid Jaoyjo pea | uonsdwo) SOIIAIOY (s) enpoalqo

suois|oap pue saloljod aseq 0} YdIym uo a|qelja pue ajeindde si eje( ;| dwWoanQ

g xipuaddy

L1/010Z ue|d uonoy ABajens Ayjenp ejeq




Page 151

010¢/10/CC

[|e ssoJoe Buisues|o elep SAISUSIXT e
solouabe Jaulled 0] se ||lom

Se SdAD Ulyum ssadoe IN\S Bulpuaixg e
pasojo / uado "a'I snjejs ased Ajjuapl

Alisea 0} Ayjeuonouny InNA4 Buidojarag e
siejdwaxa pue MOJ3I0M

‘ssao0ud paspN Ul plIyD Buimeiney e

:ale syjuow

Jo 9|dnod jxau ay} Joj uonoe pauueld ay}

ul papnjou| "SdAD Ul Jjels |je 4o} Buipodal

pue ssaoo.d ‘eonjoeud anoidwi Apueosnyiubis

(M Jey} sebueyd psemio} BuiALp aie wea |

108l01d S| @Y} pue wes] yoddng IS 8YL
‘uonoe
Jo} dnous) Juswabeueyy souewlouad

ayj 01 Ajyjuow payodal aJe sjnsal jipny e
‘Buiobuo sI | Juomawel Ul ejep

1084100Ul 10 Buissiw Ajyuapl 0} JJOA\ e
‘siebeuew a2IAISS JBY]0 pue sI0}oalip
Aq Alyuow aoe(d aye} (supne aonoeud

Ajjenb) sojiy aseo jo syupne ||| 0ydn e

;JInsal e sy "uoine||oo elep buioddns

SWa)SAS 10} pue Sajl} 9SED 10} JJomallel)

aouelnsse Ajljenb e Bunuawa|dwi ale

pue padojorap aAeY S32IAIBS S, UdIP|IYD
‘0L0C YdJeN Jo pus
ay} Aq paje|dwod aq pjnoys sJojedlpu|
|[euoneN ||y ‘seale ysi ybiy uo snooy
yum Buiobuo si 18s J0jeoIpu| [euoneN

8y} uo sjpne jo awwelboid [enuue ay| e
"San|eA J0}edIpul 8y} 1 aAlLe 0}

ssaiboid

19011J0 pean

alep
uonajdwo)

SalIAOY

(s) aAnoslqo

suois|oap pue saloljod aseq 0} YdIym uo a|qelja pue ajeindde si eje( ;| dwWoanQ

g xipuaddy

L1/010Z ue|d uonoy ABajens Ayjenp ejeq




Page 152

010¢/10/CC

1uswaoidwi ue padojansp sey aoIAIes ay |

buyoayo Ayjenb eyep dojaasp 0} anunuo)
:S}1}oUaq Xe} [IouUnod pue BuisnoH

"Jnsal
B Se sJaJjed awoy 0} papinoid usaq sey
Buiulel) pue swweliboud uonealasqo
VO B Sl 81y} 80IAI8S aJeD swoy ayj u| e
Alyluow sJ0308.1(] 1Ue)SISSY 0] palodal
ale sosed Buipsenbajes uado ||y e
JpNe J|8s e sapn|oul IJomawel
uo mojpiom Buipienbejes ay| e
"S10]B2IpUI [BO0] BWOS pue
|euoneu [je ybnoliy) ob saaiAIas Yjim
sBunesw 2Iul0 aouewopad, A|YUo e
Jjejs jeuonelado
Jo} suoissas Buiuiel) aie aiay} pue
PasSsSNO0} 8WO02)N0 alow aq 0} pabueyd
usaq sey ue|d yoddns/eied ay| e
S}npy Joy Jojoaliq
1UBISISSY 9Y] 9pNjoul O] POpPUSIXd
Buiaq sI sIy| 9|1} 9SED pajosles
e ybnouyy ob 0] Ajyiuow Jaxiom
[BIO0S SUO YlIM S]99W J010aliq oy e
‘wea} aouewopad
a1 Ag paljddns ajdwes wopue.
B UO s)ipne Ajyjuow 1o Aled saoIneg e
‘opnjoul
asay) ‘paonpoud si eyep }sngol ainsua
0] sao1oeud jeuonelado pue yJomawel)
aouelinssy Ajlenp e sey :SadlIAIaS
Alunwwo9 pue ainyn) ‘sjnpy
seale 92IAI9S

ssaiboid

19011J0 pean

alep
uonajdwo)

SalIAOY

(s) aAnoslqo

suois|oap pue saloljod aseq 0} YdIym uo a|qelja pue ajeindde si eje( ;| dwWoanQ

g xipuaddy

L1/010Z ue|d uonoy ABajens Ayjenp ejeq




Page 153

010¢/10/CC

aouew.opad SWII0} JUBWISSasSE J|as ubis adIAIag JO SpesH ejep jo Aoeinooe
ajelojoaliq uolssiwqgns 0} Jold wea) 8duewIouad S,|1ounod 9y} aInsus 0]
pue oy} Aq painsse Ajjenb pue sslouabe |eula)xs 0y | sainpasold uonepijea
ajelodion | 0L0Z aunp | papiwgns elep ||e 10} SjusSSasse-)as 919|dwo) | aAoaye dojeaaq 'L
"‘aouewIopad
Jojluow 03 pasn si
ejep ay} jo buipodau
‘0102 yoJe\ Joj pauueld si yipne isii 8y} ay] pue sisAjeue
pue paje|dwoo usaq sey JusUSSasSe YSi 's|0Jjuod | ‘Buipodal ‘uonos||0d
V 1OV U0njo9joid ejeq ay) yym aosueldwod 959U} JO SSBUBAIOBYS B} SSasSe p|noys ay} Joy aoe|d ul ale
Jo} saonoeud |eao) Jo Bunsaey oipouad JUNH eyluy SMaIABJ Juanbasgng "sjun ssauisng Jo sidwes | swa)sAs ajeudoidde
ay} Joy aoe|d ul sses0.d [ew.oy e sI a1y | ansly ue| Buiob-up e 10} saonjoeld [Bo0] Jo supne /Buiysse) oipolad Jeyyainsug ¢’y
siabeuep ‘Buipiooal aseo poob 1o) aouepinb spnjoul
aouewWIOMad 0] 9S8y "SO2IAISS dUI| JuOol) A8y IO} SyIomawel)
9oINIBS 0LozZ sunr oouelnsse Ajenb ejep juswajdwi pue dojoasg
Hpny |eussiu]
wea | 0L02 ‘Blep Jo Ajjenb ayj Ajuaa 0y (siojeoipul Buino
aouewIOuad Jaquiaoe(g ss040 Buipnjoul) sypne Ayjenb ejep jno Aue)d
‘sbuijeaw aouewlopad pue adsueuly
Alyjuow je pasiel sanss| pue Jpne yoes Jo ‘aoe|d ul ale
pud 8y} Je J0joalIQ PUe 9JIAI8S JO peaH JueAslal | Aljenb ejep Jo malral
soueya|od 3 Bulob-up ay} 03 syipne Ajjienb ejep ay} Jo s}nsal Joday pue Buriojiuow
0102 paysi|gelsa Jo} sjuswabue.se
Jaybejles Aenuer supne Ajjenb ejep jo swweliboid pajepdn | oAlo8ye ainsug Z'|
‘ueyd joofo.id ajeisedss aog
‘wesa | aduewlopad g Adljod ajesodio)
ay} Aq pauoddns pue pieog Ajjenp
1719 @Y1 Aq usaslano si uonejuawa|dw| ‘@ouemo||e uosiad
"usye)] uonoe [eipawal a)elidoidde a1buis Jo yuswAed 1081100ul pue sjuswAed-iapun
pue paijuapl aJe suleped JoLs uowwod puUB JISA0 ‘Sa]ep 109.4100Ul YlIM POIBIOOSSE SJ0LID
Aue pue Jodld Jo sasned jey} ainsua o} ueid | ayipebbig ue| | 0L0Z YoJen JO [9A8] BY) 8SIWIUIW O} JBPIO Ul Swislueyoaw
ajep
ssaiboid Jaoyjo pea | uonsdwo) SOIIAIOY (s) enpoalqo

suois|oap pue saloljod aseq 0} YdIym uo a|qelja pue ajeindde si eje( ;| dwWoanQ

g xipuaddy

L1/010Z ue|d uonoy ABajens Ayjenp ejeq




Page 154

010¢/10/CC

ejep Ajijenb poob asAjeue pue jaidiajul ‘@onpoud o3 salouajadwos pue abpajmouy ay) aAey jeis :¢ awodnQ i

do jo pesH

YH Jo pesH "pajepdn

siabeuej ale asay) se suonduosap gol pue sjesieidde

90IAI8S | Yj0q ul papnjoul 8q 0} salouajadwod Ajjenb ejeq

sbunesw
SJ0]03.I( Buloyuow souewuopad pue 186pnqg Alyjuow uonesiueblio
9%ddd 30V Alyiuopy 1e passnosIp pue pasiel ale sanssi Alljenb ejeq 8y} JO S|oA9)
Swiio} |le 1e Aljenb ejep
ERIIVEIS Juswissasse J|as ay} Buisn sainbly souewsopad Joy Ajjigejunoooe
JospesH | 110z Yyoien JeaA Jo pus yo ubis 92IAI8S JO SpeaH slaidyl z'z

UOPNH Y JaulieH uo ysiignd pue yJomawe.l

Jaybejles 01L0Z Aely | 1uswabeuew aduewlouad S |IoUN0D ay) ayepdn
ERINER pa1e2IuUNWWOoD
[|e SSOJoe SuOoISSas Wea | Juswabeuel) Joluag Jo pue pajuawnoop
ablor 9 awwelboid e pue dnolg) siabeuey aouewload Allewuoy ale
Jaybejes |\ | 110z yolen 8y} ybnouy} seA}0s(qo ajeslunwwo) | asay) pue saAnoalqo
0L0Z Ayjenb eyep Jesjo
soueyoled 3 Arenuep Koljod Ayjenp ejeq ysiignd pue asijeul{ | Sey [Iounod 8yl L°g

alep

ssaiboid Jaoyjo pea | uonsdwo) SOIlIAIOY (s) enoalqo

"} Buniaalap o}

anquiuoo Aayy moy pue Ayijenb ejep poob 10j pasu ay} sasiuboosal auoliana — ejep Ajjenb poob 10} Ajijigejunoooe Jes|d si aIdy] g awodnO

sloyoalig
/OOINIBS slojeolpul
JO speaH aouewsopad
swea) pauodal ul pasn
ajep
ssaiboid Jaoyjo pea | uonsdwo) SOIIAIOY (s) enpoalqo

suois|oap pue saloljod aseq 0} YdIym uo a|qelja pue ajeindde si eje( ;| dwWoanQ

g xipuaddy

L1/010Z ue|d uonoy ABajens Ayjenp ejeq




Page 155

010¢/10/CC

‘Buiuodal
SLLIO d pue Bumndul ‘Buipiodal elep ul paAJOAUI
abior o Jjels Joy Alosjindwod aq [m pue uoljeulwou Aq aq
Jaybejeo 0102z (M @2ouepuapy -dwwelboid 8109 S,|IouUN0Y dy}
soueyd|ad 3 Jaqwisydeg uiyym Ayjenb ejep uo suoisses Bulules) JoAIIRA | s|iys Alessaosu By}
aney Alljigisuodsal
bues| O ‘Buiuiel; pue aouepinb Allenb elep yum
qqud ¥ Buiobup ajep 0} dn yym SIasn Jus|eAo) ||e apIAoId geis ainsug ¢
ajep
ssaJboid Jao1j0 pean uons|dwo) SaINIAIOY aAoalqo

g xipuaddy

L1/010Z ue|d uonoy ABajens Ayjenp ejeq




Page 156

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 157 Agenda Iltem 12

Haringey Council [N 0] .] Agenda ltem

Audit Committee On 1st February 2010

Report Title. Progress Report on Counter Fraud Activity Relating to Housing
Benefit and Council Tax Benefit.

Report of : Gerald Almeroth, Chief Financial Officer

Signed :

Contact Officer : lan Biggadike, Head of Benefits and Local Taxation (020 8489 3854)

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Information Only

Purpose of the report

To advise and update Members on the Counter Fraud performance of the Benefit
and Local Taxation Service from the 1°'October 2009 — 31st December 2009.

Introduction by Cabinet Member (if necessary)
N/A

State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:

The Council has a published Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy. The activities
stated in this report directly relate to the Council maintaining effective counter -
fraud activities as defined by this strategy The requirement to maintain effective
counter fraud activities is a requirement of the Corporate Area Assessment as
defined by the Key Lines of Enquiry — Service Outcomes for Users and the
Community

Recommendations

That Members consider and note this report and the work being carried out by
the Benefits and Local Taxation Service in relation to Counter Fraud activity.

Reason for recommendation
For Members to remain informed of the activity of the Fraud Investigations Team
and are able scrutinise this accordingly.

Other options considered




Page 158

Not applicable

Summary
The Benefits and Local Taxation Service continues to maintain and further
develop an effective approach to counter benefit fraud activity.

Since April 2009 BLT has achieved 53 successful sanctions against those found

to be committing benefit fraud. During quarter 3 2009/10 BLT achieved 23
sanctions and has a further 11 cases referred for prosecution.

Key work priorities for the Fraud Investigation Team are prosecutions, the
National Fraud Initiative, Housing Benefit Matching Service, pro-active operations
with the Police and Homelessness and joint working with the Department for
Work and Pensions.

Chief Financial Officer Comments

The Chief Financial Officer notes the contents of this report and confirms that the
benefit counter fraud activity undertaken is provided within the overall benefits &
local taxation cash limit.

Head of Legal Services Comments

The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this report,
and advises that there are no specific legal implications which arise out of the
contents.

Legal Services will continue to support Benefits and Local Taxation, in terms of
advice and prosecution work, in order to maximise the level of Government
subsidy available for recovering overpaid housing benefit.

Head of Procurement Comments — [ Required for Procurement Committee]
Not applicable

Equalities &Community Cohesion Comments

The activities detailed in this report relate to the day to day work of the Fraud
Investigation Team. All counter fraud activity is undertaken with due regard and
adhesion to the Council’s Equalities and Community Cohesion policies.

Consultation
No consultation was required for the production of this report.

Service Financial Comments

The role of the Fraud Investigation Team does not attract direct financial subsidy
from Central Government as there is no specific statutory duty to maintain
counter fraud activity in respect of Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit.




Page 159

However, there is a clear expectation on Local Authorities to maintain effective
counter fraud activity. This is currently measured by the Corporate Area
Assessment through the Key Lines of Enquiry.

The Benefits and Local Taxation Service maintains a dedicated team to tackle
benefit fraud. The role of the Fraud Investigation Team is clearly defined in the
Council’s Counter Fraud Strategy relating the Housing Benefit and Council Tax
Benefit.

Use of appendices /Tables and photographs
Appendix 1 - Detailed breakdown of sanction cases achieved during Quarter 3
2009/10

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

The background working papers are located within the BLT Fraud Section,10
Station Rd, Wood Green. The BFI Report was published in October2007 and is
available on the internet under www.bfi.gov.uk

1 BACKGROUND

1.1 Counter fraud performance is primarily judged against successful outcomes in
respect of Prosecutions and Sanction based activity. Fraud staff are
empowered to investigate suspected benefit fraud and have a range of
sanctions that can be applied to those who admit to fraud or where there is
sufficient evidence to warrant a prosecution.

1.2 The Council has adopted an Anti - Fraud and Corruption Strategy relating to
Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit. This specifies the type of activities
which underpin effective counter fraud activity.

2 COUNTER FRAUD ACTIVITY

2.1 Performance of the Fraud Investigation Team for the third quarter of 2009/10 is
summarised in table 1.

e Successful outcomes for 3rd quarter 2009/10 (figures in brackets are for the
equivalent period in 2008/09)

Sanction Type Number Year Status
Issued Target
Caution 12 (23) Accepted
Admin Penalty 6 (9 Accepted
Prosecution 5 @B Guilt
Total 23 (35) 35 (31)
Table 1

2.2 A more detailed breakdown of cases forwarded for prosecution and sanctions

3




2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

Page 160

is included in appendix 1 of this report. This gives details of the type of fraud
discovered. The Fraud Team has continued to work closely with internal
agencies in order to tackle cases where criminality involving multiple services
has been undertaken.

Overall sanctions performance during quarter 3 is below the target for the
period. This is mainly due to the continued drive to increase our prosecution
numbers in order to have a deterrent effect on the continuing criminality
involved in Benefit Fraud. 16 Prosecutions have been achieved year to date
(which is twice the number as at the same time last year) and there are a further
18 cases currently identified for future prosecutions with our own Legal Team,
Solicitors Branch (DWP) and the Criminal Prosecution Service (Police). In the
final quarter of 2009/2010, the Fraud Team will concentrate on ‘lesser’
sanctions in order to increase overall sanctions performance.

The Benefits and Local Taxation Service set an annual target of 140 Sanctions
for 2009/10. To achieve its target the team would be required to identify and
sanction a further 73 cases. It is unlikely this target will be reached as, in
common with the majority of Benefit Investigation Team’s nationally, the
emphasis has changed from achieving ‘numbers’ of sanctions to dealing with
the more complex cases where criminality is involved. However, t he
resumption of HBMS data match referrals should enable the Fraud Team to
increase overall sanction performance in the final quarter. It is estimated that
we will achieve 100-110 sanctions by year end.

The Fraud Team are working in additional areas such as the continuing
Intelligence led project into fraudulent employment details provided by people
from accession state countries where sanctions are not likely because of the
mobility of the customers involved. In an initial pilot involving 200 benefit
claims — 168 claims were cancelled and. assuming an that a further 32 weeks
additional benefit would have been paid per customer, we have saved
approximately £700,000 from being fraudulently claimed.

Sanctions performance for the year to-date is contained in table 2

Successful outcomes for year to-date (2009/10)

Sanction Type Number Target Status
Issued
Caution 25 (41) Accepted
Admin Penalty 12 (20) Accepted
Prosecution 16 (8) Guilt
Total 53 (69) 105 (94)
Table 2

3 Overpaid HouSing Benefit

3.1

To date, counter fraud activity has identified £731,823 in overpaid benefit and a
further £7,294 in Administrative Penalties. Central government subsidy paid in
relation to overpayments is at a rate of 40p to the £1.00 or 40%.



3.2

3.3

Page 161

Consequently, it can be estimated that £292,729 has been generated in
subsidy, this effectively results in a 60% shortfall against benefit expenditure.

The subsidy arrangements are designed to incentivise local authorities to
recover overpaid Housing Benefit. At this present time recovery performance
in relation to all in-year created overpayments cannot be accurately stated due
to a known bug within Northgate’s software application.

4 ANTI-FRAUD AND CORRUPTION STRATEGY

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

The Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy — relating to Housing Benefit
and Council Tax Benefit is published on the Council’s website, along with the
Sanctions Policy and advice on how to refer suspected cases of benefit fraud.

The Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy outlines the types of activities the
Council will use to both detect and prevent benefit fraud. Since April 2008 the
Benefit and Local Taxation Service has re-focussed activities to remind benefit
claimants of the importance to report changes in their circumstances to ensure
that the right benefit is being paid.

The Fraud Investigation Team in partnership with the Homelessness
Investigations Unit has successfully made a joint bid for an integrated
Intelligence and Case Management IT system where funding has been
approved and a Project Manager recently appointed.

This software system will allow for the programmatic sharing of Intelligence
across a number of Directorates (including Safer Communities and Educational
Welfare initially) in order to highlight inconsistent information provided by
customers to different Service areas and encourage a partnership approach to
problem solving

The National Fraud Initiative has now had all 1,279 recommended matches
checked and three key areas identified for further action, namely in and out
Borough payroll cases, undeclared Students and alcohol license holders. 78
suitable Payroll cases in total and 32 alcohol licence cases initially have been
identified for full investigation and the majority of these cases should be
interviewed by the end of this financial year. 76 Student cases initially have also
been identified as suitable for investigation but it is now more likely these will
be largely interviewed in the next financial year, due to some delays
experienced in getting information from Student Loans. In addition we are
working with the Homelessness Team on some of their matches and have 8
likely Joint Prosecutions identified — with interviews or proceedings imminent



Page 162

Anonymised details of cases successfully sanctioned for period:

Quarter 3 2009/10

Appendix 1

15894D  [HBMS 24-Aug-09 £8,844.13 19-Oct-09] 22-Sep-09|Working & Claiming A £2,653.24
HBMS Saving - Undeclared
16113A  [HBMS 22-Dec-08 £5,954.66 30-Oct-09] 20-Aug-09|Earnings C £0.00
16172A _ lintelligence Led 14-Jut-09 £6,320.45 18-Oct-09] 28-Sep-09{Underdeclared Wages Used [A £1,898.38
200100G |HBMS 30-Apr-09 £0.00 16-Oct-09 HBMS Saving - Tax Credits |C £0.00
200100K [HBMS 07-Sep-09 £2,916.54 19-Oct-09]  13-Oct-09/HBMS Saving - Tax Credits {C £0.00
100100L |HBMS 27-Jul-09 £4,805.92 01-Oct-09] 17-Aug-09|HBMS Saving - Tax Credits |{C £0.00
16253A  [Other LA 22-Sep-09 £3,513.30 19-Oct-091  02-Oct-09|Definite Gone Away (100%) |A £1,053.99
200100X {HBMS 14-Aug-09 £1,550.72 16-Qct-09] 18-Jun-09|Definite Gone Away (100%) |C £0.00
20010PC |HBMS 04-Aug-09 £4,800.00 22-Qct-09] 10-Aug-09iDefinite Gone Away (100%) |C £0.00
20010PS_|HBMS 06-Aug-09 £1,356.88 27-Oct-09] 10-Aug-09{Definite Gone Away (100%) |{C £0.00
16263A _ [Processing Teams 18-Jun-09{ £12,530.00 12-Nov-09] 07-May-09|Definite Gone Away (100%) |A £1,048.15
16270A  {Processing Teams 25-Aug-09 £2,777.46]  05-Nov-09] 12-Feb-09jundeclared income C £0.00
Other Haringey Living Together- Ptnr
16324a  [Dep't 26-Oct-09 £496.33]  17-Nov-09f 29-Oct-09|working (100%) C £0.00
Other Haringey

2313%9A  |Dep't 01-Oct-08] £85,515.54] 09-Nov-09] 07-Oct-08{Undeclared Capital P £0.00
24985A  [Processing Teams 09-Sep-09 £3,852.69 26-Nov-09] 18-Sep-09|Definite Gone Away (100%) |C £0.00
16133A  [DWP 17-Nov-08 £2,202.69]  24-Aug-09] 24-Nov-08|Working & Claiming P £0.00
15921A  [Member of Public 21-dan-09] £12,794.97| 21-Dec-09] 29-Jan-09iLiving Together (75%) P £0.00
15997A  [DWP 10-Jul-08 £5,748.48]  15-Dec-09| 06-Aug-08{Working & Claiming P £0.00
16100a  |DWP 07-Oct-08| £13,630.00 14-Dec-09] 22-Jan-09|Undeclared Capital P £0.00
16273A  |Processing Teams 10-Sep-09 £1,214.06 17-Dec-09] 21-Sep-09|Student Status not Declared {C £0.00
16326a  {HBMS 24-Aug-09 £1,718.64] 15-Dec-09] 24-Aug-09{Definite Gone Away (100%) |A £515.60
16347A  |HBMS 17-Nov-09 £417.81]  07-Dec-09] 17-Nov-09{Working & Claiming A £125.28
300900 INFI 27-Nov-09 £2,067.17]  15-Dec-09] 06-Jan-10{Underdeclared Wages Used |C £0.00

£185,028.44 £7,294.64

C= Caution
A= Administrative Penalty
P= Prosecution



Page 163 Agenda ltem 13

Haringey <.

Audit Committee 1 February 2010

Report Title: Implementation of International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) — Progress Report

Report of: Chief Financial Officer

Signed:

Gerald Almeroth

Contact Officer : Kevin Bartle, Head of Corporate Finance

Email: kevin.bartle@haringey.gov.uk  Tel: 0208 489 3743

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-key decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1. Toinform the Committee of the progress made in respect of the implementation of
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the actions that are
proposed in order to secure full implementation.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:

2.1.  The IFRS initiative has strong links to the Council’'s Financial Strategy and is also
a mandatory requirement with objectives and timescales that are imposed by
central government.

3. Recommendations

3.1. That the progress to date and proposed actions to ensure full IFRS implementation
be noted.




Page 164

4. Reason for recommendation

4.1. Itis necessary to demonstrate that the Council’s Audit Committee have been
informed of the progress and proposed actions in respect of implementation and
are aware of the main issues facing the Council.

5. Other options considered

5.1.  There are no other options to the actions addressed in the report. The
implementation of IFRS is mandatory and must be achieved within key milestone
dates that have been determined by the government.

6. Summary

6.1  The report sets out the background and project management arrangements in
respect of the implementation of IFRS accounting standards together with key
milestone dates that have been determined.

6.2 The workload and impact in key areas has been identified and the actions
currently in hand or proposed is identified. The sensible agreement reached with
external auditors on de minimis levels will enable the main focus to be on higher-
value, material items.

6.3  Changes to existing regulations are proposed by the Government to mitigate the
financial effect of the additional costs arising from the IFRS accounting standards.

7. Service Financial Comments

7.1.  The additional costs the Council will incur in preparing for IFRS are to be
contained within existing budgets in 2009/10. In 2010/11 the costs will be met from
a one-off investment bid in the recent Council budget making process.

8. Head of Legal Services Comments

8.1.  There are no specific legal implications in this report.

9. Head of Procurement Comments

9.1. There are no procurement issues arising from this report and the implementation of

IFRS.




Page 165

10. Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments

10.1.  There are no direct equalities and community cohesion issues arising from this

report.

11.  Consultation

11.1. No external consultation was required or undertaken in the production of this
report. Consultation has taken place with service managers in respect of the
gathering and analysis of date relevant to the initiative.

12. Use of appendices /Tables and photographs

12.1. Progress against the Project Plan is summarised in the Red/Amber/Green (RAG)
Status Action Plan at Appendix A to the report.

13 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

13.1. For access to any background papers or further information, please contact
Stephen Preval or Rikin Tailor on 020 8489 3725

14 Background

14.1 The Government requires all local authorities to migrate from the current UK GAAP
accounting standards to new International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) in
accordance with a mandatory timescale and to prepare restated accounts in respect
of 31% March 2009 (Balance Sheet only) and 31% March 2010 (full Statement of
Accounts) prior to live implementation of IFRS with effect from 1% April 2010.The
implementation of the new standards will be subject to detailed review by the
Council’'s external auditors.

14.2 The detailed implementation requirements are set out in a Code of Practice issued
by the Chartered Institute of Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). This Code of
Practice will, from 1% April 2010, replace the annual Statement of Recommended
Practice produced annually by CIPFA.

14.3 The Council’s planning for IFRS has been supported by Impact/Gap analyses by

the external auditors and by the supplier of the main financial management system.
These reviews have assisted in identifying the main issues to be addressed during
the implementation process.



14.4

15

151

15.2

156.3

15.4

16

16.1

Page 166

Resources have been provided within the 2009/10 budget to ensure that the
initiative is adequately resources and a project leader has been appointed as an
additional temporary resource to oversee and drive forward the IFRS
implementation.

Project Planning

A detailed project plan has been developed and this has been approved by the
IFRS Project Board which is chaired by the Head of Corporate Finance who is also
the project sponsor. The project has a significant impact on the Finance and
Property Services Departments and sub-project plans have been implemented
specific to these service areas.

A Project Initiation Document has been completed, signed off following approval by
the Project Board and registered with the Project Management Unit.

The Project Board meets on a monthly basis to monitor the IFRS implementation.

Project planning could have been inhibited due to the late receipt of the CIPFA
Code of Practice which was only published on 18" December 2009, however a risk
decision was taken to develop the project plan against the draft sections of the
Code that were issued for consultation and the project plan was developed on this
basis. A review of the final published Code has confirmed no variations from the
drafts. This approach has enabled a significant amount of the IFRS work to be
progressed earlier than would otherwise have been the case.

Key Milestones

The Council will be required to meet several milestone dates and these have been
built into the detailed project plan. The dates are as follows: -

a) Provision of a restated opening Balance Sheet for 31*' March 2009

A re-stated opening balance sheet for 31%' March 2009 together with
appropriate disclosure notes and accounting policies will be provided by 31°'
March 2010. This date has been determined locally and has not been
prescribed by the Government.

b) Restatement of the 2009/10 Statement of Accounts

The Council's Statement of Accounts for 2009/10 will be produced in
accordance with UK GAAP and the CIPFA SORP and then restated in
accordance with IFRS. This will involve restating not only the main financial
statements but also all disclosure notes and accounting policies. A date of
31%' July 2010 has been determined and the restated accounts will be
subject to review by the Council’'s external auditors.



17

171

Page 167

¢) Production of Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) Return for 2009/10.

The annual WGA return is a statutory return and the format and date for
submission are prescribed by the Government. For 2009/10, the return will
be compiled and submitted on an IFRS basis. In order that the return can be
audited in September 2010, it has to be completed and submitted to the
external auditors by 31%' August 2010.

d) Preparation of the 2010/11 Statement of Accounts

The Statement of Accounts for 2010/11 will be prepared on an IFRS basis
only and all internal financial records associated with the accounts
maintained in an IFRS format. The Statement of Accounts must be prepared
and approved by the Council by 30" June 2011 and audited by 30"
September 2011.

Principal Impacts and Workloads

The implementation of the IFRS accounting standards has the largest impact on the
following areas in the Council’s accounts: -

- Format of the main financial statements
— Disclosure notes and accounting policies
- Employee benefits

— Contract arrangements

— Leasing

— Property valuations

— Property componentisation.

17.1.1 Format of the Main Financial Statements

17.1.2

17.1.3

There will be significant changes in the format of the main financial statements in
the annual Statement of Accounts. Pro-forma statements have been developed
based on a model set of accounts provided by CIPFA and these will be included in
a revised IFRS-based Statement of Accounts.

Disclosure Notes and Accounting Policies

IFRS requires a significant number of new or enhanced disclosures in the
accounts and existing accounting policies will require a significant re-write in view
of the significant number of changes in the accounting standards. The revised
disclosure notes and accounting policies are being written in compliance with the
CIPFA Code of Practice.

Employee Benefits

The Council is required to identify and cost all significant employee benefits that
are accrued but unpaid at 31% March 2009 and 31* March 2010. These include
Teachers’ holiday pay, staff holiday pay, flexitime balances and overtime. The



17.1.4

17.1.5

17.1.6

1717

Page 168

amounts concerned have to be accrued in the accounts at these dates. Action has
been taken to capture and cost the information for all members of staff.

Contractual Arrangements

All of the Council’s existing contract arrangements with third parties have to be
reviewed in order to identify whether or not there are any hidden leases (known as
“‘embedded leases”) associated with the delivery of services under a contract.

Any embedded leases that are identified have to be analysed to identify whether
the lease is an operating lease or a finance lease and the lease arrangements
accounted for in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice. The appropriate
service managers are currently scheduling and analysing these contractual
arrangements. Pro-forma documentation is being used across the board, including
schools, in order that there is a corporate and consistent approach

Leases

All existing leases are currently being reviewed as there is a need to reconsider
under IFRS whether or not leases have previously been correctly accounted for as
either operating leases or financial leases. Any changes in definition that are
identified will be made from the inception date of the lease concerned. Pro-forma
documentation is being used across the board, including schools, in order that
there is a corporate and consistent approach.

As part of this review a corporate, central database of all of the Council’s leases
will be developed in the asset management module of the SAP financial
management system.

Land and Buildings Valuations

All property assets have to be split into separate land and buildings elements and
each element separately depreciated under the IFRS accounting standards as the
land and buildings elements will, in most cases, have different useful economic
lives. All property assets are currently being re-valued in order that a full IFRS
valuation is available for the 2009/10 restated Statement of Accounts and for 1°
April 2010 which is the live implementation date for IFRS.

Buildings Components

With effect from 1% April 2010, any capital expenditure on buildings will have to be
broken down into its significant components such as the buildings themselves,
roofs, lifts plant etc. These components will be separately recorded in the
accounts and the fixed assets register and then depreciated based on their useful
economic lives. As part of the current revaluation exercise referred to at 17.1.6
above, any components that are identified will be recorded in this way.



Page 169

17.1.8 Balance Sheet Re-classifications

18

18.1

19
19.1

19.2

19.3

Certain assets or liabilities in the balance sheet have to be re-classified with effect
from the re-stated 31% March 2009 closing balance sheet in accordance with strict
[FRS definitions set out in the Code of Practice.

De Minimis Levels

In view of the potential workload involved in respect of land and buildings
revaluations, contract arrangements and leases a number of proposals were
submitted to the Council's external auditors requesting agreement for practical
and sensible de minimis levels that would enable the focus to be on higher-value,
material items. Subject to minor caveats to ensure that all high value assets are
identified, these de minimis levels have been agreed and the main ones are as
follows;-

-~ Land and building with a combined value less than £50k or a lease period
of less than 15 years to be treated as building only in the accounts and
asset register.

— Any property leases with an annual value below £50k will be de minimis
and treated as operating leases in the accounts.

— Any equipment leases with a capital value below £50k or a lease period of
less than 3 years will be de minimis and treated as operating leases in the
accounts.

— Any contract arrangements with a capital value below £50k or a contract
life of less than 3 years will be de minimis and treated as operating leases
in the accounts.

- Any category of employee benefit with an accrual cost of below £100k will
be disregarded as de minimis.

Group Accounts

International Financial Reporting Standards, similar to those incorporated within
the current Local Government SORP, require local authorities to produce group
accounts where they have subsidiary or associates entities. However, the spirit of
the international standards includes a change from the SORP in that an entity
could be treated as a subsidiary based on the Council’'s ability to control whereas
the SORP currently refers to actual control taking place.

This change in emphasis within the code means that the Council needs to review
all organisations that it has a relationship with, to ascertain whether some form of
group relationship exists, in accounting terms. More organisations may, therefore,
need to be consolidated into the Council’'s group accounts under the new
arrangements.

As a result of this, there is a possibility that the accounts of the Alexandra Park
and Palace Charitable Trust (APPCT) will be required to be grouped with the



20

20.1

21

21.1

21.2

Page 170

Council’'s accounts from financial year 2010/11. The Council’s initial view is that
this is likely to be necessary although further work is required in this area to come
to a final conclusion. If grouping of the accounts of APPCT is required one
challenging accounting issue that will require resolution is how the debt owed by
the Trust to the Council is accounted for. Currently the debt is not within the
Council's accounts, as it was previously written down. However, the debt is still
within the APPCT accounts as the Council has not fully discharged it. External
advice will be sought to assist with resolving these issues.

Changes to Regulations

The implementation of the IFRS accounting standards has a significant impact on
local authorities’ income and expenditure accounts and would therefore also
impact on the Council’'s General Fund Balance and Council Tax precept in
2010/11. The Government therefore proposes to issue changes to regulations-
The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) (Amendment)
Regulations 2010 to mitigate the impact.

Action Plan

The current position is summarised in the Red/Amber/Green (RAG) status Action
Plan at Appendix A to the report. The only concerns at this time, shown as Amber
in the action plan relate to the provision of scanned lease documents to Property
Services and Finance staff by Legal Services and the need to secure external
advice on the Group Accounts issue.

Action will be taken to address these issues. Any failure to do so could impact on
subsequent tasks such as financial analyses of operating leases and finance
leases and this, in turn, could prejudice the restatement of the 31 March 2009
Balance Sheet and Group Balance Sheet and the re-statement of the 2009/10
Statement of Accounts.



Page 171

Appendix A

Implementation of IFRS - Progress Report Action Plan

Item Target Date RAG Comments
Status

1. Review of Code | Jan 2010 Green | Code has been
of Practice from | reviewed - no
CIPFA | significant changes

from draft version.

2. De Minimis Jan 2010 Green De Minimis levels
Levels ‘ agreed with external

auditors. Details
have been issued to
all key personnel.

3. Disclosure Feb 2010 Green | A review is taking
Notes, ~ - place regarding new
Accounting disclosure
Policies & requirements and is
SORP on course to be

‘| completed by the
- | target date.

4. Contracts and Feb 2010 Green - On target to receive
Leases o all contract and
(excluding leasing related
property) documents by target

, - date.

5. Contracts and Feb 2010 Amber Leases that need to
Leases (Property be assessed have
Services) been identified by

property services.
However there is a
resource issue with
Legal Services
providing the
required
documentation in
time. This matter is
being escalated with
a view to resolution.

6. IFRS Feb 2010  Green Property services are
Revaluation of S ‘ on course to revalue
Properties properties in

accordance with
IFRS by the target
date.

7. Technical Apr 2010 The technical

Adjustments
related to
Revaluations

Green

adjustments required
on revaluations are
on course to be
completed by the
target date.




Page 172
Appendix A

Group Accounts | Mar 2010 Amber External advice is to
| be sought in respect
of the possible
grouping of the
accounts of
Alexandra Park and
Palace.

Employee Mar 2010 Green | Collection of the data
Benefits ‘ o in respect of
employee benefits
accruals is expected

| to be completed by

| 31’ March




Page 173 Agenda Iltem 14

=3

Haringey . =
Agenda item:
Audit Committee On 01 February 2010
Report Title. Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) and Investment
Strategy 2010/11 to 2012/13
Report of: Chief Financial Officer
Signed : or -
Gerald Almeroth
Contact Officer : Kevin Bartle, Head of Corporate Finance
Telephone 020 8489 3743
Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non Key Decision
1. Purpose of the report

1.1, To present the Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2010/11 to 2012/13 for
scrutiny prior to its adoption by the Cabinet and the Council and following its
agreement by the General Purposes Committee.

2. Recommendations

2.1 That the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Investment Strategy
2010/11 to 2012/13 is scrutinised and comments made prior to its approval by the
Council.

2.2  That Members note the changes to the Council’'s Constitution described in section
8 of the report.




Page 174

Reason for recommendation(s)

To scrutinise the Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2010/11 to
2012/13 for approval by Cabinet and Council.

Summary

This report sets out the Council’'s Treasury Management Strategy Statement for
2010/11 to 2012/13.

Head of Legal Services Comments

The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on the content of this report and
comments that the recommendations are within the policy agreed by Council and
consistent with the purposes of Financial Regulations. In considering the
recommendations Members must take into account the expert financial advice
available in the report and any further advice given at the meeting of the
Committee in relation to the level of risk inherent in the proposals. Certain of the
matters described in section 8 of the report will require changes to the Council’s
Constitution, principally in the Financial Regulations, and these changes will be the
subject of a more detailed report to the Constitution Review Working Group and a
resulting report to full Council.

Use of appendices

e Appendix A (shown as Appendix K to the Financial Planning Report to
Cabinet on 26 January 2010) — Treasury Management Strategy
Statement and Investment Strategy 2010/11 to 2012/13.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report:

. Financial Planning Report for 2009/10 to 2011/12 reported to Council
and agreed on 23 February 2009.

. TMSS report to the General Purpose Committee on 12 January 2010.

For access to the background papers or any further information please contact
Kevin Bartle, Head of Corporate Finance, on 0208 489 3743.




8.

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.3.1

8.3.2

8.3.3

Page 175

Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Investment Strategy
2010/11 to 20112/13

The Council is required to consider an annual Treasury Management Strategy
(TMSS) under the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management, which was
adopted by the Council in May 2002. CIPFA has recently issued a revised Code
of Practice in response to the turmoil in financial markets which was caused by
the 'Credit Crunch’. The Council's revised TMSS, attached to this report, contains
a number of amendments principally concerning the investment policy, scrutiny of
the TMSS and reporting requirements. The revised TMSS is recommended to the
Council for approval.

The Revised CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2009

There are a number of changes within the new Code which are concerned
principally with the status of the Code within Public Service organisations and
reporting and scrutiny requirements as follows:

Standing Orders

CIPFA recommends that local authorities adopt, as part of their standing orders/
financial regulations, the following four clauses:

This organisation (the Council) will create and maintain, as the cornerstones for
effective treasury management: -

- a treasury management policy statement, stating the policies, objectives and
approach to risk management of its treasury management activities.

- suitable treasury management practices (TMP), setting out the manner in
which the Council will seek to achieve those policies and objectives, and
prescribing how it will manage and control those activities.

- the content of the policy statement and TMP will follow the recommendation
contained in Sections 6 and 7 of the Code, subject only to amendment where
necessary to reflect the particular circumstances of this Council. Such
amendments will not result in the organisation materially deviating from the
Code’s key principles.

The Council will receive reports on its treasury management policies, practices
and activities, including, as a minimum, an annual strategy and plan in advance
of the year, a mid-year review and an annual report after its close, in the form
prescribed in its TMP.

The Council delegates responsibility for the implementation and regular
monitoring of its treasury management policies and practices to the General
Purposes Committee, and for the execution and administration of treasury
management decisions to the Chief Financial Officer, who will act in accordance
with the organisation’s policy statement and TMP and, if he/she is a CIPFA
member, CIPFA’s Standard of Professional Practice on Treasury Management.



8.3.4

8.4

8.4.1

8.4.2

8.4.3

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

Page 176

The Council nominates the Audit Committee to be responsible for ensuring
effective scrutiny of the treasury management strategy and policies.

The effect of adopting the above clauses will lead to the following changes to the
current reporting arrangements.

The Council in addition to agreeing the TMSS and receiving an annual report
following closure of the accounts, it is now a requirement of the Code that a mid
year review of Treasury Management operations be submitted for consideration.

The General Purposes Committee will continue to receive quarterly reports on
the implementation and regular monitoring of the treasury management policies
and practices. In addition, it will now formulate the TMSS prior to its scrutiny by
the Audit Committee and subsequent adoption by the Council.

The Audit Committee will assume responsibility for ensuring effective scrutiny
of the TMSS prior to its consideration by the Cabinet and Council.

The Local Government Act 2003 also requires the Council to have regard to the
Prudential Code and to set Prudential Indicators for the next three years to ensure
that the Council's capital investment plans are affordable, prudent and
sustainable.

The Local Government Act 2003 and the CIPFA Prudential Code introduced a
new prudential system for local authority capital finance and came into effect on 1
April 2004. The key objectives of the code are to ensure:

- capital investment plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable;

- treasury management decisions are taken in accordance with good
professional practice; and,

- fulfilment of the above objectives by setting out prudential indicators that
must be set and monitored.

In line with the suggestion in the ODPM investment guidance, the Treasury
Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy have been
combined into one document. This is set out in full in Appendix A and includes the
proposed prudential indicators for 20010/11 to 2012/13.

The strategy is based upon the Council's Treasury officers’ views on interest
rates, supplemented with leading market forecasts provided by the Council’s
external treasury advisor, Arlingclose. The strategy covers:

- background information on the treasury management operation;
- the balance sheet and treasury position;

- the outlook for interest rates;

- borrowing requirement and strategy;

- investment policy and strategy;



Page 177

balanced budget requirements;

the 2010/11 minimum revenue provision (MRP) statement;
reporting, and,

other items.

8.9 As stated in paragraph 8.1, the recommended amendments to the TMSS,
principally concern the investment policy, scrutiny of the TMSS and reporting
requirements. Revisions to the Investment Policy and Strategy are highlighted in
some detail for members’ attention in the paragraphs below. In relation to other
areas of the TMSS, the majority of policies and strategies remain as in previous
years; the list below sets out matters for the particular attention of members: -

The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes as measured by the
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) together with Balances and Reserves
are the core drivers of Treasury Management activity. The CFR has been
proposed in line with the planned Capital Programme to be approved by
Cabinet and Council in February 2010;

There are no proposed changes to the Council’s Authorised Limit and
Operational Boundary for External Debt;

The Council has £125m of loans which are LOBO loans (Lender's Options
Borrower's Option) of which £60m of loans are currently in or will be in their
option state in 2010-11. In the event that the lender exercises the option to
change the rate or terms of the loan, the Council will consider the terms
being provided and also repayment of the loan without penalty. It is now
proposed that the default position will be to repay the loans;

The Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy is not currently proposed for
change however the Council will wish to review the policy in consultation with
its Treasury Management Advisors in light of the Council’s medium term
financial position. Any proposal to change policy will require the approval of
Council.

Investment Policy and Strategy

8.10 The annual investment policy forms part of the TMSS set out in the appendix.
There are some changes proposed and to be considered which reflect the signs
of improvement seen in the financial sector post the ‘credit crunch’.

8.11 At present, investments in banks and building societies (on a term, at call or on a
certificate of deposit basis) are limited to UK banks and building societies that
have a minimum AA- long-term credit rating and F1+ short-term rating and are
participants in the UK Government's Credit Guarantee Scheme. This currently
limits activity to seven UK institutions all of which have maximum investment
limits of £20m at group level and term durations of a maximum of 12 months.



8.12

8.13

8.14

8.15

8.16

Page 178

Following an improvement in market conditions in the financial sector, the
Council's treasury advisors, Arlingclose, are presently recommending that in order
to diversify the counterparty list, the use of comparable non-UK banks should now
be considered for investment.

The sovereign states whose banks are recommended for inclusion are Australia,
Canada, Finland, France, Germany, Netherlands, Spain, Switzerland and the US.
The banks selected by Arlingclose have been considered after analysis and
careful monitoring of:

- Credit Ratings (minimum long-term AA-)
- Credit Default Swaps
- GDP, net debt as a percentage of GDP

- Sovereign Support Mechanism/potential support from a well resourced
parent institution; and,

- Share price.

Arlingclose has taken into account information on corporate developments and
market sentiment towards the counterparties. However, given that these
recommendations have only very recently been provided to the Council, officers
have not had the opportunity to undertake due diligence into these institutions and
consequently are unable to recommend that any of these proposed institutions be
added to the counterparty list at present.

It is anticipated that in-house due diligence will be completed by April 2010, and
that subject to a satisfactory outcome to this process, some or all of the potential
counterparties be added, potentially on the following cautionary bases:-

- Minimum credit rating AA Long-term F1+ Short Term. This compares to the
existing UK Institutions where the Council currently requires a long-term credit
rating of a minimum of AA-.

- Maximum exposure to any one institution (or group) of £10m. This compares
with the existing UK counterparty limit of £20m per institution (or group).

At present, the Council has approved investment limits of up to £10m in Money
Market Funds with a maximum exposure limit to any one fund of £5m. In
accordance with his delegated authority, the Chief Financial Officer, in
consultation and with the agreement of the General Purposes Committee, has
recently appointed three firms of Money Market Fund managers. These funds
have proved particularly useful in the management of the treasury operation in
terms of security (short-term high quality paper and deposits), liquidity (immediate
recall of cash), thereby reducing external borrowing on a number of occasions,
and yield (typically 20 basis points higher than placements with the DMO). It is
recommended, therefore, that the maximum total investment in Money Market
Funds be increased from £10m to £45m subject to a maximum exposure to any
one fund of £15m. Further explanation of Money Market Funds and their benefits
are set out in the next paragraph.



8.17

8.18

8.19

8.20

8.21

8.22

8.23

Page 179

Money Market Funds

Money Market Funds (MMFs) are pooled funds that invest in short-term debt
instruments. They provide the benefits of pooled investments, as investors can
participate in a more diverse and high-quality portfolio than they otherwise could
individually.

Each investor who invests in a money market fund is considered a shareholder of
the investment pool, a part owner of the fund.

The principal objectives of MMFs are the preservation of capital, very high
liquidity and competitive returns commensurate with security and liquidity. The
most important characteristic of a MMF is the highly diversified, high credit quality
investments in the fund.

The recommendation to extend our exposure to MMFs is based on the lower risk
associated with a diverse and high quality portfolio coupled with the liquidity
afforded by such instant access instruments.

lcelandic Investments

The administration process for the Icelandic banks in which Council deposits are
held is continuing. It is now reported that two interim payments have been
received in respect of Heritable Bank amounting to £5,726,195.44 (equivalent to
circa 29p in the pound of the deposits with that bank). The position with
investments in respect of those held in Glitnir Bank has changed in that the Glitnir
Winding Up Board recently decided not to allow priority status to local authorities’
deposit claims. A formal objection to this decision has been filed. Further
information will be provided to General Purposes Committee and Cabinet once
the position is clearer. The position in relation to Landsbanki Bank remains
unchanged.

The government has issued a regulation to allow authorities to defer accounting
for the net loss until 2010/11. The latest estimate of the impairment to be charged
to the Council’'s accounts assumes an estimated recovery of 80.6% of the total
capital sum invested in all Council Icelandic investments. This amounts to £7.1m
and will need to be written off in 2010/11. This can be funded from the capital
redemption reserve of £10m. The Council has, however, accounted for interest
not received in relation to these investments in 2008/09.

The DCLG has recently advised that Authorities can request permission to
capitalise the losses that may result from the Icelandic investments. Haringey
Council has applied for permission to capitalise the costs which would mean that
the loss could be financed over a period of up to 20 years from 2009/10.



9.1

9.2

Page 180

Recommendations

That the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Investment Strategy
2010/11 to 2012/13 is scrutinised and comments made prior to its approval by the
Council.

That Members note the changes to the Council’s Constitution described in section
8 of the report.



Page 181

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2010/11 to 2012/13

Contents

1. Background

2. Balance Sheet and Treasury Position
3. Outlook for Interest Rates

4. Borrowing Requirement and Strategy
s. Debt Rescheduling

6. Investment Policy and Strategy

7. Balanced Budget Requirement

8. 2010/11 MRP Statement
9. Reporting

10. Other Items

Annexes
1. Current and Projected Portfolio Position
2. Prudential Indicators

Interest Rate Outlook

|98}

4, Specified and non-specified Investments for use by the Council



1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4

1.5.

2.1.

Page 182

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2010/11 to 2012/13

Background

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Code of Practice for
Treasury Management in Public Services (the “CIPFA TM Code™) requires local
authorities to determine the Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS). This
statement also incorporates the Investment Strategy. Together, these cover the financing
and investment strategy for the forthcoming financial year.

In response to the financial crisis in 2008 and the collapse of the lcelandic banks, CIPFA
has recently revised the TM Code and Guidance Notes as well as the Prudential Indicators.
The Department for Communities and Local Government (CLG) is currently in the process
of revising and updating the Investment Guidance.

CIPFA has defined Treasury Management as:

“the management of the organisation’s investments and cash flows, its banking, money
market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with
those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.”

The Council is responsible for its treasury decisions and activity. No treasury management
activity is without risk. The successful identification, monitoring and control of risk is an
important and integral element of its treasury management activities. The main risks to the
Council’s treasury activities are:

e Liquidity Risk (Inadequate cash resources)

e  Market or Interest Rate Risk (Fluctuations in interest rate levels)
o Inflation Risk (Exposure to inflation)

e Credit and Counterparty Risk (Security of Investments)

¢ Refinancing Risk (Impact of debt maturing in future years)

e Legal & Regulatory Risk

The strategy also takes into account the impact of the Council’s Revenue Budget and
Capital Programme on the Balance Sheet position, the current and projected Treasury
position (Annex 1), the Prudential Indicators (Annex 2) and the outlook for interest rates
(Annex 3).

The purpose of this Treasury Management Strategy Statement is to approve:

e Treasury Management Strategy for 2010-11 (Borrowing - Section 4, Debt
Rescheduling - Section 5, Investments - Section 6)

e Prudential Indicators — Annex 2 (NB - PI No. 6 - The Authorised Limit is a
statutory limit)

e MRP Statement — Section 8

* Use of Specified and Non-Specified Investments — Annex 4

Balance Sheet and Treasury Position

The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes as measured by the Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR) together with Balances and Reserves are the core drivers of Treasury
Management Activity. The estimates, based on the current Revenue budget and Capital
Programmes, are set out below:

Page 2 of 22



2.2.

2.3.

2.4,

2.5.

Page 183

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2010/11 to 2012/13
31 Mar 10 31 Mar 11 31 Mar 12 | 31 Mar 13
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
£000 £000 £000 £000
CFR 677,587 718.766 777471 822,786
Balances & Reserves 18.025 15,687 16.076 16.076
Net Balance Sheet 659,562 703.079 | 761395 | 806,710
Position

The Council’s level of physical debt and investments is linked to these components of the
Balance Sheet. The current portfolio position is set out at Annex 1. Market conditions,
interest rate expectations and credit risk considerations will influence the Council’s
strategy in determining the borrowing and investment activity against the underlying
Balance Sheet position.

The CFR represents the level of borrowing for capital purposes. Consequently, revenue
expenditure cannot be financed from borrowing. Net physical external borrowing should
not exceed the CFR other than for short term cash flow requirements. It is permissible
under the Prudential Code to borrow in advance of need up to the level of the estimated
CFR over the term of the Prudential Indicators. Where this takes place the cash will form
part of its invested sums until the related capital expenditure is incurred. This being the
case net borrowing should not exceed the total of the CFR in the preceding year plus the
estimates of any additional CFR for the current and next two financial years other than in
the short term due to cash flow requirements.

The move to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) has implications for the
Capital Financing Requirement components on the Balance Sheet.  Analysis of the
Council’s Private Finance Initiative (PFI) schemes and Operating leases against 1IFRS
requirements may result in the related long term assets and liabilities being brought onto
the Council’s Balance Sheet. The estimates for the CFR and Long Term Liabilities will
therefore need to take into account such items. This will influence the determination of
the Council’s Affordable Borrowing Limit and Operational Boundary.

The Department for Communities and Local Government has recently consulted on
proposals to reform the council housing subsidy system. The proposed Self-financing
option would require a one-off reallocation of housing debt. As the consultation period has
only recently ended and the mechanism for debt transfer has not been determined. the
estimates set out in this strategy do not take into account any potential debt transfer that
may arise in future years.

Qutlook for Interest Rates

The economic interest rate outlook provided by the Council’s treasury advisor, Arlingclose
Ltd. is attached at Annex 3. Financial markets remain reasonably volatile as the structural
changes necessary within economies and the banking system evolve. This volatility
provides opportunities for active treasury management. The Council will reappraise its
strategy from time to time and. if needs be. realign it with evolving market conditions and
expectations for future interest rates.

Page 3 of 22



4.1

4.2

4.3.

4.4,

Page 184

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2010/11 to 2012/13

Borrowing Requirement and Strategy

The Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is measured by reference to
its. Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) — see Annex 2. The CFR represents the
cumulative capital expenditure of the local authority that has not been financed. To ensure
that this expenditure will ultimately be financed, local authorities are required to make a
Minimum Revenue Provision for Debt Redemption (MRP) from within the Revenue
budget each year.

Capital expenditure not financed from internal resources (i.e. Capital Receipts. Capital
Grants and Contributions, Revenue or Reserves) will produce an increase in the CFR (the
underlying need to borrow) and in turn produce an increased requirement to charge MRP
in the Revenue Account.

Physical external borrowing may be greater or less than the CFR. but in accordance with
the Prudential Code. the Council will ensure that net external borrowing does not, except
in the short term, exceed the CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of any
additional CFR for the current and next two financial years.

The cumulative estimate of the maximum long-term borrowing requirement is estimated by
comparing the projected CFR with the profile of the current portfolio of external debt and
long term liabilities over the same financial horizon, as follows:

31/03/2010 31/03/2011 31/03/2012 31/03/2013
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
£000 £000 £000 £000

Capital Financing Requirement 677.587 718.766 777.47] 822.786
Less:
Existing Profile of Borrowing and ,
Other iong Term Liabilities 642.926 677.587 718.766 777471
Cumulative Maximum External 34,661 41,179 58.705 45315
Borrowing Requirement
Balances & Reserves 18,025 15,687 16.076 16,076
Cumulative Net Borrowing 16,636 25,492 42.629 29.239
Requirement/Investments

Page 4 of 22




4.5.

4.6.

4.7.

4.38.

4.9,

4.10.

4.11.

4.12.

Page 185

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2010/11 to 2012/13

The Council’s strategy is to maintain maximum control over its borrowing activities as
well as flexibility on its loans portfolio. Capital expenditure levels. market conditions and
interest rate levels will be monitored during the year in order to minimise borrowing costs
over the medium to longer term. A prudent and pragmatic approach to borrowing will be
maintained to minimise borrowing costs without compromising the longer-term stability of
the portfolio. consistent with the Council’s Prudential Indicators.

In conjunction with advice from its treasury advisor, Arlingclose Ltd. the Council will keep
under review the options it has in borrowing from the PWLB, the market and other sources
identified in the Treasury Management Practices Schedules — up to the available capacity
within its CFR and Affordable Borrowing Limit (defined by CIPFA as the Authorised
Limit).

The outlook for borrowing rates:

Short-dated gilt yields are forecast to be lower than medium and long-dated gilt yields
during the financial year. Despite additional gilt issuance to fund the UK government's
support to the banking industry, short-dated gilts are expected to benefit from expectations
of lower interest rates as the economy struggles through a recession. Yields for these
maturities will fall as expectations for lower interest rates mount.

The differential between investment earnings and debt costs. despite long term borrowing
rates being around historically low levels, remains acute and this is expected to remain a
feature during 2010/11. The so-called “cost of carry” associated with long term borrowing
compared to temporary investment returns means that the appetite for new long term
borrowing brings with it additional short-term costs. It is not surprising that the use of
internal resources in lieu of borrowing has been the most cost effective means of financing
capital expenditure but, at some stage. internal resources will become depleted and require
topping up.

PWLB variable rates have fallen below 1%. They are expected to remain low as the Bank
Rate i1s maintained at historically low levels to enable the struggling economy emerge
from the recession. Against a backdrop of interest rates remaining lower for longer and a
continuation of the "cost of carry” backdrop, then a passive borrowing strategy i.e. borrow
long term funds as they are required, may remain appropriate. Equally. variable rate funds
(that avoid the cost of carry) or EIP (equal instalments of principal) that mitigate the
impact are both active considerations.

Decisions to borrow at low. variable rates of interest will be taken after considering the
absolute level of longer term interest rate equivalents and the extent of variable rate
earnings on the Council’s investment balances.  When longer term rates move below the
cost of variable rate borrowing any strategic exposure to variable interest rates will be
reviewed and, if appropriate, reduced.

The PWLB remains the preferred source of borrowing given the transparency and control
that its facilities continue to provide.

The Council has £125m loans which are LOBO loans (Lender's Options Borrower's
Option) of which £50m of loans are currently in or will be in their option state in 2010-11.
In the event that the lender exercises the option to change the rate or terms of the loan, the
Council will consider the terms being provided and also repayment of the loan without
penalty.  The default position will be to repay the loans. The Council may utilise cash
resources for repayment or may consider replacing the loan(s) by borrowing from the
PWLB.



5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

Page 186

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2010/11 to 2012/13

Debt Rescheduling

The Council will maintain a flexible policy for debt rescheduling. Market volatility and
the steep yield curve may provide opportunities for rescheduling debt from time to time.
The rationale for rescheduling would be one or more of the following:
e Savings in interest costs with minimal risk
* Balancing the volatility profile (i.e. the ratio of fixed to variable rate debt) of the
debt portfolio
* Amending the profile of maturing debt to reduce any inherent refinancing risks.

In September 2009, the PWLB issued a Consultation document, entitled ‘PWLB Fixed
Rates™. where the PWLB is reviewing the frequency of rate setting (currently daily) and
could move to a live pricing basis. The deadline for the consultation period is 08/01/2010.
The likely outcome of this is a reduction in the extent of the margins between premature
repayment and new borrowing rates, particularly for longer maturities.

Any rescheduling activity will be undertaken within the Council’s treasury management
policy and strategy. The Council will agree in advance with Arlingclose the strategy and
framework within which debt will be repaid/rescheduled if opportunities arise. Thereafter
the Council’s debt portfolio will be monitored against equivalent interest rates and
available refinancing options on a regular basis. As opportunities arise. they will be
identified by Arlingclose and discussed with the Council’s officers.

All rescheduling activity will comply with the accounting requirements of the local
authority SORP and regulatory requirements of the Capital Finance and Accounting

Regulations (SI 2007 No 573 as amended by SI 2008/414).

Borrowing and debt rescheduling activity will be reported to the next meeting of the
General Purposes Committee.

Investment Policy and Strategy

Background

Guidance from CLG on Local Government Investments in England requires that an Annual
Investment Strategy (AIS) be set.

Investment Policy

To comply with the CLG"s guidance, the Council’s general policy objective is to invest its
surplus funds prudently. The Council’s investment priorities are:

o security of the invested capital:

e liquidity of the invested capital:

e an optimum yield which is commensurate with security and liquidity.

e The CLG's recent (draft) revised Guidance on investments, reiterates security and
liquidity as the primary objectives of a prudent investment policy.

The speculative procedure of borrowing purely in order to invest is unlawful.
Investments are categorised as “Specified” or *Non Specified” investments based on the

criteria in the CLG Guidance. Potential instruments for the Council’s use within its
investment strategy are contained in Annex 4.

Page 6 ot' 22



6.4

6.5.

6.6.

6.7.

6.8.

6.9.

6.10.

6.11.

6.12.

Page 187

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2010/11 to 2012/13

The credit crisis has refocused attention on the treasury management priority of security of
capital monies invested. The Council will continue to maintain a counterparty list based
on its criteria and will monitor and update the credit standing of the institutions on a
regular basis. This assessment will include credit ratings and other alternative assessments
of credit strength including monitoring of credit default swaps. share price movements and
press comment,

The Council’s current level of investments is presented at Annex 1.
Investment Strategy

The global financial market storm in 2008 and 2009 has forced investors of public money
to reappraise the question of risk versus yield. Income from investments is a key support in
the Council’s budget.

The UK Bank Rate has been maintained at 0.5% since March 2009. Short-term money
market rates are likely to remain at very low levels which will have a significant impact on
mvestment income. However. the vield curve is relatively steep and opportunities will be
taken to exploit this situation. Although cognisant of this development, the Council’s
strategy will continue to adhere to it’s principal objective of security of invested monies.

The Chief Financial Officer under delegated powers, will undertake the most appropriate
form of investments in keeping with the investment objectives, income and risk
management requirements and Prudential Indicators. Decisions taken on the core
investment portfolio will be reported to the General Purposes Committee on a quarterly
basis.

Investments managed in-house:

The Council’s shorter term cash flow investments are made with reference to the outlook
for the UK Bank Rate and money market rates.

In any period of significant stress in the markets, the default position is for investments to
be made with the Debt Management Agency Deposit Facility.

Currently the Council has restricted its investment activity to:

The Debt Management Agency Deposit Facility (The rates of interest from the DMADF
are below equivalent money market rates. However, the returns are an acceptable trade-
oft for the guarantee that the Council’s capital is secure)

o AAA rated Money Market Funds with a Constant Net Asset Value (CNAV)

e Deposits with other local authorities

¢ Business reserve accounts and term deposits

¢ Bonds issued by Multilateral Development Banks

Annex 4 contains a breakdown of the current counterparties, instruments, instruments and
limits in operation.

At present, investments in banks and building societies (on a term, at call or on a certificate
of deposit basis) are limited to UK banks and building societies that have a minimum AA-
long-term credit rating and Fl+ short-term rating and are participants in the UK
Government's Credit Guarantee Scheme. This currently limits activity to seven UK
institutions all of which have maximum investment limits of £20m at group level and term
durations of'a maximum of 12 months. These institutions are set out in Annex 4.

Page 7 of 22



6.13.

6.14.

6.15.

6.16.

6.17.

6.18.

Page 188

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2010/11 to 2012/13

Following an improvement in market conditions in the financial sector, the Council’s
treasury advisors. Arlingclose. are presently recommending that in order to diversity the
counterparty list, the use of comparable non-UK banks should now be considered for
investment.

The sovereign states whose banks are recommended for inclusion are Australia. Canada.
Finland. France, Germany, Netherlands, Spain. Switzerland and the US. The banks
selected by Arlingclose have been considered after analysis and careful monitoring of:-

- Credit Ratings (minimum long-term AA-):

- Share price (of the institution);

- Credit Default Swaps:

- GDP, net debt as a percentage of GDP:

- Sovereign Support Mechanism/potential support from a well resourced parent
institution,

Arlingclose has taken into account information on corporate developments and market
sentiment towards the counterparties. However. given that these recommendations have
only very recently been provided to the Council. officers have not had the opportunity to
undertake due diligence into these institutions and consequently are unable to recommend
that any of these proposed institutions be added to the counterparty list at present.

It is anticipated that in-house due diligence will be completed by April 2010, and that
subject to a satisfactory outcome to this process. some or all of the potential counterparties
be added. potentially on the following cautionary bases:-

- Minimum credit rating AA Long-term F1+ Short Term (or equivalent). This
compares to the existing UK Institutions where the Council currently requires a  long-
term credit rating of a minimum of AA-.

- Maximum exposure to any one institution (or group) of £10m. This compares
with the existing UK counterparty limit of £20m per institution (or group).

At present, the Council has approved investment limits of up to £10m in Money Market
Funds with a maximum exposure limit to any one fund of £5m. In accordance with his
delegated authority. the Chief Financial Officer, in consultation and with the agreement of
the General Purposes Committee, has recently appointed three firms of Money Market
Fund managers. These funds have proved particularly useful in the management of the
treasury operation in terms of security (short-term high quality paper and deposits).
liquidity (immediate recall of cash), thereby reducing external borrowing on a number of
occasions, and yield (typically 20 basis points higher than placements with the DMO). The
maximum total investment in Money Market Funds is increased from £10m to £45m
subject to a maximum exposure to any one fund of £15m. Annex 4 reflects this change.

To protect against a prolonged period of low interest rates, [-year deposits and longer-term
secure investments will be actively considered within the limits the Council has set for
Non-Specified Investments (see Annex 4). The longer-term investments will be likely to
include:

* Supranational bonds (bonds issued by multilateral development banks): The joint

and individual pan-European government guarantees in place on these bonds provide
security of the principal invested. Even at the lower yields likely to be in force. the

Page 8 of 22



6.19.

6.20.

6.21.

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

8.4.

Page 189

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2010/11 to 2012/13

return on these bonds will provide certainty of income against an outlook of low official
interest rates.

e UK government guaranteed bonds and debt instruments issued by banks/building

societies: The UK Government’s 2008 Credit Guarantee Scheme permits specific UK
institutions to issue short-dated bonds with an explicit government guarantee. The bonds
are issued at a margin over the underlying gilt and would be a secure longer-term
investment option.

Investments which constitute capital expenditure

Investments meeting the definition of capital expenditure can be financed from capital or
revenue resources. They are also subject to the CLG's Guidance on “non-specified
investments™. Placing of such investments has accounting, financing and budgetary
implications. Whilst it is permissible to fund capital investments by increasing the
underlying need to borrow. it should be noted that under the CLG’s MRP Guidance, MRP
must be applied over a 20 year period.

The Council has determined a maximum of £60m limit to investments which constitute
capital expenditure.

All investment activity will comply with the accounting requirements of the local authority
SORP.

Balanced Budget Requirement

The Council complies with the provisions of Section 32 of the Local Government Finance
Act 1992 to set a balanced budget.

2010/11 MRP Statement

For many years local authorities have been required by Statute and associated Statutory
Instruments to charge to the Revenue Account an annual provision for the repayment of
debt associated with expenditure incurred on capital assets, This charge to the Revenue
Account was referred to as the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP).

In February 2008 the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England)
(Amendment) Regulations 2008 [Statutory Instrument 2008/414] were approved by
Parliament and became effective on 31 March 2008. These regulations replace the formula
based method for calculating MRP which existed under previous regulations under the
Local Government Act 2003. The new regulations require a local authority to determine
each financial year an amount of MRP which it considers to be prudent. Linked to this
new regulation. the Department of Communities and Local Government (CLG) has
produced Statutory Guidance which local authorities are required to follow, setting out
what constitutes a prudent provision.

The CLG Guidance recommends that before the start of the financial year. a statement of
MRP policy for the forthcoming financial year is approved by the full Council.

The broad aim of the Policy is to ensure that MRP is charged over a period that is
reasonably commensurate with the period over which the capital expenditure which gave
rise to the debt provides benefits. In the case of borrowing supported by Revenue Support
Grant. the aim is that MRP is charged over a period reasonably commensurate with the
period implicit in the determination of that grant. MRP is not required to be charged to the

Page 9 of 22



8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

8.8.

8.9.

8.10.

8.11.

Page 190

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement

and Investment Strategy 2010/11 to 2012/13

Housing Revenue Account. Where a local authority’s overall CFR is £nil or a negative
amount there is no requirement to charge MRP.

MRP Options:

Four options for prudent MRP provision are set out in the CL.G Guidance. Details of each
are set out below with a summary set out in Table 1:

Option 1 — Regulatory Method:

This method replicates the position that would have existed under the previous Regulatory
environment. MRP is charged at 4% of the Authority’s underlying need to borrow for
capital purposes: the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). The formula includes an item
known as ~Adjustment A™ which was intended to achieve neutrality between the CFR and
the former Credit Ceiling which was used to calculate MRP prior to the introduction of the
Prudential System on I April 2004. The formula also took into account any reductions
possible related to commutation of capital related debt undertaken by central government.

Option 2 — CFR Method:

This method simplifies the calculation of MRP by basing the charge solely on the
authority’s CFR but excludes the technical adjustments included in Option 1. The annual
MRP charge is set at 4% of the non-housing CFR at the end of the preceding financial
year.

Option 3 — Asset Life Method:

Under this method MRP is determined by the life of the asset for which the borrowing is
undertaken. This can be calculated by either of the following methods:
(a) Equal Instalments: where the principal repayment made is the same in

each year, or

(b) Annuity: where the principal repayments increase over the life of the
asset

MRP commences in the financial year following that in which the expenditure is incurred
or, in the year following that in which the relevant asset becomes operational. This enables
an MRP ~holiday™ to be taken in relation to assets which take more than one year to be
completed before they become operational.

The estimated life of the asset will be determined in the year that MRP commences and
will not be subsequently revised. However, additional repayments can be made in any year
which will reduce the level of payments in subsequent years.

If no life can be reasonably attributed to an asset. such as frechold land. the life is taken to
be a maximum of 50 years. In the case of freehold land on which a building or other
structure is constructed. the life of the land will be treated as equal to that of the structure.
where this would exceed 50 years.

In instances where central government permits revenue expenditure to be capitalised. the
Statutory Guidance sets out the number of years over which the charge to revenue must be
made.

Page 10 of 2

)
«
[ R



8.13.

8.14.

8.15.

9.

10.

10.1.

Page 191

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement

and Investment Strategy 2010/11 to 2012/13
Option 4 - Depreciation Method
The deprecation method is similar to that under Option 3 but MRP is equal to the
depreciation provision required in accordance with proper accounting practices to be
charged to the Income and Expenditure account.
Conditions of Use

The CLG Guidance puts the following conditions on the use of the four options:

Options | and 2 can be used on all capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008
and on Supported Capital Expenditure on or after that date.

Options 3 and 4 are considered prudent options for Unsupported Capital Expenditure

on or after 1 April 2008.These options can also be used for Supported Capital
Expenditure whenever incurred.

Policy

The policy will be to use Option 1 (Regulatory Method) for supported borrowing and

Option 3 (Asset Life Method) for unsupported borrowing.

Reporting on the Treasury Qutturn

The Chief Financial Officer will report on treasury management activity/ performance as
follows:

(a) Quarterly to the General Purposes Committee against the strategy approved
for the year.

(b) The Council will receive a mid-year report and an outturn report on its treasury
activity no later than 30" September after the financial year end.

(¢) The audit committee will be responsible for the scrutiny of treasury
management activity and practices.

Other items

Member Training

CIPFA’s revised Code requires the Chief Financial Officer to ensure that all members
tasked with treasury management responsibilities, including scrutiny of the treasury
management function, receive appropriate training relevant to their needs and understand
fully their roles and responsibilities.

Page 11 of 22



Page 192

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2010/11 to 2012/13

ANNEX 1

EXISTING PORTFOLIO PROJECTED FORWARD

Balances at | Estimates at | Estimates at
31 March 09 | 31 March 10 | 31 March 11
£000 £000 £000
External Borrowing:
Fixed Rate - PWLB 520,572 564,470 614,779
Fixed Rate — Market 3 5 130.475 130.475
Variable Rate — PWLB - - -
Variable Rate — Market - - -
Other long-term liabilities 42.984 41.310 39.545
Total External Debt 694.031 736,255 784,799
Investments:
Managed in-house
Deposits and monies on call 99,731 65,000 65,000
Total Investments 99,731 65.000 65,000
Net Borrowing position 294300 671.253 719.799




L2

Page 193

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2010/11 to 2012/13

ANNEX 2
PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2010/11 TO 2012/13

Background:

There is a requirement under the Local Government Act 2003 for local authorities to have
regard to CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the “CIPFA
Prudential Code™) when setting and reviewing their Prudential Indicators. It should be noted
that CIPFA undertook a review of the Code in early 2008. The outcome from that review has
now been published and there are no material changes to the Prudential Indicators.

Net Borrowing and the Capital Financing Requirement:

This is a key indicator of prudence. In order to ensure that over the medium term net borrowing
will only be for a capital purpose, the local authority should ensure that the net external
borrowing does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of capital financing requirement
in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional capital financing requirement for the
current and next two financial years.

The Chief Financial Officer reports that the authority had no difficulty meeting this
requirement in 2009/10. nor are there any difficulties envisaged for future years. This view
takes into account current commitments, existing plans and the proposals in the approved
budget.

Estimates of Capital Expenditure:

This indicator is set to ensure that the level of proposed capital expenditure remains within
sustainable limits and, in particular, to consider the impact on Council Tax and in the case of
the HRA. housing rent levels.

No. 1 |Capital Expenditure 2009/10 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13
Approved Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Non-HRA 149.280 121.98] 95,956 60,590 46,537
HRA* 49.725 60.479 52,642 63,142 54,498
Total 199,005 182,460 148,598 123,732 101,035
3.2 Capital expenditure will be financed as follows:
Capital Financing 2009/10 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13
Approved Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Capital receipts 9.837 7.752 5,520 14,423 15,477
Government Grants 111,038 88,465 67,160 23,730 10.250
Other Grants etc 7.785 17,986 4,943 4.377 7.329
Major Repairs Allowance 12,407 18,966 12,909 12,909 12,909
Revenue contributions 12,330 5,393 7,757 400 200
Supported borrowing 42,186 39.771 40,497 59,893 54.870
Unsupported borrowing 3,422 4.127 9.812 8,000 0
Total 199,005 | 182,460 148,598 | 123,732 101,035

Page 13 of 22




Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2010/11 to 2012/13

Page 194

4. Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream:
4.1 This is an indicator of affordability and highlights the revenue implications of existing and
proposed capital expenditure by identifying the proportion of the revenue budget required to
meet borrowing costs. The definition of financing costs is set out at paragraph 87 of the

Prudential Code.

4.2 The ratio is based on costs net of investment income.

Appendix K

No. 3 |Ratio of Financing Costs to 2009/10 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13
Net Revenue Stream Approved Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate
Yo Yo Yo & Yo
Non-HRA 5.20 5.35 4.67 435 4.37
HRA 33.59 32.77 33.39 32.47 30.85

5. Capital Financing Requirement:

5.1 The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) measures the Council’s underlying need to borrow
for a capital purpose. The calculation of the CFR is taken from the amounts held in the
Balance Sheet relating to capital expenditure and its financing. It is an aggregation of the
amounts shown for Fixed and Intangible assets. the Revaluation Reserve. the Capital
Adjustment Account. Government Grants Deferred and any other balances treated as capital
expenditure.

No. 3 |Capital Financing 2009/10 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13
Requirement Approved Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
INon-HRA 226,850 228.256 229.702 238.874 242,600
HRA 449,242 449,331 489.064 538.597 580,186
Total CFR 676,092 677,587 718,766 777,471 822,786
5.2 The year—on-year change in the CFR is due to the following
Capital Financing Requirement 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13
Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate
£000 £000 £000 £000
Balance B/F 642.926 677,587 718,766 777.471
Capital expenditure financed 43.898 50,309 67.893 54.870
from borrowing (per 3.2)
Revenue provision for debt (9.237) (9.130) (9.188) (9,555)
Redemption.
Other items
Balance C/F 677,587 718,766 777,471 822,786

6. Actual External Debt:

6.1 This indicator is obtained directly from the Council’s balance sheet. It is the closing balance for
actual gross borrowing plus other long-term liabilities. This Indicator is measured in a manner
consistent for comparison with the Operational Boundary and Authorised Limit.

Page 14 of 22




Page 195

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2010/11 to 2012/13
No.4 Actual External Debt as at 31/03/2009 £m
Borrowing 651.0
Other Long-term Liabilities 43.0
Total 694.0

7. Impact of Capital Investment Decisions:

7.1 This is an indicator of affordability that shows the impact of capital investment decisions on
Council Tax and Housing Rent levels. The impact is calculated by comparing the total revenue
budget requirement of the current approved capital programme with an equivalent calculation
of the revenue budget requirement arising from the proposed capital programme. The full
council tax and housing rent figures are shown below for information.

No.5 Impact of Capital Investment 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13
Decisions Approved Estimate Estimate Estimate
£ £ £ £
Band D Council Tax 1.184.32 1.184.32 1.219.85 1.256.44
Average Weekly Housing 82.05 83.20 87.36 91.72
Rents

8. Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary for External Debt:

8.1 The Council has an integrated treasury management strategy and manages its treasury position
in accordance with its approved strategy and practice. Overall borrowing will therefore arise as
a consequence of all the financial transactions of the Council and not just those arising from
capital spending reflected in the CFR.

8.2 The Authorised Limit sets the maximum level of external borrowing on a gross basis (i.e. not
net of investments) for the Council. It is measured on a daily basis against all external
borrowing items on the Balance Sheet (i.e. long and short term borrowing, overdrawn bank
balances and long term liabilities. This Prudential Indicator separately identifies borrowing
from other long term liabilities such as finance leases. It is consistent with the Council’s
existing commitments, its proposals for capital expenditure and financing and its approved
treasury management policy statement and practices.

8.3 The Authorised Limit has been set on the estimate of the most likely, prudent but not worst
case scenario with sufficient headroom over and above this to allow for unusual cash
movements.

8.4 The Authorised Limit is the statutory limit determined under Section 3(1) of the Local
Government Act 2003 (referred to in the legislation as the Affordable Limit).

No. 6 |Authorised Limit for 2009/10 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13
External Debt Approved Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Borrowing 895,419 858.690 860,455 862,317 864.279
Other Long-term 4,581 41310 39.545 37,683 35.721
Liabilities
Total CFR 900,000 900,000 900,000 900,000 900,000

8.5 The Operational Boundary links directly to the Council’s estimates of the CFR and estimates
of other cashflow requirements. This indicator is based on the same estimates as the Authorised

Page 15 of 22




Page 196

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2010/11 to 2012/13

Limit reflecting the most likely, prudent but not worst case scenario but without the additional
headroom included within the Authorised Limit.

8.6 The Chief Financial Officer has delegated authority, within the total limit for any individual
vear, to effect movement between the separately agreed limits for borrowing and other long-
term liabilities. Decisions will be based on the outcome of financial option appraisals and best
value considerations. Any movement between these separate limits will be reported to the next
meeting of the Cabinet and Council.

No. 7 |Operational Boundary for 2009/10 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13
External Debt Approved Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Borrowing 870.419 833.690 835,455 837317 839,279
Other Long-term 4,581 41.310 39,545 37,683 35,721
Liabilities
Total CFR 875,000 875,000 875,000 875,000 875,000

9. Adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code:

O

principles of best practice.

This indicator demonstrates that the Council has adopted and will continue to adopt the

No. 8

Adoption of the CIPFA Code of Practice in Treasury Management

meeting in February 2010.

The Council approved and will adopt the new CIPFA Treasury Management Code 2009 at its

10. Upper Limits for Fixed Interest Rate Exposure and Variable Interest Rate Exposure:

10.1 These indicators allow the Council to manage the extent to which it is exposed to changes in
interest rates. This Council calculates these limits on a net interest paid basis (i.e. interest
paid on fixed rate debt net of interest received on fixed rate investments)

The upper limit for variable rate exposure has been set to ensure that the Council is not

exposed to interest rate rises which could adversely impact on the revenue budget. The limit
allows for the use of variable rate debt to offset exposure to changes in short-term rates on
investments

2009/10 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13
Approved Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate
Yo Yo Yo Yo Yo
No.9 Upper Limit for Fixed | 100 100 100 100 100
Interest Rate
Exposure
No.10 | Upper Limit for 40 40 40 40 40
Variable Interest Rate
Exposure
10.3  The limits above provide the necessary flexibility within which decisions will be made for

drawing down new loans on a fixed or variable rate basis; the decisions will ultimately be
determined by expectations of anticipated interest rate movements as set out in the Council’s

treasury management strategy.

Page 16 of 22




Page 197

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2010/11 to 2012/13

Maturity Structure of Fixed Rate borrowing:

This indicator highlights the existence of any large concentrations of fixed rate debt needing
to be replaced at times of uncertainty over interest rates and is designed to protect against
excessive exposures to interest rate changes in any one period. in particular in the course of
the next ten years.

It is calculated as the amount of projected borrowing that is fixed rate maturing in each
period as a percentage of total projected borrowing that is fixed rate. The maturity of
borrowing is determined by reference to the earliest date on which the lender can require
payment.

No.11 Maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing Lowe(;)Limit lfppeur/ol,imit
under 12 months 0 25
12 months and within 24 months 0 25
24 months and within 5 years 0 50
5 years and within 10 years 0 100
10 years and above 0 100

Upper Limit for total principal sums invested over 364 days:
The purpose of this limit is to contain exposure to the possibility of loss that may arise as a
result of the Council having to seek early repayment of the sums invested.

2009/10 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13
Approved Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate
£m £m £m £m £m
No.12 Upper Limit for 60 60 60 60 60

total principal sums
invested over 364
days

Page 17 of 22




Treasury Management Strategy Statement

Page 198

and Investment Strategy 2010/11 to 2012/13

Arlingclose’s Economic and Interest Rate Forecast

Dec-08 Mar-10 Jun-10 Sep-10 Dec-10

Mar-11

Jun-11 Sep-11

Dec-11

Appendix K

ANNEX 3

Mar-12

Official Bank Rate

Central case

Downside risk

0.50

0.50

0.50

(.50

4.00
-0.25

1yr LIBID

Central case

Downside risk

1.25

1.25

1.50

025

5-yr gilt

Lisicle
Central case

Downside risk

2.60

-0.25

4.25
'Of25

10-yr gilt

Central case

Downside risk

3.60

3.75

4.75
0.25

20-yr gilt

Central case

Downside risk

4.10

5.00
025

50-yr gilt

Central case

Downside risk

& The redes

Vititterabhbs

VT G apeerd

4.00

fran

Py FetdV ety

4.25

# The pace and sostrinabiity of UK recovs

only hikerates after s durable upturningr

g ol on ot

morrowth s

fow tor some while . GHE yields are increasingly volatile and waill

Page 18 of 22

yois sl we

4.75

i

-0.25

fioare past the

4.75
-0.25

lkely 1o be Biesitant and uneven, more "W

ry tnoertaing policy rates will remmain

Fettiainy o

# The Federad Rewerve will Keep policy rates on hold for an aatended poriod

sorat but sl

4.75 4.75
025

than

The FCB will




Page 199

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2010/11 to 2012/13

Underlying assumptions :

»The global financial system is fragile and although sentiment has
improved, economies have yet to show consistent signs of recovery.

~UK growth contracted 5.2% in the year to September. There is no
evidence of the economy exiting from recession — des pite forecasts to the
contrary — which is supported by weak real economic data and rising
unemployment.

~Looming bank regulation and capital requirements will curb banking
lending activity and is likely to be offset by a reduction in the Reserve
Rate.

~Recovery could be slow and protracted, affected by the continuing
adjustments in household, bank and public sector balance sheets.

~ Official interest rates remain at 0.5%. Quantitative Easing (QE) could be
expanded to beyond £200bn to address the sluggish economy.

~Inflation is falling, albeit slowly. CPI could dip below 1% in 2009 and be
below the MPC’s 2% target over the 2-year forecast horizon. RPI has been
negative since March. Weakened sterling remains a risk, but is likely to be
overshadowed by a slow recovery.

~The growing budgetary imbalances and bloated central bank balance
sheets need credible and sustainable action. UK gilt supply is at record
levels; the rising ratio of debt to GDP remains unaddressed. Cuts in public
spending and tax increases are unpalatable but are necessary and
inevitable. The risk of failed gilt auctions remains high although QE is, for
now, providing an effective balance to the supply side dynamic.

~Buoyed by leading indicators and sentiment, equity markets are
overoptimistically pricing in a quick, V-shaped recovery, but earnings
growth may not be sustained over subsequent quarters.

~The likely political make-up of the next Parliament will increasingly have a
bearing on the financial markets. Already the political agenda has rapidly
shifted from the avoidance of cuts to their inevitability.

Page 19 of 22



Page 200

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2010/11 to 2012/13

ANNEX 4
Specified and Non Specified Investments

Specified Investments identified for use by the Council
Specified Investments will be those that meet the criteria in the CLG Guidance, i.e. the investment

s s sterling denominated

e has a maximum maturity of 1 year

e meets the “high™ credit criteria as determined by the Council or is made with the UK
government or is made with a local authority in England, Wales and Scotland.

e the making of which is not defined as capital expenditure under section 25(1)(d) in SI 2003
No 3146 (i.e. the investment is not loan capital or share capital in a body corporate).

“Specified™ Investments identified for the Council’s use are:

J Deposits in the DMO’s Debt Management Account Deposit Facility
o Deposits with UK local authorities

J Deposits with banks and building societies

. Certificates of deposit with banks and building societies

. *Gilts @ (bonds issued by the UK government)

J Bonds issued by multilateral development banks

. AAA-rated Money Market Funds with a Constant Net Asset Value (Constant NAV)

o Other Money Market Funds and Collective Investment Schemes— i.¢. credit rated funds
which meet the definition of a collective investment scheme as defined in S1 2004 No 334
and ST 2007 No 573.

For credit rated counterparties, the minimum criteria will be the short-term / long-term ratings
assigned by:

Long Term Minimum AA-
Short term 1+

The Council will also take into account information on corporate developments of and market
sentiment towards investment counterparties.

Page 20 of 22



Page 201

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2010/11 to 2012/13

Specified investments will be made within the following limits:
Instrument Country Counterparty Maximum Limit | Fitech  Credit | Maximum
of Investments in | Rating as at 31 | Term of
Group (where Decentber Investment
applicable) £m 2009
Long | Short
Term | Term
Term Deposits UK DMO’s Debt No limit AAA | Fl+ 6 months
Management Account
Deposit Facility
Term Deposits UK Other UK Local £30m N/A N/A 364 days
Authorities (per Local
Authority)
Term Deposits/ UK Santander UK Plc £20m AA- Fl+ 364
Call Accounts (formerly known as days/Instant
Abbey) access
Term Deposits/ UK Lloyds TSB Bank Plc £20m AA- Fl+ 364
Call Accounts (Lloyds Banking Group) days/Instant
access
Term Deposits/ UK Bank of Scotland Plc £20m AA- Fl+ 364
Call Accounts (Lloyds Banking Group) days/Instant
access
Term Deposits/ UK Barclays £20m AA- Fl+ 364
Call Accounts days/Instant
access
Term Deposits/ UK Clydesdale £20m AA- Fl+ 364
Call Accounts days/Instant
access
Term Deposits/ UK HSBC £20m AA Fi+ 364
Call Accounts days/Instant
access
Term Deposits/ UK Nationwide £20m AA- Fl+ 364
Call Accounts days/Instant
access
Term Deposits/ UK Royal Bank of Scotland £20m* AA- Fi+ 364
Call Accounts days/Instant
access
AAA rated Money | UK/Ireland/ Constant Net Asset Value £15m in any one | AAA | Fl~ Instant access
Market Funds Money Market Funds institution,
Luxembourg ) subject  to  an
overall limit in
MM  Funds of
£45m

ES

NB:

Approval of this TMSS by the Council also approves the use of the Council’s current banker
which is Nat West Bank. part of the Royal Bank of Scotland Group. Therefore. when
maximum deposits with RBS are made (£20m) this group limit could be exceeded
temporarily by the current account credit balance remaining overnight with Nat West Bank.
There will also be the usual daylight exposure.

All of the above banks and building socicties are members of the UK Government Credit
Guarantee Scheme.

]

Page 21 of 22

a<

1




Page 202

Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2010/11 to 2012/13

Non-Specified Investments determined for use by the Council

Having considered the rationale and risk associated with Non-Specified Investments, the following

have been determined for the Council’s use:

Appendix K

bodies (e.g. govt bonds issued by
HBOS / RBS / Nationwide. etc)

In- Maximum | Capital Maximum
house maturity expenditure? | Counterparty
use Limit
Gilts and bonds
»Gilts
» Bonds issued by multilateral v (on
development banks e
*Bonds issued by financial ac}wce , .
L o from 6 veurs No £60m
institutions guaranteed by the freasury T
UK government, e.g. GEFCO sreastty
*Sterling denominated bonds by advisor)
non-UK sovereign governments
Government guaranteed bonds
and debt instruments (e.g. floating
rate notes) issued by corporate v G yedars Yes £60m

Note: In determining the period to maturity of an investment, the investment should be regarded as
commencing on the date of the commitment of the investment rather than the date on which funds

are paid over to the counterparty.

Page 22 of 22



Page 203 Agenda ltem 15

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

Audit Committee On 1 February 2010

Report Title: Internal Audit Progress Report — 2009/10 Quarter 3

Report authorised by: Chief Financial Officer

e .
[ S SR
AT S

s

Report of and Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.qgov.uk

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-key decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To inform the Audit Committee of the work undertaken during the third quarter by the
Internal Audit Service in completing the annual audit plan and any responsive fraud
investigation work. In addition, the work the Council’s personnel division has
undertaken in supporting disciplinary action taken across all departments by
respective council managers.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and/or other Strategies:

2.1Audit and Risk Management contribute to the Council priority to deliver excellent,
customer focused, cost effective services by reviewing key services and making
recommendations for improvement where appropriate. Follow up work is undertaken
to ensure that managers implement agreed recommendations and improvements.

2.2 Internal audit forms a key element within the revised Use of Resources assessment
and will continue to be part of the CAA from 2009 onwards. The reports to both
managers and the Audit Committee on progress against the agreed audit plan and the
implementation of audit recommendations ensure that the requirements of the CAA
assessment are fulfilled.

3. Recommendations

3.1 The Audit Committee is recommended to note the audit coverage and progress
during the third quarter 2009/10.




Page 204

3.2 That the Audit Committee notes the progress and responses received in respect of
outstanding audit recommendations.

3.3 That the Audit Committee confirms that the actions taken during Quarter 3 to address
the outstanding recommendations are appropriate.

4. Reason for recommendation(s)

4.1 The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the completion of the annual
internal audit plan and the implementation of agreed recommendations as part of its
Terms of Reference. In order to facilitate this, progress reports are provided on a
quarterly basis for review and consideration by the Audit Committee.

4.2 Where further action is required or recommended, this is highlighted in the covering
report and associated appendices and included in the recommendations for the Audit
Committee.

5. Other options considered
5.1 Not applicable

6. Summary

6.1 The internal audit service makes a significant contribution to ensuring the adequacy
and effectiveness of internal control throughout the authority. This report looks at the
work undertaken in the quarter ending 31 December 2009 and focuses on:

e Progress by Deloitte and Touche (internal auditors) on internal audit coverage
relative to the approved internal audit plan, including the number of audit reports
issued and finalised;

o Progress in implementing outstanding internal audit recommendations with special
attention given to priority 1 recommendations; and

o Details of investigative work undertaken relating to fraud and/or irregularities that
fall outside the remit of the Housing Benefit Fraud Investigation Team, including
information in respect of disciplinary action taken.

6.2 The information has been complied from information held within the Audit & Risk
Management Unit and from records held by Deloitte and Touche and the Council’s
corporate Human Resources business unit.

7. Head of Legal Services Comments

7.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of the is report,
and advises that there are no direct legal implications arising out of the report or the
recommendations.




Page 205

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments

8.1 The Chief Financial Officer notes the contents of the report and has no additional
comments to make.

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1Not applicable

10. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

10.1 This report deals with how risks to service delivery are managed across all areas of
the council, which have an impact on various parts of the community. Improvements
in managing risks and controls will therefore improve services the Council provides
to all sections of the community. ‘

11. Consultation

11.1 No external consultation was required or undertaken in the production of this report.
Consultation is undertaken with respective service managers, Assistant Directors
and Directors in the production of individual internal audit reports and follow up
programmes. Their comments included in the final report which is circulated in
accordance with the agreed internal audit reporting protocol.

12. Service Financial Comments

12.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work
completed by Deloitte and Touche is part of the five year contract which was
awarded following a competitive tendering exercise in compliance with EU
regulations from 1 April 2007. The costs of this contract are contained and managed
within the Audit and Risk Management revenue budget.

13. Use of appendices

13.1  Appendix A — Deloitte and Touche Progress report
Appendix B — In-house Team — investigations into financial irregularities
Appendix C — Council-wide disciplinary information

14. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

14.1For access to the background papers or any further information please contact Anne
Woods on 0208 489 5973.




Page 206

15.Performance Management Information

15.1 Although there are no national or Best Value Performance Indicators, local performance
targets have been agreed for Audit and Risk Management. These form part of Corporate
Resources’ reporting processes, but are detailed below for information. Table 1 below
shows the targets for each area of audit activity monitored and gives a breakdown between
the quarterly and cumulative performance.

Table 1

Pl Ref. | Performance Indicator 3rd Quarter | Year to date | Target

A1 Audit work Completed vs. Planned | 100% of 69% of total | 95%
programme planned Q3 | annual

programme | programme

A2 User satisfaction (1 = low, 5 = 3.3 3.5 3.75
high)

A3 Time taken to complete 14.3 weeks 14.5 weeks | 12 weeks
investigations (2008/09 referrals)

A4 Priority 1 recommendations 100% 92% 95%
implemented at follow up (2008/09
audits)

16. Internal Audit work — Deloitte and Touche contract

16.1 The activity of Deloitte and Touche for the third quarter of 2009/10 to date is detailed at
Appendix A. Members of the Audit Committee receive detailed summaries of all projects for
which a final report has been issued on a monthly basis to allow for any issues to be raised
and discussed in a timely manner. Appendix A provides a list of all final reports which have
been issued during the quarter, together with detailed summaries of all reports which are
issued with a ‘limited’ assurance rating.

16.2 Appendix A also provides detailed summaries of all recommendations which were previously
recorded as outstanding at the time of the follow up audit work. Members have been
monitoring the progress and implementation of these at each Audit Committee to ensure
that managers were taking appropriate action to address outstanding recommendations. As
at 31 December, only 2 recommendations from prior years remained outstanding: 2005/06 -
One Priority 1 recommendation remains outstanding; and 2007/08 - One Priority 3
recommendation remains outstanding.

16.3 A summary of all follow up audits of 2008/09 projects which have been undertaken in
2009/10 is also included in Appendix A (pages 19-20). We have followed up on 151
recommendations and found that 141 (93%) have been implemented, one has been partly
implemented, five are no longer applicable and four are not yet due for implementation. All



Page 207

Priority 1 recommendations followed up during quarter 3, where the deadline for
implementation has passed, had been implemented.

16.4 To date, 69% of the planned annual programme of work has been delivered. A total of 75%

of the total annual audit plan was estimated to be delivered in the first three quarters of
2009/10. Although the level of audit work delivered to date is slightly below the annual
aggregate target, there are no issues identified at this date which will prevent the 95%
annual target from being achieved and ongoing monthly contract monitoring reviews ensure
that performance levels are kept under review.

16.5 In this quarter, a total of 23 projects from the 2009/10 annual audit plan have been finalised,

including seven school visits to assess compliance with the Financial Management Standard
in Schools (FMSIS). All the work planned to be undertaken during quarter 3 (325 audit days)
was delivered, which has ensured that the annual programme of work remains on course to

be delivered by 31 March 2010.

16.6 In conjunction with the Chief Financial Officer, Directors are kept advised of the outstanding

17.

171

recommendations and any actions required to ensure that implementation of
recommendations is achieved. From 2008/09 onwards, the implementation of Priority 1
recommendations has been included in the performance reporting requirements for all
departments. During quarter 3, Internal Audit are satisfied that managers have been taking
appropriate action to address the issues raised in the original recommendations prior to
2008/09.

In-house Team - Fraud investigation/lrregularities

In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Internal Audit investigates all cases that fall
outside the remit of the Housing Benefit Fraud Investigation Team and the Information
Security Policy. Appendix B details the individual cases that were completed by the In-house
Team to date in 2009/10 and any which were brought forward from 2008/09. The listing at
Appendix B also includes any referrals made using the Council’'s whistle blowing policy
which were investigated by Internal Audit. During the third quarter, no whistleblowing
referrals were made.

17.2 Within the third quarter, no new cases were referred to Internal Audit for investigation, and

six cases were completed during the quarter involving Council employees. The six cases
completed in quarter two took 12.4 weeks on average to complete. Internal Audit work
closely with officers from personnel and the service involved to ensure that the investigation
is completed as quickly as possible.

17.3 The Council has a dedicated email address and telephone number, which is advertised on

the Council website, by which members of the public can report instances of suspected
fraud or irregularity. The In-house Team manage and monitor these referrals. During the
third quarter, 12 referrals in relation to new allegations were made via the Council’'s email
reporting facility. Of these, three related to complaints rather than fraud and were referred to
the relevant departmental complaints teams; one related to housing benefits issues and was
referred to the Housing Benefit Fraud Investigation Team for further review; one referral



Page 208

related to a potential UK Visa fraud and was referred to the Home Office for further
investigation; one related to Housing and sub-letting issues and was referred to the
Strategic Housing Division for further review; two referrals related to fraudulent misuse of a
credit card and was referred to Corporate Finance and the relevant bank’s fraud
investigation team for further review. Four referrals were not related to fraud within Haringey
Council.

17.5 The In-house Team also investigates claims of non-receipt of Council cheques. In 2009/10,
there has been one referral for investigation and no losses to the Council. This is a
substantial reduction on previous years’ figures. Improvements in procedures, including the
introduction of ‘positive pay’ whereby the council’s banking team receives information on
cheques before they are cleared, and new cheque security measures have reduced the
opportunity for attempted fraud in this area.

18. Council-wide disciplinary statistics

18.1 Appendix C details the number of disciplinary suspensions and/or action taken in the third
quarter of 2009/10. The data is taken from SAP and the information has been provided by
the Council’'s Human Resources business unit in line with council statistics reported
elsewhere.

18.2 Improved processes, monitoring, management information and liaison between service
departments and HR has been put in place to ensure that the length of time taken to resolve
disciplinary cases is minimised. During quarter 3, the number of disciplinary cases was 36
which is in line with the previous quarter, but an increase in comparison with the first quarter
of 2009/10 and the last quarter of 2008/09. The average length of time taken to resolve
disciplinary cases in quarter 3 rose to 100 days.



Page 209

V XIANAddY

0107 Atenuef
"PYT NPNY [BUISIUT 10I03S O1[qN dYoNo ], 29 aNI0[a(]

Ad3uLIeH JO y3noiog uopuory
0107/600¢C

y0day Npny [euwadjuy € J19)aen()
Jpny [euadju]



Page 210

V XIANAddV

............................................................................

...................

..........................................................

..........................................................

.........................................................

.....................

.....................................................................................

01/600¢ Hodayf ¢ 1011en) - 11pny [eueiu] A9SuLiey jo ySnosog uopuo

Apiqisuodsay jo juowalelg

01/600T — SPIepuBIS SOWOH JUIIJ(] :SUOHEPUIUIOISY d) MO[[0,]

............. 60/800C SUOBPUIWWOIY ¢ - AJLIoL Surpueising - 1oday ssarSoig pafe1d

60/800C — 21qe ] dn-mojjo
80/L00T — Suonepuawoddy dn-mofjo,]

90/S00Z— SuonEpUAUII02Y dn-mo[[0,]

SJUDWISSISSY — S[OOYIS Ul PIBPURIS JUIWISBURA] [BIOUBUL]

........................... OM\QOON “mwcmeaﬁm @DEQHOD ﬁﬁm ﬁOQDM me.HMO.Hm npny

AIewiung 9ANNJaX 5]

sjuduo0))

01/6007 LIOdAA LIANY ATHALIAVNO - LIANV TYNIYAINI ALLIOTAd



Page 211

[ a8eg 01/600T Hodoy ¢ 1a1en() — yIpny [euleu] AaBuLrery jo ySnosog uopuory

01/600T 3PNV JUWINI01J — 20Ny dY) 10J sjooyag Surpymg
01/600T 1PNV $319sSY paxiy
01/600T 31PNV ddueInssy Juswageuey 39301 — pue paumg [pouno,)

01/600T NPNY INAIAG sIeNSISIY
01/600T 31pny dwoduy Ayradoag [eRIswwo))
01/600T 3PNV (QUIWIRANIO0LY) JuURSeUR A Penuo)

01/600¢ Npny uonednddy suwipjueg sgy
*01/600T € 1931enQ jyo Arewrwing /s1ySiySiy Aoy

SUOHEPUAIIUI 0031 301081 183 10/PUB SIONW IOWIW - ¢ A74014y
UOLOR JUSWISTLURU [ED0] 10} SUOLEPUSWILIONI IO - 7 A111014g
JUSWATRUBUI I0[UAS JO UOHUINE OY} 10f sonsst Jofewr - A111014g

:$91103030 FUIMO[[0] 9y} 01 Surproooe pasuriond are SUOIBPUIIUIONdI INO “IOPUIRI B Sy

OINIUIO) NPy Ay 03 pantodoar A snorasid jou asoy) o proq ui
POWSIYSIY SAPNE dY I, 99RO, Apny dy) 0} parioda pue ponsst s podor [ety ay3 ow o) Aq SI99L30 [1ouno) £q pojuswoyduur
U32q dAeY ApeAI[e AW SUOUEPUSWIUIONAI PUB “NIPNE AY) JO SW} Y} 1B SWAISAS oy) JO snjels ay) 1091 S9[qe) poydeNe oyl

‘suodax
JIpne [eUly [enpIAIpUI Y3 Ul pa[IeIop Aqjny aIe ‘uondlduwiod 10§ surpeap oy} pue 100150 qisuodsar oy JuIpn[our ‘SUOIIBPUSWILL0031
U3 SS3IpPE 01 SUOIDE SIOYI() "PISITe Usdq dAey 10dol siy) urgiim pajySySiy sassauyeom [01ju0d Aur SSOIPPE 0} SUOTIBPUSUIUIOIDT
IV "pansst Suraq wodal [euy oY) 0) Joud passnosip a1e sojndsip Aue pue ‘SI001JO [1UNOD) YIIM PIRISE I8 SUONBPUILILIOID] nv

"1sanbai
uodn suodox ypne o jo sordoo [ing yum papraoid aq os[e [im SN0 Y3 JO SISGUIDIA "99)JIUUIO)) JIPNY Y} JO SIIQUIdA 0}
sIseq Ajgauour e uo papraoid st YoIym UOTIBULIONT AIBWIINS 31 10(1050) SMBIp 110ddI 9y |, "UOIBULIOJUT O} PAPN[OUI ST s3urpuy ypne
9OUBINSSE POJIUII] 9y} JO ATRUIUNS PA[IEIOP IOW Y 'SMIIAI JIPNE [EWIOIUL JO SIN0D YY) SuLINp PAYIIUSPI UGG DARY YOIYM [1OUN 0D
oy} pue syuoswiredop renpraipur Juroey sysu Loy ayy 1ySiySy o) pouBisap os[e st wodal sy Jo jewrio} oy, "duw) IDA0 paSeurtu
BuIdq 218 SYSLI MOY UO UOHBULIOFUI YIM SISQUIDJN apiaold [[im UoryMm NI0M Suidlshs A9 10J [9ABI) JO UOIOAIIP AY) JO uored1pur
UB SOAIS PUB DOURINSSE [BIURISGNS IO [[Nf PIASIYOE IARY UOIYM SBOIE oS0y} uo uoneuroful sapraoid uodoar oy, ofess [euy e
MOU dIE YOIyM s110dd1 [[e JO S[Iel0p Surpnjoul Ieak [RIOUBUL () /6007 9Y) 10} 99U 1pny ayy 03 podax 1orenb payy Ino st sy,

uondNpo.Luy

Arewruung d9ARNIIXY

V XIANAddV 01/6007 LIOdAY LIANY ATIALIAVAO - LIANY TYNIAINI ALLIOTAd



79%eg 01/6007 Hoday ¢ 1oyren() — pny [euiou] Aa5uLieH jo y3nolog uopuo|

"SUOLIBPUSLITIODAT 0M)
oy} Jo uonrpjuswordwl [[ny oyl I0J USAIS U3 AR SAUIPRIP PAsIAdY "pajuswdldurr Ajpred useq oAeYy SUOHEPUIWIIOIAL | AILIOL]
om}] a[IyMm ‘pajuswue]duil Uddq SARY UOIJEPUSUIIOND] ¢ AJNIOLL] QUO PUB SUOHIRPUIUILIONd] T ANIOLJ 0M) ‘SUOLIBPUSUILIIONAT | AILIOLL]
921U} 1By} PUNOJ SEM JI ‘pasrel SUONEPUIWIWOaI WSO Wwol] "0]/6007 10} ue[d uswaInoold arrodio) ayy jo ued se patojdwoo
SeM UOIUM ‘600T 1oquaidog ut ponsst 110da1 SPIEPUR)S SIWOH JUIII( Y] Ul PISIBI SUOLTEPUSIO00] 91} U0 dn pamo[[o] aABy 9

01/600C

"pajuswddunt usaq dary ‘passed sey uonejuowduIl 10] SUIIPEIP Y} IAYM
‘9jep 031 dn pomo[[0] SUOIIBPUAUIIOIAI | AJIOLL] [[V “uonejudwajduil 10] anp 124 jou a1k 1noj pue djqeorjdde 13uo] ou are oAy
‘pajuawajdun Ajired uoaq sey auo ‘pojuswuadunr usaq dAeY (%€6) 1+1 18yl PUNO) PUB SUOLIBPUSWILIOAI [G[ U0 dn pamo[[o] ALY 9

60/800T

"3urpueisINO SUIRWAL UOLIBPUIWIUIOAI ¢ AIIOLLJ dU()

80/L00T

‘3urpurRISINO SUTBWAT UOTIBPUSWILIOAI | AIIOLLJ dU()

90/500T

Page 212

:SMO[[0] SB oIR j10m dn-mO[[0} INO JO SIYNSAI Y,
SUONIEPUIWWO0IIY SIed X Jo g Jo d) mopjoq

suornestue3i() ArejunjoA

Junsa 1, 1018130y JSTY — (SOIV) SUlUIRdT % SALIRIQIT ‘D1nn)

UOIIRPOWI 030y Areroduwa J,

syoenuo)) Funydry wang 2 skemySiy

JOURINSSY JUSWATRURA 109[01 — UO1IRAIISUO)) 29 9FRILIOH

doueInssy juswadeuey 100(01d — SWWRIT01J UOTIRIOUISOY punoir) uorjealody dryspio
d0uBINSSY judwaSeury 10901 — juswdo[daa( Nied PlRYNIEN

dourInSSy Juawogeure]y 109fo1d — 10da(q sue ysiey

npny ousqIM

:sypne Surmofjoy oyl 10} ¢ Iopren() ur 110dal Jeip B ponsst OS[e om ‘UB[J PNy [BUIdIU] () [/600C Y} JO Wed sy

V XIANHddV 01/6007 LIOdTY LIANV ATIALIVNO - LIANV TVYNIAINI ALLIOTAd



Page 213

¢ ofeq 01/600C 10day ¢ Jorend) — 1Ipny [ewdU] Asgurrey jo ySnolog uopuory

0 0 rd V/N panury 60°C1LO 60 Hmum wiuwo 1 h:w«wum ST — SITTAISG UONBIIODY
1 14 0 V/N [enuelsqng 60°CI'¥0 60 1dog JUSUWRIN301] — 21N 91 10f S[00YdS SuIp[ing
0 14 % V/IN panwry 60T 60 AIng SJOSSY PoXI]
1 6 0 V/N [enueisqng 60'11°ST 60 1dag SoURINSS Y 1UdWSeURIA] 192[01 — A1eniIo[N
0 b 1 V/N [enuelsqng 6011°ST 60 1dog QOUBINSS Y JUSWITRURIA 103[01] — pUBT paumQ) [1oUno )
0 £ 0 V/N [enuelsqng 601161 60 S0y AIAIG SIBIISITOY
0 1% T V/N kit 60'11°¢l 60 Sny swodu] Aladoly [eiswwoy
1 ¢ g V/N payry 601190 60 A1nf SUOIXAUUO))
0 3 4 V/N panwry 601190 60 AIng BUNSIT 1ISIBY NSO ) %% ddd
I 9 0 V/IN [enueisqng | 60°01°S1 60 3ny (JwdwaInd01q) JuswaTeuey 108U
0 S 0 V/N [enueisqng | 60°0[°€1 60 AIn[ Fumsa] 1130y STy uawINd0LJ Merodion)
1 I 0 V/N fenueisqng | 60°01°¢H 60 1dog uonesrddy swrpyueq gy
01/600¢
syusmmo,) - bﬁa | P | s ©wp ) opIL, Npny
SUONBPUIWWOI3Y | JO WO | SIUBINSSY BRI I
Jo dquny ; aeq

"UOIBULIOJUI
SIOQUISN 10} paprAoId os[e oIz sSurjel SOUBINSSE [BLURISANS, 10 [[N], SAI0091 JOU Op YOIYM SUPNE [[B JO SOLIBWIWNS Pa[IRId(]

PIPUIO]) PNy 3y 01 papodar A[snorasid jou asoy) axe proq ur pajySiysy supne oy, "99)IWIWI0)) PNy Y} 0}
pautodar pue pansst st 1odai [ruy oY) owir oY) £q s190130 [1OUN0Y) Aq pajuswadur U23q aAeY ApeaIe ABW SUOIEPUSWILIOdDT Y] JL])
Pa1OU 9q 1SNUI J] “JIPNE 33 JO SWI) Y} 1B SWAISAS By} JO SNJeIs oy} pue Io1renb SIy) ur pasijeuy SApPNe 9y N0 198 a1qe) Surmoy[oy oy I,

:01/6007 — Arewrwing ssaagoag Jipny

V XIANHddV 01/600T LYIOdHY LIANY ATIALAVAO - LIANY TYNIALINI ALLIOTAA




Page 214

988y

01/6007 110doy ¢ 1ouend) — upny [ewdu] Aa3utiel Jo ySnolog uopuo|

{sased A1U9M] JO INO 321 Ul
91} UO P[OY JOU 2I9M SWLIOJ UOIBN[BA UOIJAS [BIOIOWIWO)) e

2901AIS 9
10y 2oe[d ur saanpadsord pue saworjod ou A[JUSLIND dIe 1YL e
‘uoy) 20uls pajepdn pue pamaIAdI udaq Ajjusnbasqns

pey 9say) Jey} MOUS 0} SOUIPIAD OU Sem 219y} pue ¢z U
paonpoid se pajep 21om SJUSWNOOP DUBINSSY AN[En) oY e

:opnjoul punoy
DIOM SOSSOUEIM OIOUYM SBAIR QY MSH B SOA102[qO wo)sAs
a1 Ind YoIym SOSSOUNBIM [BIOAIS OIB DIAY) WIIISAS Ay} UIYNA

"JUSWINQITY 9sea T ®
ojur Surojus 03 Jouid SJUBUS) MAU UO JNO PALLIED IR SYIY)) e

pue fjuowdFeurul Jgop 10} pasn
pue siseq A[qiuow e uo paonpoid are sFunsy 10)qop paSy e

{panssI 9q 0} anp oIw
yorym sa010Aul mau dn yord 0) suni Judl A[YJUOW dIe JIY ], e

‘o8eury Auadoig
[e1sunuo) ay) Aq pasoidde oie sa3reyo ased] pue [RIUSY e

:MO[2q PAISI| I8 pue A[LIOJOBISIES
Sunerodo 9q 0] PoAISSqO  QIom  S[OIUOD JY) JO OUWOS

“YSUI JB SA1309[q0 W)SAS

‘syuswdueLry Jurroday] pue SULIONUON e
pue ‘JuowaSeuriy 195png e

598590017 dn
MO[[0] pUB JUSWIADIOJUY ‘SULIONUO SIBOLY e

{PIURIN) SUOISSIOUO)) PUB SUB[J JUSWAR] e

{ssado0ld
UOLIBI[IOU0DY pue  SWOdU] JO UOIOJ[[0) e

saSrey) ey
SuAjddy pue Juiog I0J S[OIIUO)) pPUB WIRISAS e

{S2INpad01J pue SAIOI0J ‘UONEIUIWINOO(] e

‘syuowanbay] Aroniels yum aouerduio) e

.seale

01/600T

swoduy Ay1adoag

payury o) nd 01 Se Yons aIe S[ONUO0D JO WIDISAS O} Ul SISSIUNBIAN | SUIMO[[O] Y} IOA0D 0} USNRLIDPUN Sem MIOM JIpnyY [eRIsuwmo)
20URINSSY  sSupuy AavsmEs adoag vaI® JIpNY
‘SSHRRIVININAS dA' TIVLIAd

V XIANHAddV

01/6007 LYOJHTY LIANYV ATIALIVNO - LIANV TYNIALNI ALLIOTAd




Page 215

G a%eyg

01/600T 1oday ¢ 1orend) — upny [eumu] Ao5uLiel] Jo ySnotog uopuo]

'swdy Furpuesino Suof repnonted ur ‘Apydwoid junoose oy
0} pajsod sudy I3[0 pue 21eF1soAUl pue siseq (A[yuour)
m®M3o1 v uo Junoode osuodsns Oy} MOIADI 0] W],
odueUL{ AU} I0J PIYSIqRISI oq p[noys ssaooid [BULIO) YV e

pue
‘welsAs uelpyURIA 9yl jJo Suruonouny [[ry oyl Swpunoums
SONSSI  OY} JA[OSAI 0} SIVIAPS [] yYpm uorpunfuoo
ur jIom ‘Aous3In JO Io)eW B SB ‘P[NOYS JUOWIOTBURIA e

'$p100a1 Ap0oIsno Jo ureyd Surpnjour
pue Ad[[04 UONUDIAY IUAWNIO(] S, [IOUN0) Y} YUM dul]
ur woysAs juswaFeurw J[y € do[oAdp pinoys 0IAIS Y],

“UOTJB[SIZI] JUBAS[OL YIIM QUI| UI PUE SISBQ
[enuue ue 3sed] je Uo paaoidde pue pajepdn ‘pomdladl aq
pInoYs wea} oy} Aq pasn SJUSWNOOP d0urINSSYy ANfend) ay L,

‘SMO[[0} SB 918 SUOIEPUIIIOAT g AJLIOLL S ],

‘pajudswojdun pue paroidde
‘pastjeuy 8q p[noys 99K judwadeurjy 190, Sunsixo oy e

pue jjeis
JUBAQ[I [[B 01 PIJBOIUNWILIOd 9q P[NOYS YoIrym ‘sainpasord
pue sarod oroidde pue doPAdp pINOYS 9OIAIS YL e

'SMO[[0] SB 9IB SUOIIBPUALILIONAI | Ajurorid oy |,

“BOIR Y} U S[OIIU0D
onordurt doy [[Im Yorym ‘SUOHBPUSUIIONDI 7 AJIOLJ Inoj
pue | AJLIOLIJ 0M] PISIRI JARY OM JIOM JIPNE INO JO J[NSAI B SY

‘pajudswajdun pue peaoidde
‘pastjeuy UL9q 10U SBY 9[0A) JuowaSeur|y 1go YL e

pue ISUOIIRI[IOU0II A[YIUOL UO A[JUDISISUOD
318 000‘0ETF JO AN[BA B YIM SUWIdON PA[IOUOI2IUN PUB G(()T
SOUIS POA[OSAIUN UIBWIAI WIQISAS UBIIRYUBIA Y] UM SONSS] e

ueanssy

sBurpuy fosysmyvys

adoog

BIIE JIPNY

V XIANHAddV

01/600T LYOJTY LIANY ATIALAVNO - LIANY TYNIALINI ALLIOTAA




Page 216

9 a%eq 01/600T 1oday] ¢ Jauen) — upny [euau] AoSuLiey Jo ydnolog uopuo

pajrury

1oyno woyqoid oy} Apawal 0} premio} Jurod suerd Ajnuapi
0} 9]qBUN 210M JA\ TUOISAS 9} OJUO PAIAIUD U JOU SBY
BIED MBI 60/8007 OY} ‘YOns se pue Sp[oy AIJUd JO SULID] UI
sjuawaIinbax wnwrui 9y} sjeeuwr 12SUO] OU BIEP UOIIEN]RA
210)S 0) Wed) suoneneA oy} AQq pasn waIsAs NJD YL e

‘ueyd 1eok oAl o) UM sjudwaanbar asay) s1erodioour
0] pue [1oUNo)) 9y} SSOIOL SUOIIBN|RA JOSSE 10} SjuduaInbax
oyl ysiqeiso 01 sjooojoid IBd[O JO Qo0uUdSqER OUYL e

‘owreagoid suorjenjea Auadoid 184 oAl
JuaLINd © 30 Ad0d PojudWINOOp B UIRIQO O} J[qBUN JIOM DA\ o

:opnjoul punoyj
2JOM SOSSAUNEOM 2I0YM SBOIE OUJ SH I8 SOAIDS[qO WdISAS
oy} Jo swos Ind YOIYM SOSSOUNBIM DIB 2I0Y) WIAISAS dU) UM AN

'600C 1S3V I 10} pa[npayds
Surjoowr sy oY) Yyum odueul JO PeSOH Oyl Aq paIreyd
AjjuoLmd SI wWed} 9y [IOUn0) 2yl ssorr sofueyo yons
Jo edun ay) pue Aorod Surjunoooe ur saueydo pannbal
99SIOA0 0] PAUOISSIWULLOD Ud3q Sey wed) 10ofoid QY] uy e

puE {(991AI9G [O1UO)) PUB FUNUNOIDY)
ooueur,] JO PedH Oyl 01 pajedo[op ussq Sey UOIIR[SISI|
Sununoooe 03 safueyo Suuroyuowr I10j  Appiqisuodsay e

“uejunoooy [ende)) oyl Aq aaypuadxa 108png
1sureSe paroyuow St owweiSold ainypuadxy ende) ayj e

$IOMITADI pue In[eA 9y} Aq paudis ‘euioj-oid piepuels
B UO POIUSWINOOp 9q 0} pannbor are suorenjea Auodoid e

:MO[9q PAISI] dJB YOIYM JO dUOS ‘A[L10)ORISIIEeS

Sunerodo ogq 01 poAIdSQO 2JOM  S[OIIUOD JO IoqUInU Y
“YSII 1B S9A1302[qO WIdIsAS

oy nd 031 se Yons 2Ie S[OIJU0D JO WIDISAS Y] Ul SISSOUNBIA

"198po7] [BIOUSD) O) UOHIBI[IOU0DIY e

pu® {JJO-9JLIA\ pu® [BSOdSI(] 1SSy e
{SOINPad0IJ PuUe SAION0J Yim doueijdwo) e
{AJIN0AG 19SSy e

{101SITOY 19SSy

:SeoTR SUIMO[[0] 93 Ul JUSWUOIIATD
[O1JUOD 29U} I9A0D O} UDNRHOpUN SeM IOM Ipny

01/600C

SJ9SSY PIXL]

dduBINSSY : :  s3upuy Keysmmis

adoog

BAJIE JIpNY

V XIANHddV 01/6007 LYOJAY LIANYV ATIALIAVAO - LIANV TVNIALINI ALLIOTAd




Page 217

£ 288 01/600T Hoday ¢ Jouend) — Jipny [euiou] Aafurreq] jo ySnosog uopuoy

ur) swwresgoxd fewio) e dojoaap pinoys soueur ajerodio) e

‘Ad1[0d UO1ULISY UBUINOO(T S, [I9UNO)) Y} YA Jul|
ur wolsAs juswoageurwt oy B dOjoAIp PINOYS 9JIAIDS UYL e

SMOJ[0] SB o1e suorBpuUaII0dal 7 Ajrorad oy,

"UONR[SIA] SYAT 10§ 24 [[IM SUOHEHIWI]
pue sjuowannbar moyl jeym ur Aousdmn jo Iopew e
se sisAjeue deS/marAal & 1onpuod pinoys saoialog Auodorg e

pue pajordurod
9q pInoys SweisAs juoLmd dy) urgum swopqord jusrsyul
Jo uonnjosar pue sjuowWANNbor SWOSAS Jo MIIADI Y e

{KoBINDJE 10} Y090 01
sad1AIaS Aadold Aq paurejurew ejep SUOHEN[BA 0} VS UO
POpPEO[ SuOIEN[eA JO USYRLIDPUN 9q PINOYS UOHBI[IOU00AI B
JOUUN,] 'ssaudle[duiod 10§ J09YO 0) SUOBN[BA A4} PUB J8IA
oy} SuLmp jno paLLLd aq o} pamnbar suonenea Jo Junsy
Y1 US9MIOQ UNBLAPUN 3Q P[NOYS UOHBI[IOUOIAI [BULIO} e

‘sIseq 1e[nS91 B UO PAIMIIADI PUB PAJUSWINOOP
9q pnoys saredoid Fumpea 10y ueld 1eok oAy Oyl e

SMO][O] Se ale suolepusunooal | Ajrond oy |,

“JUSUIUOIIAUS [011U00 3y} dao01duar 0} djay pinoys yorgm
‘suonjepuswwoddr ¢ Ajioud oy pue | Anroud Inoy pasiel
9ABY oM BAIE SIY) UI YIOM JIPNE [RUIDIUI INO JO }NS3I € Sy

"UOLIR[SIZI SY I Iopun SUOIIEN[BA SLLIDPUN O]
$901AIS Apadorg urynm ueyd pasI[eULIO} € JO 90USSqR S e

pue ‘eiep suonen[eA [eusLo
0} doueur] 9Iodio)) 01 PINsSI BJEp JO UOHBI[IOUOIDI
[PULIO} B JO 90USPIAD UIBJGO O] J[QBUN JI9M M\ e

‘quowamooid

JuUeInssy

aminy 10 juswdo[aAdp swolsAs SumsIXe JO SWId) Ul

sBurpuy foysmess.

adoog

BAIE JIpNY

V XIONHddV

01/6007 LYOdHY LIANYV ATIALAVAO - LIANY TVNIAINI ALLIOTAd




Page 218

Qa%eg

01/600Z 1Moday ¢ 111en() — 1Ipny [euIdju] ASZuLIBH JO :wagom uopuo]

pue  palIIuOPI SIOUMO [OIJUOD pue SIy e

aq pinoys
“SMO[[O] SE 2Ie SuoljepudwI0dal | Ajrorid oy |,

"BaJe AY] Ul SJOIIU0D

SOOIAIOS JO AIOAI[OP UO SSAI)S Ul
Sunnsor ooudsqy SSOUYOIS Sursearour

8 'S
aaoxdwi djoy [im yomgm ‘suorjepudununoddl ¢ Apioud samy / SRS U L9303 SI[IEY S90IN0SAA - 63 ddd
pue | Anrouid om] pasiel dABRY 9M NIOM JIpne Ino JO JNSaI e Sy "a1e10di0d pue sulf Juoy
‘ d
S[OIIU0D oY) UIIM POGIIUOPI S[ENPIAIDUL 410q ‘s901AIS uo jordwil uoIsseddy  +Dddd
oY) 10 918100 AYI JO AN[IQISUOSII 9] 10U JIOM INO e 01101 JO ANfen)
woneindar s ouno) oyl ol afeweq  ¢O¥Jddd
e {AjoAnpaygout urjerado aq 0] punoj se
pue "AJ9ATI09)JOUI SUT) q 01 puncy SEM JUQ e ‘sjuowdSurLe OV ]
‘aA1100)30 Aied Sutaq se paryisse[d a1om x1g o | Y1 J0 wed se 1o ‘Y3noroq oy Suroaje
sorouddiowe o) puodsar oy aimpiey 7D Jddd
‘A1oA1100]32 Sunerndo d1om .
S[OIIU0D UIDIUIAS Furisal Ino uiyym sajdures oY) uo paseq e AMOIARYDQ [F100S [IUE PUE WL JO
‘ s suondodod oFueyd 01 2InJie] "IJIAIIS
:3UIMO[[ 0} Y} punoj pue 1ojsigal Jo Anrenb pue sowooino Fuistduiod
YSLI 9y} Ul POlJIIuApPI SYSLI AL} oY) 9131w Jey) SUONIR IyLny Jurpuny Jo ssof punole Ysi poreys  [D¥ddd 01/600T
pue sjonuod S0 AJuam) 9y} polsd) PUB PIIRN[BAD JABY I :S5S1 SUTAMO[[0F oY} 2JES1IUL 0} Sunso],
“YSHI 18 $9A1109[qO WAISAS | 9oe[d U S|OIJU0D AU} JO SSAUIAIDJYJO pue Adenbope 1938139 sy
payrwury a1 ;nd 0] Se yons aIe S[OIJUOD JO UIDISAS AU} UT SISSOUNBIA | AYI SSISSE 0] UONRLOPUN Sem HIOM JIPNY [BUIDIU] D% ddd
SNOLLVOINAIWINOD » SATHSYANIN VA ‘TONVINHOINA ‘XOTT0d
"AS01011S JUsWoFRUBN
19SSy S, [IOUN0D) Oyl UIYNM  pIludwindop aq  pinoys
uorjeroardop pue spo-ojum ‘sorpodord snjdins ‘sjesodsip
‘sjuswioinbal pue poylowr uoren[eA 0} SUIR[AI SO0 e
pue ‘suorjenjea jo Surooys Anjenb punoie sjuowogueLie
oYl MIIADI P[NOYS SADIAIG Aodold Uryum JUSWOTRUBA
$10151301 j0sSk 939]dwrod
© 10] sjuswannbar mou jpow 03 1pio ur judwdinbo pue
Ksourgoew uerd p10oa1 0} (SOILI0I0AM( Yim uorppunfuod
JduBINSSY o o  sSuipuy Koysmyeys adoag BaJIE JIpNY

V XIANAddV

01/6007 LIOJAY LIANY ATHALIVAO - LIANV TVNIALINI ALLIOTAd




Page 219

6 28eq 01/6007 110day ¢ I91end) — IpnYy [euIau] A2FULIBRY Jo ysnoiog uopuory

pajrwry

U99q sey Jurure) siyl Jo pIooal e pue (yJ) I0SIAPY [BUOSIDJ
B Se O[0I IOY) 0) Paje[dl SUIBI] POAIOOAI JARY JJBIS e

:MO[2q PAISI] AIB YOIYM JO SUIOS ‘AJLI0J0BSIIES

Suneodo 9q 01 poAlesqoO dIom S[OIIU0D A3Y JO Joquinu y
“YSLI JB S9A1109[qO0 WaIsAs

oy} nd 01 se yons oIe S[ONUOD JO WIAISAS Y} Ul SISSOUNBIM

PIAJOAU] SUOLJESIUBZI() 10J SISSAO0I] UOSIBI] e
{S2INPad0I] pUeB SAII[0] ‘UOHBJUSWNOO(] e

‘sjuswannbayy
Alojjeys  pue  [B00T  ypm  douerdwo)) e

:seore
SUIMO[[0} 9y} I9A00 0] UONEIIOPUN SEM YIOM PNy

01/6007

INAIAG
SUOIXouuo))

© EDIAYES S41403d ONN

OX » NANATTHD

"SIOP|OYaRIS PUB JJBIS JUBAS[IL [[B 0} PAIBOIUNUILLOD
St pue jouney uo Suipeojdn 10j 9[qe[ieAR OpeRW SI
ue]q AouaBowy pue (JDd) ueld ANnuruoy) ssauisng oy} Jo
UOISIdA d7ep-01-dn JS0W JY) JBY) 2INSUD PINOYS DIAIIG Y[ e

pue 19381391 YSLI 9y}
Ul paynuapt se (gsy) InolAeyag [B0S-1JUY SuUIssaIppe Ul
JUSWIDAJOAUT  SIUSPISAI puedxd 0) sAem U0 s91F9Je1IS ISNqOI
pue [eurio] juswmoop pue doPAdp pinoys 938101 Y] e

{saoueLIEA 193pNnq SSaIppe
pue 21e31s9AU 0] padoPAop aq pinoys ‘sroSeurpy oduvuL]
pue SISBRUBIA] 9OIAIOS [ENpIAIPUL 0} Surje[al soniqisuodsal
pue souijpeap Suipnpour ‘ueyd uorpe ue pue sSureow
Suuronuow 108pnq Apyjuowr oyl Jo 3doy 2q pinoyYs SAINUIN e

SMO[]0] SB dIe SUOIRPUSUI0d31 7 Ajuond ay [,

*91e10199.11(] Y}
uryirm sassa001d s109[3a1 A]91eIn008 1 Jey) 2InSUS 01 AousSin
Jo Iopew ® se popuowie pue ssouolojdwoo pue Adeinooe
10} paMdIAdI 9q pINOYS I9)SIZoI SLI S ,01RI0IDI(] dYL e

puUB {SIOUMO [01JUOD pUE SYSLI PAYIJUAPIL [[€ 0}
pajedIunwod 9q pinoys diysioumo pue senijiqsuodsar oy,

“19ISITAI MSI $, 918101000 Dddd Y} UIYIM PIjUSWNOOp

dduvanssy , 14 s sSmpmy Koysmyerg

adoog

BIIR JIpNY

V XIANHAddV 01/6007 LIYOJAY LIANYV ATIALAVAO - LIANY TYNIYALNI ALLIOTAA




Page 220

0193eq

01/6007 Hoday] ¢ Jeuen() — jIpny [euIdju] LoFuLiep] Jo y3nolog uopuoy

"panIuIgns uaaq Afjenioe
sey Jreyoq moy) uo paredord wmnjoy Aromieis syl eyl
JOPBIIUOD JIOY] WO UOLJBWLIFUOD OU JAIS0DI JUSWOTRURIN e

pue {J[eyaq JI9Y) U0 panIuqns 9Ie Jey} SuInjoy
A101jLIS 9Y) JO SJUDIUOD 3} JO dIemeun dIe JuowoSeur|y e

‘sasodind
Suuroyuowr souewiropdd [eroueury 10j pasn pue paonpoid
are spodar Suroyuow 19§png OO0y peB pUB JUIISISUOOU] e

‘rrouno)) Ayl yim JuswAopdwd Jo 1ornuod B paudis
10U 9ABY OYM SIOIAIOG SUOTXAUUOD) UIYNM SUrJIOMm dIe JJRIS e

‘suonednyienb O AN
noy) pourejqo Aqenioe aaey (Juowedide HJ(1L) [1OUno)

9y} 0} SSOIOB paldJsuel) Apjuonbosqns arom oym jjeis [re
IoUIoYM WIJUOD 0} JDUIPIAD pAuTed JOU dARY JUSUWIOTRURA e

:apn[oul punoyj
QI0M SISSOUNEOM AIOYM SBAIE Y S JB SOAND[qO WdISAS
oy} nd 03 se yons oIe S[OIJUOD JO WIISAS Y} Ul SISSIUNBIA

‘SpIepUBR]S [BUOLIEN Y] 109321 IIIAIDG SUOIXIUUO))
oy 107 aoe[d ur (S[J]) SIOILDIPU] DUBULIONSJ A9 Y] e

pue ‘woy) Jo paoadxd sonnp peolq
o) 0 $39s st} pue ooefd Ul S1 Sy J J0J MIPBIJJO POV e

JJe1S SUOIXaUUO)) AQ INO PALLILD
aq 0} 2IB JBY} SAUNP Y} INO 39S SuR[J AIAID( pue SYIS e

“JourreH ®IA ‘sainpadold
pue soiod s JOUNO) 9} SSIO0B 0] d[qe I RIS e

pue

‘sjuowdguelry Suippodor pue juowaFeurjy e
pue ‘jonuo)) pue juowdSeue|y 103png e

SUOISTAOL] 90IAIDG
SIPBIUOD) JO MIIADY pue JuLIONUOIN e

¢59559001 [BLIOJOY PUE SJUSWISSISSY

{SOOIAIOG SUOTXOUUO)) A3 YIIm

JduUBINSSY

‘301 Surures], JJels e ur apew

adoog

BIIR JIPNY

V XIANAddV

01/6007 LYIOdTY LIANYV ATIALAVNO - LIANV TVNIAINI ALLIOTAd




Page 221

[198¢eq

01/600T Hoday ¢ 1a11en() — 1PNy [eUIU] A3FULIRY] JO y3noiog uopuoy

'SMOJ[O] SE 9IB SUOLJRPUSWIUIONaL 7 AJLIOLL] 9y [,

"S10BIIU0D 98U} JO 23ep els ay) 03 1ouid poroidde pue pousis
9q pinoys suorjesiuedio Jouied s)I pue 20IAIOS SUOIXIUUO))
S JIouno) Ayl usamidq (SYS) SIUDWRISY [9A9] IOIAIG
[[® 1By} 9INSUD 0} PISU 3} JO PIPUIWIAI dIL JJBIS JUBAJ[SI [V

pue 90IAI0S
suorxouuoy) jo osouewiojed ArweaSpnq oyl jo uonedipul
Ie3[d ' ypm Juowodeuew opiaoid 03 1opio ur pajyoid
2q pinoys pue saIndy 91ep-01-1BdA Ay} ‘saInSy [en1ow SA
1P3pnq Agiuowr 9y} p10991 PINOYS PUE IDIAIIS SUOIXSUUO))
oyl UM SIU3D JSOD UOBD JUdWNOOP p[noys suodol
9soy], ‘wea) doueul SJAD 9yl woy spodar Suwrojuour
193pnq A[yjuow ureiqo pue 1sanbar soFeuew s 9014105 oY |

‘JJBIS SUOIXOUUO)) JUBAJ[DI [[B 0] PIIBOIUNUILIOD PUB
pajudWINOOp ‘pastjeurio) st suonesiuedio souped s 901AI0G
oy} jo Aue 03 uosiad Sunok e o [e1RJa1 o) 10} ssaooid oy,

{Sa1INp 19Y3 JO 9SIN0OD
Oy} Ul S,/ d 19y} ISISSB 0] SWes ], pajedie ] oy} Pue [BSIDAIU()
oy} 10) pasoidde pue padojoasp aq pinOYS sainionis wea)
postewro) yum Juofe saimpasoid pue sarorjod ysap/[eoo]

‘suonjeoyienb yOAN
JI9Y} PIASIYIL 9ARY Q00T W (Juowdaide J4 )L 2y} Jo yed se)
90IAIAS SUOIXAUUO)) S ASFULIBH 0] SSOIOB POLISJSURI) dIom
OyM JJeis [[e jeyl UOIPWLIJUOD [BPULIO} UIR}qO juswoSeuey

'SMO[[OJ SB 918 SUOIBPUSWILLONDI | AJIOLL] Y[,

“BaIE SIY} Ul Sjo1uod aao1dun 03 djoy pinoys
Uorym ‘SUOIBPUSIUIONdI ¢ AJLIOLJ 9UO pue 7 AJIOLJ 9AL
‘I AJLIOLIJ SA} PASIBI OABY Om YIOM JIPNE INO JO JNS3l B Sy

duUBINSSY

mw&m:u zc&\m_:ﬁm ‘

adoag

BIIR JIPNY

V XIANHddV

01/600T LYOJHY LIANY ATIALAVNO - LIANY TYNIALINI ALLIOTAA




Page 222

719%eg

01/6007 1oday ¢ 1ouend) — 1pny [ewiou] Aouriey Jo ydnoog uopuo

pajyuny

Sunoeyo uo pasnooj Afuo st uoruido o Jey) pajou 9q pinoys i

JSLI 18 SAA1109[qO WId)sAS
oyl nd 03 se yons oI S[OIJUOD JO WIAISAS Y} Ul SISSIUNBIAN

:SYSLI SuImoj[ o} 2y} 9Bt 0}
doeld ur SJOIIUOD 9Y) JO SSOUSAIORYJS pue Aoenbape
9} SSISSE 0] UDNBLOPUN SeM YIOM JIpny [BUIdIU]

3unsa y, 1918139y
NSTY SIIIAIG
uoneIIY

S3DIA¥3S ALINNWWOS ® 3HNLIND ‘SLINAY

"Sansst
oY) ssaIppe 0} pue suoneue[dxd uRIqO 01 UNR) 2 PINOYS
UOI1OB JUBAJ[II ‘So[npayos sSureouwr paaide oyl yum dulj ul
PIOY 10U oJB STUIIOOU 9} 9I0YM pUR STUTIOoW JUSUIDTRURIA
Iomag, 9yl Jo Aouonbay oyl mo1AdI pnoys JUdWRTeURN

:SMO[[O} SE S1 UOIBPUSUIION] ¢ AJIOLIJ U ],

‘sgunjeowr JuowaFeury [[ng, A[JIUOW Y] 1B PIsSnosIp
pue 03 pajuasaid 9q pinoys uoneuLIOjUl Jurrojuow P3png

puE {WBa) SUOIXAUUO)) 9} JO J[BYDQ U0 Papiwugns wnjdl
A1o1niels A[qiuouwr 9yl UIyim pauIeiuod SO1)S1iels/uorjeuLIojul
oYy} MOIAdI  p[noys sdFeuRW  IOMUDS S AJIAIRS Y],

‘s1oFeUBW S 9JIAIRS
oyl ynm uonounfuod ur 19s s1 108png S 9IAIDS SUOIXIUUO))
oyl ey} QINSUO PINOYS WIBI) 9OUBUI] S,9RI00AM( Y],

‘dourur,] 90IAIDG
SUQIp[IYD wWoy juelunoddy 1293png oyl pue Id3euRy
digszomired DV oY1 usomioq 9oe[d oyl yomym ‘sdurpout
Sunoyuow 193pnq dY) JO pOUIBUIRUI 9q P[NOYS PI00AI Y

1ouno) Ayl Yy 10eIu0d juswkojdwd poudis
pue pijea ® aAey mou g0z Ul (Juswoaide gdn.L oyl jo wed
SB) 90IAIDS SUOIXouuo0)) A2SULIBH 9Y} 0} SSOIOR PILISuRI)
oIom OUm JJBIS [[B 1BY] 2INSUd p[noys wesl YH S,[1ouno)
oy} yum uonounfuod ul ‘Juowddeurwl S 90IARS Y]

dueANSSy

 sBupuy koysmms

adoog

BAIE JIPNY

V XIANAddV

01/6007 LIOdAY LIANV ATIALIAVNO - LIANY TYNIAINI ALLIOTAd




Page 223

g1 a%eq

01/600T Woday ¢ 1pen() — ipny [eumiu] Aofurie jo ySnolog uopuo|

NSIY 9y} UO payniudpl SySLI 21831 0] SUOIOR Jeyl paels
JABY oym “uowdSeuBw YlIm pPasiel Uoaq Sey SIY] suonoe
IoyIny pue S[oIju0d ‘SYSLI [enplalpur Surdeuewr 10§ d[qisuodsar
SIOOJO oY} JO UONBOYIJUSPL OU SI 9I9Y) JBY) PpO[BOAdI
193181321 SII (SY) SOOIAIIG UOIIBIIOY S} JO UOTIBUIWIEXD INQ)

"Jpew 210Mm sisanbal
snomownu Y3noyje ‘uorjeuriexd 10} papraoid usaq jou aAey
SjuawWINOOop se ,193pnq dA0qe paidalRp sowweidoid [ende),
— (T sty uo 2oueinsse Aue opiaoid 01 o[qeun 2I9M I\

Touno)
oyl ynm pioy a1e sardoo poyess pue pauSis 1By} Josyo 0)
oor[d Ul AJIUSLIND SIOBIIUOD [[B MIIASI P[NOYS JUSWOTeUe|N e

pue £S310811U09 JO SULIOIUOW [BULIO] O]}
punole sudwannbar juswnoop pue sjooojord Sunrojuouwr
BIUOD JO 19S [RULIO}] ® YSI[QRISO p[noys juswofeue]y e

:SMO[[0] SE 9 SUOTIBpUAWII0aI | Ayrond oy |,

‘SpIepue)s

0] SWPIOdI. IDAI[OP JOU Op SHIoM
[eaynoinoy /Surdesspue] pue udisa(q
soedg uad( 10§ sio1pddns poaorddy

“Joum

Suroq j0u s)uowdaNNbaI  SI9SN 901AISS 0}
Sped[ 1010enUu0d Wwoyg doueuriofrad 100d
{IOAI[OP 0 S90INOSAI SHOP[ J0IORIJUOD
{90IAIOS UO11BOI0Y J0] IJIAIDS JO

‘ea1e o) w1 sjonuoo gy jo | 1A paxnbai 1oA10p 01 SRy J0OBIIUOY  HTOY
SSOUQAIOYYS oY) daoxdwrr djoy [[Im YoM ‘SUOTIBPUSTITIOIAI “So1I[108]
1 Anrourd om) pasiel 9ABY oM JIOM JIpne Ino JO }NsdI B Sy UO11BOI0Y] UT JusuilsaAul [eyded
"OATIOOUI 9I0M 1IN0 10} paAIdal jou st Juipuny ajenbapy 77Oy
pue 0A1109) Ajped sem oup e (s9014198
a TUSUIDARDIOE JO 9SBD oY} Ul "§°2)
*A19An309g39 Bunessado 9OTAISS [BULIOU B ISAI[DP O} JJBIS JO YOr]
oJom S[ONU0D 7 ‘Sursay Ino uryim sojdwes oy} Uo paseqg e — srwopued ny e 0 puodsal 01 9[qRUN  [79Y
:SUIMO[[0] 9y} punoj pue Io3IsIal1 ysLI oy} Ul 198png
PAYIIUAPT SYSLI AL 9IeT1IW Jey) S[ONUO0D /7 Y} POUTHIBXI AN 9A0QE patdAlap sowwersoxd fendey 07Dy
"SOOIAIDS UONEAINY JO suonerddo oyl jo wed ‘syuowaFueLre Ny ay3 jo wed se
S OSI[ELISIBW [[1IS ABW UOIYM IDIAISS 3} 0] SYSLI sapnoaid | 10 ‘g8noioq oy Sunoagye seouadiows o)
uouido Ino 1Byl puB NIOM INO JO SWN 9Y) 1B A[PAI0SYS | puodsar o) ainie 7)wddd peonpal jou
Sunerodo o1om JuoweFeuewl Aq POYHUSP! S[ONUOD Sy eyl | SI saoeds uado pue syred wr owio Jo sy 810V 01/6002
2dURINSSY : - sSmpuy Aoysmeys Rl adoog vaIe JIpNY
V XIANAddV 01/6007 LIOdAY LIANV ATIALIVNO - LIANYV TYNYALINI ALLIOTAd




Page 224

¥1 38eg

01/600T Hoday ¢ 11rend) —pny [ewau] LSuuier Jo ySnolog uopuo

"pastel
U99q Sey UOHBPUSWILIONdI OU Ynsal e sy -orwopued oy) u
uone[esss Aue o) puodsar 0y se os dnoif Furuue[q Kouaiowrg
9je10d10) YNM UOSIRI JURISUOD WI ST QY pue pajuswoduwi
U29q ApEaI[E SABY POYIJUSPI SUOHOER JBY) JIPNY  POSIApE
wowsFeuew [z ysry 0} preSor ynp ssaifoid joofoxd ayy
109pj01 01 AJRorporiad pajepdn are s193s1391 YSLI oY) pue ‘[ASY
oy} 18 AIolenb pomaiasl are spofoid oy jo ssaiSoid sy pue
19381321 YSU 9y} UO suoroe 91e3nmu 0] pasn ore sjpsfoid Koy
SY 1Byl parels oym juswdSeurw Jo uonuape ay) o} ySnoiq
os[e sem SIYJ, [9AJ] d[qeidooor ue 0} UMOp 9100S 9y} Juriq
0} PAY1IUIPL UDIQ dARY SUOIIOR IOYUNY OU ‘(P[OYSAIY) dOUBID[0}
oYl 9A0QR) Q] JO 3I00S SLI [BNPISOI B SMOUS (dIUapue(
np) 17 SR y3Snoyye jey) pajou os[e om ‘ypne ay) Sunng

"Pasiel Ud3( Sey] UOHBPUIIUIOd]
OU “J[nsal € Sy "191SI39Y YSIy oY) Uo SIS oY} Jo uoneduiu oy
1o} arqisuodsar Apposapur pue A[30a1p aousy pue sjsfoxd oy
juswspduwr 01 981eYd Ul 9q [[IM OYM PILFHUIPL A[IBS[O SI ISUMO

JueInssy

100fo01d © s19ym s1oafoxd A3 S 2y} Ur poppaquIs are 101S1ITaY
- sSurpuy Aow/snyers

adoag

BIIE JIPNY

V XIAONAddV

01/6007 LYIOJAY LIANY ATHALAVAO - LIANV TVNYALLINI ALLIOTAd




Page 225

G19adeq 01/600T 1oday ¢ 1a11en() — upny [ewju] Lofurey jo ySnotog uopuory

“001IWIIO)) NPNY Sy} 03 HOdDI JX3U INO UI J10M INO JO SINSAT Y} U0 1oda1 [[Im o

'S[00YOS ATepu0dag 221Y) 0 SISIA SOPN[OUI SI ], “PIEPUBIS oY} JO sjudwannbax oy yim souerjduroo panurjuos ssasse 03 sjooyog
JUBAD[AT O SUSIA PO[NPAYDS oABY dm ‘ondxo 0} onp SI 9JedYIMD SISINL Y3 JO ANPI[RA 91 aIOYA (SISIN) S[OOYOS Wl pIEpuBIg
JUSWIdTEUEIA [BIOURUL] oY) JO sjuswanbar oyl yum douerdwod Suryoayd o} pIedal yum ¢ Jouend) Ul IOM INO PINUIIUOD DAY IAN

-SJURUWISSISSY SISINA

V XIANHddV 01/6007 LIOdAY LIANYV ATIALIVAO - LIANY TYNIYAINI ALLIOTAd



Page 226

91 a8eq

01/600T Hoday ¢ 1arren() — upny [eumeiu] KafuLre] Jo ySnoiog uopuoy

010 Y24DJ :2u1Ipva( Pasiaay

"O[qB]IBAR S2WI022q )1 UM 1sanbar aFueyod e se pafeisur
SIY) 198 0) uonuUAIUI SSIUISNG IY) SI 11 1BY) PUB O10T
UOIBJA UI PASBAal 9q [[IM SIY} JBy) poojsiopun St 1 jey)
palels os[e louaed sseursng SIT SYL [[eISUI 01 SHUDI[D
Ioy} [[e 10J 9SEI[AI [RIOUST UO J[qEB[IBAR 2q [[IM YOIgMm
‘JULI[O JOYJOUR JOJ 2IBM}JOS Y] 0} JUSWPUIWE UB Furjm
are oym ‘rjddns arem}yos 2y} ‘UY YHm PaIsIel uaaq sey
SIY} 1By} paleIs sey Joupred ssoursng S oYl ‘JOAIMOH
"POUOIOR  U22Q 19K jou  SBY UONEPUSWWONI Y],

:91epdn ¢ 1o11B0Q)

‘6007 42qQuia02(] Sem USALS QUI[PBIP PISIAI YL,
‘$89UISNg S, [IoUN0Y 9Y) JO 1591 9y} Issuowie pasnuond
s109fo1d 198 01 sseooxd Juop A10A S, ] 01 onp St AB[Op
oy} 1By} pue [0NUOO JI9Y} puokaq st I] Aq S90INOSaI
JO uoneso[R ) 1By} paiedipur ao1a1eg 2y |, “ueld joefoxd
s 11 1od se quedd( [ oY) I0j PI[npayds sem ajep
9A1] 03 2y3 ey} sem 7 Jojren() Ul paAledar ajepdn ayf

'sydwoyre uodog
preaur dannador Suimol[o] ssaooe
juoAaxd A[[nJ 01 IOpIO UI WIDISAS

o1 1021100 0} smrddns aremyjos 00T urd)sAS Jusmdeuey
ssaadoag uy | 01 opew  u2aq sey Jsenbar vy Key /Butofupy I 2SR XAYOL
90/500¢
aurpeaq
. , N o uonejuamddury
ajepd[)/simomiwro)) snyv)Sg/ssaaSorg feuISLIQ Aoy BIIY JIpNY

90/S00T SUONEPUIWWO0I3Y [ L1011 Jo uoneyudwddury - J10day ssaadoag paprerd(

V XIANAddV 01/6007 LIOdAY LIANV ATIALIAVAO - LIANY TVNIALNI ALLIOTAd




Page 227

L198eq

01/600T 10day ¢ 1o11en() ~ NIPNY [BUINU] A2fuLiey Jo ySnolog uopuory

6007 A2qQUIIA0N] :2UTIPDI(] PISIAY

‘s1dr1os 1oy ojur Aorjod pasIAal oy
Suneiodioour aq M oYM ‘WEI] $SI00Y PRI SHOHV
a1 Jo uonejuawddwr oY) YIm IpIOUIod 0] 00T JOGUISAON
01 popuaIxd oq Sui[pesp Sy} jeyl siysanbor so1AIs oy

"$2INPId0IJ uono01] A11edoid pue 19ssy
‘QWOOU] paWRUSI 3¢ [[IM [OIYm ‘SaInpadoid pasiAdl oY)
aje[dwods 01 60T 12903100 JO Pud 3y) Je paroadxa mou St 10y
sy onqng Surpiedar soorames [e3a] woxy Aorjod yeip vy
‘parudwd[dwr A[nj uoaq 394 JOU SBY UOT)BpUSUOd ST,

'60°6°81 21vpd))

(6002 12quiardag :2ulfppo([ PasIAaY) SIIIAISS

[e89] wo1y 201ApE pue yorqpag) Junreme [[us st Lorjod ayJ,
'60°L€1 21epdn

6007 AR Aq p2191dwod 3q pInoys SIY) — IJIApPE

[e89] Sunreme sIe juountedsp oY) Yorym Ur uonods Sururewar
suo woxy iede pasiaar udaq sey Aorjod gp wonoag ayj
1601060 @1epd) wowodeury

"91BP MIIADI B apnyoul [[im drejdwe) sry | -orejdwo)

SAOIAIG ANUNWIuIo)) 29 2IMn) ‘synpy pazipiepuels ot
Y)m Ul ur payeip-a1 Juraq st Aorjod g4 UOI09S pamaual
:60/10/S 1 91epdp) Juswageuey

pajuomdpduy Apaeg

V/N

‘JJ€1S JUBAS[DI [[B 0] POIROTUNWITIOD
pue pajep 9q pINOYS  SUIWNOOP
[[e 1Byl PpapusWWoodl Ioyuny SI 1|

"AIess202u J1 ‘parepdn
pue ‘Ajjenuue jseo[ je pue ‘A[e[ngar
pamaraar  oq  prnoys  sampadord
pue sa1orfod [[B 18Y) POPUSTUWIODI SI 1]

I

diys10A1939y 2 diysoayuioddy

SADIAYAS ALINNNINOD » TINLTAD ‘SLINdV

snyeyg/ssa1801g

smipraq woneusmsduy PWSLO

fnsong

UonEPUIWIOI0Y

PA

80/L00T SUONEepUW0INRY ¢-T Ayiolid jo uoneyudwojduy - y3roday ssaadoug paprerdoq

V XIANAddV

01/6007 LIOdTT LIANV ATHALAVAO - LIANV TYNYAINI ALLIOTAd




Page 228

g1 988 01/600T Hodayf ¢ 1911en() —~ npny [eutoiu] AoSuLief] jo ydnotog uopuor

010Z Savnuvp :2ut]ppa([ pasiaay

‘0107 Arenuef Ul paAIddal
aq 01 P2102dxXa ST ] "SAVIAILS [BS] YA [[1IS SI pue paedwod
u29q 194 10U sey saoIAles [eSo] woyy Aorjod yep oy,

$60°C1°sC 21rpdp)

snye)g/ssaa801g o 2:::3@ wonejusurarduy _aEw:O ‘\E.._cﬁm UOIRPUAMII0IIY JEN |

V XIONIddV 01/6007 LIOdAY LIANV ATIALAVAO - LIANY TVNYALINI ALLIOTAd




Page 229

61 98y 01/600T Hoday ¢ 1e11end) ~ 1PNy [ewIou] A3FuLIey jo y3noiog uopuor]
0 0 0 0 It s|s | |1 |s | s | poymg HURUIIND01J S[eLIRIe ]y Buruea])
0 0 0 0 L {tjojlof t |1]o0] o /[rmeueasng [011u0) Arerspng
2 JuowageuRA [e1oURUL] J1391RNg
0 0 0 0 9 ¢ £ 0 9 £ £ 0 | [enueisqng JANN
0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 1 l 0 0 | lenuesgng Sundioay yse)
0 0 0 0 S 14 1 0 s 14 [ 0 | Ienuesqng Sigouag Xe [, [10Un0) % Julsnoy
1 0 0 0 (4 ! 1 0 £ I 4 0 | Ienuelsqng SI0Npal’ny
0 0 0 0 |4 [4 I ! |4 4 ! [ | [enuesqng XBJ, [Tounos
0 0 0 0 L |1 lsi| ¢ [ | S | 1 |Ienuesqng sanadold jo resodsicy
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N4 JUSWISIAU] pun,f uoIsusg
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 R 108paT] [e1ouan) pue FunuUNOooy
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 g SIUOWASURLIY 20URINSU]
§32.M0s3y 93eaodio)
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 | renueisqng | 109fo1g Aeq [enbq jo uoneiuswaydury
0 0 0 0 S 0 4 [ S 0 ¥ 1 | renuesgng $y020 JuswAordwa-ar g
dO®d — SANMIXY Jary D
1 0 0 0 S 0 S 0 9 I S 0 | enuesqng SaINpaoolg Suruue] g Aouafiowsy
0 0 0 0 ¥ 1 € 0 b I ¢ 0 | 1enueisqng ampadoiy syurerdwo;)
I®ddd — SIANIXTY Jory )
I 0 0 0 z 0 4 0 € 0 ¢ 0 | [enumsqng | ALmoog 29 JustuafeuRy UOHBULIOJU]
IpIM-[IdUNO))
Suipueis;nQ anp
suopepuImmoddy | WA |ssoaBorg) dwmy |
1 Aoy JON uy JON | V/IN [®I0L| € 4 I |®oL}| ¢ (4 1
pajudumdduy K108a3e)
oA
SHONEPUI W0 Y duEBINSSY VAV LIdNV
HAOA\ 1PNV 60/8007 - A1qe L d() mofjoy
V XIANAddV 01/600T LIOJAY LIANY ATIALAVNO - LIANY TYNIAINI ALLIOTAA




Page 230

07 9%eqd 01/600¢ 1oday ¢ 111en) - upny [ewsaiu] KoSuiery jo y3nolog uopuo
Rricihs ..dwdﬂ._ qu.-l. B Al g, e i ; ol [ 0 & 310 2 agios i gl iy (AT J it Nt s e a3 RN TR SR ..quummr.—.
0 0 0 [ s 0 £ < 9 0 £ £ | [enueisqng g sinumsay
0 0 0 0 9 0 £ £ 9 0 £ ¢ | renumsqng aIming ay) Joj sjooyag Furpjing
JULINSSY JUIWITRUBY
1aloig - sayeaopax(q v
0 I 0 0 01 0 8 e 11 0 6 N _mmESmn_:m muur?.__um ...OQ..E@L{—. ._m.wﬁummm&
0 0 0 0 [4 0 [ 0 (4 0 [ 0 | 1enuesqgng | ASNOH Ainquiag — sanua) s, udapjiy))|
0 0 0 0 01 [ 9 € 01 1|9 ¢ panwry - [Bl2Uan) —anuay s uaIp(y)
ULIE.|
0 0 0 0 4 0 I I 4 0 [ | [ | [enueisqng IaEMpeOlg — SaIua)) m.:u%__sur
.  SOJIAMS
I N . s.91doag Bunox ¥ waipiy)
I 0 0 0 € |0 €] T 9 0 | + | T |[T1enueisqng JUDWAINI0I AIUD) AINSIA]
0 0 0 0 0 0] 0] 0 0 01010 [Ing ASojeng p Sumorssiuwo))
0 0 0 0 8 [ 9 I 8 I 9 | [enueisqns WnLoewal) ¥ mutuﬂuEuu‘_
0 0 0 I 8 i L 0 6 [ 8 0 | [enueisqng SWO] [ENUAPISAY 2SNOH Py
0 0 0 0 8 I L 0 8 [ L 0 | [enueisqng AWOF] AIL)) |BNUIPISDY POOMURIY)
SIIAIG
Aunmwwmo)) 3 3anym)) ‘synpy
0 0 0 € 0 0o]o] o € 0] ¢ | | [enueisqng (59852001 10128NU0 ) SKemYSIH
JUIWUOIIAUT URQI)
0 0 0 0 8 I L 0 8 1 L 0 | [Bnuesqng SOVHETV
0 0 0 0 9 [ g 0 9 | g 0 | [enuesqng SSBAEIB(] PHHOAM-T
0 0 0 0 01 T 8 0 01 < 8 0 | [enuesqng uoneoijddy [-ylomaurer
SuipuejsigQ anp
suonepuammoddy | 124 [ssaadoag| duy
1 Aprroriyg JON | JON | V/IN |I®¥I0L | € (4 I |®oL| € (4 I
pajusmdjdury A103a1e)
[PA9T]
STUOIIRPUIMWTTO0IIY IJUBINSSY vIIV LIany
V XIANAddV 01/6007 LIOdAH LIANV ATIALAVNO - LIANY TVNYALNI ALLIOTAd



Page 231

17 28ed

V XIANAddV

01/600C Hoday ¢ 1o1rend) — pny [eusoju] KsfuLreyy Jo ySnotog uopuory

SUONIEPUAUITIOAI JO uoneIudtua[duul PalIes dARY S101J0 — pajudwaydu Apaeg

“uaYe) U33q JOU SBY UONOE SATIRUIAIE ‘PISSIIPPE U] JOU SBY UONEPUSWIOISI 3Y) — pajuawrafdurr JoN

{SLI 3Y} SSAIPPE 0 USYE] UIQ SBY UOTIOR JANRWIN[E JO ‘walsAs o ur saFueyo o3 anp s[qesrjdde 193U0 OU ST UONEPUSWIN0D21 Y} — Y/N
'sasu0dsar Jo afdures € pAgLIOA 9ABY 9A\ "SUONEPUIIIONAI JO §831501d 313 UONIEOYTIIR0-][3S YSNOIY) paiestpur sey s1901j0 — payuawapdury

01/6007 LIOdTY LIANV ATIALIAVAO - LIANY TYNYALNI ALLIOTAd



Page 232

CTodeq

01/600¢ 10day ¢ 1ouen() — upny [ewdu] Lafuue Jo ySnolog uopuo|

010T Y240JN -2Uljppa pastasy

"panordde pue pamaraal aq o}
104 21B INQ PaIEP PUB PAIUAWNOOP U] dARY saInpadoxd oy

60°C1°€C 21opdp)

6002 A2QUIPAON] :2UIIPDI(] PISIADY

‘J90]]  pasieuIalxe  A[[R10} oY) yum  sjuowofuelre
Junerodo mau oyl jo Sy w wede sJOS YeIp [[B 9S1AdL
0] PI2U 2} pue ‘@0IAIS 3} JO 1ed [OIYDA puUR ISALID Yl
Jo Suromosino a1y ‘sonsst Suygyels Joud Jofew ‘0] pajmnIoas
Jureq 1sod 1o3eurpy suonerad() mau a) 0} anp uU2q Sey

Aeop oY, "6007 IPqUISAON JO PU2 ay} 2q 01 AN ST SJOS
SNOLIBA 2U} JO SUOISIOA PadiSe [eul) o1} IO} uI[peap 9y,

260°01°9] v SIUMWO0D JUIWMISVUD P

6007 12quaydas :2u1ppa( pasiazy “SYUuow
X1s urgum pojejdwos sampoocoid oy eaey o3 suejd pue
901AI9S 21 JO juowaSeurw 0] UOHIPPE UI 901AI0S 1Iodsuel],
oyl Aq pojerado saunpaoord fie Supepdn pue Surmoradl
Jo ssaooxd oY) ur AQUaLING ST pue 6007 Alenigoj woy
se poyutodde uoaq sey 1e8euryy suonerdd() 1rodsuel] mau v

2607, €I avpdp)

§sa.13014 U]

3007 JOQUISAON

(o]

'siseq orportad
e uo ‘oreudoidde aroym ‘esory Sunepdn
pue Fuimoraar Surpnpour ‘sainpaosord
oY1 SururejuTRW 0] IOOUJO PIJBUIIOU
v 0] paudisse aq pnoys Apjrqisuodsoy

"90URIOJAT 10 JJBIS JUBAQJ[DI [[B
0] a[qereA® opew pue [9A9] alerdoidde
oyl 1e paroidde ‘pajep ‘pajuaWINOOp
9q p[noys sojemdo 201a108 1odsuely
IoFuassed oy} yorym Aq samnpasold oy

SADIAIRG Ja10dsuea |, 103udssey

SHDIAYES SH'TdOdd ONNOA ANV NHIAA'TTHD

sneIg/s891501

oEE«aG naaﬁnoﬁo_nﬁﬂ :::wﬂc

Aoy

UONEPUIWOIY

E23. |

60/8007 SUONIBPUIWWIOINY € — | AJLIOLIJ SuipuelsinQ - 110day $sa130.4J pajre’dq

V XIANAddV 01/600T LYOdAY LIANY ATIALIVNO - LIAAV TYNYAINI ALLIOTAd




Page 233

€7 98eq 01/600T Hodoy ¢ 1011end) — 1pny [PUINU] AoSULIBY] JO YSnolog uopuoy
oIy JSIy oY) Jo sojnurw oy] -pajuowoldu usaq 0} [oued pajedIPap B JO JUSWYSIQRIS? oU] e
Sey [1oUno)) Y} pue weas I JULIOIUON U1 OWTY 101 pajIuy
oY ‘OINTV U} Usomioq s[000j01d UOTEOTUNUITIOD 10U Jnq 2pN[OUT P[NOYS MIIAJI Y] [IOUNO))
[eWI0] JO 10S B puB PoySI[qeISe Useq Sey pieog oY) pue wed], FULIONUOA JUSI[D) OINTV Y
owrueIFold SOWOH U0d9(] Y] 'POMIIADI U0Qq ‘OTV 91 U9am1aq $[000301d UOTIBOTUNUILIOD
JABY SWWRIFOIJ SOWO] Jua0a(] 2y} JO juswoSeuew [BULIO} JO 39S B YSI[qeISd P[NOYS [10UN0))
oyr  Surpiedar  sjuswlSuelIR  20UBUIOACS  9Y] oy} ‘Ioyung owWwieIZold SAWOH UAdd(] AY)
Jo 1uwowoaSeuew oyy Surprefar sjuownueLe
pajuomajduy AJ21R1poUtIuy I OOUBWISAOT 9} MSIASI PINOYS [IOUNOD) dY], €
‘parenur
9q 0] SYI0M ) I0J IOPIO Ul SUOTIROII0adS
“BUISNOY I0J JoqUIDJA] PBO] SYI0M [BULJ 9] JO JUDWSTPIIMOWNOE SB IIDIJO
oy} pue ey 2y} £q Jjo pauSis SI pue I9qo1d(0) Woy As3uLiely 10J SSWOY B pUB [15UN0)) € Y1oq Aq
st paure}qo 1odoy] ‘syuow 7 A19A9 pjay are sSureouw Jjo paudis Apuanbasqns oq usy) pnoys suLIo]
JY ] "9[qB[IBAR 2PEUI U292 SBY JUSWINOOP 291IWIWO0D oyl suonedyioads poaaoidde [eury oy pue
1UOWDIND01J JJO Poudis Juoodl jsowl aY ] ‘safueyd safueyd Aue apnjoul 0} papuswe a1e AdFuLie
Aue opnjour 01 pojdope U29q SBY JBULIO)] MIU Y Jo} sowoy Aq paptwgns suoj qesodod
oY)  ‘9APIWWO))  JUSWAINIOIJ S [IOUNO))
payudmmojduny Ao1BTpaUI] 7 oyl £q sofeyoed jiom jo [eaoxdde uwodn ré
010C Y240y :2ullppa(] pastady
“SUITR[D SYIOM S[npayods [euIdLIo oY}
0] opeWl JUSWPULWE 9y} PUB IPBW 2q [[IA UOISIOap
[PwIO} ® ‘STY) SUIMO[[0] ‘0107 A[Jed Ul apew 2q O}
pa102dxa S1 UOISIoap Y[ ‘PAuRIZ 2q [[IM [onw Moy
U0 OpBW UG SBY UOISIOP JUSIILIDAOL) B [1JUn dpewl ‘Aagurreyy 10} sowoy] £q
oq jouued spunjy [euonppe Surprefas UOISIdAP AU SWIR[O SHIOM S[NPaYs [BUISLIO O} JUSWPUSWL
pue pajsonbar spunj [euonippe oy} I0A0
pajwowdpduy Apaeg 6007 12q0190 1 UOISIOAP [BULIO] B OYBW P[NOYS [I0UN0)) Y], 1

SQAVANVLS SHINOH INADIAA

INFNTINDO0U - SIONOSHY ALVIOJI0D

snyeyg/ssoafoig supeaq woieymomojduy [pmSLQ | Anronig UONRPUI U020y P
01/600T SUONEPUIWLI0IIY Jo uonejudwddw] - SPAEPURIS SIUIOF JUIII(]
V XIANAddV 01/6007 LIO4dTY LIANYV A TIALIVNO - LIANY TYNYALINI ALLIOTAd




$7 9%eg 01/6007 110day ¢ 1uend) — jipny [ewaiu] AsSutef] jo ySnolog uopuory

Page 234

IDOLFO [BIOURULY JOTD @

sa01A19g Suisnoy
Anunuwio)) pue 2182jen§ JoJ JO02I(] JURISISSY e

JUSWUOJIAUG UBQI(] JO JOJ02I(] @
KaBurIeR] J0J SOWIOH ‘pieog JO 1Y) e
$20IN0S3Y 2jeiodIo)) I0j IDqUIDJA 19UIGE) e
SOOIAING SUISNOH 10} ISqUIDIA JPUIqE) e

[1ouUno.) oY} JO 10pe] e
:9PN]OUT SIOQUIDJA

"SUreans

20UBUIOAOS SUTISIXO 91 YJim A[DAN0I]JD JIOM O e
‘S3]E0SOWIN] pue s}e3pnq 0] 90ULIJAl

Temonaed gim ‘suorsioop Aorjod SO 1u999(]

[1® Jo uonjejuswadwr oy jo suoneordun 2y} jo

2IBME OJB SIOJIJJO PUB SIOqUISW JeY) INSud 0] e

‘pIepuess se sjoafoxd
guioduo 01 opew oq 03 poou  safueyd
dyPeym  pue udyeuopun are  sofeyoed
SYIom 01 SOFUBYO MOY PUB J0IWWO))

"so[eosaw) jsurede ssargord WOWAINO0IJ Y} M UONBOIUNWIWO) e

pue Sunionuow 198pnq Jo suLpwy ur awwerdord

SOWIOH] JU203(T Y} JO AIDAI[OP U] 99SI9A0 O] e
‘sIop[oyayels e

Aq pauMmO 21 959Y]) JBY} 2INSUD puR ‘QWeIZ01]

pue
‘paredIUNUIWIOd pue uo poprodar Ajjeutiof
‘payTiuapl st douruLIonnd sepunsiood MO e

SOWO}] JUd09(] 9y} Suipnpour  ‘ownueIford ‘poxmbal sIom 10 s9A199[qo [rUOnEIRdO
! ! -
endey  AoSunepy 10] SOWOH [[BISAO 21} pue  Jlgojens  w mowmmao paxmbo
10y syuowannbal pue suoneoadxo Ieo[d 195 O] @ uneomunuiwos ur soul] funodor [ewlIo] e
:SMOJ[O] SE oIe ‘owrreafoad
pIROg SWWEIS0IJ SOWO] JUI(] Ay} JO SWIy oy oy} JO QINONINS QOOUBUIOAOS  [[BIDAQ) e
“JIpny 01 9[qR[IBAE ‘[oA9] o13918118
opew U99q dABY pleog SwweIifold 2y Jo sSuneow 18 owweISoId SOWO JUSOA(] I I3SIDA0
smyeig/ssoafory 0 | sunpesq wonejmouwrsiduiy jemSuQ | Anroig THONEPUIMIO0IIY REX |

V XIANAddV 01/6007 LIOdTY LIANY ATIALIAVNO - LIANV TVYNIALINI ALLIOTAA




Page 235

ST a%eq

01/600¢ 110day ¢ uend) — pny [euraiu] AsGuLiey jo ySnolog uopuo|

pag8o] a1e sonss] ‘Jooy Furyiom e st So] sansst Ay,

Sjomawrer J justwogeury 10a{01g
S J1ouno) ay yum douendwod ur oy sonssy

payudwardury AJa1RTpotIIu] I o1ejeng S)I wWeuIeW pnoys [ouno) oyl | 9
‘spiodar 1yS1ySy
1aford ATiuoy Y1 ul papnpur are sysiSar oy
‘SBaJR IN0jJ oY1 0]
JOQUIDAON PUB 19Q0J0() WO} SIO)SITAI JO Q0UIISIXD
9y} padUSPIAD OS[e 1PNy }pny 01 S[qE[IBA®
opewr 21om seare joofoxd 1noj [ 10 Joquoidog
woy s101s13a1 ay) Jo ojdwes y 'wolss oyl urejurew
os[e oym QIN'TV 24l Aq paonpoid are s1ojsrdar oy,
ot {ove “JUSTATRURW IOTUDS JO UOTIUS)IE oY)
. s Huene ayj 10}
,wwmawﬁ Y1 uo cuwmnhmz aJe S191S1321 9Y Hh A9SUIO} pue suiodor 1Ay 1oefoxd Ajgiuow oy A
U0, YINOS ‘WRYuUaNOo] YMON ‘UdIID POOAL :
‘seaie 109[01d 1noy a1 Jo yoeo oy 103s1501 ajeredos v PoP[OUL G PINOYS payRuapt SYSU orsarens
ST 21971 pue siseq A[yjuow & uo pajepdn aie S10)si3al -arerdordde a1oym ‘ONTV o1 Aq
9Y ], "pauIBIUIRU DI SIOISIFOY YSIY O150JBIIS [BULIO,] paurejurew 191sI39y YTy oY) yum paudye s
187} 1018130y YSry O180Je)S [BULIO} B UIeIUTRW
pajudwdjduy AJo1BIpaur] I p[noys [ouno) oyl umpm  Juowadeurjy | S
0107 Laonaqa,y :aurpva(q pasiay
SIOMOUWRI]
QOUBWLIONDG AY) UYNm duly ur SIS Npny
01 papiaoid usaq 2ARY WINAI ddueUy ¢ Jouenb oy
Surpnjour sumior Apevrenb omy ismy oy Aorenb “Apnunuod
OTDd 9Y) O} 9pewl 2B SUWINPI pue  AdUdd3p SAJIYOE 0] I9pIO UT NIOMAWEI] JUIWDTRUBIA
I0J s)a81e) o) Jsurede SuLIOjUOU ST 2137 ‘A[USLINY 13fo1q $JIUN0Y oYL Yim U] Ul UoYeLIpUN
wea ], st oy Aq ponord oq wo oq pInoys sy "saAnoefqo ordorens asoy)
[11s aurjaseq 100fo1g QMW ‘010C \Amw::mh s 1T Paroadxa BUWASIYIE ST OWTY s Moy a8nes o) 19pIo Ul
Ieog 9yl 0) wodal feur SI0J0QII(] anowmamE 1afo1d oy Jo yred feorid oy Suope souoysajrw
P : : Koy 108 pinoys juoweSeuew  ‘ssorford
19SSy 21 UI 1IN0 19S SB $3ATI02[qO o139181)S 01 Jsurede .
painseawr 2q [ria j02foid SOWOH JU00d(] Ay JO JOjuememsEAW Ayl pre 0} “dlowneyn,g
sso1god oy, "¢ uonepusururodar 1ad se ‘paysijqeise "1981N0
Uoaq sey pieog OWWRIS0I] SOWOR U3 YL 1efoid ayy je poorSe soanoolqo  o1Sojens
[entur oy} jsurede 100f01d SoWO} JU0d(] A3
pajusurdjdmy Appreq guro3uQ 1 Jo ssa3oxd oy aunsesw pnoys juswoSeurpy 4
snye}g/ssaaSoag - | sunppea( uoneyuowaduy [pmsLQ | AjroLig UOHEPUIWT 033 JEN |

V XIANAddV

01/6007 LIOJTY LIANYV ATHALAVNO - LIANYV TYNIALNI ALLIOTAd




Page 236

97 28eqg

01/6007 1oday ¢ 12uend) — 1pny [PuIU] AoSuLieH JO YSnolog uopuo]

‘1pny 01 papiaoid a1om sajnurwt Sunesut  sislienb
OM] 1SB[ 9 ], [IoUN0)) 9Y] JO I9pea JY} PUB SI10J02II(]
QATINOIXH UdaMIAq STUTeaW AJIe3ienb osfe a1e 210y,

npny
0] 9[qe[IEAB PRI SJoM SUYIUOW 29IY} ISB] U} JO
sonuIWw oY ], "sanss! [euonerdo SSnISIp 0] S1010911(]
O] pUE SJIOJOAIIP SANNIAXH JY} UdIMIAQ SBUISdW
A[iuowr 218 2I9YJ] -PIIUSWNOOP MOU dIB Wed]
WD) OIN'TV 21 pue OWTV 2} U22M19q SBUNRIIN

‘PRITSWINOOP 3G PINOYS Wiea I, JUAID) OWTV

payudwayduny KJ2181patuy € pue QIWTV 92Ul Udamioq ploy sfunesw [y 8
‘soueuoyrad Suriojuow J0j SjUSMWFULRLIE UOSIRY]
O} SE [[9M SB 20UQIOJOY JO SUWLIDT, 9} N0 S19S Yorgm
‘[000101J 20UBULIOLISJ JYRI(] 23 Ul papn[dur st SIyJ, "wes |, SULIOITUON ST OINTV
oY) 10] 20UDIRJOY JO SULIB] B JUSWINOOP
payuawd(duy paruawardu] Z pUE JTWAI [BULIO] B JUIJOP PINOYS Juawafeusy L
npny 01 9[qe[reae
apew sem j10day WYSYSIH 109f01d 10qUS0d(] YL,
‘wo1sAs juawsfeuew Fof sansst 2y Jo jurid
U90I0S B IO [0°90dM O} JOJ3I 2seald “YIOMOWeRI]
1wswageue 193[01J S, [I0UN0D) Y} YIm Ju] Ul SI 30] -1odoy WS1ySry 109{o1d 9y ut uo parrodar
oY, "sonssI oFeuewW O] Pasn SI Yorym WISAS ay) Uo 0q prmoys Fo[ 2y} UM PIIOI[JAI  Sanss]
snye}§/ssaaSoag o auppea( uoneymawaydmy pmSaQ | Aoy 0N EPUIW 03y JEN |

V XIANHddV 01/6007 LIOdTY LIANY ATIALIVNO - LIANY TYNIALNI ALLIOTAd




Page 237

1T 38ey 01/600T 3Hodoy ¢ o1end) — npny [euu] AsSurreq] jo y3nolog uopuo

YLE VDT UopuoT 190mg MmN apir]
[ "9SNOH [[IH :90[J0 PAINSIFRY 791 68SH Joqunu paiastSal yum safepy pur pueSug ur P2121SIS1 ST PaNWIT JIPNY [BUIDIU] 030G S1[qNg Yono 1 2% 2n10[3(]

"PAAIISAI SIYSLI[[Y PRI IPNY [RUIDIU] J0IOIS DT[Ny SYONO 1 29 anorRd 6000

"UIDID A NSJBUIYO | 9Y9N0 [
Ao 2y £q 10U pUE SATBI[FE IO SILILIPISGNS 1Y) 1O SUL 10quiow o) Aq papiaoid ae SOOIAIDG "SAUWEU Paje[al JITIO IO ‘ NSIBWYO] dYono] aofa(..
‘AnopR(,, soweu oy sopun Sunesado Apus (ee) wopuadopur pue sjeredss e st SULY JOQUIaW 3y JO yoey  "SUOISSIWO IO SIOB S, IOYI0 (0B 10] AN[IQEI|
Aue sey swiy Ioquow S JO AUR 10U NSIUIYO] SYINO] APIO[A(] LY Yons se ‘pue ‘(UOUBIJOSSE) WIDIDA SSIMG B ST NSIBWYO] YONO| MO nsjeWyo |
AYONOT, AMMIOP(] JO ULIP IdqUIAW WOPSUrY Palruf) A SI YOIYM ‘dTT M0 JO AIRIpISqns e St PaNWIT NpAY [BUINU] 10199G d1[qNg 2YDNO] % NIO[3(]

PANWITIPNY [EWINU] 10303§ d1[qng YN0, 79 AMNIO[A(] 03 SIIUIIJAI D18 RI0[A(] 0 SIOUDIJAI JUSWINOOP SI U]

0107 Lrenuep
uopuory

PINWIT NPNY [BUIIU] 10)I3G NGy YIN0 ], 3 M0

‘pIeOg
SpIEpUR]S 20URINSSY PUE UPNY [gUonewai] ay) Aq panssi (0p0€ AVSI) SiuowafeSuy soueInssy uo plepuelg [eUOnEWIANU] o1 Yim dqetedwios jou st 1odas
1IpnE [PUINUL INO UI PIPIEME [9AI] SOURINSSE Y "WASAS [0HUOD [BWIMIUI J[qRI[2] € JO 0URUSIUTEW 2 10y uerodun st juswefeuew Aq suonepuswmosal
0o jo uoneawo[dwr AP pue AN  SIUSWNOOP SAY Jo Adnudpne Ot 2INSUS 01 pue yIoM jipne Ino jo sesodnd oy 1oy suonoesuen
puE $pI0da1 Fununodoe Iy} 0) §$999€ [y sn apiaoid 01 JuoweSeuRW UO AJo1 om yons se pue soueoyuSIs pue Ysu 15018013 Jo Suraq se juowoFeuew
Aq paynuapr se seale uo sndoj 01 paudisap aie saxpasoxd rpne [BUIIU] "pregy dAISn[00 Jsurede Jooud aq Jou Aew pue 2ouBINSSE 2N[OSqE JouU pue 9|qeuoseal
ap1aoid ATuo ued [0NUOD [BUINUI JO SWAISAS PUNOS ULA "sanuenSonr o pney Jo Anpiqissod ay3 03 spreSas aAeY 01 pannbar are “yiom Iay; Sunonpuods
ut ‘sioppny  CAJIRMSALT 1O pnef jO SIdUBISWNOID [[e AJnuopt o) uodn parjar tou ‘S[OUOD [BWIANUL UL SISSOUNRIM pue sypSuans [[e Amuapt 01 uodn
P32 2q 10U p[NOYS Jpne [eusul Aq patuiojsed YIom pue juswaSeuew i $91 sanenSaLn 10 pue pney jo uonos9Iap pue uonuosdld oy pue sjonuod
[eUIdUL JO WISAs punos e 1of Anpiqisuodsar oy Jey asiseydwo o4y seonoed JuowoSeurw punos jo uoneordde ayy 107 sompiqisuodsas s JustweSeuew
10} IMmNSqns B S Ua)E] 5q JOU P[NOYS pue 10U ST YIom Jipne [pwalul Jo dduewuojiad ayy ‘pAruswaldur are Aoty 210§9q 1vedwr [[ny ey 107 nok £q
Passasse 2q pMOYS SJUSWAAOIAIII 10} SUONEPUSIIIONY "dpew 3q 1YS1w ey syuswasodwr [[e Jo ISIX@ JBY) SISSIUNLOM 3] [[€ JO JUSWAILIS AAISUIY2Id 10D
e ALIESS200U JOU 210 PUE YIOM JIPNE [BWISIUI INO JO 25IN0d A1 Surmnp UORUSNE INO 03 dwed yorym a0y} A[uo aze uodor siypy ur pasies sionew oy

“M0[3Q N0 Jas SUOHEIUI] 23 JO SISeq oY) uo paredard st yomym 1iodar sy 10y Aqiqrsuodsar aye; 9 M

ANiqisuodsay jo yudurd)e)g

V XIANIddV 01/6007 LYOdAY LIANV ATIALAVAO - LIANY TVANALNI ALLIOTAd



Page 238



Page 239

i jo | abed

3ols
Jo 1sjium Bupjiom
0 0 } Jo uopebs|ly
JOJoBIU0D JO BsN
0 0 L Jeinbauj pabajy
passiwsiq asAojdwg
(4/g) Ya1s yo
Buipusd Aseuydiosig Isiiym ssauisnq
Buiuuni asAojdwe
Buipuad L | | 1ey} uoyebayy
pabpoT 13
jeaddy
1e pjaydn [essiwsig (d/g) swiepo
asuadxa Je|
passiwsi esAojdwg nBauj/suonoiruoo CLTTNETS
Buuojow esojosip | suosiagd Bunoy
Buipuad Areuldiosig L L L 0} ainjiey pabajy R Ualpliyo
awiy y1om
paubisey askoldwg ul ssauIsNg umo S9oIAIOG
Buiuuns sskojdwe Alunwwon B
Buipuad b } 5 jey) uonebajly |  aunyng qinpy
uoljebiysaau|
Areuydiosiq
(umouy y1) o} joslgns 60/ZL/LE
(3) S1992140 je uanoud | pajebiysanul
anjeA | swoonQ Areujdiosiqg Jo "ON S8SBD JO 'ON | sased jo "'oN | adA) Ajuenbouy ajelOl0aIIQg

9 XION3ddVY

60/800Z WOY 4/9 8 60/Z1/1€ - 60/¢0/10 AILVOILSIANI STILIIVINOIYYI - LIANY ISNOH NI




Page 240

i jo Z obed

Buipuad Aseuridiosiq

JO1S JO Isfiym
JuswAojdws Jayjo
aJejoap 0} pajie}
sey asAojdwo
jey; uoiebayly

paubisay asAojdw3

juswAojdwa
J8Y}0 9S0j0SIp 0}
pajie} 98kojdwa
ley} uonebally

LIPSV ETS
aAN2ax3
oo

swiejo
a0UBMO||B pue
awipano tejnbauly

0 0 b jo uonebajly
awiaA0 Jeinba)
pue jsyy
0 0 L jo uopeba|ly
uoinebiysaauj
Areundiosiq
(umouy y1) 03 Joalqns 60/2L/1E
(3) S1991J0 je uanoud | pajebiysanul
anjep | awooinQ Areunjdiosig JO "ON sased Jo 'ON | sased jo 'oN | adAj Auemnbaiy ajel0)o9iiq

9 XIaN3ddV

60/8007 WOY 4/9 8 60/T1/1€ - 60/70/10 AILVOILSIANI STILNVINOIWYI - LIANV ISNOH NI




Page 241

v Jo ¢ ebed

(d4/9) 18yddns
UliM JuswisA|oAul

Jenbau juswiuoiiAug
0 0 ¥ JO uoneba|y ueqan
BIOIYSA |1oUN0Y
Buipusd Areuydiosig | L L Jo ssnsi pabsjy
swie|) abeajipy
pue sjesysau |
Jeinbauy
Buipusd Areuyidiosig | | | Jo uoyebejy
8|es puej seinbaii
Buipusgd Ateuydiosig | | b jo uoyeBayy
Bujuiepn usnupa jeutd
|eaddy je pajejsul-ay
(49) seounosay $824Nn0SaYy
passiwsi( 1 l l JO 8snsip ajesodion
syuswebueie
jaAel) seinbau
paubisay ashojdwy L L l Jo uonebayjy
uonjebijsaau]
Areuydiosig
(umoun y1) 03 Joalqns 60/ZL/LE
(3) S192140 je uanouad | pajebpsaaul
anjep | awoonQ Areundiosiq Jo 'ON S9SeD JO "ON | sased jo 'oN | adA}] Aenbau) ajeloldaiqg

9 XIAN3ddV

60/800Z WOUY4 d4/8 2 60/T1/1€ - 60/40/10 A3LVDILSIANI SALLINVINOIYYI - LIANY ISNOH NI




Page 242

¥ Jo ¢ ebed

00€3 " " 0¢ jeyot
1diaoal
-uou Jo swiep
00€3 V/N V/N V/N } sanbayo Hg1 Jyy1oads-uoN
uoneooje
Buisnoy tejnbau
Buipuad Ateuyjdiosig | } | jo uoyebayy
uoljebiIsaAuj
Areundiosiqg
(umouy J1) o} Joalqns 60/ZL/LE
(3) S192140 je uaaoud | pajebiysoaul
anjepA | awo2inQ Asreujdiosiqg Jo "ON S9SED JO "ON | S9sed jo "'oN | adA] Ajreinbaiyy ajel0309.i(

60/8007 WOY 4/9 8 60/TI/1€ - 60/70/10 AFLVOILSIANI SIILAEVINOIHYI - LIANVY ISNOH NI

9 XION3ddV



Page 243
Haringey Council — Audit Committee

Disciplinary Case Analysis October 2009 to December 2009

Introduction

The information in this report is taken from SAP, covering the period 01 October 2009 — 31 December
2009.

The data is based on Haringey Council employees who

¢ hold Permanent, Temporary or Fixed Term Contracts

» are considered as Supernumerary (employees that have been on a Temporary Contract for more
than 52 weeks)

Note that this data excludes:

o Casual or Sessional Workers

e Schools
* Agency Workers

Legend

R G ey s T
o S Vg Foos ferns 5
oo Py
oo o S T

Policy, Performance, Partnership & Comms PP

- Urban Environment UE :
HGY

Haringey Council

The Council’s Disciplinary Procedure is considered as a tool to assist in good management and not
solely as a means of imposing sanctions or setting out procedures leading to dismissal.

The procedure aims to:

* Allow managers to address issues of unsatisfactory conduct and seek improvements in
behaviour

» Ensure that employees covered by the procedure are treated fairly and consistently

* Ensure that proper and adequate procedures are observed before any disciplinary decisions are
taken

e Help and encourage all employees to achieve and maintain standards of conduct, attendance
and job performance

» Maintain discipline essential to the delivery of high quality services

» Protect the health, safety and well being of staff, service users and members of the public

e Safeguard the integrity and good reputation of the Council
(Disciplinary Procedure July 2005)

| of 6



Page 244

Disciplinary Cases

This section looks at the number of formal actions taken against employees under the disciplinary
procedure based on data retrieved from SAP.

Disciplinary Cases by Directorate

Directorate  CasesOpen  CasesClosed  Noofcases  Noofemployees
AS 8 ﬁ 12 20 | 17
c . | 0 0

Please, note that the total number of cases is 62, but this only represents 58 employees. The reason
being, that one employee can have more than one case running concurrently. For example, an
employee’s dismissal could count as one case and their appeal as another.

« Children’s has the highest percentage of disciplinary cases against its workforce at 2.17% in
this quarter

e 42 cases remain ‘open’ at the end of this period.

The following table looks at the stages of Disciplinary cases.

Stages of Disciplinary Cases
‘Stage  CasesOpen  CasesClosed  Total %
(Invest.-notsuspended 07 17 | 27 |
ET | 1 0 ‘

Appea e 2 8 W
Total 42 20 | 62 | 100

20f6



Page 245

The following table identifies the outcomes of the 20 cases that were concluded.

Disciplinary Case Outcomes

Invest. - { :
- Appeal dismissed :
| Appealuphetd o
iD;smlssal R

o

NO actlon o ‘,
| Other S TS
Part upheld

| Verbal Wammg

\Nntten warning 10

Fmal wnt Wammg ;

Suspensxon hfted 0 0
Relegatxon/Demotlon ) 0 ) ] 5

= R I . R S =T S S

N
o

- Compromise Agreement
Total 7

N O 0000 00 0 0 0O a4 o
© 0o 0o oo o oo oo o o0 o

~ o

S
D

»  25% of cases resulted in Resignation

This table displays reasons for Disciplinary action against employees.

Reasons for Disciplinary Cases

esson e e CasaGiosed T Tl T %
T L e AR St Sy
P i R S e S
st R e e
o e 2
v oresowcss o S
! B ST -
g e | EUET )
R e e e

O N O =N o
®

» The highest cause for disciplinary action was for Behaviour at 31%

Jof 6



PP

Page 246
This table looks at the ethnic breakdown and gender split for Disciplinary cases

Disciplinary Case employee representétion
by Ethnicity and Gender

Female Male , All ;
‘EthnicClass  Total %  Total %  Total %

B&ME 21 64

| Wh|te L .
NotDeclared 0 0 0 ¢
Total - 33 57

e 33% of the workforce is male, but the male representation with disciplinary cases is significantly
higher at 43%

The following table looks at the ethnic breakdown per Directorate and across grade bands.

Disciplinary Case employee representation by
Ethnicity and Grade Band
(T Total no. in grade band WF = % of total duscnplmed employees in Dlrectorate) :

o MANUAL:

Dir Ethnlc

“AS

“CR

PO

;oo
1 100 .
o o oo
ST
5
5

00
00

00 |
00
20
o
oS
20.0 '
200
103
52
15.5

0.0 | 100 |
00 50.0
o s 0
ol
0.0 33 569
52 25  43.1

52 58 100

20.0 .
S
, 400 |
17 10 172

UE

MO MO OO <404 ® NN AN O

200
190
86

276

—
—

HGY 0.0 10 17.2

17 © 20 345

)
© B OO N 4 2 40 42400 00 AN NSO 2

© W O NN O OO OO0 oo N 440 n o oo

o
o
W WO OO0 00 0 00 00 4 4 O N,

155

—
D

4 of 6



Page 247

Suspensions

This table shows a summary of suspension cases.

Summary of Suspension Cases
Case status L Total
o, of casesheard 6 :
Mo of caces et oo 2
' Noof cases not con

casesnotconcluded 25

Timescales (no of days) of Suspension Cases

The table below looks at the 36 suspension cases and identifies the no. of working days each case has
taken. If the case has not concluded by the end of the period, the number of working days is calculated
from the start date of the current disciplinary stage to the end of the quarter.

The table also identifies, by directorate, the average number of days suspension for all cases, the
maximum days for a single case and average days suspension for cases heard within that period.

Timescales (no of days) of Suspension Cases

. S 4an . B1- - 121- 0 181- . Total ' Total | daysof ' Max.

Directorate 1-60 © 150 180 240  24%* ' cases ‘days | total  Days
| f f  Ccases |

Total |
. cases : days of

, - cases
heard - peard

8 607 76 186 3 | 112

AS 51

C ;5555150515125982;7825253;53590g

“CR 2 2 6 624 104 | 204 o o

PO 2 3 191 35 0 0

PP 0 o o o o o

UE 12 0 8 989 124 ' 161 o0 0

HGY 8 117 3 2 3 384 100 & 305 6 o101

Total cases | T T
heard

On average, 100 days were spent on each suspension case within the quarter.

50f6



Page 248

Average and Maximum Days Taken for Suspension Cases by Directorate

450 S - = B S S
400 -
350 A
300 -
250
200 -
i 150
100 -

'  Avg. days 3 Max. days

The chart below looks at the number of suspension cases per quarter and highlights Haringey Council’s
average number of days per case.

No. of Cases and Average days taken per Case
by Quarter

200

160

120

1100

80 -

40 -

Jan09 - MarQ9 Apr09 - Jun09 Jul09 - Sep09 Oct09 - Dec09

Total Number of Cases Averag‘ekpays per Case -

There are a number of difficult and complicated suspension cases (12) that are still under investigation.
As a result of these cases, the number of average days have increased since the last quarter monitoring
report.

60f6



Page 243 Agenda Item 16

Haringey Council

Agenda item: [No-]

Audit Committee On 1 February 2010

Report Title: Internal Audit — CIPFA benchmarking results

Report authorised by: Chief Financial Officer

. () o
FHERAY

Report of and Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Information

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To advise the Audit Committee of the results of the CIPFA Benchmarking exercise
completed in 2009/10.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and/or other Strategies:

2.1Audit and Risk Management contribute to the Council priority to deliver excellent,
customer focused, cost effective services by ensuring that internal audit services are
delivered as effectively and efficiently as possible to maximise audit coverage and
secure value for money.

3. Recommendations
3.1 That the Audit Committee notes the content of the report.

4. Reason for recommendation(s)

4.1The Audit Committee is responsible for considering reports dealing with the
management and performance of providers of internal audit services to the Council as
part of its Terms of Reference. In order to facilitate this, the outcome of the
benchmarking exercise is reported to the Audit Committee.




Page 250

5. Other options considered
5.1 Not applicable

6. Summary
6.1 This report outlines Internal Audit’s participation in the annual CIPFA benchmarking
exercise.

7. Head of Legal Services Comments

7.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this report, and
notes that the processes and procedures adopted all follow published best practice
guidance. Accordingly, there are no direct legal implications arising out of the
recommendations in the report.

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments

8.1 The benchmarking results are positive and indicate that Haringey's internal audit
service is offering value for money.

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1Not applicable

10. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

10.1 This report deals with how the internal audit service is provided to the Council.
Effective and efficient service delivery will have an impact on various parts of the
community. Improvements in value for money will therefore improve services the
Council provides to all sections of the community.

11. Consultation
11.1 No consultation was required or undertaken in the production of this report.

12. Service Financial Comments

12.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work
undertaken to participate in and complete the CIPFA benchmarking exercise are
contained and managed within the Audit and Risk Management revenue budget.

13. Use of appendices
13.1 N/A

14. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

14.1For access to the background papers or any further information please contact Anne
Woods on 0208 489 5973.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec




Page 251

15. Background

15.1

Haringey Council is committed to delivering high quality, cost effective services across
all of its functions. The Council is assessed by external inspectors on whether it is
achieving ‘value for money’ for its residents. One element of this is the annual CAA
Use of Resources assessment, which up until 2008 had a separate Value for Money
element.

15.2 From 2009 onwards, the revised Use of Resources assessment incorporates the value

16.

16.1

for money judgement throughout all the elements. It is essential therefore that all
services can demonstrate that they deliver their services in a cost effective and efficient
manner in order to assist the council in achieving the highest possible ratings. The
Internal Audit service has chosen to participate in the voluntary IPF benchmarking
exercise as part of its overall objectives to deliver cost effective services to the Council.

Background

Haringey Council has participated in the Internal Audit Benchmarking Club
administered by the Institute of Public Finance (IPF) since 2005/06. The IPF
benchmarking club is a voluntary exercise which organisations can opt in to, or out of,
on an annual basis. IPF is a division of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA).

16.2 The purpose of the benchmarking exercise is to provide comparative information which

can form the basis upon which performance comparisons and value for money
judgements can be made. The information from the Benchmarking Club can also be
used in the audit planning process as comparisons with other authorities and the work
which they are undertaking across the country can be considered.

16.3 Haringey Council provided quantitative and qualitative data to IPF in a standard

spreadsheet format. This data is then used to produce comparative information. As part
of the benchmarking process, IPF require authorities to self-select comparator
organisations in order to produce the final reports. Haringey selected those 18 London
authorities which completed the IPF benchmarking process as its comparator
organisations.

16.4 The performance of the benchmarked group is shown over a number of categories, as

follows:

e Cost analysis — shows the analysis of actual audit costs for 2008/09. The key
benchmarks against which actual cost performance is analysed are: cost per audit
day; cost per £m turnover; and chargeable days per auditor;

* Audit coverage — an analysis of how chargeable audit days available to the Council
were used. The main benchmarks are: audit days per £m of gross revenues
turnover; and how these days were applied in completing audit work on key
financial systems, strategic risk areas, operational risk areas and corporate
governance.

e Staffing — an analysis of the human resources used to deliver the internal audit
service. The main benchmarks are: salary bandings; staff qualifications and
experience.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 3



17.

Page 252

Analysis of Benchmarking Results

17.1 Cost analysis. The cost of Internal Audit indicates the cost of ‘inputs’ to the audit
function, including the costs of in-house staff, bought in services (Deloitte contract) and
overhead costs such as accommodation and other running costs.

Figure 1 below shows that Haringey’s audit cost per £m turnover was £583
compared against the London group average of £925. This indicates that
Haringey’'s expenditure was relatively lower in comparison with other London
authorities in the comparator group.

It should be noted that Haringey has the second highest turnover value of all
London authorities who participated in the benchmarking exercise.

In addition, the audit costs for other authorities include the work completed by

centralised corporate anti-fraud teams. Haringey’s audit service does not include

the resources for a corporate anti-fraud team.

Figure 1 — Audit cost per £m Turnover

/21,600 8
£1,400 -
£1,200 -

£1,000 -

\
Audit cost per £'m Turnover

£800 -
£600 -

£400 -

£200 -

£0

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec



Page 253

» Figure 2 below shows the overall cost per chargeable day for Haringey was £369
compared against the London group average of £362. The corporate costs
(including accommodation, IT costs, other central costs) were higher per auditor for
Haringey than other London authorities, although these include some outer London
authorities where accommodation costs were substantially reduced compared to

more central authorities.

Figure 2 — Cost per audit day

N
€700 . Cost per Chargeable Day
£600 -
£500 -
£400 1
£300 -
£200 -
|
£100 4
£0
\_ a g r 0 q i z n t 3} d h b w f X e k /
Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 5



Page 254

o Figure 3 below shows that Haringey internal audit delivered 174 chargeable days
per auditor, which was 3 days above the London comparator group average of 171.
Relatively low levels of sickness and management days contribute to this higher
level of performance for Haringey.

Figure 3 — Chargeable days delivered per auditor

/
200 -~

‘\\
Chargeable days per Auditor

180 A

| 160
140 -
120
100 -
80 -
60 -

40

20

0
X e p 3 m b f u h n w s z d t 0 aq i a r

17.2 Audit coverage. In order to demonstrate how the chargeable audit days are utilised in
carrying out the planned audit programme, Tables 1- 3 below compare the audit
coverage provided by Haringey with other London comparators. From the tables, it can
be seen that time spent on auditing fundamental financial systems was lower than
other comparators. This reflects the increasing levels of assurance gained over
previous years audit work and relatively few changes to operating systems, including IT
systems, for those key financial systems. The reliance placed on internal audit’s work
by the council’s external auditors provides assurance that the balance is appropriate.
The level and scope of internal audit coverage is discussed and agreed on an annual
basis with the Council’s external auditors to ensure that key controls are tested and an
appropriate level of assurance can be provided on their operation. Audit time spent on
other areas, is broadly in line with comparator organisations. Audit work on fraud is
lower than other London boroughs, although as noted above other authorities include a
corporate team to deliver a larger proportion and volume of anti-fraud work.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 6



Page 255

Table 1 — Audit Coverage — fundamental financial systems

/ - -
1080 4 Fundamental Financial Systems

|
i 0.70

.
060 -

0.50 ~

0.40 -

0.30 A

020 1 § 751 A ‘

0.10 -

0.00
L o] b f n w a m [+ d s e o u g X r t h ] z k )

Table 2 — Audit Coverage — other systems
250 - Operational Risks)

2.00

1.50 -

1.00

0.50 -

0.00 -

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 7



Page 256

Table 3 — Audit coverage - Fraud

(120 -

1.00 -

0.80

0.60 -

~
Fraud etc

040 -

1020 -

0.00
.

w f g Y,

17.3 Staffing. Figure 5 below shows an analysis of salary bandings over the comparator
organisations. Haringey’'s in-house team is very small (2.5 FTE’s) compared to the
London comparator organisations. Other London authorities have larger in-house
teams to complete more of the audit work, including anti-fraud work, internally rather

than via outsourced contracts.

Figure 5 — analysis of staff salaries

/2701(7

£60k 4

~
Pay £'k

£50k -

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec



Page 257

18. Conclusion

18.1 The purpose of the benchmarking exercise is to provide comparative information which
can form the basis upon which quantitative performance comparisons and value for
money judgements can be made. In 2009/10, 18 London Boroughs submitted data for
benchmarking purposes in order to compare performance and value for money.
Compared to the other London authorities:

e Haringey’s audit costs per £m turnover was £583 compared to the London group
average of £925;

* The cost per day for Haringey’s audit service was £369, compared to the London
group average of £362; and

» Haringey delivered 174 chargeable days per auditor, which was 3 days above the
London comparator group.

18.2 In overall cost terms, Haringey has the second highest turnover value of all the 18
London authorities who participated in the benchmarking exercise. The 18 authorities
included a number of outer London areas where expenditure on central costs, including
accommodation and salaries, is substantially lower than those central London
authorities, including Haringey.

18.3 In addition, the audit costs for other authorities include the work completed by
centralised corporate anti-fraud teams. Haringey’s audit service does not include the
resources for a corporate anti-fraud team. The latest figures from the benchmarking
exercise and the feedback received from other authorities indicate that development of
corporate resources to tackle fraud has increased since the previous benchmarking
exercise.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 9



Page 258

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 259 Agenda ltem 17

Haringey Council

Agenda item: [NO.]

On 1 February 2010

Audit Committee

Report Title: Review of the effectiveness of the Audit Committee

Report authorised by: Chief Financial Officer

Report of and Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-key decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To advise Members of the level of compliance with the IPF Toolkit in relation to local
authority Audit Committees and their effectiveness.

1.2 To provide Members with the results of the review and options for discussion and
approval to ensure that the requirements of the IPF guidance are fulfilled and the
Audit Commission feedback in relation to the Use of Resources assessments is
appropriately addressed.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and/or other Strategies:

2.1Audit and Risk Management contribute to the Council priority to deliver excellent,
customer focused, cost effective services by reviewing key services and making
recommendations for improvement where appropriate. Follow up work is undertaken
to ensure that managers implement agreed recommendations and improvements.

2.2 Internal audit forms a key element within the revised Use of Resources assessment
and will continue to be part of the CAA from 2009 onwards. The report on the
effectiveness of the Audit Committee ensure that the requirements of the CAA
assessment are fulfilled.

3. Recommendations

3.1 The Audit Committee notes the outcome of the assessment against and current level
of compliance with the IPF Toolkit.




Page 260

3.2 The Audit Committee identifies any further actions or issues it wishes to address
gither to improve the effectiveness of the committee or any future assessment
process.

3.3 The Audit Committee agrees to the assessment being undertaken on an annual basis
from 2009/10 and the item included on the annual work and agenda plan which is
presented to the Committee at the start of the municipal year.

4. Reason for recommendation(s)

4.1 The external audit feedback as part of the Use of Resources assessment included a
recommendation that the assessment of the effectiveness of the Audit Committee
was undertaken on an annual basis.

4.2 The last assessment of the effectiveness of the Audit Committee was completed in
2007/08. Undertaking the assessment on a more regular basis would represent best
practice and provide an opportunity for Audit Committee members to consider options
to develop their role and responsibilities.

5. Other options considered
5.1 Not applicable

6. Summary

6.1 The Audit Committee has responsibility for audit, governance and risk management
across the Council. A review of the effectiveness of the Audit Committee is considered
best practice and was recommended to be undertaken on a more regular basis by the
Council’s external auditors.

6.2This report looks at the work and operation of the Audit Committee measured against
the IPF Toolkit. The details within the report have been complied from the agendas,
reports and minutes of the Audit Committee during the 2008/09 municipal year.

7. Head of Legal Services Comments

7.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this report, and
notes that the processes and procedures adopted all follow published best practice
guidance. Accordingly, there are no direct legal implications arising out of the
recommendations in the report.

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments

8.1 The Chief Financial Officer notes the report and in particular that the UOR feedback
did not identify any issues with the Audit Committee of its effectiveness. The proposal
to assess the effectiveness of the Audit Committee on an annual basis is supported to
ensure on-going rigour.

9. Head of Procurement Comments




Page 261

9.1Not applicable

10. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

10.1 This report deals with the operation and work of the Audit Committee which includes
any recommendations made to improve governance and service delivery across all
areas of the council, which have an impact on various parts of the community.
Improvements in managing risks and controls will therefore improve services the
Council provides to all sections of the community.

11. Consultation

11.1 No external consultation was required or undertaken in the production of this report.
Consultation is undertaken with the Audit Committee to review and approve the final
version of the report in accordance with the committee’s agreed terms of reference.

12. Service Financial Comments

12.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work
undertaken to produce the report is contained and managed within the Audit and
Risk Management revenue budget.

13. Use of appendices
13.1 Appendix A — Completed IPF checklist

14. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

14.1 CIPFA guidance and IPF Toolkit; Council Constitution; Audit Committee Agendas
and Minutes.

15. Introduction

15.1 In 2008, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)
published guidance in order to assist local authorities promote best practice and
ensure their audit committees are effective. This guidance was not mandatory, or
prescriptive, but covered the purpose, role and function of an audit committee.
Haringey Council complies fully with the CIPFA guidance, as detailed in the report
to the Audit Committee meeting in June 20086.

15.2 In 2007, the Institute of Public Finance (IPF) produced a toolkit following the
release of the CIPFA guidance, which built on the work already completed. The
IPF toolkit aimed to provide a more detailed set of advice, give examples and
suggest good practice to assist both officers and members who are involved in the
operation of an audit committee.

15.3 A report was presented to the Audit Committee in October 2007, which assessed
the compliance of the Council’s Audit Committee against the IPF Toolkit. At that
time, the Council’s Audit Committee was found to comply with the majority of the
requirements listed in the Toolkit.



Page 262

15.4 The external audit feedback as part of the 2009 Use of Resources assessment did

not identify any issues with the Audit Committee, or its effectiveness. However,
external audit included a recommendation in the Use of Resources report that the
assessment of the effectiveness of the Audit Committee was undertaken on an
annual basis. This would allow the Audit Committee to consider its operation and
effectiveness on a more regular basis and highlight any areas for improvement.

15.5 The Audit Committee’s annual report to Full Council in November 2009 highlighted

16.

16.1

the work completed by the committee over the 2008/09 municipal year, including

key areas where the recommendations and requests made by the Committee had

improved governance and control, including:

e Input into the Council’s corporate policies for Whistleblowing, Anti-fraud and
Corruption (including Housing Benefit fraud policy), and Risk Management;

e The Council’s corporate risk register;

o Setting and monitoring deadlines for implementation of internal audit
recommendations to improve controls; and

¢ Monitoring implementation of key recommendations from external audit and
external inspections.

IPF Checklist

Although the IPF Toolkit is not mandatory, the issues and actions contained within
it are considered to represent best practice. The IPF Toolkit is generic and aimed
at all local authority audit committees therefore not all issues will apply, or apply in
full, to Haringey Council’'s Audit Committee. The completed IPF checklist is
contained as Appendix A to this report. Where the Council’s Audit Committee does
not conform to the IPF Toolkit, explanations and/or suggested actions are included
within the Appendix. ‘

16.2 Members will note that the majority of issues are already undertaken by Haringey

and its Audit Committee and therefore the council can be seen to be complying
with best practice in most areas. The Comments/Action section indicates those
areas where it is considered appropriate for Haringey to take further action and this
is highlighted in bold text.

16.3 At the time of the last review, Members wanted to ensure that the Audit Committee

was a useful tool for the council and that this opportunity to improve effectiveness

was used to enable members to become more engaged with the work of the

committee. Feedback and input from Members was used to improve various

aspects of the Audit Committee. As a result, the following changes were made:

e Agreeing a clear timetable and agenda for the Committee in advance of each
municipal year;

¢ The timetable and agenda plan identified whether the agenda items were
statutory/best practice/ad hoc (from 2009/10, the agenda plan also indicated
the links to the Committee’s terms of reference);

¢ Sending out the summaries of audit reports (as per the quarterly progress
reports) on a monthly basis to allow members the opportunity to review any
individual reports in more detail and raise any questions and/or request officer
or member attendance on a more timely basis; and

¢ Changing the quarterly reports from their previous format to make them more
‘user-friendly’.



Page 263

16.4 As part of the 2009/10 review, the current Audit Committee work programme was
reviewed. This showed that the committee considered other items as part of their
agenda which were over and above the IPF Toolkit requirements, for example
reviewing external inspection reports and following up progress on agreed actions.

16.5 Members are requested to consider any other issues or areas for improvement
which would enhance the effectiveness of the Audit Committee.



Page 264

Appendix A

Audit Committee Review of Effectiveness — IPF Self-
assessment Checklist

ESTABLISHMENT, OPERATION AND DUTIES

Role and remit

¢

Priority | Issue Yes . | No N/a Comments/Action .

1 Does the Audit Y Part of Council Constitution.
Committee have written
terms of reference?

1 Do the terms coverthe | Y Replicate CIPFA best practice template.
core functions of an
audit committee as
identified in CIPFA
guidance?

1 Are the terms of Y Last updated and approved July 2008,
reference approved by part of ongoing review by Constitution
the council and Review Working Group.
reviewed periodically?

1 Has the committee Y Membership and authority in accordance
been provided with with CIPFA guidance. Member Services
sufficient membership, provide support for:
authority and resources s agenda/minutes circulation and clerk
to perform its role to the committee meetings;
effectively and e Regular agenda planning and report
independently? clearing meetings;

¢ Follow up of agreed Audit Committee
recommendations, requests and
actions.
Support to the Chair of the Committee
from, and regular 1:1s with, Chief
Financial Officer, Head of Audit and Risk
Management. Other support and input
from Deputy Head of BLT, plus other
managers as and when reports and
information required.

1 Can the audit Y included in Audit Committee Terms of
committee access other Reference
committees and full
council as necessary?

1 Does the authority’s Y Section (g) of the statutory AGS is the
Annual Governance specific section requiring details of the
Statement (AGS) Audit Committee and its operation.
include a description of
the audit committee’s
establishment and
activities?

2 Does the audit Y First review undertaken 2007/08. Agreed
committee periodically to undertake annual review from 2009/10
assess its own onwards.
effectiveness? Include in annual work and agenda

plan for the Audit Committee from
2010/11 onwards.
2 Does the audit Y Completed each year — last report

committee make a
formal annual report on
its work and
performance during the
year to full council?

presented to Full Council November
2009.

Membership, induction and training

1

Has the membership
of the audit

Y

Page 1 of 8




Page 265

Appendix A

Audit Committee Review of Effectiveness — IPF Self-
assessment Checklist

committee been
formally agreed and a
quorum set?

1 Is the chair
independent of the
executive function?

1 Has the audit Chair previously worked as Manager,
committee chair Branches Control, Inspection and Audit
either previous for Sonali Bank.
knowledge of, or Ongoing briefings, training sessions and
received appropriate development activities are identified on an
training on, financial ongoing basis via the Member
and risk Development programme.
management,
accounting concepts
and standards, and
the regulatory
regime?

1 Are new audit Introduction to internal audit, external
committee members audit and the role of the audit committee
provided with an provided each municipal year.
appropriate
induction?

1 Have all members’ Part of the Member Development and
skills and Learning Strategy.
experiences been
assessed and
training given for
identified gaps?

1 Has each member Part of the Council’s overall governance
declared his or her framework (Members declarations of
business interests? interest are published, or available), and

declarations of interest are required prior
to the start of each Audit Committee
meeting.

2 Are members Vice-Chair of Audit Committee sits on
sufficiently Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
independent of the
other key committees
of the council?

Meetings I , .

1 Does the audit Quarterly meetings of the Audit
committee meet Committee held as a minimum.
regularly?

1 Do the terms of N Terms of Reference reviewed on an
reference set out the annual basis to ensure compliance with
frequency of CIPFA Code of Practice. No gaps
meetings? identified — CIPFA Code does not include

this requirement. No further action
suggested.

1 Does the audit Quarterly meetings held, plus additional
committee calendar meeting in place to deal with outstanding
meet the authority’s issues. Usually five meetings held per
business needs, municipal year.
governance needs
and the financial
calendar?

1 Are members Attendance details included in the Audit
attending meetings Committee’s 2008/09 annual report to Full

Page 2 of 8




Page 266

Appendix A

Audit Committee Review of Effectiveness — IPF Self-

assessment Checklist

on a regular basis, Council.
and if not, is

appropriate action

taken?

1 Are meetings free Y
and open without
political influences
being displayed?

1 Does the authority’s Y
S151 officer or
deputy attend all
meetings?

1 Does the audit Y Audit Committee terms of reference
committee have the includes its ability to require attendance
benefit of attendance by any officer or Member at its meetings.
of appropriate officers During 2009/10, Director of CYPS,
at its meetings? Assistant Director of CYPS, Assistant

Director of Strategic Housing Services,
and Head of Corporate Policy and
Performance attended the Committee

INTERNAL CONTROL. o S

1 Does the audit Y Annual internal audit report and AGS,
committee consider both of which include a review and
the findings of the opinion on the effectiveness of the system
annual review of the of internal control, are produced and
effectiveness of the presented to the Audit Committee for
system of internal review and approval.
control (as required
by the Accounts &

Audit Regulations)
including the review
of the effectiveness
of the system of
internal audit?

1 Does the audit Y Draft AGS is presented for review and
committee have approval, feedback and comments
responsibility for incorporated into the final version which is
review and approval submitted to the Audit Committee for
of the AGS and does information.
it consider it
separately from the
accounts?

1 Does the audit Y Audit Committee input into the draft AGS
committee consider prior to approval with the accounts.
how meaningful the
AGS is?

1 Does the audit Y Annual audit report and AGS cover whole
committee satisfy financial year.
itself that the system Internal audit reports on key financial
of internal control has systems are completed on an annual
operated effectively basis
throughout the External audit report provides opinion on
reporting period? internal audit

1 Has the audit N/A | Audit Committee has responsibility for
committee council’s overall risk management
considered how it strategy. No further actions suggested.
integrates with other
committees that may
have responsibility for

Page 3 of 8




Page 267

Appendix A

Audit Committee Review of Effectiveness — IPF Self-
assessment Checklist

risk management?

1 Has the audit Y
committee (with
delegated
responsibility) or the
full council adopted
*Managing the Risk
of Fraud — Actions to
Counter Fraud and
Corruption™?

1 Does the audit Y Quarterly reports include HB counter-
committee ensure fraud activity and internal audit
that “Actions to investigations
Counter Fraud and Annual audit plan has resources for pro-
Corruption” are being active anti-fraud work and reports are
implemented? provided to the committee

2 Is the audit Y Internal audit strategy includes the
committee made relationship between risk management
aware of the role of and internal audit.
risk management in Annual audit plan identifies key risk areas
the preparation of the as highlighted by business unit and
internal audit plan? departmental risk registers.

2 Does the audit Y Presented annually for review
committee review the
authority’s strategic
risk register at ieast
annually?

2 Does the audit Y Risk Management Strategy reviewed and
committee monitor approved by the Audit Committee
how the authority
assesses its risk?

2 Do the audit Y

committee’s terms of
reference include
oversight of the risk
management
process?

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND REGULATORY MATTERS

1 Is the audit Y Role in accordance with the CIPFA best
committee’s role in practice model
the consideration
and/or approval of
the annual accounts
clearly defined?

1 Does the audit Audit Committee terms of reference set
committee consider out the role and responsibility in relation
specifically: to statement of accounts which complies
o the suitabilityof | Y fully with CIPFA Code of Practice. No

accounting further actions suggested.
policies and
treatments
e major Y
judgements
made
e large write offs Constitution specifies process and
Y approval limits. Outside the remit of the

e changes in
accounting

Audit Committee

Page 4 of 8




Page 268

Appendix A
Audit Committee Review of Effectiveness — IPF Self-
assessment Checklist

treatment
e the N Qutside the remit of the Audit Committee

reasonableness

of accounting

estimates
e the narrative N Outside the remit of the Audit Committee
aspects of
reporting?
1 Is an audit committee | Y

meeting scheduled to
receive the external
auditor’s report to
those charged with
governance including
a discussion of
proposed
adjustments to the
accounts and other
issues arising from
the audit?

1 Does the audit Y
committee review
management's letter
of representation?

2 Does the audit Y
committee annually
review the accounting
policies of the

authority?

2 Does the audit Y Briefing session provided by Head of
committee gain an Corporate Finance and Head of Finance.
understanding of
management’s

procedures for
preparing the
authority’s annual

accounts?

2 Does the audit Y Reports on latest legal/regulatory issues
committee have a and best practice provided to the Audit
mechanism to keep it Committee as they arise e.g. National
aware of topical, legal Fraud Initiative, Anti-money laundering
and regulatory regulations

issues, for example
by receiving circulars
and through training?

INTERNAL AUDIT

1 Does the audit Y
committee approve,
annually and in detail,
the internal audit
strategic and annual
plans including
consideration of
whether the scope of
internal audit work
addresses the
authority’s significant
risks?

Page 5 of 8




Page 269

Appendix A

Audit Committee Review of Effectiveness — IPF Self-
assessment Checklist

Does internal audit Y

have an appropriate

reporting line to the

audit committee?

Does the audit Y Quarterly and annual reports provided to
committee receive the Audit Committee, monthly reports on
periodic reports from internal audit activity provided to Audit
the internal audit Committee members.

service including an

annual report from

the Head of Internal

Audit?

Are follow up audits Y Detailed summaries of progress on

by internal audit implementing audit recommendations are
monitored by the provided to every Audit Committee
audit committee and

does the committee

consider the

adequacy of

implementation of

recommendations?

Does the audit N Chair of Audit Committee holds monthly
committee hold 1:1 meetings with Head of Audit and Risk
periodic private Management. Terms of Reference allow
discussions with the for the Committee to question officers.
Head of internal

Audit?

Is there appropriate Y Quarterly meetings held to discuss and
cooperation between review work and plans. Full reliance

the internal and placed on internal audit’'s work.

external auditors?

Does the audit Y Considered as part of the tender process
committee review the for internal audit services. Options for
adequacy of internal service delivery provided for decision prior
audit staffing and to last tender. Annual audit strategy
other resources? considers resource requirements.

Has the audit Y Annual independent peer review of the
committee evaluated internal audit service is undertaken and
whether its internal the results reported to Audit Committee.
audit service

complies with

CIPFA’s Code of

Practice for Internal

Audit in Local

Government in the

United Kingdom?

Are internal audit Y Part of quarterly reports

performance

measures monitored

by the audit

committee?

Has the audit Y Audit committee work and agenda plan
committee presented to the first meeting of each

considered the
information it wishes
to receive from
internal audit?

municipal year for approval.

Additional requests for information and
reports are made during the Committee
meetings.

Page 6 of 8




Page 270

Appendix A

Audit Committee Review of Effectiveness — IPF Self-

EXTERNAL AUDIT

assessment Checklist

1

Do the external
auditors present and
discuss their audit
plans and strategy
with the audit
committee
(recognising the
statutory duties of
external audit)?

Y

Does the audit
committee hold
periodic private
discussions with the
external auditor?

Terms of Reference allow for the
Committee to commission work from
external audit.

Does the audit
committee review the
external auditor's
annual report to
those charged with
governance?

Does the audit
committee ensure
that officers are
monitoring action
taken to implement
external audit
recommendations?

Chief Financial Officer provides report
and action plan in response to the
external audit recommendations

Are reports on the
work of external audit
and other inspection
agencies presented
to the committee,
including the Audit
Commission’s annual
audit and inspection
letter?

Interim reports provided on quarterly
basis, final reports presented.

Does the audit
committee assess the
performance of
external audit?

Part of the regular reporting process to
Audit Committee.

Does the audit
committee consider
and approve the
external audit fee?

External audit fee is presented to the
Audit Committee

ADMINISTRATION

1

' Agenda management

Does the audit
committee have a
designated secretary
from Committee/
Secretary Services?

Member Services provide support for:

¢ agenda/minutes circulation and clerk
to the committee meetings;

* Regular agenda planning and report
clearing meetings;

e Follow up of agreed Audit Committee
recommendations, requests and
actions.

Are agenda papers
circulated in advance
of meetings to allow

Circulated 1 week in advance inn
accordance with agreed timescales.

Page 7 of 8




Page 271

Appendix A

Audit Committee Review of Effectiveness — IPF Self-
assessment Checklist

adequate preparation
by audit committee
members?

2 Are outline agendas
planned one year
ahead to cover
issues on a cyclical
basis?

2 Are inputs for Any N/A New items of urgent business are
Other Business considered as part of the Council’s
formally requested in standard committee meeting process.
advance from
committee members,
relevant officers,
internal and external
audit?

Papers: = . e . L ; -

1 Do reports to the Quarterly reports are in the agreed format
audit committee and contain all required information.
communicate ‘Monthly reports on Internal Audit activity
relevant information are provided to all Audit Committee
at the right frequency, members.
time and in a format
that is effective?

2 Does the audit N/A The Council has an agreed standard
committee issue reporting format which specifies key
guidelines and/or a content items within each committee
pro forma concerning report.
the format and
contents of papers to
be presented?

Actions arising =~

1 Are minutes prepared
and circulated
promptly to the
appropriate people?

1 Is a report on matters N Committee Clerk circulates details of
arising made and actions agreed, plus any information
minuted at the audit requested, to Audit Committee members
committee’s next prior to each meeting to ensure that all
meeting? member requests and recommendations

are addressed.

1 Do action points

indicate who is to
perform what and by

when?

Page 8 of 8




Page 272

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 273 Agenda Item 18

:’,/

Haringey Council

Agenda item: [NO.]

Audit Committee On 1 February 2010

Report Title: Anti-money laundering regulations and Council policy

Report authorised by: Chief Financial Officer

A NN X
{ Ht S i RSN TN

Report of and Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-key decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1To advise the Audit Committee of the updated Corporate Anti-money laundering
policy.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and/or other Strategies:

2.1Audit and Risk Management contribute to the Council priority to deliver excellent,
customer focused, cost effective services by ensuring that the Council fully complies
with anti-money laundering regulations where appropriate, to reduce risks and
improve controls.

3. Recommendations

3.1 That the Audit Committee notes the requirements of the various regulations on local
authorities and that the Council has complied with these to date.

3.2 That the Audit Committee approves the updated Corporate Anti-money laundering
policy.

3.3 That the Audit Committee approves the inclusion of the policy as an appendix to the
Council’s existing corporate anti-fraud strategy to ensure that all elements of fraud
policy and strategy are held together and allow it to be publicised more effectively.




Page 274

4. Reason for recommendation(s)

4.1The Audit Committee is responsible for Anti-fraud and Corruption arrangements as part
of its Terms of Reference. In order to provide assurance that the corporate anti-money
laundering policy is consistent with relevant professional guidance and other statutory
and best practice requirements, it is reviewed on a regular basis, with approval for the
final anti-money laundering policy resting with the Audit Committee.

5. Other options considered
5.1 Not applicable

6. Summary

6.1 The Council needs to ensure that there are appropriate arrangements and processes
in place for the monitoring and reporting of any instances of suspected money
laundering operations. The Council’s corporate Anti-money laundering policy form part
of the assurances to satisfy the relevant requirements.

7. Head of Legal Services Comments

7.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this report, and
notes that the processes and procedures adopted all follow published best practice
guidance. Accordingly, there are no direct legal implications arising out of the
recommendations in the report.

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments

8.1 The Chief Financial Officer notes the recommendations and agrees that the proposed
approach to the anti-money laundering regulations should meet the Council’s
obligations and minimise the risk of this type of activity occurring within the
organisation. It also ensures that staff are aware of their responsibility and who they
should contact should they suspect money laundering transactions are taking place.

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1Not applicable

10. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

10.1 This report deals with how the Council deals with suspected instances of money
laundering across all areas of the council, which have an impact on various parts of
the community. Improvements in managing risks and controls and reducing the
opportunity for money laundering will therefore improve services the Council
provides to all sections of the community.

11. Consultation

11.1 No external consultation was required or undertaken in the production of this report.
Consultation has been undertaken with relevant departments to ensure that all

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 2




Page 275

corporate, statutory and best practice requirements are incorporated into the
corporate Anti-money laundering policy.

12. Service Financial Comments

12.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. Investigations into
allegations of suspected money laundering and reporting these to relevant
authorities are undertaken using existing available resources within Internal Audit
and relevant service departments where applicable. The costs are contained within
revenue budgets which are monitored on a monthly basis.

13. Use of appendices
13.1 Appendix A — Anti-money laundering policy

14. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

14.1 List of background documents. The following documents were used in production of
this report:
¢ Money Laundering Regulations 2007

e CIPFA guidance 2009 — Combating financial crime, further guidance on anti-
money laundering for public service organisations

15. Background

15.1 As part of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) 2006
Code of Practice, and the requirements of the Council's Whistle-blowing policy,
Haringey Council needs to ensure that there are appropriate processes in place for the
reporting and investigation of allegations of fraud and corruption.

15.2 The Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) includes the requirements to have
appropriate arrangements in place which are designed to promote and ensure probity.
It is therefore important to ensure that the Council can demonstrate compliance with
the CAA and best practice requirements.

15.3 The Council responded to the Money Laundering Regulations 2007 by updating its
Money Laundering procedure and guidance, which was written in conjunction with
relevant Proceeds of Crime and Data Protection guidance.

15.4 Following the introduction of the Money Laundering Regulations 2007, CIPFA
produced further guidance in 2009 on Anti-money laundering for Public Service
Organisations. Therefore, it is now considered an opportune time to review the
Council’s existing policy and ensure that it complies fully with the 2007 Regulations and
CIPFA’s best practice guidance

16.Money Laundering Regulations 2007

16.1 The Money Laundering Regulations 2007 implemented the main preventative measure
of the Third Directive, namely requiring risk based customer due diligence measures.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 3



16.2

17.

16.3

16.4

16.5

16.6

Page 276

The Third Directive and the Money Laundering Regulations 2007 apply to a defined set
of relevant financial services. Most of the Council’s business does not fall within the
classification of “relevant” financial services. It is mainly those services involving
accountancy, audit, legal, and property transactions which could be carrying out
relevant business. The following are examples of the type of transactions identified
above:

treasury management in accepting deposits/investments;

legal services’ involvement with financial or property transactions;
collection or refunding of money from the council’s debtors;

loans and mortgage deals;

formation and management of companies or trusts; and,

dealing in transactions involving a total cash payment in excess of £10,000.

CIPFA 2009 Guidance on combating financial crime

CIPFA’s guidance has reviewed the 2007 Money Laundering Regulations, which
specify a list of ‘relevant persons’ to whom the regulations apply (Regulation 3 of the
2007 Regulations). Public authorities are not included on the list of relevant persons,
therefore CIPFA guidance is that public authorities are not subject to the requirements
of the 2007 Regulations.

However, an exception exists under Regulation 49(1) of the 2007 Regulations, which
does place certain obligations on specific public authorities. The regulations states that
public authorities must, if they know or suspect, or have reasonable grounds for
knowing or suspecting, that a person has engaged in money laundering or terrorist
financing, as soon as reasonably practicable inform the Serious Organised Crime
Agency (SOCA).

In response to the 2007 Regulations, CIPFA’s guidance states that there is substantial
reputational risk for an authority which does not have policies and procedures in place
to deal with instances of money laundering. CIPFA recognises that the vast majority of
local authorities’ business activities fall outside the scope of the 2007 Regulations, but
maintains that Councils should be vigilant in this area to allow for any instances of
money laundering to be identified and reported appropriately.

CIPFA recommends, as a minimum that local authorities:

e Make those staff most likely to be exposed to or suspicious of terrorist financing or
money laundering aware of any requirements placed on the authority, its staff and
on them as individuals;

e Provide targeted training to those staff considered to be the most likely to
encounter the financing of terrorism and money laundering;

¢ To make arrangements for a nominated officer to receive and manage the
concerns of staff, to make internal enquiries, to advise staff who feel they should
make a report, and to co-ordinate suspicious activity reports to the SOCA; and

e To establish appropriate internal procedures which are both proportionate and cost
effective.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 4



Page 277

17. Haringey’s approach and policy

17.1 Haringey’s approach to date has been to put in place arrangements within the Council
that comply with the regulations and reflect good practice. In this way the Council
is seen to be acting prudently and to the proper professional standards that certain
officers will need to follow. In respect of legal issues, the Law Society requires the
Council to have anti-money laundering policies and guidance in place and to complete
regular returns in respect of money laundering. In respect of financial issues, the 2009
CIPFA guidance on combating financial is the key publication.

17.2 The Money Laundering Regulations 2007, for the first time, required firms to vary
identification and monitoring of their customer on a risk sensitive basis. Firms are
allowed to reduce the level of customer identification in specified lower risk situations,
for example, dealing with public bodies.

17.3 The Council’s policy and procedures relating to money laundering includes a section on
due diligence (see appendix A). In most cases, the business undertaken will be where
the client is another public or statutory body, and therefore the risk assessment
indicates that no further due diligence about the status of the client is needed.

17.4 However, for other third party clients or politically exposed persons, there needs to be
formal and recorded due diligence checks. In these rare circumstances, guidance on
performing the due diligence checks will be provided by the Head of Audit and Risk
Management, in their role as the Council’'s Money Laundering Reporting Officer, in
consultation with relevant officers from legal and corporate finance where appropriate.

17.5 Therefore, a record must be maintained, including details of the customer due
diligence, which needs to be kept for five years after the end of the business
relationship and records of transactions, which also need to be kept for five years.

17.6 The Council’s policy has been circulated to all relevant staff and training has been
provided to those staff who are most likely to deal with the transactions detailed in
paragraph 16.2. It is recommended that the Council’s existing policy is incorporated
into the corporate anti-fraud policy and strategy to ensure all elements of fraud and
corruption are dealt with effectively and appropriately. These procedures will be made
available on the Council’s intranet site and regular reminders will be provided to all
relevant staff.

17.7 In addition, as part of the Council’s annual internal audit programme, testing of the key
financial systems includes checks in relation to money laundering to ensure that risks
are being appropriately managed.

17.8 Although local authorities are unlikely to be a prime target for money laundering, the
size and scope of services is such that it is not possible to discount entirely the
risks surrounding money laundering. The Council’s approach is designed to mitigate
and minimise these risks.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 5



Page 278
Appendix A

PROCEEDS OF CRIME AND ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING POLICY AND
PROCEDURES

1. What is money laundering?

Money laundering is the term used for several offences involving the proceeds of
crime, or terrorism. This includes possessing, or in any way dealing with, or
concealing, or converting the proceeds of any crime, as well as funds likely to be
used for terrorism, as well as the proceeds of terrorism. Money laundering

is generally used to describe the activities of organised criminals converting the
proceeds of crime into legitimate activities, with the intention of hiding their true
sources of income.

The current Money Laundering legislation covers all proceeds of crime, both money
and property, regardless of how small the value. In reality, it involves a suspicion
that someone is benefiting financially from dishonest activities. Therefore, the money
laundering aspect would be the attempt to do legitimate business with the Council
using assets and/or monies derived from the proceeds of crime or terrorism.

This guidance sets out the legal and regulatory requirements relating to money
laundering, as they affect both the Council and you personally.

2. What laws exist to control money laundering?

In recent years, new laws have been passed which significantly shift the burden for
identifying acts of money laundering from Police and Government agencies to
organisations and their employees. The principal legislation and regulation relating
to money laundering are the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 (POCA), the Terrorism Act
2000 (TA), and the Money Laundering Regulations 2007.

There are three primary offences to take account of:

» ‘concealing’ is where someone knows, or suspects, a case of money
laundering, but conceals or disguises its existence;

« ‘arranging’ is where someone involves himself or herself in an arrangement to
assist money laundering; and,

« ‘acquisition’, ‘use’, or ‘possession’ is where someone seeks to benefit from
money laundering by acquiring, using, or possessing the property concerned.

There are also two third party offences to take account of:

« ‘failing to disclose a primary offence’ is where someone becomes aware or
suspects money laundering, but fails to take action in reporting it; and,

« ‘tipping off’ is where someone informs a person who is, or is suspected of
being, involved in money laundering, in such a way as to reduce the likelihood of
being investigated, or prejudicing an investigation.

These money laundering offences may be committed by the Council itself, or by any

of the Members and employees (including permanent, agency and temporary staff)
working within it.

FI/A&RM/Palicies & Procedures/Money Laundering/January 2010 Page 1 of 4



Page 279
Appendix A

PROCEEDS OF CRIME AND ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING POLICY AND
PROCEDURES

3. What is the Council’s response to money laundering?

Local authorities have a responsibility to ensure the proper conduct of

public business. The consequences of the Council or any of its Members or
employees facing prosecution under the money laundering legislation would be very
serious and reflect poorly not only on the Council, but on the public service as a
whole.

Although local authorities are unlikely to be a prime target for money laundering, the
size and scope of services is such that it is not possible to discount entirely the
risks surrounding money laundering. In order to mitigate this risk, this policy and
guidance, including reporting arrangements, has been produced.

Management should ensure that arrangements are in place to prevent the Council
and its Members and employees being exposed to money laundering in those
services where there is a potential risk. They should also ensure that those
Members and employees who may become exposed to money laundering are made
fully aware of this guidance and are suitably trained.

It should be noted that the professional bodies of some employees (e.g. accountants
and solicitors) have issued guidance on personal obligations and responsibilities
relating to money laundering, and those employees should familiarise themselves
with that guidance.

4. What are the implications for staff who become involved?

Examples of possible situations involving exposure to money laundering are found in
the appendix to this document. However, it cannot be stressed too strongly that it

is every Member and employee’s responsibility to be vigilant, and to be aware of the
requirement to report actual or suspected cases of money laundering.

While it is unlikely that a Member or employee would commit one of the three
primary offences, a failure to disclose a suspicion of money laundering is a serious
offence in itself, and there are only very limited grounds in law for not reporting a
suspicion.

Depending on the severity of the suspected offence, the Magistrates’ Court can
issue fines of up to £5,000, or sentences of up to 6 months in prison (or both), and,
in the Crown Court, fines are unlimited, and sentences of up to 14 years may be
handed out.

FI/A&RM/Policies & Procedures/Money Laundering/January 2010 Page 2 of 4



Page 280
Appendix A

PROCEEDS OF CRIME AND ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING POLICY AND
PROCEDURES

5. How do we ensure ‘due diligence’?

The Money Laundering Regulations 2007 require the identification and monitoring of
clients on a risk sensitive basis. Where relevant business is undertaken, the

clients need to be subject to some form of risk based due diligence. Most of the
Council’s business is not defined in the regulations as being relevant; it is mainly
those services involving accountancy, audit, legal, and property transactions which
could be carrying out relevant business.

In most cases, the business undertaken will be where the client is another public or
statutory body, and therefore the risk assessment indicates that no further due
diligence about the status of the client is needed. However, for other third party
clients or politically exposed persons (see attached appendix for definition) there
needs to be formal and recorded due diligence checks.

A record will be maintained, by Corporate Finance, including details of the customer
due diligence, which needs to be kept for five years after the end of the

business relationship together with a record of the transactions also kept for five
years. In these rare circumstances, guidance on performing the due diligence
checks can be obtained from the Head of Audit and Risk Management.

6. What should | do if | suspect a case of money laundering?

If you have any questions or doubts about an individual, company, or transaction
that you have been dealing with, then it is important to seek advice from the Head of
Audit and Risk Management. This approach means that the information can be
considered at the time the transaction or the business takes place.

Section 2 of this guidance states that failure to take action or to report activities is an
offence under the Regulations. However, failure to do so is only an offence if the
suspicion relates, in the event, to an actual crime. Therefore, a common sense
approach needs to be taken, in order to ensure that officers’ time is not wasted.

The Council has nominated the Head of Audit and Risk Management within the
Corporate Resources Directorate as the officer responsible for dealing with any
suspicions of money laundering. You should therefore report any suspicious
transactions or concerns to the Head of Audit and Risk Management in writing. The
matter would then be discussed with you and a decision made whether to make a
formal report to the Serious Organised Crime Agency.

FI/A&RM/Policies & Procedures/Money Laundering/January 2010 Page 3 of 4



Page 281
Appendix A

PROCEEDS OF CRIME AND ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING POLICY AND
PROCEDURES

A. Examples of possible situations involving exposure to money laundering

1.

There may be situations where funds come into the Council from an unfamiliar
source. In particular, if the Council is forming a new business relationship, or is
considering undertaking a significant one-off transaction, it would be prudent to
identify fully the parties involved. This will be especially true if the parties

concerned are not physically present, or may be acting for absent third parties.

Transactions involving the handling of the proceeds of asset disposals, e.g. land

sales, can be especially vulnerable, and may demand further enquiry. Caution

should be exercised in respect of:

« unusual arrangements; offshore funds being used;

« transactions involving a third party who is not known to the Council, or where
the identity of a party is difficult to establish or is undisclosed;

« where an intermediary is involved, or where the ultimate ownership of a
company is hidden; and,

« situations where a party is evasive as to the source of funds.

Members or employees having direct contact with the public or businesses may
become suspicious where the nature of the goods or the amounts of the cash
seems inconsistent with what might, in the circumstances, be regarded as
normal.

Cashiers may be asked, in the normal course of their work, to accept payments
in unusually amounts of cash for the settlement of debts. As a guide, sums in the
region of £10,000 and above would be regarded as a sum of cash that should be
reported.

Circumstances which might arouse particular suspicion are where cash is
tendered which exceeds significantly the amount of the debt, or the debt is paid
twice (or more) and the person or business requests subsequently a refund from
the Council of the balance.

B. Politically Exposed Persons

The Regulations define politically exposed persons as a person “...who is or has, at
any time in the preceding year been entrusted with a prominent public function by a
state other than the United Kingdom, a European Community institution or an
international body” or a family member or known close associate of such a person.

FI/A&RM/Policies & Procedures/Money Laundering/January 2010 Page 4 of 4



Page 282

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 283 Agenda ltem 19

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

Audit Committee On 1 February 2010

Report Title: Risk Management update Quarter 3 2009/10 and Updated Corporate
Risk Management Policy and Strategy

Report authorised by: Chief Financial Officer [

Report of and Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

VWards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-key decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1To inform the Audit Committee of the current position on risk management
implementation across the Council.

11.2To provide an updated Corporate Risk Management Policy and Strategy for review
and approval.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and/or other Strategies:

2.1Audit and Risk Management contribute to the Council priority to deliver excellent,
customer focused, cost effective services by ensuring that the Council’s risk
management framework is in place and operating effectively. Internal audit reviews
key risk registers, the controls in place to manage the identified risks.
Recommendations for improvement are made, where appropriate.

2.2 Risk management forms a key element within the revised Use of Resources
assessment and will continue to be part of the CAA from 2009 onwards. The reports
to both managers and the Audit Committee on the implementation of the Council’s risk
management policy and strategy ensure that the requirements of the CAA
assessment are fulfilled.

3. Recommendations

3.1 The Audit Committee is recommended to note the implementation of the risk
management strategy across the Council.

3.2 The Audit Committee reviews and approves the updated corporate Risk Management




Page 284

Policy and Strategy.

4. Reason for recommendation(s)

4.1 The Audit Committee is responsible for approving the Council’s Risk Management
Policy and Strategy as part of its Terms of Reference. In order to facilitate this, and
provide information on its implementation across the Council, the corporate Policy
progress reports are provided on a regular basis for review and approval by the Audit
Committee.

5. Other options considered
5.1 Not applicable

6. Summary

6.1 The internal audit service makes a significant contribution to ensuring the
implementation of the Council’s risk management framework throughout the authority.
This report focuses on the work undertaken during the third quarter of 2009/10 to
ensure the risk management framework is complied with.

6.2 The Audit Committee is responsible for approving the Council’'s Risk Management
Policy and Strategy as part of its Terms of Reference. An annual review of the Policy
is completed in order to ensure that it complies with best practice and current
operational requirements.

7. Head of Legal Services Comments

7.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of the is report,
and advises that there are no direct legal implications arising out of the report or the
recommendations.

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments

8.1 The CFO notes that the Council is fully compliant with the strategy, with all risk
registers now fully integrated into the Council’'s performance management system
(Covalent). All registers have been reviewed and are up to date for Quarter 3 and
automatic reminders are sent to ensure the registers are reviewed according to the
agreed timetable. Further, as outlined in section 17, the risk management policy and
strategy has ensured a much more robust and integrated approach to risk across the
audhority.

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1Not applicable

Report Template: Formal Bodies



Page 285

10. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

10.1 This report deals with how risks are managed across all areas of the Council, which
have an impact on various parts of the community. Improvements in managing risks
and controls will therefore improve services the Council provides to all sections of
the community.

11. Consultation

11.1 No external consultation was required or undertaken in the production of this report.
Consultation is undertaken with respective service managers, Assistant Directors
and Directors in the production of risk registers and internal audit reports. Their
comments are included in the final report which is circulated in accordance with the
agreed internal audit reporting protocol.

12. Service Financial Comments

12.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work within
internal audit to implement the Council’s risk management framework is part of the
contract with Deloitte and Touche which was awarded following a competitive
tendering exercise in compliance with EU regulations from 1 April 2007. The costs of
this contract and managing the corporate risk management policy are contained and
managed within the Audit and Risk Management revenue budget. Service
departments manage risks as part of the routine work to achieve their business
plans and costs are contained within their revenue budgets.

13. Use of appendices

13.1  Appendix 1 — Update on risk registers Quarter 3 2009/10
Appendix 2 — Updated Risk Management Policy and Strategy 2010.

14. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

14.1For access to the background papers or any further information please contact Anne
Woods on 0208 489 5973.

15. Background

15.1The Council’s Risk Management strategy is reviewed on an annual basis to ensure that
it reflects current operational requirements and best practice. The previous version was
approved by the Audit Committee at its meeting on 23 April 2009.

15.2 The Chair of the Audit Committee requested that a report on risk management and
compliance with the Council’s strategy be presented to the Committee on a quarterly

Report Template: Formal Bodies 3



Page 286

basis. The review and testing of risk registers formed part of the 2009/10 annual audit
plan which was approved at the Audit Committee meeting on 23 April 2009. This is an
ongoing process to ensure the key controls to manage identified risks are effective and
operate as intended.

15.2During 2009/10, the risk registers for all business units, departments and the corporate
register were all integrated into the Council’'s performance management system
(Covalent). Training for system users was provided when their risk registers were
loaded onto the system and all risk registers have been managed using Covalent from
quarter 3 2009/10, which was in accordance with the planned timetable.

16. Risk Registers

16.1 As stated above, all risk registers are now managed electronically at business unit,
department and corporate level. Appendix 1 shows the latest position for all Business
Units and Directorates as at 31 December 2009. Risk registers for business units and
directorates are up to date and reviewed in accordance with the Council’s risk
management strategy. During 2009/10, a number of organisational changes have taken
place across the Council. Within Urban Environment, the Enforcement Business Unit is
now contained within Frontline Services Business Unit. Within PPP&C, Neighbourhood
Management Business Unit is now contained within Safer Communities Business Unit.
The risk registers for Enforcement and Neighbourhood Management have been
incorporated into the new Business Unit structure and will be reported within this for
2009/10.

16.3The risk registers have been reviewed in accordance with the planned programme of
audit work. The electronic Covalent system replicates the previous format for the
council’s risk registers, but provides Business Unit Managers with a more effective and
flexible reporting and monitoring process than the previous manual process. The
electronic system is able to produce a variety of reports and information to suit the
managers’ requirements. The electronic system allows managers to view and sort their
current risks individually, or by risk rating; RAG status; or actions due.

16.5Covalent automatically sends email reminders to the business unit representatives
when updates are due and the system will provide an audit trail to allow for monitoring
and follow up by Internal Audit. Internal Audit will also provide resources (as part of the
annual audit plan) to assist business units on an ongoing basis and to ensure that all
actions and updates are being done in accordance with the relevant timescales. All
business units and directorates have reviewed their risk registers in accordance with the
corporate policy and strategy for the third quarter.

16.6 The corporate risk register is reviewed on a quarterly basis by the Chief Executive's
Management Board and reported annually to the Audit Committee.

17. Risk Management Policy and Strategy
17.1 In addition to risk registers, the corporate risk management policy and strategy has

brought together all key processes involving risk, including health and safety, business

Report Template: Formal Bodies ‘ 4



Page 287

continuity planning, emergency planning and project management. A corporate Risk
and Emergency Planning Steering Group is in place, with representatives from all
directorates, which reviews key risk issues on a regular basis and ensures
implementation of the risk management strategy across the council.

17.2 Key documentation, including the Pre-Business Plan Review and Business Plan
.emplates have been revised to take account of the revised risk management strategy
and ensure that risk management processes are embedded across all key functions
and processes. The Business Planning process for 2010/11 will ensure that all key
service and business plan objectives are appropriately linked to the business unit and
departmental risk registers.

17.3 The risk management strategy and policy has now been updated to reflect the
implementation of the electronic performance management system and is attached at
Appendix 2 for review and approval. No other changes to the strategy have been made.

Rennrt Template: Formal Bodies 5



Page 288



Page 289

7 Jo 1 a%eg

600¢ 13quads(g SHJOMISN s,ualpliy) ngd SdAD €c
6002 1oqwiada(g juswdojanaq p poddng ssauisng ng SdAD ba
600¢ 18quisda(g uolsnjou| '@ spJepuejg jooyog ng SdAD X4
600¢ Jaquisde(g Saljiwed @ uaipjiyy nd SdAD 0c
6002 J1aquisdaq 9OIAIS §,39]doad BunoA g uaipiy) 1daQ (SdAD)
90IAI9G s,8|doad BunoA g usipjiyy 61
010z Atenuep sa0IAeg Apadold ajelodio) ng o) gl
6002 Jaquaoa( wswainoold ayelodio) ng ¥Te) /1l
600¢ Jequade(g Juswabeuely ysiy 9 Ipny nd }=10) 9l
6002 Jaquiasaq aoueul{ ayelodio) ng T} Gl
600¢ 13qwsdag uonexe| [ed07 g sjjsusg ng 40 14
6002 18qwasag S9OIAI9S JWOoISN) ng o) €l
010g Arenuer CERIVERNN ng 40| 21
6002 1oquadeQ seoIAIBS |eba ng S [0) L1
010z Aenuep $92In0sS9y s)elodio) IEYg] (YD) sooinosay syeiodio) oL
6002 12qwadaQg Puiusea g Juswdojana jeuonesiuebiQ ng ao -390 6
6002 1o2qwadaq poddng Jaquispy g Aoeloows( 207 ng ao-3Io 8
6002 Jequadeq $S921JN0SaY UBWNH ng ao-3Ion ]
6002 JaqwadaQ Juswdojana( jeuonesiuebin 1dag Juswdojanaq |euonesiueblQ - 39 o)
010z Arenuep aduewlolad g Adljlod ng Jddd - 30 )
010z Aienuer suofjealunwwo) ng JOddd - 30 14
600¢ Jequiadeg Sajunwwoy Jsjeg nd Jddd - 30 €
010z Atenuep uoljesiunwwo) ydag uoneoslunwwo? % sdiysiauped
9 sdiysiauped aouewlouad Adljod aoueuIopad Adljod - 39 Z
010z Atenuerp 19)s16ay sjesodio) | sjesodion gD - sjesodion L
ajepdn
juadal Jsow Jo aje(q anll J91s1bay sy [aAa] juawiedaq

v xipuadi’ s

Arewwng ajepdn J19)€' 59y Ystx - 01/600Z € 191enD Joday ssaiboay




Page 290

TJo g adey

6002 Jaquadaq Juswdojanaq Adljod g bujuueld ng an| z¢
6002 Joqua0aQ S3VIAIBG suljjuol 4 ng an L€
oLoz Aenuer s9o1n18G BuisnoH Ajunwiwo?) 3 oibsiens ng an 0¢
0L0g Asenuerp JuUSWUONIAUT ueqin 1daQ (3N) uswuonaug ueqin 62
600¢ JequiadsQd sauelq % buiuies ‘ainyny ng SOV 8¢
600¢ 13quisdag S90IAISG UolESI1D8Y ng SOV LC
600¢ Js8quadad S82IMBG JINpY ng SOJV 9¢
600¢ J18quiedsg Absjens g bujuoissiwwon ng SOV Ge
6002 1oqwada( s92IA18S Ajunwiwo) 9 aInyn) synpy daq (SD00V) seo1neg
Aunwwog @ ainyny sYnpy 144
ajepdn
juadal Jsow Jo ajeq any 191s1bay sy [oAaT ju~urpedaq |

|

v xipuaddy

Areunung ajepdn J91s'H59y YsSIy - 01/600Z € 19uend Hoday ssaibouad




Page 291

—uwwOn 3corough of Haringey
The Management of Risk
Corporate Policy and Strategy
Version 6.1

January 2010



Page 292

Contents

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

1.

7

8

BACKGROUND

INTRODUCTION

WHAT IS RISK?

WHAT IS AN ACCEPTABLE RISK?

WHAT IS RISK MANAGEMENT?

WHO IS KESPONSIBLE FOR RISK MANAGEMENT?

RISK MANAGEMENT - THE FRAMEWORK

HOW ARE RISKS REVIEWED AND REPORTED

APPENDIX A - RISK REGISTERS

APPENDIX B - PROJECT RISKS

APPENDIX C - BUSINESS CONTINUITY PLANS

APPENDIX D - PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Management of Risk Corporate Policy& Strategy v6.1 — January 2010

Page 1 of 13



Page 293

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Haringey is committed to developing a Risk Management Strategy, framework and the
necessary supporting processes as part of the Council’s on-going improvement
programme. This will help to improve and strengthen corporate governance and front-
line service delivery throughout the Council. The aim is to minimise the incidence and
impact of risk taking activity, improve decision making and increase opportunities for
innovation.

Tha Council undertakes that this policy will promote and ensure that:

1.

1.

11,

The management of risk is linked to performance improvement and the
achievement of its priorities and service objectives.

Members, Chief Executive’s Management Board (CEMB) and senior
management own, lead and support on risk management.

Ownership and accountability are clearly assigned for the management of risks
throughout the Council.

There is a commitment to embedding risk management into the Council’s
~ulture  and organisational processes at all levels including strategic,
programme, project and operational.

All Members and officers acknowledge and embrace the importance of risk
management as a process, by which key risks and opportunities are identified,
evaluated, managed and contribute towards good corporate governance.

Effective monitoring and reporting mechanisms are in place to continuously
review the Council’s exposure to, and management of, risks and opportunities.

Open and inclusive processes are established and maintained by involving all
those associated with the planning and delivery of services, including
stakeholders and partners.

Best practice systems for managing risk are used throughout the Council,
including mechanisms for monitoring and reviewing effectiveness against
agreed standards and targets.

Accountability to stakeholders is fully demonstrated through periodic progress
‘eports and an annual statement on the effectiveness of and the added value
(benefits) from the Council’s risk management strategy, framework and
processes.

The Council’s approach is regularly benchmarked against high performing
public and private sector organisations.

The Risk Management Strategy is reviewed and updated annually in line with the
Council’s developing needs and requirements.

Management of Risk Corporate Policy& Strategy v6.1 — January 2010 Page 1



Page 294

1.  BACKGROUND

1.1t is now recognised that all organisations face a range of risks which may affect
the achievement of their objectives. Risk management is therefore an essential part
of securing the ‘health’ of an organisation. Risk management is an important
element in the running of any business: ensuring that threats to corporate
objectives and service delivery are minimised; and that business opportunities are
exploited to maximise resources or revenue.

1.2 Risk management is part of the overall arrangements for securing effective
corporate governance. Corporate governance can be described as the systems
which local authorities use to direct and control their operations and relate to their
communities.

1.3 Good corporate governance can provide the authority’s various communities,
partners and other organisations, with confidence that the council maintains the
highest possible standards in delivering their services. It is impossible for any
organisation to achieve effective corporate governance arrangements without an
effective risk management framework.

1.4 The council also has to comply with various statutory requirements which include
issues relating to corporate governance or risk management. The Accounts and
Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2006 require local authorities to review,
at least once a year, systems they have in place to control and manage the
services they provide. From 2007/08, the Council must publish an Annual
Governance Statement, which represents the end results of its annual review, with
its financial statements.

1.5 The Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) is the external review process which is
designed to evaluate local authorities’ performance over a number of areas. Risk
management is included within the annual ‘Use of Resources’ assessment and is a
key part of the assessment criteria that is integral to the CAA.

1.6 Other key statutory issues for the council in relation to risk management include the
requirements of the Civil Contingencies Act 2004 and the Health and Safety at
Work Act 1974 and its related legislation. Internally, the council has developed
various business planning, performance and project management frameworks,
including business continuity and emergency planning - which all require risk
management to be considered.

1.7 Everyone within the council has a role to play in managing risk. In order to put this
in context and provide an explanation of how the various statutory and local
requirements should be met, this corporate policy and strategy has been
developed. This builds on the Council’s previous risk management strategies to
indicate where the various statutory and key corporate requirements fit in.

Management of Risk Corporate Policy& Strategy v6.1 - January 2010 Page 2



2

M

Page 295

INTRODUCTION

2.1This strategy provides an overview of Haringey’s risk management position and
what the council needs to do to move towards achieving the highest ratings in the
relevant CAA assessments. It updates the previous risk management strategy
(April 2009) and clarifies the various roles, responsibilities and governance
structures.

2.2Haringey Council, via statutory requirements and corporately set objectives, must
balance the demands of service users and tax payers; involve communities in
service provision; deliver, commission and regulate services; and enter into
strategic and local partnerships, often involving complex funding arrangements.

2.3Balancing all of these, sometimes conflicting, objectives means that the council
needs a framework which ensures that a pro-active approach is taken and risks
are considered before decisions are taken by the appropriate body.

2.4The aim of this strategy is to ensure that risks are identified at the right time to
enable good decisions to be made, including:

reducing the impact and/or number of risks which could prevent the council
achieving its objectives;

ensuring that the council takes advantage of opportunities to improve its
performance; and

e working with organisations within the Haringey Strategic Partnership (HSP),
and other key external partners, to maximise opportunities available.

2.5Risk management can make a difference and enhance the performance of the
council by:
e |dentifying and preventing the bad things from happening; and
e Ensuring that all the good things we want to do actually happen.

2.6The aim of this strategy is to ensure that everyone responsible for managing and
taking decisions is aware not only of the key risk management functions, but also
their responsibilities in relation to them.

2.7From the departments’ and business unit managers’ perspectives, the emphasis
should be to achieve their objectives and deliver their services. Risk management
should be used to facilitate this in the most effective way possible. By using a
systematic approach, managers will ensure that they consider all the options
available to them, and be in a better position to anticipate and respond to
changing social, environmental and legislative requirements.

anagement of Risk Corporate Policy& Strategy v6.1 ~ January 2010 Page 3



Page 296

3 WHAT IS RISK?

3.1 For a public body such as Haringey Council, risk can be defined as:
Anything that poses a threat to the achievement of our objectives,
programmes or service delivery to the residents, businesses and communities
of Haringey.

3.2 Risks can come from inside or outside the council, and may include financial loss
or gain, physical damage to people or buildings, client dissatisfaction, unfavourable
publicity, failure of equipment, or fraud. Failing to take advantage of opportunities
may also have risks for the Council, for example not bidding for external funding, or
not publicising successes.

3.3 Taking advantage of new opportunities, for example working with the voluntary
sector to deliver services, or working as part of the Haringey Strategic Partnership
can also mean the Council has to deal with different types of risks. However, not
taking advantage of these opportunities may leave the Council facing bigger risks
in the future.

3.4 Tnerefore, some risks should not necessarily always be avoided. However, this
means the Council should always carefully think through decisions which may
cause losses of confidence, finance, or reputation. If risks are identified and
managed effectively, they can allow the council to take opportunities for improving
services.

3.5 Risks can be classified according to how they may affect the council as it delivers
its services:

e Corporate (strategic) risks - risks which may affect the council’s ability to
achieve its plans.

e Reputational risks - risks that may undermine the confidence that the council’s
partners, customers, staff and the public have in it, e.g. adverse news articles.

o Service (operational) risks - risks which may prevent the council delivering its
core services, e.g. lack of staff, damage to buildings, equipment failure.

¢ Financial risks — risks which may cause a breakdown in the council’s financial
systems e.g. fraud. Alternatively, risks arising from the credit crunch and
economic downturn, e.g. on investments, debt management, etc.

Management of Risk Corporate Policy& Strategy v6.1 — January 2010 Page 4



Page 297

4 WHAT IS AN ACCEPTABLE RISK?

4.1 As a general principle, the Council will seek to eliminate and control all those risks

which:

e have a high potential for incidents to occur;

e would have a substantial adverse financial or reputational impact;

e would cause loss of public confidence in the Council and/or its partner
organisations; or

* may stop the Council from carrying out its statutory functions or achieving its
strategic objectives.

4.2 The Council recognises that it is impossible to eliminate all risks, especially those
which it has no control over e.g. the UK economy, changes to legislation, climate
and weather influences, or external power failure. This is not an exhaustive list, but
provided for illustrative purposes only.

4.3 The Council will always try to reduce or eliminate risks wherever possible, but it
needs to strike the right balance between how much it costs to manage or
eliminate risks and taking no action. For example, the costs of eliminating risks in a
~'stem may be more than the amount of money the Council may lose if the system
were to fail. In these circumstances, the Council would want to ensure that there
were sensible precautions taken to manage the risks, but that these were balanced
against what it would cost if the system were to break down.

4.4 Systems that the Council puts in place should therefore be flexible enough to
encourage innovation and imaginative use of its limited resources, subject to any
legal requirements, in order to deliver better services to its residents.

4.5 All projects and change programmes carry with them some risk of failure. The
willingness to take advantage of opportunities or new innovation, in a managed
way, is a sign of an ambitious organisation. It is important that risks associated
with opportunities and innovation are identified and effectively managed, to ensure
that the strategic objectives of the Council are achieved.

Management of Risk Corporate Policy& Strategy v6.1 — January 2010 Page 5



5

Page 298

WHAT IS RISK MANAGEMENT?

5.1 There is no such thing as a risk-free environment, but many risks can be avoided,
reduced or eliminated through good risk management. Good risk management
also takes advantage of opportunities while analysing and dealing with risks.

5.2 Risk management is something that managers do every day as part of their normal
work, although it may not always be written down, and managers may not use a
formal procedure to make their final decision. Risk management can be explained
as a tool for managers to use so that they are able to identify, evaluate and
manage both risks and opportunities in a logical and consistent way.

5.3 Good risk management is forward looking and helps to improve business decisions
and manage performance. It is not only about avoiding or minimising losses, but
also about dealing positively with opportunities.

5.4 In addition to fulfilling statutory requirements, it should be recognised that there are
many benefits to making sure that risk management is considered and applied at

all levels in the Council, including:

L]

Allowing managers to focus on the issues that really matter;

Spending less management time on operational issues;

Fewer surprises;

Managers are focused on doing the right things, in the right way;

Better chance of achieving business objectives;

Better chance that new developments can be delivered on time, in accordance
with the planned programme and within budget; and

More informed risk taking and decision making.

5.5 Risk management should be considered as a continuous process, which evolves
as the Council gains more understanding of the risks and opportunities facing it
and how to manage these effectively.

5.6 Risk management consists of a number of elements, which should be considered
and applied regularly during the course of the year, as part of the Council’s cycle of
performance management and improvement processes:

L4
L
L]

Understanding the Council’s, department’s, or business unit’s objectives;
Identifying and assessing the risks facing it;

Assessing the actions in place to manage the risks;

Taking action to improve, monitor and learn from experiences.

I Source: ‘Embedding Risk Management into the Culture of your Organisation’ The Institute of Internal Auditors — UK and
firel o October 2003.

Management of Risk Corporate Policy& Strategy v6.1 — January 2010 Page 6



Page 299

6 WHO IS RESPONSIBLE FOR RISK MANAGEMENT?

6.1Directors and senior managers are responsible for managing their services. They
are therefore responsible for identifying, assessing and managing the risks
associated with planning, delivering and monitoring each of their services.

6.2The following diagram illustrates the key processes in the council’s overall
approach to the provision of its services. The assessment and management of risk
is essential to all aspects of this approach and is shown as an overarching aspect
of service delivery.

Figure1
_________ . SERVICE STRATEGIES ]
L _ | BUSINESS/SERVICEPLANNING | | >
| 2
, )
' (7]
! l 3
! > € D
' Business Budget/ Stakeholders/ Health & Safety S’
5 Continuity / Funding Clients Issues S_
' Emerg. Plannin
| g g Qg)
| DELIVERY OF EFFICIENT AND 5
! EFFECTIVE SERVICE R a
) (O]
! i 3
: PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT =
f AND REPORTING ARRANGEMENTS . o,
! T
! @
; MEASUREMENT OF DR ~
: PERFORMANCE
- S
Nls Customer/Client CAA - UoR/ Benchmarking
Local Pls  Satisfaction Other assessment

REPORTS TO MEMBERS

Management of Risk Corporate Policy& Strategy v6.1 — January 2010 Page 7



Page 300

6.2 Additionally, the Chief Financial Officer has a specific statutory responsibility, under
section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972, to ensure that the Council
maintains high standards in managing its financial systems and that procedures
comply with all relevant legisiation and local procedures.

6.4 The Chief Executive’s Management Board (CEMB) is responsible for approving the
Council’s risk management strategy at officer level and for ensuring that this is
reviewed and updated on a regular basis. CEMB is also responsible for reviewing
and approving the corporate risk register, business continuity plan and health and
safety policy on a regular basis.

6.5 The Council’s Audit Committee has responsibility for approving the risk
management strategy at member level and is also responsible for reviewing, on an
annual basis, the implementation of risk management across the Council. Risk
management is included as part of the portfolio for the Cabinet Member for
Resources.

6.6 The Council has a statutory responsibility to “assess the risk of an emergency
occurring” under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004. This responsibility is undertaken
in partnership with other agencies (e.g. the Emergency Services), and the resulting
Community Risk Register is signed off at the Local Resilience Forum.

6.7 The Council also has a responsibility to ensure that the strategy covers bodies
working in partnership with the Council. It is critical that both the risk appetite and
risk management arrangements for all parties are discussed and clearly
understood before a partnership is created. In particular, a risk management
strategy has been implemented for the Haringey Strategic Partnership and risk
registers are in place for each of the partnership theme boards.

6.8 Figure 1 above sets out the various areas across the council where managers need
to consider the risks in relation to their business, and how these should be
addressed. In practice, the council has various corporate systems and processes
which should be completed in order to ensure that risks are appropriately
considered. These are set out below in Table 1 below:

Table 1
Area/Process Action required/Response
Business/Service Planning Risk Register(s) to be completed

Project & Programme Management Haringey Project Management
Framework to be followed

Business Continuity/Disaster Business Continuity Plan(s) to be
Recovery completed

Health and Safety Risk Assessment(s) to be completed
Performance Management National (LAA) and local indicators to

be monitored

Management of Risk Corporate Policy& Strategy v6.1 — January 2010 Page 8



Page 301

7 RISK MANAGEMENT - THE FRAMEWORK

7.1 Our vision is that all significant risks which may prevent the Council from achieving
its objectives and all appropriate opportunities are identified, assessed and cost
effectively managed, as part of the whole Council performance management
process.

7.2 The key objectives of the framework are to ensure that the Council has a
consistent approach and basis for measuring, controlling, monitoring, follow-up
and reporting of risk that is based on what the Council, not any individual, judges
to be acceptable levels of risk.

7.3 The framework demonstrates how the management of risk is embedded in the
various business processes across the council, including business planning,
financial planning, business continuity, performance management and project
management.

7.4 Table 2 below provides a summary of the council’s business planning cycle and

how the business processes operate within this.

able 2
Timing Activity Completed by Key Contact
moril Finalise Business BU Head Policy and
Plans Performance
Team
April, June Review and update | BU Head/ DMT/ | Head of Audit &
September, of risk register CEMB Risk Mgmt/Policy
December & Performance
Team
April and Review and update | BU Head/ DMT/ | Emergency
September of Business CEMB Planning and
Continuity Plan Business
Continuity
Manager
September Complete Pre- BU Head Policy and
Business Plan Performance
Review Team
| April - March | Collate and monitor | BU Head Policy and
performance Performance
Indicators Team
April - March | Submission of Project Lead Project
Project Management Management
Highlight reports Office
April Undertake risk BU Head/ DMT Health & Safety
assessments Manager

Management of Risk Corporate Policy& Strategy v6.1 — January 2010

Page 9



Page 302

7.5 Education, training & awareness is achieved by:

Facilitated workshops, training sessions and meetings with Members, managers
and staff at various levels.

A developing framework of standards, practical guidance notes and briefings.
Regular meetings with managers and staff to heighten awareness and share
views, ideas and experiences.

7.6 From April 2009, the Council has implemented Covalent as its corporate

performance management framework. This electronic interactive database is used
for the following:

Corporate, departmental and business unit risk registers that will be updated on
a continuous basis. These will be based on identifying an “analysis gap”
between “where we are now” and where we want to be over an agreed
timeframe.

High level risk actions that form part of Managers’ performance management
dashboards.

A database of risk data and information for analysis and reporting.

The identification of control areas that need to underpin the Strategic and
Annual Internal Audit Plans.

Further integration with outcomes from value for money reviews; outstanding
high risk audit recommendations; corporate health and safety risks; business
continuity management; Civil Contingencies Act; Crime and Disorder; and
Equalities.

Effective links between risk management, performance management and
business planning.

7.7 Previous sections of this strategy have listed the areas where the council requires

managers to complete corporate processes. Table 3 below details the appendices
which set out how the framework operates in practice for each of these areas:

Table 3

Area

Appendix

Completion of Risk Registers A

Project & Programme Management B
Business Continuity Plans C
D

Performance Management Framework
(Overview)

Management of Risk Corporate Policy& Strategy v6.1 — January 2010 Page 10



Page 303

8 HOW ARE RISKS REVIEWED AND REPORTED?

8.1The council has various means of measuring and recording risks. The reporting of each
of these areas, together with the links between each process, is set out below.

8.2 Risk registers are subject to regular review and update on a quarterly basis by business
units, departments and CEMB. The timing for the quarterly review coincides with and
forms part of the annual business planning process. Key risks are escalated from
business unit registers to departmental registers and ultimately on to the corporate
register where the realisation of the risk may impact on the ability to achieve corporate
or statutory objectives.

8.3The Corporate Business Continuity Plan (BCP) is reviewed on a quarterly basis, and
subject to test on an annual basis. The Emergency Planning and Business Continuity
Planning team maintain the corporate plan, incorporating lessons from incidents and
exercises. Business Unit BCP’s should be reviewed twice a year in line with the
business planning cycle (in September and April). Reports are provided to CEMB and
members detailing the implementation and management of the council’s BCP’s. Key
BCP risks are included on business unit, departmental and the corporate risk register
as appropriate.

S.4 e council’s project management framework requires risks affecting each project to
be reviewed prior to the submission of each project highlight report (normally monthly)
and reported to the relevant project and programme board. Reports to CEMB and
iiinbers are provided on a regular basis as part of the reporting cycle. Projects which
carry significant risks to the achievement of business unit or departmental objectives
should be included in business unit or departmental risk registers, with escalation to the
corporate risk register in cases where the failure of the project may impact on the ability
to achieve corporate or statutory objectives.

8.5Health and safety risks are addressed based on the Health and Safety Executive’s
‘Sensible Risk Management’ strategy, which the council has adopted. Managers at all
levels are required to ensure that key assessment processes e.g. display screen
assessments and safe working practices are completed on a regular basis. Reports to
CEMB and members detailing compliance with the council’s policies are provided on a
regular basis.

8.6 Performance management information, including statutory and local performance
indicators, is provided on a regular basis to CEMB and members. The council uses a
‘scorecard’ to highlight key risk areas.

8.7 The Council has to produce an Annual Governance Statement every year, which is an
assessment of the systems the Council has in place to control and manage the services
they provide. This risk management strategy and framework will provide assurance to
CEMB and members that risks are being properly managed.

Management of Risk Corporate Policy& Strategy v6.1 — January 2010 Page 11



Page 304



Page 305

APPENDIX A
The completion of risk registers

1. ldentification of risks

1.1Risk registers should allow Business Unit Heads, Directorate Managers and
members of CEMB to identify and manage those risks which are the most
important in making sure that the council delivers its services effectively.

1.2The first stage of the process is to identify the risks (including opportunities)
facing the Business Unit/Directorate/Council. In line with the CIPFA/SOLACE
guidance, Haringey’s risk management framework is linked to business
objectives. These business objectives are identified by departments and
business units as part of the annual business planning process.

1.3The council has a corporate risk register which identifies the most significant
risks facing it. Each department has its own risk register which identifies the
key high level risks which could impact on the directorate or the council as a
whole. All business units within the council also have their own risk registers
which focus on the risks affecting each individual service, although some of
the risks may have an impact on whether the department or the Council
meets its objectives.

2. Assessment of risks
2.1 When all the relevant risks have been identified, a numerical scoring system
3 used to determine which are the key risks to the department or business
unit. Risks are scored using two factors:
e Likelihood. An assessment is made of how likely the risk is to occur in
practice; and
e Impact. An assessment is made on if the risk did occur, what would be
the impact on the department, business unit, or system.

2.2Managers decide on the likelihood and impact of each of the risks identified
for their department or business unit as they are in the best position to be able
to assess the likelihood and impact of each of the risks on their specific
departments.

2.3In order to ensure a consistent approach across the Council, specific criteria
have been agreed for the likelihood and impact scores. The Impact and
Likelihood Scales are attached at Appendix A1, which also provides further
detail on when the relevant managers should take action, or further action, to
manage risks effectively and consistently.

2.4The impact and likelihood of individual risks may change over time, therefore
" is important to review the assessments which have been made on a regular
basis.

<.o1he identified control in place to manage each risk should either reduce the
likelihood that a risk will occur, or the impact if it were it to occur. If the score
ie still at an unacceptably high level having considered the controls in place,
..ditional actions may be required in order to reduce the risk level further.

2.4The Council’s objective is to make sure that the most cost-effective controls
~*= in place for each risk, and that managers have considered the cost against
uie benefit of the control. This may mean that certain risks have a high residual
score because the cost of reducing the risk may be higher than the potential
cost, if the risk actually happens.

Page 1 of 4



Page 306

APPENDIX A
The completion of risk registers

2.5The risk registers therefore contain the following:

e service delivery objectives;

o key risks and which officer is responsible for managing those risks;

e controls in place to manage the risks, and who is responsible for those
controls;

e risk scores; and

e any further actions required, and who is responsible, together with a
timescale for completion.

3. Assurances on the effectiveness of key controls

3.1 The Council wants to ensure that the controls which managers say are in
place to manage the key risks, are both in place and working effectively. The
annual programme of internal audit work includes resources to test the key
controls specified within the risk registers, based on the level of risk involved.

4. Monitoring of risks

4.15etting up the risk registers is only one part of the risk management process.
In order to achieve real benefits from implementing risk management, it is
important that the risk registers are reviewed and kept up to date on a
quarterly basis, in accordance with the corporate risk management strategy.

4.2 e Chief Executive’s Management Board (CEMB) will review and update the
corporate risk register on a quarterly basis. The update may take the form of
new risks, changes to or additional controls, and changes to risk scores. Key
triggers for significant changes to risk registers will be new or changing
regulations, implementation of new departmental or corporate projects, high
staff turnover, changes in the external environment, and Internal Audit
reviews.

4.3The Audit Committee will, on an annual basis, review the corporate risks
identified and confirm their acceptance of both the risks which have been
identified, and the actions in place to manage them.

4.4Using the framework, a consistent methodology for measuring and scoring
risks is applied throughout the Council. What is an acceptable level of risk for
the Council, and what managers need to do to deal appropriately with risks
at various levels, is detailed at Appendix A1.

Page 2 of 4



Page 307

APPENDIX A

The completion of risk registers

APPENDIX A1 - Impact and Likelihood Scales

To be used as a guide in assessing risk ratings:

Descriptor

Impact Guide

No impact

Financial loss up to £5,000 or no
impact outside single objective or no
adverse publicity

Financial loss up to £10,000 or no
impact outside single objective or no
adverse publicity

Financial loss up to £50,000 or minor
regulatory consequence or some
impact on other objectives

Financial loss up to £100,000 or
impact on other objectives or local
adverse publicity or strong regulatory
criticism

Financial loss up to £300,000 or
impact on many other processes or
local adverse publicity or regulatory
sanctions (such as intervention, public
interest reports)

Financial loss up to £500,000 or
impact on strategic level objectives or
national adverse publicity or strong
regulatory sanctions

Financial loss up to £1 million or
impact at strategic level or national
adverse publicity or Central
Government take over administration

Financial loss above £1 million or
major impact at strategic level or
closure/transfer of business

Likelihood Guide

<1% likely to occur in next 12 months

1%-5% likely to occur in next 12
months

5%-10% likely to occur in next 12
months
10%-20% likely to occur in next 12
months
20%-30% likely to occur in next 12
months
30%-40% likely to occur in next 12
months
40%-60% likely to occur in next 12
months
60%-80% likely to occur in next 12
months
>80% likely to occur in next 12
months

Page 3 of 4



Page 308

APPENDIX A
The completion of risk registers

Measuring what is an acceptable risk

9|9 |18 |27
8 ar{ 16 |24
77 {14 |21 |28
Impact |6 | clkqge Red
51 Amber
4 :7 Green
3
2
1 s
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
Likelihood
Risk Score | Value Action required
12 or less Up to Acceptable level of risk.
£50k No further action is required to reduce risks, but managers should
ensure that the relevant controls are operating effectively.
However, departmental managers should review the controls for low
risk areas carefully, to ensure there are not too many controls in place.
14 - 30 £5k - Implementation of additional controls is required.
£300K The costs and benefits of additional controls should be considered.
The relevant departmental management team may then agree that no
further action should be taken. This decision must be recorded on the
risk register.
32 or more £50k - Implementation of additional controls is required.
£1m If the Business Unit, or Department does not want to introduce any
more controls, they must seek approval from CEMB. Any agreement
from CEMB must be recorded on the risk register.
If the impact of the risk is considered significant (impact score of 5 or
6) and/or the likelihood of the risk happening is thought to be high
(likelihood score of 9), the relevant departmental management team
- must review them and agree the approach to manage them.
If the impact of the risk is considered substantial, major or catastrophic
(impact score of 7, 8 or 9), CEMB must review them and agree the
approach to manage them.

Page 4 of 4




Page 309
Appendix B

Project and Programme Management

Projects are one-off activities which bring about change. Projects tend to be

risky for two reasons, because:

1. the organisation has limited, if any, experience of undertaking the work
before; and

2. the impact of change cannot always be predicted from the outset.

To minimise risk to work done in a project environment project managers
follow Haringey’s Project Management Framework (PMF). The PMF outlines:
set project management processes;

roles and responsibilities;

guidance on governance; and

the monitoring structure, sign-off procedures, and quality assurance
provided by the Programme Management Office.

It also contains standard templates for all key documents and guidance on
how they should be completed.

The Council also has a Corporate Programme Management Office (PMO) to
“sure compliance with the PMF and to manage risk at a programme level.

The Risk Management Cycle

All risks within the project environment, whether programme or project level,
are handled according to the standard risk management cycle. See diagram
below:

Hisk Analysis

Select ‘

an and resource [

- .isk Management at Programme vs. Project level

Programme-level risks are those risks which affect the intended benefits of a

programme. There are two main types of programme level risks:

a) those risks which affect all or a number of projects within the programme;
and

-; those risks which so substantially affect the benefits of a key project that
they put the programme benefits at risk.

~.use risks are held by the Corporate PMO in the Programme Risk and Issue
Log. The Corporate PMO manages the log by:
* Horizon scanning for risk;
* Holding and updating the log, whether risks are raised inside or outside
the PMO; ‘

Page 1 of 2



Page 310
Appendix B

» Circulating the log to the Programme Boards and through the Chairs of
the Boards to CEMB and other key stakeholders to ensure that there is an
awareness of risks; and

» Monitoring whether risk owners are undertaking management action as
assigned.

Project-level risks are those risks which affect the intended outputs or
benefits of the project. Project managers are responsible for managing and
logging project level risks. Project managers may delegate the management
of risk to appropriate risk ‘owners’, but they retain accountability for the
management of risk. Project managers are expected to keep unwanted
outcomes to an acceptable minimum.

Project managers should review the project risk log every time they submit a
Project Highlight Report. A full risk review of the project should be
undertaken at the end of every project stage.

Link with Corporate Risk Management Processes

The steps in project and programme risk management are as follows:

1. Risks which are identified at project level are logged by the project
manager in the project risk log, and if this places the directorate’s
objectives at risk, it should also be logged on the Corporate Risk Register
for the Business Unit.

2. Corporate PMO receive a copy of each project’s risk log as part of the
monthly Project Highlight Report.

3. Corporate PMO assess whether the risks are deemed significant at
programme level. If they are, the risk is logged in the Programme Risk
Log. The Programme Risk Log is circulated to all project managers,
sponsors, and the senior management team on a monthly basis.

4. Programme-level risks may also be picked up by Corporate PMO and
other stakeholders through horizon-scanning. If they are also significant
at the project level they may be devolved down to the project manager for
monitoring within the project environment too. This process is shown in
the diagram below:

~ Corporate Risk Log
Programme TR
Level Risk
Risks can be escalated '
up or devolved down by
Project Board / Teamor
Corporate PMO AR S
~ Corporate Risk Log

t Project Level Risk

Page 2 of 2



Page 311
APPENDIX C

Business Continuity Plans

1. Overview

1.1Business Continuity Plans allow Business Unit Heads, Departmental
Managers and members of CEMB to manage threats or incidents that have
the potential to disrupt the delivery of services or the conduct of Council
business.

1.2By focusing on the impact of disruptive events, BCM identifies the critical
services and function the organisation depends on, and what is required for
the organisation to continue to meet its obligations to its many stakeholders.
This allows the organisation to:
e Take steps to protect its people, premises, IT, supply chain, reputation etc
» Plan to respond effectively to disruptive events and challenges

1.3Business Continuity Management is a cyclical process, and is designed to
manage and control risks which can be described as “low probability, high
impact” events. It involves four stages:

Understanding the organisation

Determining the Business Continuity Strategy

Developing and implementing the BCM Plans

Exercising maintaining and reviewing

¢

L

1.4.1t requires both leadership and ownership from senior management, and
understanding and support throughout the organisation. For this reason,
Business Continuity Management is a mainstream activity, that is required of
all Business Units.

2 Roles and responsibilities
2.1 The Emergency Planning and Business Continuity Team are responsible for :
e maintaining the corporate Business Continuity Plan, and advising CEMB of
key Business Continuity risks, and mitigation strategies.
¢ providing advice and training to Business Units to support their Business
Continuity planning.
¢ Providing a programme of exercising to validate corporate and Business
Unit plans.

2.2 Heads of Business Units are responsible for:
» Considering the risk of business continuity disruption in their Risk Register
» Ensuring Business Continuity Plans are in place and reviewed twice a year.
 Providing data to the Emergency Planning and Business Continuity Team
to inform the corporate Business Continuity strategy.

. ..ch Directorate should appoint a Tier 2 lead on Business Continuity who will:

» Lead on and champion Business Continuity within the Directorate

= Represent the Directorate on the corporate Business Continuity
Management team in the event of an incident requiring a corporate
response.

Page 1 of 4



Page 312
APPENDIX C

3 Understanding the organisation
3.1There are two aspects to this stage of Business Continuity Planning:
« |dentification and assessment of Business Continuity risks
« Analysis of the criticality of services and functions, and the resources
required to support them.

3.2Business continuity risks are identified by the Emergency Planning and
Business Continuity Team, based on the Community Risk Register compiled
in conjunction with the Emergency Services. Other Business Continuity Risks
are identified by the IT Services.

3.3Guidance on the likelihood of these risks occurring is provided centrally to
Business Units, who must then consider the impact of these risks on their
own operations and services. Business Units are expected to enter into their
Risk Register any individual BC risks that are of particular significance to
them, or a generic BC risk if no individual risk is significant.

3.4Analysis of the criticality of services and functions of a Business Unit is
undertaken on the basis of the length of time the service could cease to
function for, before a “Level 5” impact was felt on the Council Risk
Management Framework Impact scale (see Appendix B1). Since this
prioritisation of services will determine the order in which the Council recovers
its services in the event of an incident, these priorities should be agreed with
the responsible Cabinet Member.

3.5Each service is also required to identify and report to the Emergency Planning
and Business Continuity Team annually on the resources they would require
to maintain their service, considering:

People

Premises / workspace

Resources

Suppliers

IT

Vehicles

*e e o o o

4 Determining the Business Continuity Strategy

4.1The Councils Business Continuity Strategy operates at two levels: local
strategies developed by Business Units and services managers, and the
corporate strategy for dealing with larger events.

4.2Each Business Unit is required to identify local actions they can take to
maintain services in an incident. These can include remote working,
temporary suspension of non-key functions, supplier management strategies
etc. Business Units should also consider what actions they can take to
improve the resilience of their operations - for example by changing
operational processes, identifying alternative suppliers of goods and services,
identifying changes to the configuration of premises or infrastructure.

4.3 Corporate Business Continuity strategy focuses primarily on larger disruption
of access to premises, and major workforce disruption. This strategy is
developed based on an analysis of the data provided by the Business Units
(see 2.5).

Page 2 of 4



Page 313
APPENDIX C

4.4 This plan is linked to the IT Disaster Recovery Plan, and provides the priority
order for recovery of IT Services in aftermath of an incident affecting IT
Services.

5 Developing the Business Continuity Plans

5.1The Business Continuity Response is again split into corporate and local
actions. The Corporate Business Continuity Plan sets out the incident
management framework for the Council as a whole, roles and responsibilities,
notification and escalation processes.

5.2Business Unit or service Business Continuity Plans are produced according to
a corporate template, and include local naotification and incident management
arrangements and checklists, along with the recovery requirements and
actions plans for restoration of services.

5.3Every Business Unit must have a Business Continuity Plan or plans covering
every aspect of their service.

5.4Business Units are also required to verify the Business Continuity
arrangements of their key suppliers and partners.

6 Exercising, maintaining and reviewing

A 1 The Corporate Business Continuity Plan is reviewed on a quarterly basis, and
exercised annually. The Emergency Planning and Business Continuity
Planning team maintain the plan, incorporating lessons from incidents and
exercises.

6.2Business Unit plans are required to be reviewed twice a year (in September
and April). These reviews should take account of lessons from incidents and
exercises, and organisational and operational changes that have occurred
since the last review.

6.3In addition, the Emergency Planning and Business Continuity Plan will audit a
number of Business Unit plans each year on a risk basis.

6.4Business Units plans will be exercised at least every three years, based on a
corporate programme developed by the Emergency Planning and Business
Continuity Team.

Page 3 of 4



Page 314

tJ0  2%ed

‘pasiiiond 89 J0U |IIM S8DIAIBS 9S8} UsY] — |1ouno) syl o} jeusaiur Ajaund sy juspioul ayy i sidwexs 1oy — paainbai s| ssuodsal
AousbBisws ou §| ‘Aousbiaws ue ul o1jgnd sy} Jo SpPssu 81eIpawL} 84l 01 puodsal 0] papasu sadiIAIes asiiioud |Im IounoD ay |

“)SU y)eay snouss e 1e aq ||om Aew pausiA
10U 8J8M OUM SIUBI[O ‘papuadsns sem siy] I — S8OIAI9G aJe)) sWoH ‘ajdwexs Jo4 "peiosye Ajs1eipsiuw

si oljgnd 8y} JO aJejam ay) 81aym 8soyy ase A1oBeleo siy O1ul [} 1ey] S821AIes AJuo ay) ‘|eiausb uj

‘Aiobaied

SIY1 O1ul [je} OS|e Aew ‘pusdsap S82IAISS JaY10 AUBLL UYdIym UO ‘]| 9l S8OIAIBS
‘A1oB81e0 siyl o1ul fje} jjlem Aew ongnd ay3 01 s|qIsin AUsA a1e Yoiym SeoInIeg

"'seousnbasuoo snouss Jnoyum

‘shep maj e 10} pakejap aq ueod Buisues|o 199.11S
‘sldwexa Jo4 "|eolI0-swil Aj@1BIpawill J0uU g
‘wuswsie Buloey-olgnd e yum saoines aq 01 Ay

‘018
wuswdojansp Abaieiis
‘UoIEeYNSUOD YoM
108loud aq 01 A1y

ﬁ

A

wis1o1uo Aioiejn

bas buosys 1o Audignd asiaApe [B20] 10 saAoalqo

J9Y10 uo 1oedwi 10 000‘00L3 01 dn ssoj [eioueul4 "9'| :1oedWw| G |9A9T,, B 9ABY uondnusip 89IAJ8S pinom jutod jeym 1y

buipioooe
‘Aluond 18y} o} sexoq asayj ul S80IAI8S JO S}08dSe 10 | S80JAIBS [BNPIAIPUI 1SIT
(shep (sinoy (sinoy
(+ Moom ) € UIYHM 19A008Y) $2 UIUIM J19A008Y) ¥ UIYHM JBA0D8Y) (s1e1pOWILLY)
Auiold mo Aiuoud wnipsiy Awoud ybiH S9OINISG [eoNu) | asuodsay Aouabiawg

¢owi A1anooal 196.1e] 8y} pue ‘JUSpIOUI UB JO JUSA® 8y} ul ‘Alnuiluo) ssauisng Joj sanuoud InoA ale Jeym

O XIaN3ddv

apINY uonesilold 9dIA2G 11 g XIANIddVY




Page 315
APPENDIX D

Performance Management Framework

An overview

Haringey has a clear vision with strong political and managerial leadership. The vision is
reflected in Haringey’s Community Strategy which sets out the ambitions for the borough
and the outcomes we want to achieve. It provides the framework for all our plans and
puts the community at the heart of everything we do. We have established a golden
thread that links the Community Strategy to our Council Plan, business plans and
performance appraisal of our staff.

The diagram below shows our approach to performance management and how all the
component parts fit together.

Haringey’s Performance Management Approach

Sustainable Community Strategy
Council Plan

Local Area Agreement

Financial Strategy

Key Strategic Plans

Business Plans

Needs analyses

Horizon Scanning

Setting Objectives

* & & & & & & o

d Setting Targets
* for Improvement

Commissioning

i Reviewing: f Delivering

r

f Performance
t Performance . services

e LAA

¢ Council and HSP
Performance Framework

e Annual Residents Survey /

Strategy 5 @
4 < & Place Survey
@) :
O Management F + Complaints & Member
S Enquires analysis
% ‘Improving; . ll:re Business Plan Reviews
; . inance & Performa
£ Services " Renorts rmanee
) ) ¢ Performance appraisals
e Service Reviews «  Staff Survey
* Programme
Management
e Scrutiny

Page 1 of 3



Page 316
APPENDIX D

Three-year targets for improvement are set out in our Council Plan, business plans and in
the Council’s Financial Strategy. Stretch targets have been agreed between Haringey
and the Government in our Local Area Agreement (LAA). Our Local area agreement
focuses specifically on addressing the big issues identified by the local community. We
negotiated thirteen stretch targets in line with our priorities as part of our first LAA and
have signed off a new LAA covering the period 2008/09 to 2010/11 including 35 key
improvement targets and a number of local targets.

Performance against objectives and targets is reviewed through a number of well-
established mechanisms. The Community Strategy and progress against national and
local improvement targets in our Local Area Agreement is monitored through a
performance management framework developed for the Haringey Strategic Partnership
(HSP). Regular performance review is undertaken by the HSP thematic partnership
boards. The HSP main board and the executive Performance Management Group receive
quarterly updates on areas key to both the delivery of the Community Strategy and the
Local Area Agreement.

Progress against the business plans is reviewed mid-year through the Pre-business Plan
Review (PBPR) process. The review is reported to Scrutiny and Cabinet Members and
feeds into budget planning ensuring that resources are directed to priorities. Business
Plans are reviewed at year end and at this stage, 3 year targets are set in line with best
performance in comparable authorities.

Every month, Management Board and Cabinet Members receive a report (with a
performance appendix) that tracks performance against a basket of key national and local
indicators and expenditure against budget. The report focuses on reviewing performance
against council priorities. In addition there are quarterly performance discussions at
Cabinet Advisory Board. These discussion focus on seeking solutions and for areas
where targets are not being met.

We have a well established performance appraisal scheme which ensures that our staff
are clear about their contribution towards the council’s objectives and that they have the
necessary skills to deliver quality services. In 2007 the Council’s Performance Appraisal
system was updated with the introduction of a revised competency framework and
management standards and upward appraisal feedback were introduced in 2008. The
council has long recognised the importance of the organisational culture and people’s
behaviours as a major determinant of our ability to meet aims and aspirations.

The views of our residents are important to us and we consider them as key indicators of
our performance. Every year we commission an independent residents survey which
tfracks perceptions over time and against other London authorities. This information
informs our business and other strategic plans. Every eighteen months we also carry out
an independent staff survey which shapes the way we manage and develop our staff. We
arc 2Iso an accredited Investor in People employer.

“~mplaints and Members' Enquires are key in identifying problem areas and in learning
from our mistakes in order to improve services.

Page 2 of 3



Page 317
APPENDIX D

Where we feel that performance can be improved we take action to do so. Some of the
mechanisms we use include: service reviews, Business Process Re-design and Scrutiny
Reviews led by Overview and Scrutiny Members. To ensure that key projects are
delivered within time and budget we use our project management framework which is
based on Prince2.

An outline of the monthly performance review process is set out below.

Monthly Performance Review Process

Who? Process

* Directorate P

Performance Teams .
e Service Finance | Prepare Directorate Dashboard

leads

L
¥
Submit monthly dash

Directorate dashboard | board to Policy &
v mator ' Performance Team

(Richard Hutton)

/

Collate combined packs
(finance, performance and
HR) for monthly officer
meeting

Policy & Performance Team

7

o Chief Executive f

e Director o

«  Chief Financial Officer Hold combined monthly

« ACE POD Budget, Performance & HR
e ACE PPP&C officer review meetings

i:?
 Collate & circulate
+ actions arising ‘«1
from meetings

Corporate Finance

Directors office/support
co-ordinate responses
from Heads of Service/

[

§
; Send responses
g to actions arising

from meetings

“ractors
7
Policy & Performance i Prepare monthly summary
- vorate Finance | Finance & Performance

E Report for CEMB & Cabinet

Page 3 of 3



Page 318

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	6 Grant Thornton Progress report
	7 Grants Report 2008/09
	8 External Audit Plan 2009/10
	9 Tackling Health Inequalities in Haringey - Follow Up report
	10 JAR action plan update
	JAR Appendix 1. Milestone Report Updated
	JAR Appendix 2. Performance Report Updated
	JAR Appendix 3. Risk Report Updated

	11 Data Quality - update report
	Final Data Quality Strategy
	DQS Action Plan - December 2009 (2)
	DQS Action Plan 2010_11final (2)

	12 Housing benefits 3rd quarter progress report on counter fraud activity
	13 Implementation of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) - progress report
	14 Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) and Investment Strategy 2010/11 to 2012/13
	15 Internal audit 3rd quarter progress report
	16 Internal Audit - CIPFA benchmarking
	17 Review of the effectiveness of the Audit Committee
	18 Anti money laundering regulations and Council policy
	19 Quarter 3 Risk management update and revised corporate risk management policy

